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Important: The board of directors (“Board of Directors”) and the
supervisory committee (“Supervisory Committee”) and each of the
directors (“Directors”), the supervisors (“Supervisors”) and the senior
officers (“Senior Officers”) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (the “Company”) hereby confirm that there are no
false representations, material omissions or misleading statements
contained in this report, and they, severally and jointly, accept full
responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
contents of this report.

The chairman (Ms. Guo Qin), financial controller (Mr. Zhao Songguo)
and the chief of the finance department (Mr. Wang Jianxin) of the
Company hereby declare that the financial report of the Company
for 2009 is true and complete.

This report has been prepared in both Chinese and English. In the
event of any discrepancy between the two versions, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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1.

S BBNEBBERE

Summary of Financial and Operating Results

Key financial data for the year ended 31

NWNEEEXFESHBE (EE December 2009 prepared in accordance with
it) PRC accounting standards (Audited)
HE ltems —BEH
2009
AR T
RMB
BN E Operating profit 135,909,489.78

GIVEESEE
5B LT AR R R A FA

BB LT ARBCRA R
FERFMERROFNE ()

REFHEENRSNEFH

Profit before taxation

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company
after extraordinary (Note)

Net cash flow from operating activities

119,373,878.21
102,244,346.19

109,058,885.67

344,795,891.77

Kia - EREMBROMBIEE Re5E (A7 Note:  Extraordinary items after income tax include:
"HE) BT -
EHE ltems ARET
RMB
FRDEERERR Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets (17,333,032.45)

FAEHRBROBUTHHE -
EERAFEFLEEBZR AR
HEBEXHEATE
BRE-CRETERTERE
F XU 78 B BR S

BRRAAEREEXBRANEAED
REXBHIN FEXZUEREE
RPNEHABELNLABEES RS -
NRRERXZUETREE
RHUEMABNAIRHESREE
RBHHRE R

B L& IE 2 SN H A& RIMRA RS i
LEBRERTER

AARYER
ast

Government subsidies recognise in current
profit and loss, (excluding those closely
related to the Company’s normal operations
and granted on an ongoing basis under
the State’s policies according to
certain quota of amount or volume)

Gains/losses from fair value
changes of trading financial assets and
trading financial liabilities,
and investment income from
disposal of trading financial assets,
trading financial liabilities and
available-for-sale financial assets,
except effective hedging activities related to
the Company’s normal operations

Non-operating income or cost
except items above

Minority interests

Income tax

Total

2,5667,870.12

10,586,380.93

(1,766,653.63)

27,693.16
(896,697.61)

(6,814,539.48)
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

1. BRAPESHEAHREH =T 1. Key financial data for the year ended 31

NEEFESHHE (EE December 2009 prepared in accordance

i) (= with PRC accounting standards (Audited)
(continued)

BRALNAEEHENEE Items by fair value

FHaR  HARGHRH
Hned - RESDHE  AAEESD  FWHRORE LibS

Amount as at Total Amount as at
1 January Change of change of Provision 31 December
BHH Items 2009 fair value fair value impairment 2009
(ARET) (ARET) (ARET) (ARET) (ARET)
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
SREE: Financial assets:
He o, AREE Include: 1. Financial assets - = = = -
FrERH by fair value
BEHHAEH and its change is
B#&A included into
CRAE profit and loss
Hb A opEE Include: ~ Derivative - = = = =
financial assets
2. AEHE 2. Available-for-sale 94,766,950.00 — 176,706,815.00 — 201,595,788.00
SRHEE financial assets
SREEN Total of financial assets 94,766,950.00 - 176,706,815.00 —  201,595,788.00
SRAR Financial liabilities 7591,083.73  7,591,083.73 = = =
Sl Total 102,358,0383.73 7,691,083.73  176,706,815.00 - 201,595,788.00

\Li R #7 # %W K43 5 A 3 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Gompany
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

2. HMERE 2. Financial Summary
(i) BREBLTREMZE:TRE (i) In accordance with Hong Kong Generally Accepted
B (REET) Accounting Principles (‘HKGAAP”) (Audited)
Hekax Consolidated income statement
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&5))"
(restated)”
RS Revenue 2,295,101 2,077,753 1,865,568 1,685,367 1,712,102
BB AR Profit before taxation 116,388 41,447 37,364 29,733 13,194
ek (BR)/ K% Income tax (expense)/credit (13,008) (5,677) 400 (7,784) (13,696)
REEER Profit for the year 103,380 35,770 37,764 21,949 (502)
YRR Minority interests (3,693) 5,706 5,946 (812) (1,731)
ARREAEEER  Profit attributable to owners 99,687 30,064 31,818 22,761 1,229
of the Company
GEMBKRAR Consolidated statement of financial position
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ARBTTT ANEEFT AREFT AREFT AEEFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&))"
(restated)*
BEE Total assets 2,636,363 2,159,424 2,260,100 1,881,575 2,211,328
BEE Total liabilities (955,542) (659,144) (526,061) (509,088) (841,191)
DERERE Minority interests (36,318) (33,746) (50,799) (3,343) (1,002)
ARRTEAEGES Equity attributable to owners 1,644,503 1,466,534 1,683,246 1,369,144 1,369,045
of the Company
* AR B2005F12 8318 % ¥ Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the change in
EBEGH LGS 2 i5E accounting policy to the consolidated financial statements
BARS R R FTat 2 & 5 BUR prepared under HKGAAP for the year ended 31 December

ZEE - BAEHATHAE -

2005.

Shand&g Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1L 5 $7 % S % 8% 45 /5 FR 2 7]




ENBEBNEXBRERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

2.

MBW/E(E)

(i)

2. Financial Summary (continued)
PR e ER R (KRE (i) In accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)
&)
REL
EEER%)
Change as
EH 2009 2008 compared to 2007
Item AEET AEET the last year AEET
RMB RMB (%) RMB
HEH HER
Before adjusted After adjusted
2ERA 2,321,927,213.25  2,096,963,709.91 10.78  1,886,978,951.19  1,886,978,951.19
Operating income
GilbEFat 119,373,878.21 46,040,186.22 159.28 46,510,493.48 46,510,493.48
Profit before taxation
FER ETARREAFFH A 102,244,346.19 33,965,477.41 201.02 32,723,034.60 32,723,034.60
Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of parent company
FBR EMARRR MM
@SBRI SR 109,058,885.67 43,449,423.86 151.00 9,959,541.29 9,793,035.79
Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of parent company
after extraordinary loss
BERDEANRERETE 344,795,801.77 108,479,359.78 233.20 120,591,043.84 120,591,043.84
Net cash flow from
operating activities
BRESEDELNGENEFE 0.75 0.23 226.09 0.26 0.26
Net cash flow from operating
activities per share
BEE 2,626,187,060.38  2,161,734,318.69 2149 2,270,714,981.14  2,263,193,375.71
Total assets
GBI EMARRR G EEE 1,633,645,846.35  1,453,252,991.36 1241 1665960,952.04  1,665,960,952.04
Total equity attributable to holders
of parent company
Bkl 0.22 0.07 214.29 0.07 0.07
Earnings per share
GEREMAARRERFEE 3.57 3.18 12.26 3.64 3.64
Net assets per share attributable to
holders of parent company
VT3 & E s (%) 6.83 208 EF480EEDH 2.40 2.40
Return on equity of weighted Increase 4.80 points
average (%)
NEE R B R M 7.28 250  tFH4GIEEHE 0.73 0.72

FRAENEHY)

Return on equity of weighted average

after extraordinary loss (%)

Increase 4.69 points

tical Company Limited




ERBNEBHERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

2. HMEBEE) 2.  Financial Summary (continued)
(ii) P HeHER R (KE (i) In accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)

) (#) (continued)

7 1. BE(AHERITES Note: 1. Comparative information of the extraordinary profit
HMARIEERERE and loss is retrospectively adjusted as required by
MG FEIE—IER S new provisions in “Explanatory Announcement on
4 18 25(2008) ) # #8 8 Information Disclosures of Public Companies No.1 D
ME YIELEMR Extraordinary profit and Loss (2008)”.
@ H L EE BRI
REHERETEN
HE -

2. WBE(PEeEER 2. According to the requirements on the presentation
#R2008) BT 1S of income tax as set out in Basis for Conclusions of
Rl Accounting Standards for Enterprises 2008, “Generally,
[—ERT  ZEREEB current income tax assets and liabilities, and deferred
Bt Rk R P B HFT income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
SEHEERBERE can be stated in net terms after elimination in individual
EFEMEEREL financial statements.” The parent company’s deferred
PS5 & & a A LAIE income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
EHFERENIR] o K stated in net terms after elimination. For comparability
NGRS RS A:IR:oR %1 on the same basis, deferred income tax assets as at
P15 B & B R IE BT 31 December 2007 have been restated, leading to a
SHEENEKEED change in total assets as at 31 December 2007.
FREIR o BRRIFR
A AT b 1% - 92007
F12 8318 &L
BREEETENX
it i ¥ & 72007
F12A31 BB ELTE -

3. WMEBRKREREHE 3. There has been no change in the share capital of the
=R NN ¥ N = e Company from the end of the financial year 2008 to the
Bl o publication date of the results announcement of 2008.

(ifi) e E et & H 8RB (iii) Appendix to the profit and loss account prepared in
KK (&EF:T) accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)

SRS AEHT)
Earnings per share (RVB)
MEFEYBRERBE) EXSRES BESKRKS
Weighted average
BEHAHE return on equity (%) Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share
Reported Profit 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
5B £ A A B R A% A E 6.83 2.03 0.22 0.07 0.22 0.07
Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company

FER LT ARRRMMG 7.28 2.59 0.24 0.10 0.24 0.10

FEEEURRROFNE
Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company

after extraordinary items

S (S
- Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L 58 $f = $% R4 H R A 7




ENBBENEXBRERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

3. HREPESFHEAMEFEY 3. Reconciliation of accounts prepared in

ERzcEsIFRAEHEE accordance with PRC accounting standards
=2 and HKGAAP
FOFMEAEGET
Profit attributable to owners BHEE
of the Company Net assets
(AR¥7T) (AR¥7)
RMB RMB
E.3:1} | i} ] EY | ikt |
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2009 2009
REALREM €t RE 99,687,000.00 30,064,000.00 1,644,503,000.00 1,466,534,000.00
Prepared under HKGAAP
R e &L 102,244,346.19 33,965,477.41 1,633,645,846.35 1,453,252,991.36

Prepared under PRC accounting standards
BREALERM et RABBNAERAH -

HKGAAP adjustments:

RRERIE 427,653.81 692,000.00 (1,914,846.35)  (2,343,991.36)
Deferred taxation

RAFESEMELAZNEER (1,432,000.00) (409,000.00)  (21,300,000.00)  (19,868,000.00)
Depreciation charges due to revaluation in previous years

HEEES (1,421,000.00) 786,000.00  12,772,000.00  14,193,000.00
Provision for education fund

BREES 0.00 (4,993,000.00) 0.00 0.00
Provision for welfare expenses

AHR EMEEE 2 E/EE 0.00 0.00  21,300,000.00  21,300,000.00
Surplus from revaluation for listing of H Shares

Hity (132,000.00) 22,522.59 0.00 0.00
Others

BEBLEEMZ G RAA (2,557,346.19)  (3,901,477.41)  10,857,153.65  13,281,008.64

HKGAAP adjustments total
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ERPESFENNTER
BEREMZE s FEREGRE

=R (#E

Bat -

BRI B ERZROHA

REEFHA D R B R B AT
I ARARNME  BER
BREHREGMEEMLUES
FTEPSEBATIRITEEE AN
EEEGE HERXARNY
¥ BMERSEE—BIEE
B-= AT AERARIERD
FhmEEHNGHE SEEER
AR #21,300,000 7T ° HR%
SER B INEZE2009F12A
JIBLEFENHTEBERAAR
#21,300,0007T + H F20094
B AR1,432,0007T :

RBREAGHEAHBELER
ByX - EFBFHE - B E2009
F12A31B LR E R &%
AGHENHREREBHREAA
R #12,772,0007C * i1 A R #&
1,421,0007T A2009% E # &
KERAE

AR EEE  WAQRAMHE
EAMEBOERTEZRE R
FERFAHERAARE
1,914,846.357C * & HRIE ST A
SHiER B ARA427,653.81
JC s

H b= 2 AR #¥132,000.00
L ATRARRBERNEGE
AR F B IR B T2
B MZERESSERTS
AEHiE -

EfRBANEBEERE ()

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

Reconciliation of accounts prepared in
accordance with PRC accounting standards
and HKGAAP (continued)

Note:

Explanation of the difference between the PRC accounting standards

and HKGAAP:

1.

To prepare for the listing of Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Company’s property, plant and equipment were
valued by Shandong CPA Firm, a registered PRC valuer, based
on depreciated replacement cost. Subsequently, such property,
plant and equipment were revalued by Chesterton Petty Ltd.,
an independent valuer, as per the public market value, with
the revaluation appreciation of RMB21,300,000. Due to such
difference, the increase in depreciation expenses as at the
year ended 31 December 2009 was RMB21,300,000, including
RMB1,432,000 as at the year;

Education fees are set out as per the actual circumstances,
without need of provision under HKGAAP. As at 31 December
2009, the balance of education fees was RMB12,772,000 under
the PRC accounting standards with the increase in education of
RMB1,421,000 for the year;

Aforesaid difference also led to the difference in the Company’s
deferred income tax, with the difference in accumulated deferred
income tax of RMB1,914,846.35 and that in deferred income
tax of the current period of RMB427,653.81;

Other current difference of RMB132,000.00 was staff reward
picked up from net profit under the PRC accounting standards,
which should be picked up to current profit or loss.
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Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders

1. BpeDwEix 1. Share capital structure
B in %R 2009128 31H 200951810
Class of shares 31 December 2009 1 January 2009
BiT8E 111212 9:40] BizHE HRRELE
Number of % of the total Number of % of the total
Shares share capital Shares share capital
(share) (%) (share) (%)

1. BREGENREBRSS

Total number of shares subject to conditions of trading 187,809,725 41.07 187,809,202 41.07
GERETe
Stated-owned shares 164,207,424 35.91 163,258,735 35.70
BREARR
Domestic legal person shares 0 0 0 0
AREREKRERER
Senior management A shares subject to conditions of
trading 23,390 0.01 22,867 0.01
BNEEBEARR
Domestic non-state legal person shares 23,578,911 5,19 24,527,600 5.36
2. EREGHENRBRS
Total number of unconditional tradable shares 269,503,105 58.93 269,503,628 58.93
ARBLER (AR)
Renminbi ordinary shares (A shares) 119,503,105 26.13 119,503,628 26.13
HHN ETINERR (HAR)
Overseas listed foreign shares (H shares) 150,000,000 32.80 150,000,000 32.80
3. R
Total number of shares 457,312,830 100.00 457,312,830 100.00
Mzt . B ZE2009F12A31H #FFE £ E T Note: As at 31 December 2009, a total of 1,864,414 shares held
KRN A1,864,4140% % 15 # & )% by SXPGC in the Company have been frozen by judicature; a
Rt SEZRREERBERAA total of 11,250,000 shares held by Qingdao Haowei Investment
B AN A F]11,250,0000% A% 15 1% & Development Company Limited in the Company have been
R A5 0 1,864,414 IR 1D ¥ &) 0% mortgaged and total of 1,864,414 shares have been frozen by

R4S o judicature.




BRABERBRRITR (&)

Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

1. BHOEBEERIE (&) 1.  Share capital structure (continued)
RERGCEEHERER Change of conditional tradable shares
B R
Share
FERR FEEM
3 £1] FORERY BERN BERE FXREER RERE BREEEH
Number of
shares
subject to
Number of Increase conditions
shares subject Number of in shares of trading
to conditions  unconditional subject to as at
of trading as at tradable conditions 31 December Date of removing
Name of shareholders 1 January 2009  shares in 2009 of trading 2009  Conditions the conditions
WRHEREREARALLA 163,258,735 0 0 164207424  HRlGH 200906 A06F
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Special undertaking 6 June 2009
Group Company Limited
EERARERRERAA 15,000,000 0 0 15000000 EFHEREFHAE 20095067068
Qingdao Haowei Investment Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Development Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
MERHRTERRERDERLA 7,632,600 0 0 6,683,911 EFHERERFIAG 2009506 706H
Zibo High-Tech Venture Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Capital Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
RS \ZTEEEREALR 1,550,000 0 0 1,650,000 EFHEXERHIAG 2009F06A06H
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Industry Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
TETERERERAA 345,000 0 0 345000 EFHEEEFAAE 20094067065
Shangrao Daiwu Industrial Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
Ait 187,786,335 0 0 187,786,335 - -
Total
iF1: FESEESREE AFABERK Note 1: SXPGC has undertaken that between the 36th month and 48th

EELEmRAaEz RE3sEAR

month since the listing of the non-tradable shares of the Company,

—

ua Pharmaceutical Company Lim

TRBEFRXGAEEHEE - 2009
F6HA6H £2010F6A6H * BiBERF
B H 2 5 Fr b & AT iR T
BB R F AR A 5% - R
SERBFIBELFRGIEERS
HEMELEAR  HEEBERE
4.87T » BN 2 &) SZARR T 35 48 A
MRS & @M% AR [FER
2% | ABR B 17 5 35 W AR (B 9 150% (&
EREIEREFRERZBER
HERMHEARS « &R - BEX
AECEERNERESE  EY
ZERETRERE) - HESE
MREERZEAFNELRS &
HESKEEBNEREME -

ited ILRFERBERHERAR

it shall not sell any of its shares of the Company on the SZSE at
a price less than RMB4.8 per share, (such price will be on an ex-
rights basis if there is any declaration of dividends, bonus issues or
capitalization of capital reserve during the period between the day of
implementation of the revised share reform of the Company and sale
of the shares by SXPGC) being 150% of the average of the closing
prices of the listed A Shares as quoted on the SZSE in the thirty (30)
trading days prior to the issuance date of the relevant notice of the
shareholders’ meeting. Should SXPGC breach any of the provisions
of this undertaking in the sale of its shares, the proceeds resulting
from such sale shall be owned by the Company.
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Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

1. BREBRIE(EF) 1.
MR R R R ()

22 REBKRBREARRABRER
BHEMRERNBERR -

43 BBELUREABEEZEEEZETR
(2007) 6OSRIF Bk - FELEEB
BEFEA ¢ RBIB ADA R E IS R AR
ST = 3T BT LR 1% B BR 19 A BR
A A8 8 2 5] 1) ¥ {8948,689% -
Z B 10 B R2009F 12 A48 £ E
BEECDEEARETARRENS
ARMEBETEBEFE -

2. BERE\ERNA 2,

() RZBEZNF+_A=1+— ()
H - AR2aREEHAE
45,129F © B $EHAX I 5256
F - ARRA% 545,073F

Note 3:

Share capital structure (continued)

Change of conditional tradable shares (continued)

Note 2: The Company has proceeded to go through the procedures in

relation to the release of trading restrictions on the restricted shares
according to shareholders’ undertakes and relevant provisions.

According to the Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission Lu Guozi Kaoping
document No. (2007) 60, SXPGC recovered 948,689 shares from
Zibo High-Tech Venture Capital Company Limited through a judicial
auction. The transfer procedures were completed in the China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited Shenzhen
Branch on 4 December 2009.

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had on record
a total of 45,129 shareholders, including 56 holders of H
Shares and 45,073 holders of A Shares.

(ii) RZEZNF+=_A=+— (ii) As at 31 December 2009, the ten largest shareholders
BB AR RRMDA+ 8K of the Company were as follows:
RERAT
Fit BREE8 RS HRE  (SRERFLH%)
Number of % of the total
No Name of Shareholder Class of shares shares held share capital
1 LWRHFEREEBEREARA REAR 164,207,424 35.91
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical A Shares subject to
Group Company Limited conditions of trading
2 BERREE(KEA)AERAF mEHR 148,759,998 32.53
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Listed H Shares
3 ERERREERER A REAR 15,000,000 3.28
Qingdao Haowei Investment Development A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
4 HERFRMRREERNARA R BREAR 6,683,911 1.46
Zibo High-Tech Venture Capital A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
5 RERT — RERADHTEZESREEE  RBAR 2,499,932 0.55
China Bank — Jingshun Changcheng Dongli Listed A Shares
Pingheng Security Investment Fund
6 PEENZTREAREEAR IR EAK 1,550,000 0.34
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Industry Company Limited A Shares subject to
conditions of trading
7 EEE mBAR 609,851 0.13
Jiao Xiaohui Listed A Shares
8 KRN I BARR 440,000 0.10
Zhang Dongguang Listed A Shares
9 HSIA SIU KUN I iBHAR 362,000 0.08
HSIA SIU KUN Listed H Shares
10 B T BAR 360,000 0.08
Zhou Xiaoling Listed A Shares
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Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)
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Name of Shareholder

Substantial shareholders (continued)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2009, the ten largest shareholders

holding the unconditional tradable shares of the
Company were as follows:

REERSE4RNBE BRipESE
Number of unconditional

listed shares Class of shares

BEEPREE (REBA)BARAA

HKSCC (Nominees) Limited

FREIRIT — RIEREBHTEEFREES

Bank of China — Jingshun Changcheng Dongli
Pingheng Security Investment Fund

fEEEE

Jiao Xiaohui

RRH

Zhang Dongguang

HSIA SIU KUN

HSIA SIU KUN

B/ e

Zhou Xiaoling

FRIFHRT — RBERTEELRFVNESREES

ICBC-AIG-Huatai Industry-leading Equity
Security Investment Fund

Yang Zheng

Ik E =N

Beijing Shengyan Technology Trade Company Limited

HhEE

Xu Xianting

148,759,998 HA&
H Shares

2,499,932 A%
A Shares

609,851 AR%
A Shares

440,000 AR
A Shares

362,000 HAR
H Shares

360,000 AR%
A Shares

345,300 AR
A Shares

260,000 A%
A Shares

230,000 AR%
A Shares

220,000 A%
A Shares

Hta - Note:

1. ARREEARM i+ 1.
ABRRFREZERERE
ERBMERIPEFRE
BEERZEe((PEHEE
g)BHz(ETRARK
FREREHELHEER
POEYREN—BITENA -
WARMINERRZERE
GEBEBBERK(ETA
AIRRFERESEEREE
BEWE)RTEN —RIT
A -

AREEERM LR
BRI 2R - bl &
B 45 f6% 1 AR SR B+ AR 3R
ZHERBFEBEBE
HAMEEFAECLETA
ARSI EEE SRR
B IR A AR E B — AT
A -

2. BAARBRBDE%IA L 2.
3N BRI A L) TR A 5
SEERETAR -

The Directors are not aware as to whether there is any
association amongst the ten largest shareholders of the
Company, nor the persons acting in concert as defined in
the “Rules for the information Disclosure of Changes in the
Shareholding of Listed Companies” issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”). In addition,
the Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or
persons acting in concert as referred to above.

The Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the ten largest shareholders of unconditional
tradable shares of the Company, any association between
the ten largest shareholders of the Company and the
ten largest shareholders of the Company or the persons
acting in concert as defined in the Rules for the information
Disclosure of Changes in the Shareholding of Listed
Companies.

The only domestic shareholder with more than 5% of the
total issued shares of the Company is Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (SXPGC).
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Substantial shareholders (continued)

Information about the controlling shareholders

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (the “SXPGC”), being the controlling shareholder
of the Company, was established as a wholly state-
owned company on 15 June 1995. The registered
capital of SXPGC is RMB298,500,000 and its legal
representative is Ms Guo Qin. SXPGC is mainly engaged
in the engineering design, real estate and restaurants;
packaging, and manufacturing of chemical equipment;
production and sale of chemical engineering apparatus
and instruments; sales of chemical products (except for
hazardous chemicals) and import and export business
(within the scope approved).

Hualu Holdings Group Company Limited (“HHGC”),
a wholly state-owned company, the controlling
shareholder of SXPGC, was established on 28 January
2005. The registered capital of HHC is RMB800,000,000
and its legal representative is Mr. Li Tongdao. HHC
is mainly engaged in the investment of fertilisers,
petrochemical industries and investment in sectors
which are not prohibited by the state (or the local
community). HHC is also engaged in asset management.

LWREBEEEEEBEEREZE S
Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission

| 100%

ERER
HHGC

| 100%

HMEE
SXPGC

| 35.91%

FiN/NE]
The Company
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Directors

Ms. Guo Qin, aged 51, is a senior engineer and practising pharmacist,
she graduated from Shandong Medical University, specialising in
pharmacy. Ms. Guo joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Factory (the “Factory”) in 1982, and previously held the positions of
the deputy director of the preparation workshop and the preparation
sales department, the deputy director and the director of the quality
control department, as well as the deputy director and the director
of the Inspection Center for the Quality of Drugs, a subsidiary of
Shandong Pharmaceutical Administration. She was also the director
of the enterprise management department, the assistant to the
general manager, the deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of the Company. Ms. Guo is currently a member
of the Standing Committee of Zibo People’s Congress. Ms. Guo is
the Chairman of the Company, the deputy general manager of Hualu
Holdings Company Limited, the Chairman of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the Chairman of Zibo Xinhua-
Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited and the Chairman of Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited.

Mr. Liu Zhenwen, aged 57, is a senior economist, he graduated from
Shangdong University of Technology, specialising in management.
He joined the Factory in 1966 and was transferred to Shandong
Jining Antibiotics Factory in 1968 where he has served as the group
leader, the workshop section head, the deputy head and the head
of the workshop and the head of the Department of Production and
Technology. He has also served as the manager, deputy general
manager, director, vice-chairman, deputy secretary to the Company’s
Communist Party Committee and general manager of the Production
and Planning Department of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. He is currently the deputy secretary to the Company’s Communist
Party Committee and the director and the general manager of SXPGC.
Mr. Liu is the director of the Company, the chairman of Shandong
Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited and the Chairman of
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 47, is a senior engineer and practising
pharmacist. He graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine College
in 1985. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident physician. In
1991, Mr. Ren obtained his master of medicine from Beijing Medical
University and joined the Factory in the same year. He previously held
the positions of the deputy director and the director of the Company’s
research institute, the assistant to the general manager and the
deputy general manager of the Company, the deputy general manager
of SXPGC. Mr. Ren is the director and the general manager of the
Company, the Chairman of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company
Limited, the Chairman of Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company
Limited, the director and general manager of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited and the director of Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1R #HESIZE R HE R A T
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhao Songguo, aged 46, is a senior accountant. He graduated
from Shandong Television and Broadcasting University, specialising in
enterprise management, in 1986. He also completed a refresher course
in Qingdao Ocean University in 2004. Mr. Zhao joined the Factory in
1980 and previously held the positions of the head and the director
of the finance department and the assistant to the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Zhao is the director, and the deputy general
manager and the financial controller of the Company, the director of
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the director of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Export & Import Company Limited,
the director of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited,
the director of Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited, the
director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH and the
director of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited.

Mr. Li Tianzhong, aged 47, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Institute of Technology, specialising in industry automation
and joined the Factory in 1983. Mr. Li previously held the positions of
engineer and director of the electricity workshop, manager of the trade
department, supply and marketing department and drug department of
the Company, assistant to the general manager, director and deputy
general manager of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Corporation,
director and deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Li is currently a
director of the Company, a director and the chairman of the labour
union of SXPGC and the chairman of the labour union of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Bin, aged 50, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law EMBA. He joined the People’s Liberation Army
in 1976, previously held the positions of soldier, the ex-officio of
deputy company, the ex-officio of company, the ex-officio of deputy
battalion, deputy director and director of political department of Jinan
Military Region and Shandong Province Military Region. Mr. Zhao has
worked in enterprises since 1998. He previously held the positions of
investment manager and office general manager of Shandong Hualu
Group Company Limited, deputy general manager of Shandong Hualu
International Business Center Company Limited and development
planning department general manager of Hualu Holdings Group
Company Limited. Mr. Zhao is the assistant to the general manager
and development planning department general manager of Hualu
Holdings Group Company Limited. Mr. Zhao was appointed the
director of the Company on 8 June 2009.

Mr. Zhu Baoquan, aged 63, is a researcher and a tutor of students in a
doctorate class. He was the vice president of Shanghai Pharmaceutical
Industry Research Institute from September 1993 to January 2002, and
he was the president of Shanghai Pharmaceutical Industry Research
Institute from February 2002 to June 2008. Since July 2008, Mr. Zhu
has been an adviser and the Academic Committee Dean of Shanghai
Pharmaceutical Industry Research Institute and the President of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University Pharmacy College. Mr. Zhu is currently
an independent non-executive director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Sun Minggao, aged 45, has a doctorate degree in management
from Tianjin University and he is a tutor of the students in a doctorate
class and a senior economist. Mr. Sun founded Shenzhen Tactician
Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. in 2001, where he is the chairman and
president. He is also a researcher of Public Economics Academy of
Peking University, deputy director of Southern Institute of Economic
Research, honourable chairman of Neimenggu Baotou Youth
Federation, financial adviser of Shiyan Municipal People’s Government
of Hubei Province, senior economics consultant of the People’s
Government of Linyi County of Shandong Province, deputy director of
the Pearl River Delta Service Center of China Association of Small and
Medium Enterprises, standing member of Shenzhen Venture Capital
Association, vice chairman of Shandong Production Committee, and
vice chairman of Shandong Logistics & Procurement Committee.
Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor, aged 42, is a financial controller of
Anwell Technologies Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
Singapore Exchange Limited, an independent non-executive director of
Get Nice Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director
of Angang Steel Company Limited. Mr. Kwong has more than 16 years’
experience covering auditing, accounting and financial management in
commercial, manufacturing and public accounting sectors. He is also
an independent non-executive director of Get Nice Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. Mr. Kwong is currently an independent non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Xu Guojun resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2009 due to change of job.

Supervisors

Mr. Yu Gongfu, aged 59, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Engineering College in 1974, specialising in industrial
automation. He joined the Factory in 1968. Mr. Yu had previously held
the positions of vice-chairman of the labour union and deputy manager
of the Factory, deputy general manager of the Company and was also
a director of the Company. He was also a director, deputy general
manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Committee of the Communist Party of
SXPGC. Mr. Yu is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Mr. Liu Qiang, aged 55, has been employed to work in the Factory
since 1970. He has filled the positions of secretary of the Party branch
of the Production Workshop, secretary of the principal branch of the
Party of the Factory Branch and supervisor to the Party Committee
Office. Mr. Liu was appointed as an employee supervisor of the
Company by the employee’s representatives meeting held on 2
February 2007.

Mr. Zhang Yueshun, aged 60, senior accountant, certified public
accountant and certified public assessor of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was
the controller of an enterprise, the deputy chief of Zibo Office affiliated
to the Enterprise Department of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the
vice director of the Zibo Municipal State-owned Assets Administration
and the chief accountant of Shandong Zibo Accountant Firm. Mr.
Zhang was appointed as an independent supervisor in 2002. Mr.
Zhang is currently a senior consultant of Zibo Puhua Accountant Firm
and an independent supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 40, graduated from East China University of
Politics and Laws and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Tao
was also awarded a master’s degree in law from Shandong University.
Mr. Tao was appointed as an independent supervisor of the Company
in 2002. Mr. Tao is a partner of Shandong Zhigong Associates, the
legal consultant for the People’s Government of Zibo, Shandong and
an independent supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Gao Qinggang resigned as an supervisor of the Company with
effect from 28 December 2009 due to his age.

Senior Officers

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 47, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr. Zhang joined the
Factory in 1987 and was previously the deputy manager and manager
of international trade department of the Company. Mr. Zhang is a
deputy general manager of the Company, the chairman of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH, the chairman of Shandong
Xinhua Import and Export Company Limited, a director of Shandong
Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited, a director of Zibo Xinhua-
Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited and a director of Zibo Xinhua
Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Mr. Dou Xuejie, aged 50, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Medicine College, specialising in pharmacy and obtained a
master’s degree in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He
joined the Factory in 1982. He was previously deputy director and the
director of the quality control department, the deputy chief engineer
and quality director of the Company. Mr. Dou is currently deputy
general manager of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Senior Officers (continued)

Mr. Du Deqing, aged 45, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Wuhan University of Technology and obtained
a master’s degree in chemical engineering from Qingdao Science
and Technology University. He joined the Factory in 1986. He was
previously deputy director and director of the dispatch department,
the director of the purchasing department and assistant to the general
manager of the Company. Mr. Du is currently deputy general manager
of the Company.

Mr. Du Deping, aged 40, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Ocean University of China, specialising in chemistry and obtained a
master’s degree in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He
joined the Factory in 1991. He was previously deputy head and head of
the workshop, and assistant to the general manager of the Company.
Mr. Du is currently deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Cao Changaqiu, aged 40, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Ocean University of China, specialising in economic management and
joined the Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is one of the company secretaries
for the Company.

Ms. Guo Lei, aged 41, is an economist. She graduated from
Guangzhou Foreign Trade College, specialising in accounting and
obtained a master’s degree in economics from Beijing University. She
joined the Factory in 1992. Ms. Guo is one of the company secretaries
for the Company.

The Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers of the Company were
appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 22 December 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EFX ESREMERERAR

Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

BEEEXELATFIRGMER Interests in Shares of the Company
#200912A31H #20091H1H
As at As at
31 December 2009 1 January 2009
] R#% B8 B8
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
-
Directors
B = BEER 9,479 12,639
Ms. Guo Qin Chairman
24 32 EMITES REFE AFEFAE
Mr. Liu Zhenwen Non-executive director Nil Nil
EE5E MITES KR REFE STl
Mr. Ren Fulong Executive director, General manager Nil Nil
iR /NE HITES  BlRKE BMBEaEA REFE REFE
Mr. Zhao Songguo Executive director, Nil Nil
deputy general manager,
financial controller
TRA FEMITESE AFEH STl
Mr. Li Tianzhong Non-executive director Nil Nil
iz DS FEH1TE = (200976 A8 A E L 1) AEFH AFFH
Mr. Zhao Bin Non-executive director Nil Nil
(appointed on 8 June 2009)
KRER BIULEHITES NEFE RKEEH
Mr. Zhu Baoquan Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
REZE 8 FEEN1TE = (200944 A30H B {T) AFH ERSTE]
Mr. Xu Guojun Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
(resigned on 30 April 2009)
A BYIEHITES REFE AEFE
Mr. Sun Minggao Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
R A A5 BYIFAITES AFEH REFE
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
EE
Supervisors
TAE EEEERE 6,075 6,075
Mr. Yu Gongfu Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
= B B (20094F 12 A28 H B {T) 4,370 4,370
Mr. Gao Qinggang Supervisor
(resigned on 28 December 2009)
2 ® EE 4,370 4,370
Mr. Liu Qiang Supervisor
ik A JE AV REFE STl
Mr. Zhang Yueshun Independent supervisor Nil Nil
b 7 BUES REFH REFE
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent supervisor Nil Nil
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’
Interests in Shares of the Company (continued)

#200912A31H #2009E1A1H
As at As at
31 December 2009 1 January 2009
] R% B® 1
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
HtEREEAR
Senior Officers
R Bl REFE REFE
Mr. Zhang Daiming Deputy general manager Nil Nil
FEEA Bl AR REFE AFE
Mr. Dou Xuejie Deputy general manager Nil Nil
HEE Bl iE KiFE KB
Mr. Du Deging Deputy general manager Nil Nil
rtiEF Bliarie REFE REFE
Mr. Du Deping Deputy general manager Nil Nil
BRK BEEewE 1,708 2,278
Mr. Cao Changqiu Company secretary
B &= EFgnE KFEFE KEFE
Ms. Guo Lei Company secretary Nil Nil
Eh 26,002 29,732
Total

ARREE EERSREEABRMESR
AR ARG BAR

BNEHRAZ: REFERET R_&
mZEH -

BRESXCHTEEIN A TZi%
BABREFHMME - _i?i?jli—f—_
R=+—B REAXARAZEE BRE
BABREEEAARRE “SEMA BB
=B (& R CGEZF R BB IRHI1) BXVEL) 1
W&n - HBERGD & SKEHFE RIERME)
FEEEMERECGEF RBE KO EXV
HETMESHLNF NS AR RB B
FeERSAR (BEREB(ES LB ERK
PZLEEHNREXRSFELEE Rk
ERABREFEANERIORE) - FIR
15 (e 7 M HI B & 1) 536215 47 5F 1M aC 8%
RARRRENECMOERIXE © 5
BB ETRAIM ST E [ EmRAEEE
175 ﬁ %WT?%’E—%EE'JJ/A%@$ ARE
BT R SOR AR -

]nf
nﬂL

All shares held by the Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers are A
shares.

The changes in the number of shares held by the Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Officers were due to the shares sold on the
secondary market according to relevant provisions.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers
and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December
2009, none of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which was required
notification to the Company and The SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which
any such Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required notification
to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).




Ex EE SARAEBEABNEIBR(A)

Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

The remuneration policy of the Directors, the Supervisors and the
Senior Officers are based on State policies, the Company’s profit
realised in the corresponding period, individual achievement and the
average income of local residents determined in accordance with
State policies. During the year, the remuneration and examination
committee of the Company has passed The Proposal of 2009 Annual
Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors and The Proposal of 2009
Annual Remuneration of Senior Officers, and submitted the above
proposals to the Board of Directors for approval. The Directors’ and
the Supervisors’ remuneration must be approved in a shareholders’
meeting of the Company, whereas the remuneration of the Senior
Officers must be approved by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
(including retirement insurance)

20095
2009
AR E T
RMBO0’000
== Directors
B = Ms. Guo Qin 21.76
2R 32 Mr. Liu Zhenwen 18.76
TrEse Mr. Ren Fulong 54.76
=R /NEL! Mr. Zhao Songguo 44.76
=SDS Mr. Li Tianzhong 33.76
i Mr. Zhao Bin 0
XER Mr. Zhu Baoquan 6.00
REE Mr. Xu Guojun 2.50
EHS Mr. Sun Minggao 6.00
BBt Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor 6.00
[ Supervisors
TR%E Mr. Yu Gongfu 33.76
= E Ml Mr. Gao Qinggang 14.76
2 8 Mr. Liu Qiang 9.47
5= A B Mr. Zhang Yueshun 2.40
M =R Mr. Tao Zhichao 2.40
HttEREEAS Senior Officers
e Mr. Zhang Daiming 44.76
e Mr. Dou Xueiie 38.76
HEE Mr. Du Deqing 38.76
=R Mr. Du Deping 38.76
ERK Mr. Cao Changgiu 11.05
= = Ms. Guo Lei 11.03

—EThEEE EZNSREERAEMN
FERMREAARKE440218 T ©

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors
for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 was approximately
RMB4,402,100.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers

Mr. Xu Guojun resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2009 due to change of job.

Mr. Zhao Bin was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 8 June 2009.

Mr. Gao Qinggang resigned as a supervisor of the Company with effect
from 28 December 2009 due to age reason.

Staff and Remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with
State policies, the Company’s profit in the corresponding period and
the average income of local residents.

As at 31 December 2009, the number of staff employed by the Group
was 5,298, and the total amount of their salaries and wages for the
year 2009 was approximately RMB153,582,000.

The Group’s staff can be categorised by their area of work and
educational level as follows:

BIRE BEIA®
Area of Work Number of
Employees

SEANEB Staff in production 4,184
ITREEMAE Staff in engineering and technology 161
THREEAE Staff in administration 150
M AR Staff in finance 84
EmRABAE Staff in research and development 127
KEAB Staff in procurement of raw materials 31
fﬁ’% A8 Staff in sales 245
EEBERAAER Staff in quality control and inspection 316
A&t Total 5,208
BEINFEE BEIA#
Academic Qualification Attained Number of
Employees

RKER A FBFF University or above 614
ANEER Tertiary Institutions 1,068
REZER Intermediate Institutions 1,076
=R R R 2RE Senior high schools and technical schools 1,843
AP RIATERE Junior high schools or below 707
aEr Total 5,298

BE_ZEAFE+-_A=+—HBILXER
RREE T AZ 52,394 A ©

As at 31 December 2009, the number of retired staff of the Group was
2,394.

a Pharmaceutical Company Limied IR ERERBERAR
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC

Self-examination for Standardisation

The corporate governance practice implemented by the
Company has complied with the rules and requirements
of corporate governance required to be observed by listed
companies in the PRC.

How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties

During the year, the Board convened five Board meetings. The
independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the five

ZERMOT - meetings are set out below:

BEHE

EmRA

Personally
BWIUFHT & mR e attended/ ZEHE
BEENS The number of written Commissioned BRE T
Name participants resolution to attend Absent Remarks
RER 5 0 0
Mr. Zhu Baoquan
B 5 0 0
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor
HEE 1 1 0 20094 A30HEHE
Mr. Xu Guojun resigned on 30 April 2009
FHE 5 0 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

EAFERN ARAEZEERE
BeRBR4RER  SBILIFRTT

During the year, the Audit Committee convened four meetings.
The independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the

EEHFEERBERLOT : four meetings are set out below:

BIERT E2mRe REHRE ZiEHE

EEME The number of Personally Commissioned BRE f§:

Name participants attended to attend Absent Remarks

KER 4 0 0

Mr. Zhu Baoguan

B 4 0 0

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor

HREIE 1 1 0 200944 A30HEE
Mr. Xu Guojun resigned on 30 April 2009
s 4 0 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

ERFEERN ARREETSHME
EREREeHBMREHE  £EF
MEEZZEEXENRER &
HesthEes HEEZERT
w2 mes -

During the year, the Remuneration and Examination Committee
of the Company convened one meeting. Mr. Zhu Baoquan
and Mr. Sun Minggao all attended the meeting. Mr. Xu Guojun
commisioned Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor to attend this meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties (continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company
convened one meeting. Mr. Zhu Baoquan and Mr. Sun Minggao
all attended the meeting. Mr. Xu Guojun commisioned Mr.
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor to attend this meeting.

During the year, the independent non-executive directors did
not have any disputes on the matters raised by the Company.

Auditing of the 2009 annual report by the Audit Committee

(1)

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued a
written opinion in respect of the financial and accounting
statements issued by the financial department of the
Company in 2009:

The financial and accounting statement of the Company
was prepared with reference to the accounting policy
of the Company. The application of the accounting
policy is appropriate and the accounting estimates are
reasonable and in compliance with the new accounting
standards for business enterprises, the Accounting
Regulations for Business Enterprises as well as the
regulations promulgated by the Ministry of Finance.
Each financial statement consolidated in the financial
statements of the Company is complete in contents
and the basis of consolidation of the statements is
accurate. The Company’s financial statements are
objective, truthful and accurate, without any material
misrepresentations or omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements can be submitted to the certified
accountants engaged in annual auditing for auditing.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and
accounting statements for year 2009 of the Company
again after the issue of a preliminary audit opinion
by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited in respect of the
financial statements for year 2009 of the Company, and
expressed opinions as follows:

The Company was in compliance with the new
accounting standards for business enterprises and
regulations in relation to the financial system of the
Company. The preparation process of the financial
statements was reasonable and standardised and fairly
reflected the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity and
operating results as at 31 December 2009. The content
is truthful, accurate and complete.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2009 annual report by the Audit Committee
(continued)

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements for the year 2009 of the Company which was
preliminarily audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
can be submitted for consideration and approval by the
board of directors.

3) Conclusive report of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
in respect of the auditing of the financial report of the
Company for 2009

On 4 January 2010, the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors approved the overall auditing plan
for the financial report of 2009 of the company as
negotiated and confirmed by the Company together with
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was of the opinion that
the Company issued a standard auditing report without
any reserved opinions or conclusions. The Company
considered that SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited had
audited in accordance with the regulations under
“Independent auditing code of certified accountants
of the PRC. There was ample time for auditing and
reasonable allocation of auditing staff who had attained
the corresponding qualification. The audited financial
statements fully reflected the financial condition of the
Company as at 31 December 2009 and the operating
results and cash flow in 2009. The conclusion upon
auditing was in line with the actual circumstances of the
Company.

(4) In 8 April 2010, the Audit Committee of the board of
directors convened a meeting to review the audited
accounts and results announcement of 2009 and
recommended to appoint the financial auditing institution
for year 2010 with a term of one year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder in
respect of its business, assets, management, institutions and
finance. The Company’s production and operation are also
independent.

(i)

(i)

(i)

The Company is mainly engaged in the business
of development, manufacture and sale of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical products.
SXPGC undertook that for so long as SXPGC is
regarded as a controlling shareholder of the Company,
it will not engage in any business directly or indirectly in
competition with the business of the Company.

The Company has its own independent production
and supplementary production system and facilities.
Apart from certain patent technologies and the
trademark “Xinhua”, which are owned by the controlling
shareholder, the Company owns all of the other
intangible assets such as industrial property rights and
know-how technologies used by the Company. The
Company also has an independent procurement and
sales network.

The Company is independent of its controlling
shareholder in respect of the management of its
workforce and their salaries. The Senior Officers of the
Company including the general manager and the deputy
general managers are paid by the Company. Except
for the general manager being a director of SXPGC,
deputy general managers do not hold any position in the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

The Company holds its own shareholders’ general
meetings, and has its own board of directors,
supervisory committee, company secretaries and
management, which are responsible for the different
areas and functions of the Company. The office and the
production area of the Company are separate from that
of its controlling shareholder.

The Company has an independent finance department
with an independent accounting and financial
management system. The Company also maintains its
own independent accounts with banks.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Corporate Governance

The Company strictly complied with various laws and
regulations such as the “Company Law”, “Securities Law”,
“Standard of corporate governance for PRC listed companies”,
“rules of shareholders’ meeting of listed companies” and
“Securities Listing Rules” as well as the requirements of relevant
documents to establish a better corporate governance structure
and to standardise the operation of the Company. The Articles
of Association clearly define the functions of the shareholders’
general meetings of the Company with clear rules and
procedures that were effectively carried out. There is a clear
division between the duties of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Committee of the Company, with clear rules and
procedures that can be effectively implemented. All members of
the Board of Directors and supervisors diligently perform their
duties. The management of the Company is responsible for the
production and operation of the Company, the organisation
and implementation of resolutions of the board of directors,
and reported to the board of directors and was supervised by
the Supervisory Committee pursuant to the regulations of the
Articles of Association and Rules for the General Manager.
The Company has established a more comprehensive internal
control system without material deficiencies.

The Company has established the “Management Guidelines for
the Provision of Guarantee to External Parties”, “Management
Guidelines for Subsidiaries”, “Management Guidelines for
Connected Transactions”, “Management Guidelines for Raised
Proceeds”, “Working System of Independent Directors” and
Management Guidelines for Investor Relations. The Company
has formulated the code of work for the Nomination Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
Strategic and Development Committee under the Board of
Directors of the Company, which procured the systematisation
and standardisation of corporate governance of the Company.

The establishment and implementation of assessment
and appraisal mechanisms as well as the incentive
mechanisms for senior officers

The Company selects its senior officers from its staff on the
basis of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing
the senior officers, the Board of Directors follows a strict
set of selection criteria, which include the assessment of
each of the candidates’ individual character, moral standard,
coordination ability, working ability and sense of responsibility.
Once appointed, the Board of Directors will evaluate the senior
officers periodically, particularly in respect of achievements and
their execution of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

The establishment and implementation of assessment
and appraisal mechanisms as well as the incentive
mechanisms for senior officers (continued)

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the
Company clearly sets out their job nature and scope of
responsibilities and has established a corresponding incentive
and penalty scheme to reward and sanction Senior Officers.

Effect of execution of internal control system

Through formulation and effective implementation of the internal
control system, the Company’s scale of operation has gradually
been expanded, followed by consecutive annual increases in
sales volume, representing a sound development trend. The
Company’s management level has been raised and its internal
control system has been improved. Therefore, the quality of
the Company’s products has been improved. In addition,
the technology of the Company has been innovated and the
competitiveness of the Company has been increased. As a
result, the Company has a strong foundation for its future
development.

The management of the Company considers that the Company
has established and refined a comprehensive and reasonable
internal control system with reference to laws and regulations
as well as the requirements of relevant departments. Overall,
the normal operation of the Company’s production has
been guaranteed which, to a certain extent, has mitigated
the management risk. The Company also conformed to the
standards of the control system as at 31 December 2009 and
the material aspects of the accounting statements.

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal control by the
Supervisory Committee of the Company

After auditing, the Company’s Supervisory Committee
considered that the internal control of the Company was in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The format of the self-
evaluation of internal control was in compliance with relevant
requirements. The contents truthfully, objectively and fully
reflected the performance and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal control by the
independent directors of the Company

After auditing, Zhu Baoquan, Sun Minggao and Kwong Chi Kit,
Victor, independent directors of the Company, considered that
the internal control of the Company was in compliance with
the “Guidelines of the internal control of listed companies on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”. The evaluation process of the
Company’s internal control conformed to the “Guidelines of
the internal control of listed companies on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange”. The self-evaluation report of the internal control
system truthfully, objectively and fully reflected the performance
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system.

Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors), are of the opinion that for the year ended 31
December 2009, the Company has complied with all
requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) including provisions contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company has always strived to comply with the best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors and at least
one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has appointed three
independent non-executive directors including one with financial
management expertise.

The three independent non-executive directors of the Company
have submitted confirmation of independence to confirm that
he / she has strictly complied with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange
during the reporting period. The Company considers each
independent non-executive director to be independent from the
Company.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE”)

During the year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Following specific enquiries made with the Directors, the
Company has confirmed that each Director and Supervisor has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by directors.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board consists of

Directors
Ms. Guo Qin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Zhenwen (Non-executive director)
Mr. Ren Fulong (Executive director)
Mr. Zhao Songguo (Executive director)
Mr. Li Tianzhong (Non-executive director)
Mr. Zhao Bin (Non-executive director,
appointed on 8 June 2009)
Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Independent non-executive director)
Mr. Sun Minggao (Independent non-executive director)
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor
(Independent non-executive director)
Mr. Xu Guojun (Independent non-executive director,
resigned on 30 April 2009)

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in
the "DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS
AND STAFF”.
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(Z) RIEFEEBHSTIHIMERL 2. Information disclosed under the requirement

FAomMEEFELHRAIESE of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(& on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

BEE®(2) The Board of Directors (continued)

2) EREERN RAFEEE® 2) During the year, the Board convened five Board
HEHORESTE2H S5 meetings. The details of Directors’ attendance at the five
EHFELASEESBEROT Board meetings are set out below:

ERHE
BERAR

Commissioned

EEmRe PEHE to attend /

EENR The number of Personally written BE T

Name participants attended resolution Absent Remarks

#F = B 5 0 0

Ms. Guo Qin

e 5 5 0 0

Mr. Liu Zhenwen

fEfEs B 5 0 0

Mr. Ren Fulong

AR 5 ® 0 0

Mr. Zhao Songguo

FRA 5 5 0 0

Mr. Li Tianzhong

f ! 3 3 0 0 2009F6ABHEZE
Mr. Zhao Bin appointed on 8 June 2009
RER 5 5 0 0

Mr. Zhu Baogugn

%HE 5 B 0 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

B 5 B 0 0

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor

HREIE 2 1 1 0 20094 A30HEHE
Mr. Xu Guojun resigned on 30 April 2009

LR R A
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

3)

Operation of Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for
shareholders of the Company, to confirm the strategies,
targets and planning of the Company, and to supervise
staff in order to ensure that the planned targets can be
met. The members of the Board work in accordance
with principles of honesty and diligence and comply with
all relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of Association
of the Company and relevant requirements to maximise
the shareholders’ interests. With various measures
of internal controls and mechanisms for checks and
balances, the duties of the Board and the management
of the Company are clearly defined.

The Board’s role is clearly defined as directing and
supervising the affairs of the Company, establishing its
strategic direction and setting objectives and business
development plans. The management of the Company
is responsible for the implementation of strategies, and
achieving the objectives and carrying out the plans
determined by the Board. The Board has formulated the
Rules for the Operation of the Board and the Rules for
the General Manager according to the relevant PRC laws
and regulations and the listing rules of stock exchanges
both in the PRC and overseas, in which the duties and
powers of the Board are further defined and the internal
operation procedures of the Board are standardised.
Therefore, the Board can fully perform its function as
the decision-maker of the Company. The procedures for
the appointment of the General Manger have been laid
down. The power, scope of work, working procedures
and responsibilities of the General Manager have been
specifically defined.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is responsible for providing convocation to the
Board meeting and ensuring that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman ensures that the
Board effectively functions and discharges its responsibilities.
The Chairman is also responsible for approving the agenda for
each Board meeting, taking into account any matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day
management and the business performance of the Company.

During the reporting period, Guo Qin was the Chairman of the
Company while Ren Fulong was the general manager of the
Company.

Term of independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive directors of the sixth Board
were appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 22
December 2008.

Remuneration and Examination Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Examination
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), which is a special
committee responsible to the Board. The Remuneration
Committee comprises of Mr. Zhu Baoquan, Ms. Guo Qin,
Mr. Liu Zhenwen and Mr. Sun Minggao. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhu Baoquan.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating the remuneration
policy of Directors and Senior Officers of the Company,
determining the standard of examination of Directors and
Senior Officers, assessing the performance of Directors and
Senior Officers during the year and approving the terms of their
service contracts and remuneration packages and submitting
the same to the Board for approval. The terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee are available upon request.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Remuneration and Examination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Remuneration
Committee convened one meeting for the purpose of passing
the “Proposal of 2009 Annual Remuneration of Directors and
Supervisors” and the “Proposal of 2009 Annual Remuneration
of Senior Officers”, which were submitted to the Board for
approval.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
of the Company is determined with reference to State policies,
the Company’s profit realised in the corresponding period,
individual achievement and the average income of local
residents.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
which is a special committee responsible to the Board. The
Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Zhu Baoquan,
Ms. Guo Qin, Mr. Ren Fulong and Mr. Sun Minggao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhu Baoquan.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(@) formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors or
Senior Officers and the standard for selection of such
individuals;

(b) preliminary selection of Directors and Senior Officers
and submission of nomination proposals to the Board;

(c) selecting Directors and Senior Officers based on their
education qualifications, industry background and
experience in the relevant field;

(d) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of members of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

(e) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(f) making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors or Senior Officers.

The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are made
available upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Nomination
Committee convened one meetings. Mr. Zhao Bin was
nominated as the non-executive director candidate of the
Company on 19 March 2009. The nomination was then
submitted to the Board for approval.

Auditors’ remuneration

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the
International Auditor and ShineWing was re-appointed as the
Domestic Auditor in the 2008 annual general meeting held on 8
June 2009.

In 2009, the auditors’ remuneration for audit services provided
was as follows:

2009 B 2008 E
KB (FE) SEEMEEERAF RMB420,000 RMB420,000
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
SR M ET RIS A AT RMB420,000 RMB420,000

ShineWing
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set up
an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising of three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Zhu Baoquan,
Mr. Sun Minggao and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor. The chairman
of the Audit Committee is Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, the Board has set out terms of reference for the
Audit Committee, which define the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has to make sure that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition
to reviewing the financial information and statements of the
Company, the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising
with the Company’s external auditor and overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system
and risk management procedures. A copy of the terms of
reference for the Audit Committee is available upon request.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management,
reviewed the accounting principles, practices and methods
adopted by the Group and has discussed the auditing, internal
controls and financing reporting of the Company. The Audit
Committee has convened four meetings to review the audited
financial statements for 2008, the unaudited 1st quarterly
financial statements for 2009, the unaudited interim statements
for 2009 and the unaudited 3rd quarterly financial statements
for 2009.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 8 April 2010
to review the 2009 audited accounts and annual results
announcement.

For the record of individual attendance of members of the
Audit Committee, please refer to the attendance table set out
under the section headed “Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC” of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in respect
of the disclosure of information and investor relations and
nominated an individual to deal with the Company’s investor
relations. Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied with
the principles of truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and
timeliness in the disclosure of information. The Company also
enhanced communication with investors and made efforts in
the improvement of the transparency of the Company by way
of issuing results announcements, publishing announcements,
launching the company’s website, meeting investors and
analysts and answering investors’ inquiries, etc..

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in
Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors
of the Company are aware, the interests or short position
in shares of the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior
Officers, according to the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are stated in
the above subsection headed “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and
Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the
section “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires
the management to establish and maintain sound and effective
internal controls. Evaluation of the Company’s internal controls
is independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee on
an on-going basis.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and
Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers
and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2009, no other person (other than a Director, Senior
Officer or Supervisor of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares
(as the case may be), which are required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interest and
Short Positions

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the section
headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS
AND STAFF”, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December
2009, none of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the
Supervisors of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case
may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) which was required to be notified to the Company and
The SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest and short position which any such Director,
Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.
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On 22 April 2009, the notice of 2008 Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) was published in newspapers, HKExnews and the
Company’s website and served on the shareholders of H
Shares by prepaid post. The AGM was convened by the
Board of Directors and held at the Company’s registered
office on 8 June 2009. Three shareholders (including those
represented by their proxies) attended the AGM, representing
a total number of 176,638,735 shares and accounting for
38.63% of the Company’s total share capital. The AGM was
convened in compliance with the provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Notice for Matters Concerned in respect
of 1995 Annual General Meeting and Amendments to the
Articles of Association of the Overseas Listed Companies as
well as the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). The AGM was chaired by Ms. Guo Qin, the
Chairman. The following ordinary resolutions were passed at
the AGM:

1. To approve the report of the Directors for the year 2008;

To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for
the year 2008;

To approve the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year 2008;

To approve the profit distribution of the Company for the
year 2008;

To approve the appointment of SHINGWING (HK) CPA
Limited (Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong) and
Shine Wing (Certified Public Accountants in the PRC)
as the international and domestic auditors respectively
for the year 2009 and authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration;

To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2009;

To approve the remuneration of election Mr. Zhao Bin as
the non-executive director of the Company.

A special resolution in respect of the amendments to
Article 147 of the Articles of Association was passed at
the AGM.

An announcement of the above resolutions was
published in the domestic newspaper, Securities Times,
as well as the HKExnews and the Company’s website,
on 9 June 2009.
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Summarised Report of the General Meeting (continued)

On 12 November 2009, the notice of the first extraordinary
general meeting of 2009 was published in newspapers,
HKExnews and the Company’s website and was served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The extraordinary
general meeting was convened by the Board of Directors
and held at the Company’s registered office on 28 December
2009. Three shareholders (including those represented by their
proxies) attended the meeting, representing a total number
of 166,596,735 shares and 36.43% of the Company’s total
share capital. The meeting was convened in compliance with
the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the Notice for
Matters Concerned in respect of 1995 Annual General Meeting
and Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Overseas
Listed Companies as well as the Articles of Association. The
meeting was chaired by Ms. Guo Qin, the Chairman. The
following ordinary resolutions were passed at the meeting:

The agreement entered into between the Company and SXPGC
dated 28 October 2009 and the proposed annual caps in
relation to the Company’s sale of waste materials, water,
electricity and steam to SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries in the
sum of RMB31,000,000, RMB35,000,000 and RMB39,000,000
for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively and the
proposed annual caps in relation to the Company’s and/
or its subsidiaries’ purchase of accessories, raw materials
and packaging materials from SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries
in the sum of RMB200,000,000, RMB210,000,000 and
RMB220,000,000 for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively under such agreement are hereby approved and
confirmed.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published
in the domestic newspaper, Securities Times, as well as on
HKExnews and the Company’s website, on 29 December 2009.

The election and replacement of the Directors and the
Supervisors are set out in the above section headed
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

Results and Dividends

In the fiscal year ended 31 December 2009, the operating income
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) prepared under PRC
accounting standards was RMB2,321,927,000, representing an
increase of 10.73% as compared with that of year 2008. The Group
recorded its profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB102,244,000, representing an increase of 201.02%
as compared with that of year 2008, earnings per share was RMB0.22.

The Group’s sales prepared under HKGAAP were RMB2,295,101,000,
representing an increase of 10.46% as compared with that of
year 2008. A profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB99,687,000 was recorded, representing an increase of 231.58%.
Earnings per share was RMBO0.22.

The Board of Directors has announced and proposed a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 of RMBO0.05 per
share (approximately HK$0.057 per share, including income tax. The
proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company for the year
2009.

Business Review

In 2009, the Group’s production and operation, especially international
trade, were aggravated by the international financial crisis. In face of
such a complicated external environment, the Group actively looked
at ways to devise targeted strategies and took pragmatic and effective
measures. With the concerted efforts of its staff, the Group’s net profit
for the whole year increased significantly and hit a record high.

1. Emphasis on marketing, costs reduction and
technological progress to increase profitability

The Group actively expanded its footprint into new markets,
highlighted its preparation marketing and expanded its
preparation market. Leveraging its dominant position in the
pharmaceutical industry, the Group stabilised the market
prices of major bulk pharmaceuticals. Making the best of
product differentiation and its distinct competitive edge, it also
established its presence in overseas markets. Although export
revenue dropped by 4.6% as compared with that of 2008,
exports regained momentum after the contraction. The Group
maintained double-digit growth in sales revenue in 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (continued)

1.

Emphasise on marketing, costs reduction and
technological progress to increase profitability (continued)

The Group strengthened its procurement and supply
management. The Group kept abreast of market dynamics
and took advantage of its strong liquidity position and sound
reputation to optimise supplier structure and build an optimum
supply chain, thereby reducing procurement costs significantly.
In 2009, the purchase cost of raw materials by the Group
declined as compared with last year.

By actively developing new markets, stabilising prices of major
products, reducing purchase costs and making technical
advancement, the Group’s profit increased significantly in 2009.

Highlighted structural adjustment, enhanced the
proportion of preparation practices and optimised
projects to lay solid foundations for corporate
development

Preparation product sales achieved double-digit growth for
three consecutive years through adjustments to the product
mix and an increase in the proportion of preparation product
sales. The Group achieved a preparation sales amount of
approximately RMB472,812,000, representing an increase of
16.95% over 2008. Preparation product sales accounted for
29.98% of industrial product sales, representing an increase of
3.183 percentage points over the previous year. The adjustment
to the product mix achieved remarkable success.

The structure of our industrial zones was optimised. The
Company focused on the construction project of Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, secured pharmaceutical
intermediates supply, perfected the project assessment
system, strengthened the chain management and strived to
minimise construction costs, thereby improving the overall
competitiveness of the Company.

Focused on research and innovation, grasped reforms,
speeded up exploitation to add new frontiers of growth
for the Company

In order to spark enthusiasm and encourage the initiative
of our researchers, quicken our pace in linking scientific
research results with industrialisation and promote scientific
research system reforms, three management regimes including
as “Incentive Measures for Technical Advancement” were
formulated and revised in 2009.




EEREE(A)

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EWOE (=)

3.

AERTAN  MKE > MRFAR -
BECXBREH(Z

FER  ADTBERFIEE B A
BREHAE - AMEESREE
SAREREEEERDLERY -
4 5 A5 @ 888 R B E
ABIGE RS - A AR 7
AR E — R R
1L B B X0 % B 0
#E -

FEEBRAFH OMEWREE  BIR
EHERE - BECERIED

FAREIRITEEREF]E
&),20094F [ M AN A A) SE A1 738 : 1iT
LERHERE BRENEREDY
AR #3,608F T °

DN R B Al A 25 28 M T T Bl e
A - 581k & 88 R BE B 3 T {E,2009
FEASEEERERHAODARE
25,080 F T  BLEBERER LT
EBE{K12.98% WK AE - T &
RELELE -TERRRBIZEESR
ESSERC W BB EE R - WA A L
RAZZ2RES | RHEEN -

FIEEERERER - 20005 E A B
FEBESTE - SE A - offl R} 2
EE TR, 315 [E] 28 B A EE AR R 1{E (R 2
MGMPR B F iR E AEE M B
BHACCPR %,3 1 Z= & # #BEDQM
WERENESE - 2B F R RS E
MERNEEBHAR DA ILEF
HEEREE S HR A AIEFEIBGSP
BERE TE2ER REER.
OB BE X EF BB IERE

BRESFARERBEAR - F
AEX=EZERFAREEREE
FRBIEFF + TE A LU BR T 5 I 2% (R
M) BRR A RSN R M
PIABRTHE  UREBTRESEA
RIREH N E R -

Business Review (continued)

3.

Focused on research and innovation, grasped reforms,
speeded up exploitation to add new frontiers of growth
for the Company (continued)

During this year, the Company’s eight research projects were
included in the national science and technology plan, the
Company obtained certifications of production for two products
from the State Food and Drugs Administration of the PRC, and
a number of new products passed on-site inspection or entered
the technical review stage. The Company was also recognised
as the first group of high-tech enterprises in Shandong
Province, and passed the annual review of the State Enterprise
Technology Center.

Focused on management innovation, pressed ahead
with improvement of technology and quality, rationalised
ownership, and enhanced corporate competitiveness

By deepening efforts in promoting the program “Year of
breakthroughs in technology and quality”, the Company
made breakthroughs in 17 projects of technical quality in
2009. The Company saved raw materials worth approximately
RMB3,608,000.

The Group expedited technological advancement with a focus
on the application of “Four new technologies ” for strengthening
the management on energy saving and emission reduction,
and achieved energy saving of approximately RMB25,030,000
in 2009.With a 12.98% decrease in energy consumption of
RMB10,000 from last year, the Group was credited as the
pioneer enterprise for energy saving in the province and the
city. It had also met all safety and environment protection
indicators, fulfilled targets and passed inspection tests. Thus,
it was credited as the pioneer enterprise for “safety month
activity” by Shandong Province.

Baseline management across the organisation was
Strengthened. The Company successfully passed the GMP
authentication for injection, ointment, nine pharmaceutical
products, three solid dosage lines and one healthy product.
One product passed HACCP authentication and three products
passed EDQM on-site inspection and re-inspection. Our wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Company
Limited and Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited,
successfully passed GSP license review inspection. Our quality
system, environment system and detection system passed
reviews successfully.

The Company actively adjusted the equity relationship in
subsidiaries. During the year, the Company completed the
registration procedure for converting three non-wholly owned
subsidiaries into wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The Company also completed the procedure for a change
of foreign shareholder and an adjustment to shareholding
proportion in Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH.
In addition, the Company commenced the procedure to transfer
our equity interests in two entities with our equity participation.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PROSPECTS

As the global economy starts to pick up in 2010, the external
environment will be more favourable for corporate development,
and international trade will recover. The Chinese government carries
forward new medical reforms, implements and expands medical
insurance policies and expands medical insurance coverage. These
measures are set to help pharmaceutical enterprises gather pace.

The global economy, however, is still shrouded in the mist of
uncertainty as the impact of the international financial crisis remains
deep. With escalating prices in chemical raw materials and packaging
materials and the governments’ promotion of procurement by bidding,
pressure for the price decrease of finished products mounted. In
addition to fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Renminbi, profit
growth of the Company will slow down.

In 2010, the Group will adhere to its business philosophy of “striving
for organic growth, expanding markets, restructuring business, and
promoting development”, with a focus on the following:

1. Develop rational plans and develop products to lay the
foundation for a quantum leap

The Company will reasonably participate in all industrial zones
and improve its construction projects from a strategic viewpoint.
Taking advantage of the relocation of its headquarters, the
Company will optimise its structure to upgrade products. With
adherence to high standards, it will attach much importance
to pharmaceutical intermediates supply and recycling and will
focus on the planning of Shouguang Park construction projects.

The Company will define plans to chart its course and focus
on key products. The Company will expand and strengthen its
existing premium products of bulk drugs, open up markets of
pharmaceutical raw materials with new growth and increase
research efforts in a small variety of specialty pharmaceutical
products by both imitation and innovation. The Company
aims at achieving product sales of more than RMB100 million
through one single preparation product and increase the share
of preparation sales in industry sales.

Explore new ways for external partnership, seize opportunities
for negotiations of external cooperative projects and organize
the outsourced processing of existing preparation products.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

2.

Insist on technological innovation and focus on
implementation to take structural adjustment a step
forward

The Company will continue its efforts in study and research
on the industry and, by striking a balance among long-term,
mid-term and short-term targets, the Company will focus
on forward-looking products and produce products of good
efficacy, high added value and excellent profit, especially new
drugs that are valuable for anti-hypertensive, anti-high blood
lipids and anti-high blood sugar purposes, and complete a
sequence of development varieties to achieve breakthroughs.
The Company will grasp the exploitation of new dosage forms
of preparations.

The Company will ensure investment for scientific research and
technology, further reform and set up incentive and constraint
systems in scientific research and encourage input and
creativity of scientific and technical personnel. The Company
will diligently apply for approvals for clinical trials and production
of new products. It will also pay due attention to new product
reserves and speed up the progress of bringing the result of
scientific research into practice.

Continue to expand markets and strive to increase profits

The Company will set up an annual market target for main raw
material medicine, reinforce the traditional bulk pharmaceuticals
market and actively explore new market, expand the proportion
of direct users in international trade of material importance.
The Company will seriously study the new policies of relevant
preparation products, actively respond to new conditions,
implement specific measures, implement a strategy of product
focus and actively develop a broad mix of preparation products.

The Company will capture market and industry changes, and
stabilise prices of its main products. The Company will expand
its market share of products that promise growth and turn the
products into new economic growth points, ensure the steady
increase in the sales of key profitable products and increase in
the market share of its major products.

The Company will make use of its domestic and overseas multi-
channels, further improve tender management parity, open up
new suppliers, increase the proportion of direct procurement,
and pragmatically strengthen the management and control
across the entire process of procurement.

While ensuring the smooth construction of the Shouguang
Park project to cater for internal needs, we will also pay due
attention to selling Shouguang Park products both in China
and overseas, so as to cultivate new growth points for the
Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PROSPECTS (continued)

4.

Enhance management to ensure the healthy operation of
the enterprise

The Company will strictly implement the “three firsts” principle,
that is quality first, safety first, environmental protection first,
adhere to one-vote veto system and put energy-saving and
emission reduction high on its agenda. The Company will
improve the internal wasted water online measurement system
through an online energy management system.

The Company will formulate practical measures to carry
out more than 30 research topics that have been included
in the annual technical quality of research plan, work hard
for technology quality research, certification audit and on-
site management, regard the on-site management as a
breakthrough in upgrading technological and quality levels,
combining it with technology quality management, and
certification audit amongst others, and improve on-site
assessment.

The Company will focus on cost analysis and budget control,
carry out comprehensive budget management and avoid
operational risk. The Company will comprehensively promote
lean production and further improve the ERP system.

In 2009, the Group’s staff were of the same mind, worked
together, overcame numerous difficulties and achieved various
targets set for the year with remarkable success, with net
profit reaching an all-time high. Looking into 2010, the Board
believes, by addressing challenges and seizing opportunities
and with the concerted efforts and hard work of all the staff, we
can deliver satisfactory returns to shareholders.

Guo Qin
Chairman

9 April 2010
Zibo, Shandong, PRC

wa Pharmaceutical Company Limited m%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ R AR
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The Board of Directors sincerely submits to the shareholders the report
of the Board of Directors and the audited accounts of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 20009.

Management Discussion and Analysis

1.

The business scope and operating results of the Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of pharmaceutical raw materials, preparations,
chemical products and other products. The profit of the Group
is mainly attributable to its principal operations.

Sales Analysis

Under PRC accounting standards, the Group had a operating
income of approximately RMB2,321,927,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009. Sales of bulk pharmaceuticals,
sales of preparations, medical logistics, chemical and other
products accounted for 52.05%, 20.36%, 25.80% and 1.79%
respectively of the total sales of the Group, representing a
decrease of 6.26%, an increase of 1.08%, an increase of 6.11%
and an decrease of 0.93% respectively as compared with that
of 2008.

During the year 2009, the sales volume of the Group’s bulk
pharmaceuticals amounted to RMB1,208,471,000, representing
a decrease of 1.16% over 2008. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the export amount of raw
material medicine was decreased compared with last year due
to the global financial crisis.

The sales volume of preparations was RMB472,812,000,
representing an increase of 16.95% over last year. The growth
was mainly due to production structure adjustment, the
highlighting of preparation marketing, an expanded preparation
market, the preparation sales increased.

The sales volume of medical logistics amounted to
RMB599,058,000, representing an increase of 45.09% over
2008. The growth was achieved mainly because by seizing
market opportunities to expand business circulation.
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BEEHMARSR(Z) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
1. FEEEEEREEERR (&) 1. The business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)
RaEDT Results Analysis
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TEEMRERTEMSEEERR:

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards was
approximately RMB102,244,000, representing an increase of
201.02% as compared to that of last year. Profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2009 prepared in accordance with HKGAAP was approximately
RMB99,687,000, representing an increase of 231.58% as
compared to that of last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the strengthened management of the Group, the
decrease in the costs of raw materials, further development of
the Company'’s leading role in the field of bulk pharmaceuticals,
stabilisation of the market price of major bulk pharmaceuticals,
the Company’s tackling of key technological problems a
reduction in the consumption of raw material and power, and
an increase in the gross profit of the Company’s products.

Major products and the corresponding market share in the PRC
are set forth below:

ZEThE

HZSBAE BEATHRERE(%)

HWHEFTIL (%) Market share in
As % of total the domestic
TEER Major Products sales in 2009 market in 2009

A. t2EHE A. Pharmaceutical raw materials
25 Analgin 13.28 47
o0 gk & Caffeine 10.39 32
REL Aminopyrine 416 69
B &) T Ak Aspirin 5.60 65
TAL AT AR Hydrocortisone 1.36 18
W WK BE Pipemidic acid 0.55 100
miga Ibuprofen 3.76 54
2R Theophylline 0.38 26

B. 2E B. Preparations

R BR Pipemidic acid tablets 285 78
EHRHER Co-liquorice tablets 1.06 4.5
RBEMTH Nimodipine tablets 1.03 25




EEZERE (A

Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

BEERWNRASK(Z)

1.

FEXVRERREERR (&)

BB 2 RN EE
HRE D HT

R-ZZEBEZEAE+_A=1+—HBHAXE
BREESARE2626,187F T -
HENARE2161,734F T I A
R #464,453F Jt * EF+21.49% -
BEEFANEEREARAFERN
BEBESEN AHEEEEREE
AABELARAEFEKEELRA
F o

—ETAF+-_A=+—HAE
‘bﬁgéﬁz%/\ﬁﬂ%musgﬁﬁc
BEPARE238124T T IMAR
#4163,770F L * LF68.77% + B
B2 FAMNEFERARAEELE
EEEEAMESREFHEL X FE
IR - FIE N A A R#241,317

Tt - RAFEREITEREM -

R-_ZEETAE+_F=+—HE
BRETARABREEZAARE
1,633,646F L' BRE I AR
1,453,253 F Jr #E 0 A R #180,393
Fo EF1241% - EABNEBER
AAEAFERNAHEESHREED
hBELARRFEECEELERT -

R-ZEZAFE+—_A=Z+—BAE
EaEE5EEARKI56,224F T
BENARMEST4,736T T IMAR
#281,488F T © £ H41.72% * EF
NEZRARAFEAEEARER
BEoftE  RRTIMEB T HBOERMT
B EEHEFEM: FE  AFE
U B 2B 5> BT % 8 8 (B AT AR IE
Uozs > MEMEREERE EFARAK -

—EENFEASEEREENE
FEBR EHTRARKENZFERNEY
)“JlJZ%AE%wS,gOQ?ﬁ AR %
102,244F ¢ D HIR EFRIHEG K
R EBENTERERE£E5
Ml e

—ETNFEAKERESERRESE
BV FIENE R AR 180,731F
T RERESEEMFEEIHN
TERRA: AFELEEHEL
MBS REFBLEFEMNEX
FHEINEAARK241,317F L ©

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Analysis of financial situation and operating results in
accordance with PRC accounting standards

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2009 increased
by 21.49% or approximately RMB464,453,000 to approximately
RMB2,626,187,000, as compared with the figure at the
beginning of the year of approximately RMB2,161,734,000.
The increase in total assets was mainly due to the increase of
the fair value of financial assets available for sale, cash and
operation profits.

Cash of the Group as at 31 December 2009 increased by
68.77% or approximately RMB163,770,000 to approximately
RMB401,894,000, as compared with the figure at the beginning
of the year of approximately RMB238,124,000. The increase
in cash was mainly due to the fact that the net cash flow from
operating activities of the Group increased approximately
RMB241,317,000 as compared with last year and the bank
loans increased.

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company
as at 31 December 2009 increased by approximately 12.41%
or RMB180,393,000 from approximately RMB1,453,253,000 at
the beginning of the year to approximately RMB1,633,646,000.
This increase was mainly attributable to the increase of the fair
value of financial assets available for sale and operation profits
this year.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2009 were
approximately RMB956,224,000, representing an increase of
approximately 41.72% or RMB281,488,000, as compared to
approximately RMB674,736,000 at the beginning of the year.
The increase was mainly attributable to loans obtained by the
Group from the bank to ensure the supply of funds, at the same
time, the Company received some relocation compensation
from the government that was included in deferred income,
resulting in a relatively large increase in the total liabilities.

Operating profit of the Group for 2009 and profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders for 2009 amounted to approximately
RMB135,909,000 and approximately RMB102,244,000
respectively, representing a great increase compared with those
of the previous year. The main reasons for the increase are set
out in the above section headed “Results Analysis”.

The Group’s net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the
year 2009 was approximately RMB180,731,000. The changes in
net amounts of cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to the
increase of net cash flow from operating activities, of which the
net increase for 2009 was approximately RMB241,317,000.
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BEEHMARSR(Z) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
1. FEEEEEREEERR (&) 1. The business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)
2009 P EEHENEFN LS E Segmental information of the main products for 2009
RERMT : prepared under PRC accounting standards is as follows:
FEEBRA FEXBRF %
%
DITEEIER By product or By section Turnover  Cost of goods sold Rate of gross margin
AREFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
H@=8 %A Pharmaceutical raw materials 1,208,471 909,042 24.78
S| Preparations 472,812 336,258 28.88
HERE Medical Commercial Logistics 599,058 585,608 2.25
{CIERREM Chemical & other products 3,968 2,906 26.76
Aft Total 2,284,309 1,833,814 19.72

BEEEERNZ &5t KRR

R—ZEEAF+=_A=+—8"
AKEB R K B174.64%  RE)
bt R B21190.42% @ FEURBR X A 8 =X
£878.39% (FE W BR X B 88 =%
¥m,/ TPHERERERZRFESE
X100% ) ' 7 & A # & B570.26%
(GERAER-ERBEERLFH
FEFEEX100%) °

AEEESFREABFTHERE

AEBESRREZERMA S BEE
EBER-R_BETZAF+_A=+—
B AEBRITERCBAARE
394,024F L - RZZFEZNF+ =
A=+t BASBHEEEEES A
R#401,804F T (BEHARE
37496 T THRITEAHEZREL S
TR °

BMEMEER AEEERESA
B ERTHERBRROAIZER
HE - AEEES RS ML ER
e -

—ZEENEFEARREFARF
EH % (BN BRAREBMEEA
R #50,000F 7T °

Analysis under HKGAAP

As at 31 December 2009, the current ratio and the quick ratio
of the Group was 174.64% and 119.42% respectively, and the
rate of accounts receivable turnover (rate of accounts receivable
turnover = revenue/average trade and bill receivablesx100%)
and the rate of stock turnover (rate of stock turnover = cost of
sales/average inventoriesx100%) were 878.39% and 570.26%
respectively.

The Group’s demand for working capital did not show
significant seasonal fluctuation through the year.

The Group’s main source of funds were loans from financial
institutions. As at 31 December 2009, the total amount of
outstanding bank loans was approximately RMB394,024,000.
As at 31 December 2009, cash on hand and in bank of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB401,894,000
(including bank acceptance drafts deposits of approximately
RMB37,496,000).

The Group has stringent internal control systems for cash and
fund management to strengthen its financial management. The
Group maintained a good level of liquidity and had strong debt
repayment ability.

The Company invested an additional RMB50,000,000 in cash in
Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited in 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Analysis of the Group’s performance under HKGAAP
(continued)

Apart from the above transactions, the Group did not have any
significant investment, acquisitions or asset disposals during
this reporting period.

As at 31 December 2009, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 5,298, and the total amount for salaries and wages
for 2009 was approximately RMB153,582,000.

As at 31 December 2009, there was no charge on the Group’s
assets.

The debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 23.96% (debt-to-
capital ratio = total borrowings / equity attributable to owners of
the Company x100%).

The bank balance of the Company will mainly be used as
working capital for production and research and development.

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded in
Renminbi. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the revenue
from the Group’s exports was approximately US$133,685,000,
which may suffer from the risks associated with the fluctuation
of exchange rates. Therefore, the Group has taken the following
measures to lower the risks from the fluctuation of exchange
rates: (1) the Group has increased the price of its export
products to decrease the risks from the fluctuation of exchange
rates; (2) the Group has made arrangements with overseas
customers when entering into significant export contracts that
the risks associated with the fluctuation in exchange rates shall
be borne by both parties if the fluctuation exceeds the range of
exchange rate fluctuation agreed by both parties.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company

(1)

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$6,000,000,
in which the Company holds 50.1% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling lbuprofen. As at 31 December 2009,
the total assets of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB64,551,000, equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB61,213,000.
In 2009, the operating income of and the profit
after taxation of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB103,519,000 and RMB7,062,000 respectively,
representing a decrease of 10.98% and a decrease of
35.24% respectively as compared with that of 2008,
which were mainly due to the export amount of the
subsidiary decreased by the global financial crisis.

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$1,500,000,
in which the Company holds 75% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical
products. As at 31 December 2009, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB13,805,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
was approximately RMB13,066,000. In 2009, the
operating income of and the net loss of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB3,709,000 and RMB669,000
respectively, the main reason for the drop was the sale
of calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical products
declined in 2009 due to the global financial crisis.

ua Pharmaceutical Company Limited LLi 5 £ £ 8% 1% 43 A R A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2.

Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(3)

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trade Company Limited is RMB48,499,000, in which
the Company holds 100% of the total equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business
of biological products, prepared herbal medicine for
decoction, traditional Chinese medicine, pharmaceutical
raw materials, preparations, antibiotic preparations
biochemical medicine, health food, medical appliances,
drugs and products for birth control and cosmetics
etc.. As at 31 December 2009, the total assets of
the subsidiary were approximately RMB212,678,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
was approximately RMB48,139,000. In 2009, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB988,911,000, representing an increase of 26.89%
as compared with that of 2008, the growth was mainly
due to the subsidiary’s business logistics revenues was
larger than the same period of last year. The net loss of
the subsidiary was RMB429,000,

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Import and Export Company Limited is RMB5,000,000,
in which the Company holds 100% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the import
and export of goods and technologies, marketing and
re-export. As at 31 December 2009, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB13,846,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB7,600,000. In 2009, the operating
income and the profit after taxation of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB45,613,000 and RMB685,000
respectively, representing a decrease of 44.59% and a
decrease of 67.70% respectively as compared with that
of 2008.

Total paid-up capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited is RMB130,000,000,
in which the Company holds 100% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling chemical products. As at 31 December 2009,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB297,006,000, equity attributable to shareholders
of the parent was approximately RMB136,761,000.
In 2009, the operating income of and the profit
after taxation of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB137,367,000 and RMB9,848,000 respectively,
which increased as compared with that of 2008, the
main reason was due to new products were put into
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

6

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy
Chain Company Limited (“Xinhua Pharmacy”) is
RMB2,000,000, in which the Company holds 100%
of the total equity interest. The main operations of the
subsidiary are the sale of traditional Chinese medicine,
prepared herbal medicine for decoction, preparations,
drugs for diagnosis, drugs for birth control, medical
devices, health foods and cosmetics. As at 31
December 2009, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB8,812,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the parent was approximately
RMB3,663,000. In 2009, the operating income of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB23,486,000,
representing an increase of 5.69% as compared with
that of 2008. Net profit was RMB895,000, representing
an increase of 18.00% as compared with that of 2008.

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited is RMB3,000,000,
in which the Company holds 100% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the
business of the design of medical projects. As at 31
December 2009, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB4,260,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the parent was approximately
RMB1,558,000. In 2009, the operating income was
approximately RMB4,764,000, representing an increase
of 2.81% as compared with that of 2008. The profit
after taxation of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB64,000.

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH is EUR769,000, in which the Company
holds 65% of the total equity interest. This subsidiary is
mainly engaged in the business of bulk pharmaceutical
intermediates. As at 31 December 2009, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB26,811,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB6,691,000. In 2009, the operating
income and the profit after taxation of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB77,485,000 and RMB1,367,000
respectively, representing an increase of 85.42% and
an increase of 87.23% as compared with that of 2008,
which was mainly due to the continued expansion in the
scale of the business.
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BEEHMARSR(Z) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
3. BREASHEAER 3. Use of Proceeds
RABR-_EZE—FHNB=HE On 3 September 2001, the Company raised an amount of
3,300% IRARR (& Bl & IR R #£300 RMB370,517,000 from the issue and offer of 33,000,000
ER) EZEEBEeFEAARK A Shares (including the offer of 3,000,000 state-owned
370,517 F 7 HIEZEEAF+= shares). As at 31 December 2009, a total of approximately
A=+—H HFHEEEE AR RMB330,969,000 from the proceeds of the above issue of A
#:330,969F T TEHANRLATIER : Shares had been used in the following projects:
BRES 20095 SRk
#ARE EBRRA RARES BENLH
PEBOREFRAR Total Investment Accumulated % of the total [ {4
Name of project investment in 2008 investment investment Remark
ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BR AR OFEE R 74,500 3,510 21,036 28.24% -
State-level technical centre
HEGMPRIEEE 80,000 - 80,226 100.28% =T
Injection workshop GMP renovation Completed
WE R B IE B 160,000 - 188,201 117.63% =T
Caffeine technical renovation Completed
L-350ffiTckiETE B 29,980 - 23,442 78.19% %1
L-350 technical renovation Completed
Z i E#B(GMP)RETE B 39,800 - 46,265 116.24% 7L
Analgin GMP renovation Completed
&7 384,280 3,510 359,170 = Hib28 201 F LA
BEEERA
Total RMB28,201,000
financed by the Company
it - Note:
1. #HE (GMP)BREIH A X EmBEE 1. Injection GMP renovation project was not realised because of the
HEBREDNRFERAKE effects of the drop in the drugs price.
2. W BE R R 2SI B R B R A 28 Caffeine technical renovation project was not realised because of
BRBERTROVE  REJNABNE the effects of the drop in the price and the export tax rebate rate.
BRI
3. BRAFEMPROBEEE FEITRE 3. The main project of the renovation of the state-level technical center
B&ET - has been completed.
HAERANEEESTERET B The unused proceeds were deposited in banks and will be used

BRI EAEEA - in accordance with project commitments.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Working Report of the Board

1.

During the year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions on
five occasions:

A.

On 20 March 2009, the Second meeting of the Sixth
Board was convened at the Company'’s registered office,
the results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 23 March 2009.

On 28 April 2009, the Third meeting of the Sixth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, the
results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 29 April 2009.

On 24 July 2009, the Forth meeting of the Sixth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, the
results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 27 July 2009.

On 7 August 2009, the First extraordinary Board
meeting of 2009 was convened by electronic means of
communication in relation to the increase in investment
of RMB1,000,000 to Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited. The resolution was
approved.

On 28 October 2009, the Fifth meeting of the Sixth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
the results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 29 October 2009.

Implementation of the Resolutions Passed at the General
Meeting by the Board

The dividend for 2008 of the Company was distributed in the
end of July 2009.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Brief introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers are
listed in the above section headed “BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS” under the
section “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
minimum public float during this reporting period and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and
Supervisors are set out in note 16 to the Accounts prepared in
accordance with HKGAAP.

Individuals with the Highest Remuneration

The five individuals with the highest salaries paid by the Group during
the year 2009 were two directors and three senior officers. For details,
please refer to note 17 to the Accounts prepared in accordance with
the HKGAAP.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any of the
Directors, the Supervisors, or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to take advantage by acquiring shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.




ESRESEZEVHHAG

ARAE - EBRA - EERRRKIER
RAIRMHE AR AR ANFEEFRLF
WEMERE - ER AN REXBERITEM
Ex EFHEERIMEEEERMNENA

BREEEEERMN G RARPE S
EARINBEELAEBERARRABE_F
ENF+T_A=+—HILFEZXENMR -
ZEENF+_A=1T—BUBRRAERR
BEREEEBRMNZETRANGHNEKE |
MErEgt EAREZRE] -

MEHE

REBEEERM G RAGBI A E
ERBEREMRFERTESELR
HHAEERBE=ZATRFENES -
BELRBEHR [ BBENEHRER
]

FIHSE

BEFESHEAUGEHAEEHEE_FZT
NWE+—_A=Z=+—"BLEEEEHRFAEA
R#102,244F T » AR FI2009F E EIR
HFFBIORRIEERHBATEEARE
9,889F L ERRERHABKREFTIORAR
057 (FrABEHNOSTT BF) BB
% 17 19307,312,830%AM% & 150,000,0000%
HIG st & - Hit AR#22,866F 7T ° A F 7
FERZXAQRFTN _ZZNEERAEREKX
SEZIE -

FEREREMENSHERNE

AREBRARARBNEERBE DT 24 %
BHNRZEBEBRMNZ SRR R
B KIEE6 ©

B 2= £ Bh K B 3R 1% R 4t iR

ARBAMNAFEARANBHRBERBERN
BRIBERESHRBERBER]

EEgHRE (A

Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Neither the Company, its holding company, its controlling shareholder
nor fellow subsidiaries have signed any contracts in relation to the
Company’s business in which any Directors or Supervisors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2009 prepared in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting
standards are set out in section headed “ACCOUNTS PREPARED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS” and “ACCOUNTS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared
in accordance with HKGAAP for the last five financial years and
PRC accounting standards for the last three financial years is set
out in section headed “SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND OPERATING
RESULTS”.

Profit Appropriation

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group recorded
a net profit of approximately RMB102,244,000 for the year ended 31
December 2009, 10% of net profit of the Company was transferred
to the statutory surplus reserves amounting to approximately
RMB9,889,000. The Board has recommended to distribute a final
dividend at RMBO0.5 per 10 shares subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the following 2009 annual general meeting of the
Company (equivalent to approximately HK$0.57, tax inclusive) on
307,312,830 A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which
is aggregated to be approximately RMB22,866,000. The above
recommendation will be submitted to the 2009 Annual General Meeting
of the Company for approval.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations
The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical

locations is set out in note 6 to the Accounts prepared in accordance
with the HKGAAP.

Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

Changes in share capital and shareholders are set out in the
above section headed “CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS”
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year 2009 are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and
Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards, respectively.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movement in the fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during year 2009 are set out in note 19 to the Accounts
prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and note 8.10 to the
Accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2009 are set out in note 34 to the
Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and notes 8.15
and 8.25 to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards.

Interest Capitalised

During the year, no interest was capitalised in respect of loans
borrowed by the Group and the Company for financing its
construction-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its employees during the
year ended 31 December 2009 but was required to contribute 8% of
the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the accommodation scheme
managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance Bureau
in accordance with the relevant regulations implemented by the PRC
government authorities since 1 January 1998. For the year ended 31
December 2009, contributions to the accommodation scheme made by
the Group in this respect amounted to approximately RMB6,835,000.

Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees promulgated by the Shandong Provincial
Government and the Schedule for Establishment of Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees implemented by Zibo Municipal
Government, the Company joined the above-mentioned Medical
Insurance System for Urban Employees in December 2004. For the
year ended 31 December 2009, the total contribution of the Group to
the staff basic medical insurance was approximately RMB8,424,000.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Preferential Tax Treatment

According to the formal notice (Code Guo Ke Fa Huo No. (2009) 12)
issued by the Department of Science and Technology of Shandong
Province, Shandong Province Finance Bureau, National Taxation
Bureau of Shandong and Local Taxation Bureau of Shandong Province,
stating that the Company is recognised as a new and high technology
enterprise, the recognition will be valid for three years, from 2008 to
2010. According to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax, the income tax to be levied on the Company
will be 15% from the award of the recognition.

Designated Deposits

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had neither placed
any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor had
it placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have any
overdue time deposits.

Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2009 are set out in the
section headed “IMPORTANT ISSUES”.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and five largest customers were 19.87% and
21.17% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and largest customer were 8.92% and 7.94% of the
Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of
their associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), or those
shareholders which own more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company have an interest in any of the above customers or suppliers
of the Group during the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2009, neither the Company nor

any of its subsidiaries had redeemed, purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the Company’s Articles of Association and the laws of
the PRC, there is no provision for pre-emptive rights.
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Retirement Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement Scheme (the
“Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium in accordance with the
particular regulation issued by the local municipal government whereby
it is required to make an annual contribution of 23% of the total salaries
and bonuses paid to staff. In turn, the local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retirees of the Group. Contributions to the Scheme are
charged to the profit and loss account as and when they are incurred.
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the total contribution of the
Group to the Scheme was approximately RMB28,175,000.

Connected Transactions

Significant connected transactions carried out in the normal course of
the Group’s business are summarised as follows:

= 1 2
2009 2008
ARBTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERATFIIRAEEEER With immediate holding company Shandong
ERRELFREMELR Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (“SXPGC”) and its subsidiaries
— HEKEAREME — Sale of water, electricity,
steam and raw materials 10,258 12,870
— RERME — Purchase of raw materials 84,802 132,098
— EEFERE — Payment of annual trademark licence fee 1,100 1,100
— BEYE BEIRE — Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 9,846
— Az KA — Rental income 134 361
— R BIRA — Design fees income 50 24
—feTH — Rental expenses 500 500
— B OfY B A B AR — Purchase subsidiary’s equity interest 636 —
— EE T EAERA — Transfer land use rights income = 924
HEE QT With associates
— RBERME — Purchase of raw materials 6,127 12,875
— REFEBBKA — Design fees income 11 12
HOBBE With minority shareholders
— HELERRERETRER — Sale of pharmaceutical raw materials and
chemical raw materials 144,926 162,161
— RBELIRMRKES — Purchase of chemical raw materials and
water, electricity, steam 514 —
— R QR RE — Purchase of Shouguang Company
equity interest - 13,972
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the above transactions were carried out in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business and on
normal commercial terms. The aggregate amount of the above
transactions for each of the years 2008 and 2009 did not
exceed the annual cap approved in the general meeting of the
Company.

Continuing Connected Transaction

(1)

On 28 October 2009, the Company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (“SXPGC”) entered into
the SXPGC Agreement in relation to the Company purchasing
certain products in relation to accessories, raw materials and
packaging materials from SXPGC and the Company selling
certain products in relation to waste materials and supplying
water, electricity and steam to SXPGC for a period of three
years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012. SXPGC is
the largest shareholder of the Company and therefore SXPGC
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual caps in relation to the Company selling waste
materials and supplying of water, electricity and steam to
SXPGC under the SXPGC Agreement are RMB31,000,000,
RMB35,000,000 and RMB39,000,000 for the years 2010,
2011 and 2012 respectively. The annual caps in relation to the
Company purchasing accessories, raw materials and packaging
materials from SXPGC under the SXPGC Agreement are
RMB200,000,000, RMB210,000,000 and RMB220,000,000 for
the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively.

In relation to the above continuing connected transaction, the
Company issued an announcement on 28 October 2009.

wa Pharmaceutical Company Limited m%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ R R
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Continuing Connected Transaction (continued)

)

On 28 October 2009, the Company and Eastwest United
Group, Inc. (“Eastwest”) entered into the Eastwest Agreement in
relation to the Company supplying pharmaceutical products to
Eastwest for a period of three years from 1 January 2010 to 31
December 2012. Eastwest is a substantial shareholder of Zibo
Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, and therefore Eastwest is a connected person
of the Company.

The annual caps for the Company selling pharmaceutical
products under the Eastwest Agreement are RMB15,000,000,
RMB16,500,000 and RMB18,000,000 for the years 2010, 2011
and 2012 respectively.

In relation to the above continuing connected transaction, the
Company issued an announcement on 28 October 2009.
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The accounts of the Company and the Group for the year 2009
prepared in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting standards
have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and ShineWing,
Certified Public Accountant, PRC respectively.

ARARBRR _ZF—ZFFEARANEARA_-F
ZNFERFRRAE LZBERE KT
M(BE) GFTMEBMAER QR ME KT
MEFAMEBAOBNBARTN T —FF
[ B % 0 o B A B

The Company intends to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and
ShineWing as international auditors and PRC auditors of the Company
respectively for the year 2010 at the annual general meeting for the
year 2009 to be held in 2010.

AEEZH By order of the Board
BE Guo Qin
EER Chairman
R (L) B 1R Zibo, Shandong, PRC

—E—ZTF@MANH

9 April 2010
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Report of The Supervisory Committee

To All Shareholders,

In 2009, all the members of the supervisory committee of the
Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) actively performed their tasks
in protecting the interests of the Company and its shareholders in
accordance with the requirements of the Company Law of the PRC,
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) and
the relevant PRC laws and regulations. The Supervisory Committee
also performed the various duties assigned to it by the Articles of
Association in an active, diligent and faithful manner.

The Supervisory Committee convened four meetings in 2009:

The Second meeting of the Sixth Supervisory Committee was
convened at the Company’s registered office on 20 March 2009, in
which the following resolutions were passed:

(1) To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the
year 2008;

2) To approve the annual report and announcement of results for
the year 2008;

3) To approve the audited accounts of the Company for the year
2008;

(4) To approve the resolution in respect of the provisions for
diminution in value of assets and treatment of related losses;

) To approve the proposal in respect of the estimate of
continuing connected transactions and the use of funding for
the year 2008;

(8) To approve the report of self-evaluation of the Company’s
internal control for the year 2008;

On 28 April 2009, the Third meeting of the Sixth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to
approve the first quarterly report of 2009 and to increase in investment
to Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited to construct
the pyrazolone-building projects and addition liquidity.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #i =S R 5 A R A 7
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On 24 July 2009, the Fourth meeting of the Sixth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to
approve the 2009 interim report of the Company, and the connected
transactions for the first half of 2009.

On 28 October 2009, the Fifth meeting of the Sixth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to
approve the third quarterly report of 2009 and continuing connected
transactions.

Members of the Supervisory Committee also attended the board
meetings of the Company and exercised effective supervision as to
whether business decisions made by the Board of Directors were in
compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association, and in line with the development of the Company
and also in the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The
Supervisory Committee considered that the Board of Directors
exercised its powers in accordance with the law.

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the actual use of the
proceeds from the issue of new shares was in compliance with the
undertakings made by the Company and all the connected transactions
that took place during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and the
Report of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors
to the 2009 Annual General Meeting and has not found anything
contained therein to be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory
Committee, the financial report for the year 2009 reflects the true
financial position and results of the Company.

The Company was not involved in any significant litigation during the
year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Chairman of Supervisory Committee
Yu Gongfu

Zibo, Shandong, PRC
9 April 2009
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Important Issues

The Group was not involved in any material litigation or
arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration is pending or
threatened or was made against the Group during the reporting
period.

During the reporting period, there were no material acquisitions
and sales of assets, nor any material acquisitions and mergers.

In the reporting period, there was no trust, subcontract or lease
of assets between the Company and other companies.

During the reporting period of the annual report, there was no
other material guarantee provided by the Company nor had
any material guarantee provided by the Company not been fully
performed.

The Company did not appoint any custodian for the
management of funds.

None of the Company, the Directors and the Senior Officers has
been penalised by any PRC authorities during the year ended
31 December 2009.

The Company and its shareholders, holding more than 5%
of shares of the Company, have disclosed undertakings
designated by the CSRC:

(1) SXPGC has undertaken between the 36th month and
48th month since the listing of the non-tradable shares
of the Company that it shall not sell any of its A shares
of the Company on the SZSE at a price less than
RMB4.8 per share, (such price will be on an ex-rights
basis if there is any declaration of dividends, bonus
issues or capitalisation of capital reserve during the
period between the day of implementation of the revised
share reform of the Company and sale of the shares
by SXPGC) being 150% of the average of the closing
prices of the listed A shares as quoted on the SZSE in
the thirty (30) trading days prior to the issuance date of
the relevant notice of the shareholders’ meeting. Should
SXPGC breach any of the provisions of this undertaking
in the sale of its shares, the proceeds resulting from
such sale shall be owned by the Company.

2) SXPGC guaranteed not to use any funds of the
Company for non-business reasons starting from 1
January 2006.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #i =S R 5 A R A 7
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Important Issues (continued)

8. EL S B iR e st 8 45 % 5 8. The related party transactions are as set out in the Note 9 to
W& B MEES © the Accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards.

9. AERERR - KR A A FEE TR 9. During the reporting period, the Company did not provide funds

HES BLARELEBEFTRARA A to the connected parties, and the connected parties did not
REZSHER - provide funds to the Company.
10.  1ZEAD 10.  Auditors
BRAZEA R EHFWNERFER AT The auditors of the Company and respective remuneration
RIBMRE R [ SIS | — & - of auditors are set out in the section headed “Auditors’
remuneration” disclosed in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT”.
11, RFEEMETRAAREBRL(ARE 11.  Information about holding other listed companies (RMB)
)
BEHREE
EZ AT Haen
RREedE B LB HXEREE Change of
BHEE Initial  Proportion of Book value HEREE  shareholders
BHERB Abbreviated investment equity interest of end of Profit/loss equity of
Stock Code Name amount in investee this period  of this period this period
601601 HEX R 7,000,000.00 0.06% 128,100,000.00 1,500,000.00  72,500,000.00
China Pacific Insurance
601328 RiBIRIT 14,225,318.00 0.02%  69,863,200.00 1,494,400.00 34,445,920.00
BANKCOMM
600831 BERE 463,655.00 0.01% 432,588.00 1,880.00 152,468.00
BC & TV Network
600713 FAREE 568,800.00 0.02% - (982.80) 299,250.00
Nanjing Medical
&t 22,257,773.00 — 198,395,788.00  2,995,297.20 107,397,638.00

Total
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Important Issues (continued)

12. HEBESAT  BR K EE 12. Information of reception research, communication and interview
FIERK
BRRNIENTRRENESR
ERER BEHE BHAR ERlg Main content of the discussion
Reception time Reception location Reception method Reception objects and the information provided
200904 A09H ARER i B RERFE TRAREELERER
9 April 2009 Office address Field study Gao Hua Securities etc.Understand the production and
of the Company operation of the Company
2009405 A278 NGEa it 585 ERE-%A TRAREESEER
27 May 2009 Office address Field study China Southern Fund  Understand the production and
of the Company operation of the Company
200911 503H REEF i R BEREF TRAREESZER
3 November 2009 Office address Field study Qilu Securities Understand the production and
of the Company operation of the Company
13. RFAFIZ=ZFREHAFER 13. Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years
aHEERPE HEHER
BREBATR hEERB AR
REENHENE B ENBHHE
(BRPEFENES) (EhBEFTEREH)LEE
(%)
Profit attributable As % of Profit
to the equity attributable to the
shareholders of equity shareholders
parent company in of parent company
consolidated in consolidated
Begead statements statements
(&) (prepared in (prepared in
Amounts accordance with accordance with
(including PRC accounting PRC accounting
income tax) standards) standards)
(AE#T) (AR#T)
RMB RMB %
2008 13,719,384.90 33,965,477.41 40.39
2007 13,719,384.90 32,723,034.60 41.93

2006 9,146,256.60 23,5667,389.39 38.81
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
74 to 163, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Wa Kei

Practising Certificate Number: P03427

Hong Kong
9 April 2010
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RALFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

A W R

Consolidated Income Statement

74 |

BE_ZTH HE_ZZTN\F
£+-A=+—H +=A=+—~H
I E EFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
k3 AR®TFT ARBFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEZ
Restated
BT Revenue 5) 2,295,101 2,077,753
$HE AR Cost of sales (1,849,738) (1,776,658)
E% ] Gross profit 445,363 301,095
& W Investment income 7 4,928 7,639
H s Other income 8 7,437 17,829
H bl e & B 18 Other gains and losses 9 (16,700) (21,330)
DERHEEER Distribution and selling expenses (133,713) (118,507)
EIREH Administrative expenses (162,845) (125,978)
H & A Other expenses (13,616) (3,229)
FE (5Bt & D B0 K Share of profits of associates 4,912 1,884
&R Finance costs 10 (19,378) (17,956)
BRaEI2F Profit before tax 116,388 41,447
Frisfi &R Income tax expense 11 (13,008) (5,677)
FEEER Profit for the year 12 103,380 35,770

LITEERBGEERT : Profit for the year attributable to:
PN/NEINZ TP SN Owners of the Company 99,687 30,064
DB ERER Minority interests 3,693 5,706
103,380 35,770

SREF — EFXREE Earnings per share

— basic and diluted 14 AR#RMB0.218 A R¥RMB0.066

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

BE-ZTAF+-A=+-RLFE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

e EEl s R

Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income

BE_ZThE BHEZZTZTN\F
+=BA=+—H +=A=+—H
ILFE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHZEZ
Restated
FERT Profit for the year 103,380 35,770
HAb 2 mEKEs - Other comprehensive income:
BMEELEZERERS Exchange differences arising
on translation (46) (377)
HEEeREE Y Fair value gain(loss) on
N EWE available-for-sale financial assets 107,398 (273,428)
HEMEANESEER Income tax relating to components
BREZEM of other comprehensive income (16,140) 41,044
FERAREAMZEKS Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 91,212 (232,761)
FERAKME Total comprehensive income
for the year 194,592 (196,991)
DTEHREA2ZEKEEEHE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ViN/NETNZ RN Owners of the Company 190,848 (202,634)
D R R = Minority interests 3,744 5,643
194,592 (196,991)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S % R (5 5 R A 7
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S AL s\ RETBLERM 2 S5 RAEY
% =] E\j i% ;Ik /R % Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

. . . . R-ZBAF+=A=+—H
Consolidated Statement Of Financial Positon As at 31 December 2009

—EEBhE —EENF
+=-B=+—8H +=—A=+—~H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
k23 AR®TFTT AR TFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
FERBEE Non-current assets
i Technical know-how 18 117 792
ME - WE KRR Property, plant and equipment 19 963,747 959,882
EEIR Construction in progress 20 134,356 88,206
THF R Prepaid lease payments
TR HAERE on land use rights 21 193,915 105,061
A E Investment properties 22 36,694 —
XN b Interests in associates 23 14,360 25,632
—Mﬁ HEZRE Available-for-sale investments 24 201,596 94,767
BEMBHEE Deferred tax assets 37 3,044 1,031
1,547,829 1,275,371
mEEE Current assets
TE Inventories 25 344,220 304,515
FEWERR R EMEYWFIE Trade and other receivables 26 314,353 289,995
THE AR Prepaid lease payments
?Eﬁfﬂ‘é?ﬁt on land use rights 21 4,070 4,146
JEUR E A R RIB Amount due from
immediate holding company 27 8,465 43,091
JiE W Bt & R R RE Amounts due from associates 28 = 1,482
R & Tax recoverable 142 2,700
EHEMARITER Pledged bank deposits 30 37,496 54,457
BT ERRBESES Bank balances and cash 31 364,398 183,667
1,073,144 884,053
FARHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 32 15,390 =
1,088,534 884,053
mBAaR Current liabilities
FEHIIJE?A&E{‘@EEH%\IE Trade and other payables 33 491,698 361,818
A< Bk & R B SRR Amount due to an associate 28 498 1,805
EET e Tax payable 7,069 462
TESIT AR Derivative financial instruments 29 - 7,591
BX Borrowings 34 124,024 284,474
623,289 656,150
mEHEERSE Net current assets 465,245 227,903
HEERRDAR Total assets less
current liabilities 2,013,074 1,503,274

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ,é;j_; é’ EZI' i% ;'-Ijt ;R % ( ,%E )

R=FBAF+=A=+—H

e ot &1 Besaiees 2068 Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position (continued)

—EThE —TENF
+=-BA=+—H +=A=+—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
HtaE AR¥TIT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE W Capital and reserves
R& X Share capital 36 457,313 457,313
fEE Reserves 1,164,324 995,502
I R HA AR B Proposed final dividend 22,866 13,719
KARTB ARGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 1,644,503 1,466,534
D EAR R Minority interests 36,318 33,746
HER Total equity 1,680,821 1,500,280
FRBAR Non-current liability
EEMEHEaE Deferred tax liabilities 37 11,597 2,994
BX Borrowings 34 270,000 —
EEUA Deferred income 38 50,656 —
332,253 2,994
2,013,074 1,503,274
FIABEF163BE M BEREIN _Z— The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 163 were
EENMANAARKREEZTSHEREREAH approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9 April
WHATALTRAEESE : 2010 and are signed on its behalf by :
SREE HRAE Guo Qin Zhao Songguo
Ea E] Director Director
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M A 32 4= REFBZERMZERARH
% = *E ﬁﬁ % EJ % Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

. . BE-ZZNF+-A=Z+—-BLEE
Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Eqwty For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

LEREEEABE
Attributable to owners of the Company

g
BE  RELR o8
B*x ROERE FIrLRe REEE  HERE ERAm AtRE ERKE REEH  RIRE Bt REER it
Available-
Asset  for-sale

Share Share Capital ~ Reserve revaluation investment Other Exchange Retained  Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Biitp)  (Hritp)  (Hite) (Hiita)
(Note b) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)

R=BRNE-A-A
At 1 January 2008 457,313 466,618 78,642 164,376 26,850 291,327 = 751 184,650 13,719 1,683,246 50,793 1,734,039

FREARAER
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - = = - (232,384) = (314) 30,064 - (202,634) 5643 (196,991)

ENHBARRE
(Hit41)

Acquisition of additional
interests in a subsidiary

(Note 41) - - - - - - (359) - - - (359) (13613 (13972
LENBRR (Hite)
Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 42) = = = = = = = = = = = (8,871) (8,871)
ZRRBEN

Transfer from

retained earmings - - - 3,062 (3,052) - - - -
TRPURRRE
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - (206) (206)
EARE
Payment of dividends - - - - - - - - - (13,719) (13,719)
“EE\FRERDRE
Proposed final 2008 dividend - - - - - - - - (13,719) 13,719 - - -

(13,719)

RFENEHA
=t-1
At 31 December 2008 457,313 466,618 78,642 167,428 25,850 58,943 (359) 437 197,943 18,719 1,466,534 33,746 1,500,280
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ,élt,',;_-: é’ *E E @ E % ( ,%E )

BE-ZFAFT-A=t—HALFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009 Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity (continued)

LFREHEEABE
Attributable to owners of the Company

At
BE  RELR b8
B*x BROERE FIroRE REEE  HERE EfAm RURE ERKE REEH  RIRE Bt REER it
Available-
Asset  for-sale

Share Share Capital  Reserve revaluation investment Other Exchange Retained  Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
(Wze) (W) (Wic) (Hiita)
(Note b}~ (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)

FREAYNER
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 91,258 - 97 99,687 - 190,848 3,744 194,592

EMHBARRE
(Hizta1)

Acquisition of additional

interests in subsidiaries

(Note 41) - - - - - - (143) - - - (143) (493) (636)
YBRRTE (Hit43)
Capital injected by a minority

shareholder (Note 43) - - - - - - 983 - - - 983 1,449 2,432
BaRBEN
Transfer from

retained earnings - - - 9,889 - - - - (9,889) - - - -
BAELE LEVES
Dividends paid to

minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - (2,128) (2,128)
RARE
Payment of dividends - - - - - - - - - (13,7199 (13,719 - (13,719)
ZEENFRERARA
Proposed final 2009 dividend - - - - - - - - (22,866) 22,866 - - -

RZFZHhEF+=R
==/
At 31 December 2009 457,313 466,618 78,642 177,317 25,850 160,201 481 340 264,875 22,866 1,644,503 36,318 1,680,821
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REEmgER(H)

Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity (continued)

BBREARKNE (THEDBBEEREK
ARRzARER(RRER])  BHR‘
i M EERA T RF DK

M FH R R

@) FRER B 1 18 5 N 2 10% 38 # = 05 7
BHRAEE -BEEBHBAEES
BMEZZMEARZE0% - AITHEE
B ;

) BREERRNERREBRBZE
BESBIES R

(@) A AR R AR B, o

e DN PRI TS L
B & & 2% 46 3L 2 0% 52 0 B o0 2 18 Bt 4 ik
R -

B EERASBTRESMELS YEM
KRBETREER BAAEETIBREBER
NEHEERREARRD AR R B
AEMEHEREEFTBRORAEZE - RIE
TEERMER  EAREES KR M EER
REEARIE AL A o

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”), profit after
tax shall be appropriated in the following order :

(1) make up accumulated losses;

2) transfer 10% of the profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve.
When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital, such transfers need not be made;

3) transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an amount approved by
the shareholders in general meetings; and

(4) distribute dividends to shareholders.

The amount transferred to the statutory surplus reserve shall be based on
the profit after tax in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with the
PRC accounting standards.

Share premium account and capital reserve

Share premium account arose from issues of shares net of issuing expenses.
Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the appraised value of
assets and value of shares issued when the Company was converted from
a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock limited company. According to the
relevant regulations in the PRC, capital reserve and share premium account
can only be used to increase share capital.

REES (©) Reserve funds

EERR FEERR
NES NES Wt

Statutory Discretionary

surplus surplus
reserve reserve Total

(Hiz2a)) (Htat(i)

(note (i) (note (i)
AR¥Fr ARHFr ARHFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=ZZEN\F—HF—H At 1 January 2008 102,830 61,546 164,376
5 R %5 Transfer from retained earnings 3,052 — 3,052
R_ZZN\F+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 105,882 61,546 167,428
5 R %5 Transfer from retained earnings 9,889 = 9,889
R=ZTTNF+=-A=1+—H At31 December 2009 115,771 61,546 177,317

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

RERmgE R (H)

Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity (continued)

BE-ZENF+=-A=+—-HLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

st - (&) Notes : (Continued)
(©) HEEES (&) (©) Reserve funds (Continued)
(i) EERBAESR (i) Statutory surplus reserve
AEESFARRTBATRE The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the profit after
ZBRBE R (kB B g F tax as reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance
AR EZERBEDPEBR) 2 with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
10%  BEREZITBHRABES & until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital. This
ATERBAESEEAMEAZ reserve can be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase
50%F  AJ T HIER c ZAEE A share capital. Except for the reduction of losses incurred, any other
AR EmEREEE 2 BREIIEM usage should not result in this reserve balance falling below 25% of
A o B T B E RN - A E the registered capital.
ERARTEEHABEHER
R &R Z25% °
(i) TERHLAES (ii) Discretionary surplus reserve

FERE AL NEBEEN DR The discretionary surplus reserve was set up by means of
IS - SRR E RS it appropriation from the retained earnings. Subject to approval by
K% AEESVARBEEFNEE shareholders in general meetings, the reserve can be used to reduce
HEZEBNMIENMBRAE - mRAEEE any losses incurred and to increase share capital. Any transfers
2 S IR E L RN RERE KR to the reserve also require the approval of shareholders in general
g EHE - meetings.

(d) H A E (d) Other reserve

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1L 3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R A 7

HinF#Ea P BERREBHEAREE
EZENREBEZAAERBBIGEZEF
BEIREERZEZHE -

Other reserves represent the difference between the fair value of the
consideration paid and the relevant share of carrying value of the subsidiaries’
net assets acquired from the minority shareholders.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RALFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

n'l_\ é iﬁr ﬁ 5)2|‘T-: %

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

82 |

BE_ZThE HE-_TZTN\F
+=-RA=+—H +=-A=t+—H
j14:3: 5 LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AREFT AREFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B B A g A Profit before tax 116,388 41,447
HE Adjustments for:
TS A Amortisation of prepaid lease
ERAEE RSN payments on land use rights 4,070 3,020
10 4 5 Amortisation of technical know-how 675 1,130
ME - BE REER Depreciation of property, plant and
REMEZTE equipment, and investment properties 115,921 115,739
RITHEHA Bank interest income (1,929) (3,617)
AHEEZREZREBA Dividend income from an
available-for-sale investment (2,999) (4,022)
% E R Finance costs 19,378 17,956
TEEMIARARE (Increase) decrease in fair value of
B (3Ean) derivative financial instruments (7,591) 23,488
HEME AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - (685)
HENE  BEREEES Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 15,633 5,688
& £ 3 U 2k Gain on disposal of land use rights - (373)
JE (5 B & A R A Share of profits of associates (4,912) (1,884)
JEW R 5k 2 R (E B 1R () (Reversal of) impairment loss
on trade receivables (211) 2,598
Hip e Ia R EER Impairment loss on other receivables 534 146
7 E MR Write-down of inventories 944 1,749
BEELEEA Operating cash flows before
KEREGRE movements in working capital 255,901 202,380
FEEm Increase in inventories (40,649) (85,713)
JRE U2 AR R % L At LS R TR Increase in trade and other receivables (24,727) (16,278)
FEM EER R A RIZIER D (3250)  Decrease (increase) in amount due
from immediate holding company 8,596 (13,590)
P Uiz Bl 48 A ] IR (38 00) R (Increase) decrease in amounts due
from associates (274) 6,076
JE {5} R 2R e EL At JE A5 RRER, Decrease in trade and other payables 129,026 109,789
FETEEE AR RIEZ INCGRL) (Decrease) increase in amount
due to an associate (1,307) 1,680
BT AE I Increase in deferred income 50,656 =
KEEE RS Cash generated from operations 377,222 254,344
BT BT S PRC income tax paid (13,393) (11,915)
EETDEEZHEBE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 363,829 242,429

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited



REBEZERMZEHRARR
Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles A T ’% iﬁ, ﬁ Sﬁ, E ( ,%g )

BE-ZTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BE_ZThE BEZTZN\F
+=-RA=+—H +=-A=+—H
j14:3: 5 HFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
HiaF ARETFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BREEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
IRERIRERIA Payment for construction in progress (146,244) (202,425)
BAWE - BER& Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (48,516) (49,023)
BMIRITEZRD (32in)  Decrease (increase) in pledged
bank deposits 16,961 (42,032)
THFEREZ Increase in prepaid lease payments
T8 & A N on land use rights (92,848) (15,643)
EMKTBARIRE Acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries (636) (4,770)
HEMBRBREFR Net cash outflow from disposal of
a subsidiary 42 - (70)
BB A HE 2 Dividend received from
HERBWA an available-for-sale investment 2,999 4,022
HEMHRNEZRE Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investment 569 =
W ER B & 1 RIAR B Dividend received from an associate 2,550 =
TEWE  FEER Proceeds from disposal of
FrigIE property, plant and equipment 2,527 1,030
b AR UE R IR Proceeds from disposal of
land use rights - 925
DU ER TR B Bank interest received 1,929 3,617
RETHMEZHEBRE NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (260,709) (804,369)
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) fﬁ; %ij?d: d:;? geie;sefg(’)%

BE_ZThE HEZZTN\F
+=-RA=+—H +=-A=t+—H
j14:3: 5 FFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
iz AB®TFT AREFor
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IBEX New borrowings raised 350,000 439,409
BEEX Repayment of borrowings (240,380) (361,754)
BAFILE Interest paid (19,101) (17,956)
LERETE Capital injected by
minority shareholder 43 2,432 —
BEIRMAE Dividends paid (13,212) (13,719)
IRDHBRERRE Dividends paid to
minority shareholders (2,128) (206)
MEFDRERRRE NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 77,611 45,774
ReREEEEYD NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
B/m(%d)$E CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 180,731 (16,166)
R—A—HZBR&R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BeEED AT 1 JANUARY 183,667 199,833
B+=-A=+—HZH&RK CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BeSEY AT 31 DECEMBER,
(BRTEARBRLEH) (represented by bank balances
and cash) 364,398 183,667
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

e WK

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RALFE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

—&&E#H
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Az BRAGR - AR R ZK
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ARAAEERREREREERER
RAIRIIRFEBESEARAE
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GENERAL

The Company is a joint stock limited company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with limited
liability. The H shares of the Company were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
December 1996 and its A shares were listed at Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in July 1997.

The directors of the Company regard Hualu Holdings Group
Company Limited, a state-owned limited liability company
established in the PRC, as the ultimate holding company and
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
(“SXPGC”), a wholly state-owned limited liability company
established in the PRC, as the immediate holding company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Company
Information” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, production and sales of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations, chemical and other products,
and commerce circulations.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and
Interpretations (“INT”) (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).

BRI 2 M BHRER 227
Revised Presentation of Financial Statements
BER AR
Borrowing Costs
BREACZIEESRIAREGE
Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligation Arising on Liquidation
RIB AR - HRZEHIERBREE AR ZRERR
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
55 8 1 R RE 8H
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
BEH T A ZHE
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
KEHE
Operating Segments
RARTELA

Embedded Derivatives
REEFBEBRTE
Customer Loyalty Programmes
B ERE R
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
TFINETGIR B R
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
HEXEALE
Transfers of Assets from Customers
RZZTNERM 2 EBMBRE LR 20 - BB TE
WEERNESR BTN _ZETNF LA — Az BBz
FEHMEER
Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008, except for
the amendment to HKFRS 5 that is effective for
annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2009
REZZTNERM BB BREEN2BE - AEE#H
BB TR FE 3957 580 2 1857
Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation to
the amendment to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and
changes in the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see Note 6).

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The amendments
also expand and amend the disclosures required in relation
to liquidity risk. The Group has not provided comparative
information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision set out in the amendments.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported results
and/or financial position

HK AS 23 (Revised 2007)Borrowing Costs

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs
that were directly attributable to the acquisition or production
of a qualifying asset when they were incurred. The adoption
of HKAS 283 (Revised 2007) removes the option previously
available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The
adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group
changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing
costs as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The Group
has applied the revised accounting policy to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date
for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009 in accordance
with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007). As
the revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively
from 1 January 2009, this change in accounting policy has not
resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect of prior
accounting periods.

In the current year, no borrowing costs was capitalised as part
of the cost of construction in progress.

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported results
and/or financial position (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or INTs that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

BEEMBMEERES T 2 E (ERBEBMBHRESELZ
BUE(ZZEZENF) B —FH)"

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs 2008

EEMBREE(ZTZNF) 2 2

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

BB G ERIFE245 (KIE5ET) B Bk 77 2 ER e

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

BB G ERE275R (KIEET) Fa REBLMB®RK

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’
BB EREI2 (BT R) ik 2z 5 f8

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues*

BB ERIEI9% (BT A) AEREMIER"

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BBV B EERER (KIEFT)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

BB BEREEREIE (BFTAR)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BBMBEREERE1H (BFTAR)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

AW E LR B25% (BFTA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

Eligible Hedged Items'
BRRBAEEMBRELEAN
HKFRS for First-time Adopters’
FHE BRI E BN RS
Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters?®
BRRMERFTRBEBY B EERETIRIEE
LB E RN B R # R0
Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters®
SENRSHBEENURO RERO X AR5
Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions®

BB B mEEREIH (BERT) ¥BE0

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’
B IS WS RO BT AT

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

ER(BERMHEREREZED)RE
F1458 (55T

HK(FRIC) — INT14 (Amendment)

B (BEMBEREREZE D) REF17TR

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

B4 (ERMBHREREZES) 2B F199

BNFEL&REES E R

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement®
MEBADKFREEE

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners'
NERTAERERABES

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19

1

2

R_ZZNFLtA-BHZEHAR
ZFEERREER -
RZZFZENFLA-BR_F—F
F-A—BAER) HZRRABZ
FREBMAER ©
WZZ—ZF - —HXZ&HAK
ZEEHRER -
WZZ—ZTF_F—Hzkz2&HAK
ZFEHRER -
RZZ—ZF+ A2 &HAK
ZFEEREX -
WZZ——F—F—H=XZ2&HRAK
ZFEERER -
NZZ—=F—F—Hzxkz&HRAK
ZFEERER -

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments®
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and 1
January 2010 as appropriate.

h Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported results
and/or financial position (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
will be effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The Standard requires all recognised financial
assets that are within scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognisation and Measurement to be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specially, debt investments that
() are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2009), HKAS
17 Leases has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. The amendments will be effective from 1
January 2010, with earlier application permitted. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were required to classify
leasehold land as operating leases and presented as prepaid
lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The amendments have removed such a requirement.
Instead, the amendments require the classification of leasehold
land to be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
17, that are based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or
the lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS 17
might affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s
leasehold land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised Standards, Amendments or INTs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for property, plant and
equipment and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group regards the acquisition/disposal of partial equity
interest of subsidiaries from minority shareholders without
changes in control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. When additional equity interest in a subsidiary is acquired,
any difference between the consideration paid and the relevant
share of the carrying value of the subsidiary’s net assets acquired
is recorded in other reserve. When partial equity interest in a
subsidiary is disposed of to minority shareholders, any difference
between the proceeds received and the relevant share of minority
interests is also recorded in other reserve.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is classified as held for sale (in which case it is
accounted for under HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations). Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associates (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investments in associates), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for

sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’)
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting the above criteria on revenue recognition are included
in the statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for operating lease (see the accounting policy
below).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or for administrative purposes,
the leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease
payment on land use rights and amortised over a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period, the
amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when
they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use right is considered as operating
lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to consolidated income statement over
the period of the right using the straight-line method.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
difference arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value, are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive and accumulated in equity (the exchange
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale (for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January
2009), are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowings costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses for the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related
to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Other
government grants are recognised as revenue over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Technical know-how
Expenditure on technical know-how acquired is capitalised and
amortised using straight-line method over their useful lives, but

not exceeding 20 years. Technical know-how is not revaluated
as there is no active market for these assets.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all the following have been
demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

U the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. All regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amount due from
immediate holding company, amounts due from associates,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured as cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

U default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
U it becomes probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30
to 90 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectable,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amount previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment of reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investment
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified as other
financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derivatives financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of each reporting
period. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to makes judgements, estimate and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
of their estimated residual value. The determination of the useful
lives and residual value involve management’s estimation. The
Group reassesses annually the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Amortisation of technical know-how

Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the technical know-how and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in
the future period.

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, construction
in progress, land use rights and technical know-how

Property, plant and equipment, construction in progress, land
use rights and technical know-how are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations, taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculations and valuations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment has been
determined by the management of the Group on a depreciated
replacement cost basis which approximates current acquisition
costs of major items, less the depreciation charge since
acquisition. In determining the fair value, the management has
utilised a method of valuation which involves certain estimates.
The management has exercised their judgements and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined by
the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit losses
based upon its historical experience and any specific customer
collection issues that it has been identified. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group’s expectations and the Group
will continue to monitor the collections from customers and
maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in printing nor
saleable in the market. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
items. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

REVENUE

The Group principally engaged in the development, production
and sales of bulk pharmaceutical, preparations (e.g. tablets
and injections), chemical and other products, and commerce
circulations.

BE-SENE AE _TT)\F
+=A=+—-B ft-A=+—8

ILEE LEFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

ARETFIT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

WA — HEEM Revenue — Sales of goods 2,295,101 2,077,753

SEEH
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor Standard
(HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using a risks and
returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting
format was business segments. The application of HKFRS
8 has resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

| 107



=B B I R M R ()

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

108 |

SBEH(F)

LERRBEFE IBE2HRZH
BERTDRFEALRR (FIE0E G
SHE R L E MR E W) ER DT
AR AMEBLERREZRZE
MLEEERMERER ZEH -
EmMZIERB/LLBERZE S
BRETAREMER RBit R
BREVBREENFESR ZMRE
AEEEERAZRD AT
LB R} 5 P RiER
HEMLBRE
Gz

LA ¥ BER

HE B (f

B KOE 5T

&)
fEIREMER: HERHBEEL
TRhEMEMR
ERRA BEEMES
(BREZTEHR
#2%)

BB cERZ2HRAOT - £
—FEZEREBREET  UF
REBUBRELEESR ZHRTE -

REBBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Specifically, in prior years, segment information reported
externally was analysised on the basis of the types of the
revenues (i.e. sales of goods and other operating income).
However, information reported to the chief operating decision
maker in more specifically focused on the types of goods
supplied. The principal types of goods supplied are bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical and other
products. The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

Development, production and
sales of bulk pharmaceuticals

Bulk pharmaceuticals:

Development, production and
sales of preparations (e.g.
tablets and injections)

Preparations:

Production and sales of
chemical and other products

Chemical and other products:

Trading of pharmaceutical
products (including retail and
wholesale)

Commerce circulations:

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
Amounts reported for the prior year have been restated to
conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. SEBEE(EF) 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
DWMBPARER Segment revenues and results
NTAEARERIRAERD 2D 2 The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
WA EE DT - by reportable segment.
BE —_EEANF+ -A=+—Hi For the year ended 31 December 2009
I
LteRuE B LIREMESR [ g bt} A
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations other products circulations Eliminations Total
ANEETFL ANREFL NEETFL AREFL NEEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
WA REVENUE
IEpsE External sales 1,219,263 472,812 3,968 599,058 - 2,295,101
NEEEE Inter-segment sales 3,447 359,115 124,496 71,300 (558,448) -
#:t Total 1,222,710 831,927 128,464 670,448 (558,448) 2,295,101
el Segment profit 108,028 25,059 12,483 3,235 148,805

RENEREMSE  Investment and

other income 12,365
L hERERE Other gains and losses (16,700)
EHER Other expenses 13,616)
BBER Finance costs (19,378)
PEBEENTER  Share of profits

of associates 4912
REEH Proft before tax 116,388
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. SFEBEE(EF) 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
SHEAREER(Z) Segment revenues and results (Continued)
R EFE)\FL - HA=+—HIF For the year ended 31 December 2008
EF
LteRuE BY  LIRRMESR mENE Y #n
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations other products circulations Eliminations Total
ANEEFT AREFT NREFL AREFT NREFL ANEEFL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WA REVENUE
e External sales 1,241,720 404,290 18,849 412,894 = 2,077,753
DEHEE Inter-segment sales 42,718 325,204 27,297 4,666 (399,880) -
5t Total 1,284,433 709,494 46,146 417,560 (399,880) 2,077,753
PEEF (58 Segment profit [oss) 36,344 16,055 (3,424) 7,635 56,610

REWAREMME  Investment and

other income 25,468
EhEREE Other gains and losses (21,330)
Hit &R Other expenses (3,229
EEEH Finance costs (17,956)
HEBEDNERF  Share of profits
of associates 1,884
BREART Profit before tax 4,447
7] 2 35 20 2 & 5T B R B M sE3F The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
AEBZ S BERMER - 2 36% F same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
EE DRI %A - &SR Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
KEWR R EMIE - Ea Uz & without allocation of investment and other income, other
EBE -EMBH BERAERS MG gains and losses, other expenses, financial costs and share
BE NGRS ERERLEE & of profits of associates. This is the measure reported to the
BEHFEMAETEREREEER chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
ZHE e allocation and performance assessment.
DEPEHEE L BT Z T E T LAYER - Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

6. SWREE(HF) 6.
SBRAERAR

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

UTRAEEZAE2RDHE D Z
BERBEIM -

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable segment.

R-BEEHNEF-HA=+—H At 31 December 2009

LIk
t2RE®E 3] HttER BERE #it
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
ARETT ARETTL ANEETT ANEETT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
NBEE Segment assets 1,214,283 396,322 240,187 112,451 1,963,243
RABRAEE Unallocated
corporate assets 673,120
BERBE Consolidated assets 2,636,363
PEEE Segment liabilities 302,206 129,156 71,830 39,660 542,852
FAERREE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 412,690
GREE Consolidated
liabilities 955,542
R-_EFEENFF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008
tB2REE Be LIRKEHESR BERE it
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PBEE Segment assets 1,220,195 387,710 91,811 97,454 1,797,170
RABLAREE Unallocated
corporate assets 362,254
HEEE Consolidated assets 2,159,424
AEMEE Segment liabilities 248,088 80,818 4,371 30,346 363,623
RABARERE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 295,521
GREE Consolidated
liabilities 659,144
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REBBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-TTAF+-A=+-RALFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources among segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, interests in associates, assets
classified as held for sale, available-for-sale investments,
investment properties, tax recoverable, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash. Assets used
jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis
of revenues earned by individual reportable segments;
and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities, borrowings, derivative
financial instruments and tax payable. Liabilities for
which reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated
on the basis of revenues earned by individual reportable
segments.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:

t2RHE BH (IREMES mERE it
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
AREFT AREFL AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEERE (i)  Addition to non-current
assets (Note) 148,438 55,442 109,558 200 313,638
FEREE Depreciation
and amortisation 83,718 29,936 6,106 906 120,666
LENE  BER Loss on disposal of
SEEE property, plant
and equipment 11,409 4,210 2 12 15,633
MR 2 R ERE (Reversal) recognition of
(BmE) /B impairment losses on
trade receivables (501) (14) (5) 309 1)
EitEWFUEZRERFE  Impairment losses on
other receivables 322 86 = 126 534
FERD Write-down of inventories 234 351 - 359 944

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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6. SHWBHEHEHE) 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

HtamBEHE(Z) Other segment information (Continued)

BE-FEAFFT A=+ AL
5

BERMAEIBLERKE EX
FADHBESEADHBEEFENS

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss

2 or segment assets:

tRRHE B8 LIREtER mENE #rt
Bulk Chemical and Commerce

pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
AREFT AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BENAER Interests in associates - 14,360 - - 14,360
MEKA Interest income 1,265 478 148 38 1,929
BBRER Finance costs (13,765) (5,350) ) (261) (19,378)
EHRER Income tax expense (6,212) (2,930) (2,370) (1,496) (13,008)

P _EENFFHAH=F—HIF

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FE
STADHERIDIEETFENS Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
5 segment assets:
tBRHE B8 (IRHMER BERE #t
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
ANEETTL ARETTL AREFT AEEFT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FERBBERE (M)  Addition to non-current
assets (Note) 178,691 55,163 42,134 949 276,937
FEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 89,538 27,179 2,249 928 119,889
HENE  BERZERR Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4,322 1,354 1 1 5,688
BREZZREER Impairment losses on
trade receivables 1,985 1,314 6 732 4,037
HENTIEZAEER  Impairment losses on
other receivables 131 = = 15 146
BFERZ Write-down of inventories 507 47 1,175 - 1,749
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Fﬁ%;%i%?d:di? geie:ngejfgg

6. SHWEH(Z) 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
HomIE(Z) Other segment information (Continued)
B2 —EENFEF+-A=+—HI For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)
FEF(E)
BERHAEFIELCERESE BX Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
HADBRIADPEESENS maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss
¥ or segment assets:
tRREE #8 LIRKtER BmENE #it
Bulk Chemical and Commerce
pharmaceuticals Preparations  other products circulations Total
AREFT ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BanaER Interests in associates 9,844 12,252 3,536 - 25,632
M EMA Interest income 1,863 1,056 138 560 3,617
HBER Finance costs (12,922) (4,923) @ (109) (17,956)
FERER Income tax expense (1,815) (1,627) = (2,235) (6,677)
Biat - Note:
RS EETAELRIAE BEFER Non-current assets excluded financial instruments, deferred tax assets and
BERBYNAIEZ - interests in associates.
HESBEE Geographical information
AEBEPULAFE - BOM - EE The Group's customers are located on the PRC, Europe,
REMBEZR - Americas and others.
BAIMBERZKA
Revenues from
external customers
BE_ZThE EZTT)\F
+=A=+—H +=A=+—~H
13- 3 IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
i PRC 1,448,559 1,241,673
BN Europe 252,710 249,656
== Americas 421,997 400,072
H b B =R Others 171,835 186,352
2,295,101 2,077,753
AEEIOWNA EZEMBE EHTNM Over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
RARE: it mE25|I8EEREH the PRC and therefore the analysis of non-current assets by
REID ZIEREEEZ DI ° geographical location of the assets is not presented.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RALFE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

6. SWREE(HF) 6.
TREFRH

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

AEENEFEERZETRANE
F-AKBITEHEAEFHEA
EERBAEANEERAHI0%
It I 8 39 2K B 5 E B P A A RIR

The Group’s customer base includes a wide range of different
customers. The Group had no single customer amount to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue and therefore no significant
concentration of source of income from a particular customer.

BEAKESF -
7. BrERS 7. INVESTMENT INCOME
BE_ZSTHhEF HE_ZZTN\F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—8H
I E IEFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR®TFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITERZHE Interest on bank deposits 1,929 3,617
REETRAZBS KRS Dividends from
listed equity securities 2,999 4,022
4,928 7,639

Investment income earned on financial assets, analysed by
category of financial assets not designed as at fair value

TREE (ReREEZHEINETY
0 SRR AR ER ABR) TR

ZHBWRBFNT - through profit or loss, is as follows:
BEZSSAE HEZZZN\F
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—8
ILEE IFFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
ARETFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AHHEZRE Available-for-sale investments 2,999 4,022
Bk EWFIE Loans and receivables (including
(BFERITFR LB ©448)  bank balances and cash) 1,929 3,617
4,928 7,639
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

116 |

8. H il & 8. OTHER INCOME
BE_ZSThEF HE-ZZTN\F
+=-RA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
ILEE WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TrT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

B WA (HFE1) Rental income (Note 1) 556 1,454

BT aE By (B at2) Government grants (Note 2) 2,568 15,762

H i Others 4,313 613

7,437 17,829
it - Notes:

1, HB-_TTHFEERMNES KA 1, Direct outgoing in respect of rental income earmned during the year
HENEEIHROABARE ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB423,000
423,000 (ZZEZENEF : AR (2008:RMB640,000), which has been included in administrative
640,0007T) E&EFTATEBRER expenses.

2, BB - ANFE BT 2. Included in the government grants, financial assistance of
HEMARBIRKENTBEKFES RMB2,420,000 (2008:RMB15,762,000) is received from the
AR #2,420,0007T (Z T )\ F - government during the year for the operation of the Company, which
AR #15,762,0007T) H E ER R is directly recognised in profit or loss. The financial assistance has no
AHEEARN M BRFEELLE specified conditions that the Group has to fulfill nor specified usage.
FERHGFTEAEBERE HE The remaining amount of RMB148,000 (2008:Nil) is transferred from
BEFERAZ - FHNBUTRHEIA deferred income (see Note 38 for more details), which is recognised
R¥148,000C (ZZTZTN\F: T) over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

WEEW AP A (FF1EFERME
38)  HIREHEMEENFERASS®
9. HtIWBRER 9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
BE_ZSThEF BHE_ZTTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
ILEE WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR®TFT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000

P& 5 B5 18 5 58 Net foreign exchange loss (8,728) (12,606)

W RITERZER Less: net foreign exchange loss
BIRFRE (HiE10) on bank loans (Note 10) 70 -

EETEENE £ R INER K Exchange loss arising from

the operating activities (8,658) (12,606)

HEME  MENREZERE Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (15,633) (5,688)

H &+ i A 2 W Es Gain on disposal of land use rights - 373

HEH B ARz W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 685

MEeMIAEZBEH NS Realised gain on derivative

financial instruments - 19,394

MESMIEZ AR BEEE Change in fair value of

derivative financial instruments 7,591 (23,488)
(16,700) (21,330)
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. MBEH 10. FINANCE COSTS
BE_TThE HE-_ZTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
ILEE IEEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LATEEZHME - Interest on:
SFURNTEEERN — Bank loans wholly repayable
RITE X within 5 years 16,403 17,956
BENRSFREER — Government loans not wholly
BITER repayable within 5 years 549 -
16,952 17,956
RITERZERBLRFRE Net foreign exchange loss on
(Hti£9) bank loans (Note 9) 70 —
RITRBEARF S Discount charges on
bank acceptance notes 2,356 =
19,378 17,956

11. FrRIREH

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BE_ZSThEF HE-ZTZTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
I E WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ETER PRC enterprise income tax
— NHf — current 25,234 9,133
— BEFEE (BREEE) — (Over) under provision
BiETR in prior years (2,676) 690
22,558 9,823
EFET IR (F17237) Deferred tax (Note 37) (9,550) (4,146)
13,008 5,677

REFECEMAEHE((REME
BED REFEMBBIRBRIEH -
RERRZHRERE _ETNF—H
— B R256% °

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11.

FRSRER (&)

RIBPBEEERNER AR F
BARERBDHRMEE - ZREZ
BRHRIF - ARBH_TTN\F
B=FNERZEFI%2BERE -

11.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company was accredited as a high-tech enterprise. The
accreditation is valid for three years. The Company is entitled
to the preferential tax rate of 15% for a three-year period
commencing from 2008.

BIERBEMNERBERER MR Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, two
FRKEZHBAT A EEMNE subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled to exemption from
ERIIMENRHFPRZRER - the PRC income tax in the first two years from the first profit-
H & =F ] E R R250%% 5 making year, followed by a 50% reduction of the PRC income
ZBHE- tax for the next three years.
RRBGEWER  FAMES H A The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per
BRI ER AT ¢ the consolidated income statement as follows:
BE_SThEF HE-ZTZTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
ILEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B Al A Profit before tax 116,388 41,447
R 125% Tax at the domestic income tax
(ZZEZT)NF : 25%) rate of 25% (2008: 25%)
SEZHIE 29,097 10,362
FEEENE 2 & Effect of preferential tax rate
in the PRC (9,090) 2,911)
TR HE R RFRIE Effect of tax exemption granted
BB R to PRC subsidiaries (1,766) (2,744)
DI E RN BRA 2 RIEFE  Tax effect of share of profits
of associates (737) (283)
R RS 2T E Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (449) (413)
AT 0RE 2 Tax effect of expenses
not deductible for tax purposes 682 1,674
MEHNTH X A (A 77) Tax effect of additional
allowance (Note) (1,340) (1,463)
AERBMEBEBZHETE  Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised 167 652
MER R W R R H¢ Tax effect of deductible temporary
EREIBBTE differences not recognised 160 296
FERURFEE Utilisation of tax losses previously
AR Z FHIAEE not recognised (744) (183)
FRARERGE =R Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously
not recognised (296) =
BAFE (BEREME) BETE  (Over) under provision in prior years (2,676) 690
MIELH Tax charge for the year 13,008 5,677
Miaz - Note:

WEEAAEEELEZER  fIMHAREX
o REBETFEABAREREMESEIR
BB RIBTE -

The amount represents the tax effect of additional tax allowance granted
to the Company for the incurrence of the expenses, such as research and
development expenditure, as stipulated in the relevant tax rules in the PRC.
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12.

FERH
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

BE_ZSThEF (EZETN\F
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
ILEE IEFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
W - BB REETE Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment 115,527 115,739
WEMERE Depreciation for
investment properties 394 =
T fF AR Amortisation of prepaid lease
TE 5 T & R payments on land use rights 4,070 3,020
BT 2 #5H Amortisation of technical know-how 675 1,130
WrE N A RE Total depreciation and amortisation 120,666 119,889
ZE AN & Auditor’s remuneration 1,424 1,165
EHRAERAZHEKAR Research and development costs
recognised as an expense 19,714 19,470
T REEY 7 KRETHEM S Operating lease rentals on land
and buildings 1,016 1,006
BE_ZThE HE_ZZTN\F
+=BA=+—AH +=-A=+—~H
ILFE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
CREEZREERE (Reversal) recognition of impairment
(B[R, BE losses on financial assets
—FE AR K — trade receivables (211) 2,598
—H b fE W FRIB — other receivables 534 146
323 2,744
FERT (BEEHEERANR) Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales) 944 1,749
BEIXRA(TEEEER Staff costs (excluding directors’
EEE) (Hit15) and supervisors’ emoluments)
(Note 15) 242,124 184,694
FERK A Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense 1,849,738 1,776,658
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13.

14.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

B2 13. DIVIDENDS
BE_SThEF BE_ZTZN\F
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
i3 3 IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TrT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
YR B R FRER Dividends paid and recognised
Pa el &5\ as distribution during the year
— ZZET N\FHREKREEFR  — 2008 final dividend: RMB0.03
ARMB0.03T (ZEENEF: (2008 : 2007 final dividend
TETLFRERBRETR RMBO0.03) per share
AR¥0.037T) 13,719 13,719

AN RESEDEZ307,312,830%
AR% }%150,000,000 8 HM Ik 2 & A%
ARBOOST(ZZETNE: AR
0.037T) (478 #0.0577C (ZEZEN
& B H0.0347T) - BIE AR AT
BR) 2 ARBRE - IR ALERE
REEEEAERE L& BEREG
ARSI E AT VERR B RS o

BRAET

ERERBADBREAQGNE A
FEAG 2N & B s A A R #99,687,000
T (ZZEZE)N\F : AR¥30,064,000
) RERFERBETRMD Z EF
5 #1457,312,8300 (Z T T N\ 4 :
457,312,8300% ) 5t & -

HREZE-_ZETNFER =TT NF
+— A=+ BUMEFEHET
REERBEYE2EH RERE
ABFEFREBEZFER -

14.

The final dividend of RMBO0.05 (2008: RMBO0.03) per share
(approximately HK$0.057 (2008: HK$0.034) per share,
including income tax of A shares) on 307,312,830 A shares and
150,000,000 H shares has been proposed by the directors of
the Company and is subject to approval by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting and has been included as a dividend
reserve in the consolidated financial statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
RMB99,687,000 (2008: RMB30,064,000) and based on the
weighted average of 457,312,830 (2008: 457,312,830) shares
in issue during the year.

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for two
years ended 31 December 2009 are the same as there were no
dilutive events existed during both years.
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15.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BE_ZSThEF BE-_ZTZTN\&F
+=RA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
ILSEE WHFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HWERITE Salaries and wages 152,556 125,320
B T &7 & EAh Ak Staff welfare and other benefits 61,533 34,001
RIKBFIETHEI 3 Retirement benefit
scheme contributions
— ERETEI (F7 ) — defined contribution plans
(Note) 28,035 25,283
242,124 184,694

Hizt -

RAPBEBERZAE  NEBLEE T
BRI ZRAEHERRBRKRESH;E B A
EBERII—FRAASEEIZNZES -
TR ([BREBAL BFER22% (=%
T\F:28%) IRHR -GRLEIFAME
MU AZ ERAARKS600T (ZTZTN
F: AR¥5,71370) o BIKFHEI 2 HARE
ERERERERPIR -

ENTRNARSAEARERERAE
BAZABEBIZRABNEME - Bt - &
EXFR RN AEBYEASE TN
BARFEREMERARRENZEREE-
W EBOLRERATHAERDRREEZ
FEAS R -

Note:

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a
basic defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal
government, whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 22%
(2008: 23%) on the total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the “relevant
income”) paid to the Group’s staff in the preceding year. The monthly
relevant income per head of a staff is subject to a cap of RMB6,600 (2008:
RMB5,7183). Contributions to this retirement scheme are charged to the
consolidated income statement as and when incurred.

The local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired staff of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group has no other material obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the contribution
described above. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) For The Year Ended 31 Decernber 2009

16. EFREFEM & 16. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS
e EMNTFTRU(ZEENF : The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fifteen (2008:
TR EZERESZME0OT : sixteen) directors and supervisors were as follows:
gE_—_=EEAhE+=-A=+—H1L For the year ended 31 December 2009
£E
I
fedl - BB R BHEF
e Htrigdl HEISR it
Salaries,
bonuses, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
ANEETFTT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEE Executive directors
% Bt Ms. Guo Qin — 200 18 218
fiLNE e Mr. Zhao Songguo - 430 18 448
TRELE Mr. Ren Fulong = 530 18 548
HRTEE Non-executive directors
FRERE Mr. Li Tianzhong - 320 18 338
AR E Mr. Liu Zhenwen — 170 18 188
M ORELE (BE1) Mr. Zhao Bin (Note 1) = = =
BUHNTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REBLE (Wiz2) Mr. Xu Guojun (Note 2) 25 = = 25
FRELE Mr. Sun Minggao 60 - - 60
RERELE Mr. Zhu Baoguan 60 - - 60
BEGEE Mr. Kuang Zhijie 60 - - 60
2z Supervisors
KAIERE Mr. Zhang Yueshun gl 24 - 24
fEBEAE Mr. Tao Zhichao i 24 i 24
3 wE4 Mr. Liu Qiang - 81 14 95
=ERELE (F33) Mr. Gao Qinggang (Note 3) - 130 18 148
TAREE Mr. Yu Gongfu - 320 18 338
st Total 205 2,229 140 2,574
it - Notes:
1. RZZEZNFSANBEEE - 1, Appointed on 8 June 2009.
2. RZZETZNFNA=THEE - 2. Resigned on 30 April 2009.
3. REZZZNFE+=A =+ N\BEHTE - 3. Resigned on 28 December 2009.
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For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. EEREEME (&) 16. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
gFE_ZEZEN\EFE+=-A=+—H1L For the year ended 31 December 2008
FE
I%.
TEH - BHR BiFiEF
ne Htrig#l AHEIER #it
Salaries,
bonuses, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
AREFT ARETFT ANRETFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEE Executive directors
P Bt Ms. Guo Qin - 482 16 498
BB % A& Mr. Zhao Songguo - 365 16 381
fERREEE Mr. Ren Fulong - 465 16 481
HRTEE Non-executive directors
FREEE (Bi1) Mr.Li Tianzhong (Note 1) - 220 16 236
BliE et Mr. Liu Zhenwen - 170 16 186
Independent non-executive
BUHHTEE directors
BERLE (W2 Mr. Dai Qingjun (Note 2) 60 - = 60
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
RMBERE (h53) Stephen (Note 3) 18 = - 18
RERLE Mr. Xu Guojun 60 - = 60
FHREREE Mr. Sun Minggao 60 = = 60
KERFKE (Hit4) Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Note 4) = — - -
BEGEE (Wite) Mr. Kuang Zhijie (Note 4) = - - -
EZ Supervisors
RANES & Mr. Zhang Yueshun = 24 - 24
BEBEE Mr. Tao Zhichao = 24 - 24
SERTE Mr. Gao Qinggang - 130 16 146
ToREE Mr. Yu Gongfu - 272 16 288
2 BEHE Mr. Liu Qiang - 66 16 82
st Total 198 2,218 128 2,544
Hiat - Notes:
1. RIZEENENA-+-AEEFE- 1. Appointed on 22 June 2008.
2. RIZENE+—A=-+=HEK- 2. Retired on 22 December 2008.
3. R=ZTZN\FWA+NABHE 3. Resigned on 16 April 2008.
4. R-EENF+_A-+_-_BEZ 4. Appointed on 22 December 2008.
-
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16.

17.

EFEREEMS (&)

BE_TTNFR_ZTTN\F+=
A=+—BLmMEFE  SEEMA
EFREEHEEAMNS - FR-
AEEMENEERESNEM
e UIERRSIHEMAREE
YIS SR 0k-3 IV E Ry T
Biw(E

ESH<

EXAEEAUEEHEMALS A
MU (ZETNF: =) EF K
IS E N EXHE16 =
L (ZFZENEFE M) &ZSHEMA
TZMemT

16.

17.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments for the
two years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. During the year,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2008: three) were directors, whose emoluments
are set out in note 16 above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2008: two) highest paid individuals was as follows:

BE_ZSThEF HE_ZZTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=RA=+—8
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TI8&  JE41 - BN EMEF|  Salaries, bonuses, allowances
and other benefits 1,170 668
RIREFEHEIE Retirement benefit
scheme contributions 53 32
1,223 700
HMENFUATEE : Their emoluments were within the following band:
EE®AB
Number of employees
HE—ESZhE 22T )N\F
+=BA=+—H == 1g
i3 3 IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
T % 7% #51,000,0007T Nil to HK$1,000,000
(£ AR¥881,0007T) (equivalent to RMB881,000) 3 2
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BE-ZZENF+-A=+—-HLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. Hiig 18. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW
AR FT
RMB’000
R1E COST
R—ZEENF—HA—QB - Z_2FN\F At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008
+=ZA=+—HERZZEZAF and 31 December 2009
+=-—A=+—8H 6,550
s AMORTISATION
RZZEZNF—HA—H At 1 January 2008 4,628
piNE: Charge for the year 1,130
R-ZEENF+_A=+—HBK At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
—ETNF—A—H 5,758
INCGEE: R Charge for the year 675
RZEENF+=ZA=+—H” At 31 December 2009 6,433
IR & CARRYING VALUES
RZBEENF+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2009 117
R-ZZEENF+-_B=+—H At 31 December 2008 792
AEBZEMBEE=ZFEA - Z The Group’s technical know-how was acquired from third
ERMHBEERTAERFH  ULE parties. The technical know-how has a definite useful life and
RETEA-6F NEE Y - amortised on a straight-line basis over four to six years.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

126 |

19. %X  BWERRE 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BE B3
BEM R RE it
Plant,
machinery
and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BftfE VALUATION
RZTZ\F#—A—H At 1 January 2008 466,743 1,075,304 12,879 1,554,926
mERTIZEA (Hi20)  Transferred from construction
in progress (Note 20) 48,799 133,307 — 182,106
NE Additions 14,488 42,875 1,506 58,869
HEMBAT Disposal of a subsidiary (7,511) (16,950) = (24,461)
RE Disposals (5,802) (68,297) (1,626) (75,725)
RZZEN\F At 31 December 2008
+=A=+—H 516,717 1,166,239 12,759 1,695,715
RERIREA (fi220)  Transferred from construction
in progress (Note 20) 32,658 67,436 — 100,094
NE Additions 161 42,983 5,372 48,516
BHABEREME(D) Reclassified to investment
properties (b) (16,588) - — (16,588)
HE Disposals (17,316) (120,432) (1,736) (139,484)
RZZZTNE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—-H 515,632 1,156,226 16,395 1,688,253
25HE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZTZN\F—A—H At 1 January 2008 157,777 532,365 7,744 697,886
RERHE Provided for the year 19,220 95,108 1,411 115,739
HERBAF Disposal of a subsidiary (1,745) (7,040) = (8,785)
REZHiH Eliminated on disposals (4,060) (63,365) (1,582) (69,007)
RZZTN\F At 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H 171,192 557,068 7,573 735,833
REZEE Provided for the year 26,177 87,700 1,650 115,527
BMHEEREMED) Reclassified to investment
properties (o) (5,530) - — (5,530)
BE 18 Eliminated on disposals (13,835) (105,809) (1,680) (121,324)
RZZEZNEF At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—-H 178,004 538,959 7,543 724,506
IREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZBTNE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—-H 337,628 617,267 8,852 963,747
RZZENF At 31 December 2008
+=-A=1+—H 345,525 609,171 5,186 959,882
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BE-ZTAF+-A=+-RLFE

B T e (Bl ] [osEraoer A Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. Y% BER®RE(2Z) 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(a) NEBFRAREYMNAPE o (a) All the buildings of the Group are located in the PRC.

RZEBEEHhE+-_A=+— As at 31 December 2009, the net book value of the
H NREBHAERERF buildings for which the Group had not been granted
BREZEZSRYEREFED A formal title amounted to approximately RMB64,746,000
R #64,746,0007T (ZZEZE N (2008: RMB84,684,000). In the opinion of the directors
£ AR #84,684,0007T) ° of the Company, the absence of formal title to these
KABIEERAE KNEHA buildings does not impair the value of the relevant
HMEEMEBETERAKRER buildings to the Group. The directors of the Company
ZEEEYWZEAFAEEM also believe that formal title to these buildings will be
WA e RABEEIMEE granted to the Group in due course.

REREYMER CEARE
RENEERRRTAEE -

(b) KEEBR-_ZEZTNF+A (b) The building was transferred from owner-occupied
—BERE—ZHEFPET A property to investment property because the Group
H1I0F 2 HESYN  MZE entered into a 10-years lease contract with a tenant on
EYMHBFVEEZTREY 1 July 2009.

E

(c) BEERNE) ZIREREBER (c) In the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
Frtm ANATZ2WE K on the Stock Exchange, the Company’s property,
EREERS R T EERM plant and equipment were firstly revalued by Shandong
LR SHAMEBEEMRITESR Certified Public Accountants, a firm of valuers registered
BRAZZEEEGHE - HZ in the PRC on a depreciated replacement cost basis as
KRB ZYWE BENMEKE part of its restructuring. Another separate revaluation
B — 3 (L ER— = &8 5t was carried out on the Company’s property, plant and
FiTERARIEARMEE equipment by Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent
LA - o @@ & G E valuer, on an open market value basis. The adoption of
BERLSEBEE-_TEZTHAE+= the above two revaluations in the accounts has resulted
A=+—81-FEEimgEsN in an additional depreciation charge of RMB1,432,000
TEB B ARE®1,432,000 (2008: RMB409,000) in respect of the year ended 31
T(ZDEZNE : ARK December 2009.
409,0007T) °

(d) WMAEB2YE BERK (d) Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group
AR ARER R ITE AR - been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the
ZEME BEREHEZK carrying value of such property, plant and equipment in
mEES RS A : the accounts would have been approximately:

—EThEF —EENF

+=-A=+—H +=—A=+—~H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

AR¥TT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEY Buildings 343,553 316,730
W - HaE R HRE Plant, machinery and equipment 611,189 634,500
E Motor vehicles 8,292 4,624
963,034 955,854
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19.

20.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

ME- BERSEMK(Z) 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(e) R-_EBEENF+=_A=+— (e) At 31 December 2009, all property, plant and equipment
H XEB HREDE W of the Group were revalued by the directors of the
EREBHEHIBAATESE Company on a depreciated replacement cost basis.
WEEERNEEEGE- Since there are no material differences between
HREGMEEAR-_ZTZTHE the revalued amount and the carrying values at 31
+TZA=+—RHZKREEL December 2009, the directors of the Company are of
BMEAEZER AQPAEER the opinion that the carrying values of property, plant
EVE BMERERENR_-Z and equipment at 31 December 2009 fairly reflected
ZAF+_A=+—H2Ik their recoverable amount at that time.
HEELAFHRBRERE
Hz A EEE -

] ME BWMERHZKHEz FlE ) The above items of property, plant and equipment are
IBIRBEARFETIRITE - 1% - depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated
MELEBE 2B FERSE useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as
BT - follows:

Y 204 Buildings 20 years

B - #Es R 5-20%F Plant, machinery and equipment 5-20 years

"= 5¢F Motor vehicles 5 years
ERIE 20. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

ZBEAEF ZZEENF

2009 2008

ARBTT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—A—A At 1 January 88,206 71,180

1241 Additions 146,244 202,425

HAYE BEK Transfer to property, plant and

= (HE19) equipment (Note 19) (100,094) (182,106)

AT RAEZ Transfer to prepaid lease

YEfFRE R IE payments on land use rights = (3,293)
Rt+—_A=+—H At 31 December 134,356 88,206

ERIBBEAR-_ZZTAE+_-A
St HHABRIZET BER
WEEFTELE 2B -

BE_ZZAF+_-_A=+—81
FE O BRERIREREMERFE
F A AR ¥20,000,0007T (ZZEE )\
F:T) HREEREEZEBAMN
RESE BT EERKAREE R
1t °

Construction in progress comprises expenditures incurred
on buildings, plants and machinery not yet completed at 31
December 2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, government loan
of RMB20,000,000 (2008: Nil) was borrowed for financing
construction in progress. No borrowing costs are capitalised
as the expenditures on the qualifying assets have not been
incurred.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-ZZAE+-A=+-RALFE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

21. THFERHEZHEMGEERE 21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE

RIGHTS

—EThE —ZTENEFE
+=A=+—AH +=-B=+—8”
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
ARKFIT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEMNHERBERE The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:
FEAELH Leasehold land in the PRC:
FRHEAFE A Medium-term lease 196,772 107,837
HHEL Short-term lease 1,213 1,370
197,985 109,207
mEREmMEL Z oM : Analysed for reporting
purposes as:
MEEE Current asset 4,070 4,146
ERBEE Non-current asset 193,915 105,061
197,985 109,207

AEBDTREHEZ Lt fFH#E
YERLH FEREF - BRAAE
EEYNZBEREBZABDRE -
BEBABMEE SRR AEBR D
ETZEI M2 ERNEHE - R =_F
ZAN+-—A=+—HB AEEHEX
EREAERE 2 T MFEAEZRA
B A ANRKE26,577,0000 (ZEZ
J\EF - AR #51,038,0007T) © KA
RBEERAE AEZSLHFERE
ZUEREETEARASERE L
WERAEZEE NAAEEIAE
Z ZELHWERABEZIERNERES
R TALEE -

The Group has acquired land use rights in the PRC and
has erected buildings thereon. While the Group has
paid substantially the full consideration of the purchase
consideration, the relevant government authorities have not
granted formal title to certain of these land use rights to the
Group. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying values of the
land use rights for which the Group had not been granted
formal title amounted to approximately RMB26,577,000
(2008: RMB51,038,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the absence of formal title to these land use rights
does not impair the value of the relevant land use rights to the
Group. The directors of the Company also believe that formal
title to these land use rights will be granted to the Group in due
course.
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REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

BREYMXE 22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AR FT
RMB’000
B AR COST
R-_EZNE—HF—H At 1 January 2009 -
INE Additions (b) 26,030
BYE WERKEBEEHSHEC) Reclassified from property,
plant and equipment (c) 16,588
R-_EZHNE+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2009 42,618
weE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZZZNF—-—HA—H At 1 January 2009 -
B (D) Additions (b) —
BME - BWERRZEEF () Reclassified from
property plant and equipment (c) 5,530
KEEGEE Provided for the year 394
R-ZEZNF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 5,924
R EE CARRYING VALUES
R_EZNFE+=_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 36,694

R-ZZEZNF—H—H

At 1 January 2009 —

AEBMBZEYEMNFEH -
WA EMEY (FAE A10F
A EBADRE0F) c A=
ZEHE+_A=+—BXK
SEREMEZAREBA
R #65,000,0007C © /& A &
BEENR_ZEZTNF+=A
—t+—BUHEAEEZREY
¥ETHE BETCABIL
AEMEEGEMETHE -
ARREBEZHENERE
HERME MIEHETZEUD
¥CHMEMEE -

&

(b) MEBEEREMERRE
BEREAAEEZEHAR
#26,030,0007T ° A & B IE
RIS EMER IEX MR -

() HRAEBERBEN -_TZ
NEFE+A—HFIZ T105F 8
2HEAR  WEEWET
HEBMEESETHE -

(a)

The Group’s investment properties were located in the
PRC under medium-lease terms (lease period of 10
years or more but less than 50 years). The fair value
of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2009 was RMB65,000,000. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties at 31 December 2009 have
been estimated by the directors of the Company. No
valuation has been performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. The valuation performed by the
directors of the Company was arrived at by reference to
market prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

The investment property was used by SXPGC to settle
its debts due to the Group of RMB26,030,000. The
Group is in the process of obtaining the formal title of
the investment property.

The investment property was reclassified from owner-
occupied property because the Group entered into a
10-years lease contract with a tenant on 1 July 2009.
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BE-ZFAFT-A=t—HALFE . . . -
For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

22, BEME(Z) 22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d) Lt B E TR T B FE X (d) The above investment properties are depreciated on a
NEGEIE - straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
HELTH RHEELTHZ Leasehold land Over the lease term of

FHEIA the leased land
BT 20%F Buildings 20 years
23. BELAFHES 23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—ZTHhE —TENF
+=-A=+—H +=A=+—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIE LT HEE QA Cost of investment in
%’LQZEX$ associates, unlisted 10,179 27,879
JE 4 Uk B 12 0% T & Share of post-acquisition
Hih 2wk profits and other
comprehensive income 4,181 (2,247)
14,360 25,632

REBEEZTTNF+=-_A=+—81 During the year ended 31 December 2009, two associates

LEFEARA AEBMBEE QR of the Group, Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical Co., Ltd

WERFEREEC I AR AT ([FE (“Xinhua Longxin”) and Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical

[%1:&) PILWRFERELTIRES Equipment Co., Ltd (“Xinhua Changxin”), were classified as

nEl([FFERE] #IEFHE assets held for sale (see Note 32 for more details).

ﬁF‘ (EZF1ERME32) -

RZEENFF+_A=+—H & As at 31 December 2009, the Group had interest in the

SEER T EATEERER following associate:

ERRIERR KEME IEEXER

RELAFTER INGE S 3 Ak BER HEME S ERES HEnm

Nominal  Percentage
Form of Place of value of of equity
business incorporation  Class of registered  attributable  Principal
Name of associate structure and operations  shares held capital to the Group  activities
AREFT
RMB’000
WRSENEREER =B HE BARK 26,929 20% REREEENR
(3] BEMm
Shandong Zibo Xinda Incorporated ~ PRC Contributed Production of
Pharmaceutical Company capital medicine and
Limited (“Xinda”) medical products

WREBHEREERD
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

23. BMELAFIEE (Z) 23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
NREFBENT ZRARRKEZMBEE The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of
B EES T : the Group’s associates is set out below:

—EThEF —EENF
+=A=+-8 t+t-A=1-H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE Total assets 135,040 239,697
BEBE Total liabilities (63,239) (159,546)
BEFE Net assets 71,801 80,151
AEBEERGHE AR Z Group’s share of
BEFE net assets of associates 14,360 25,632
BE_SThEF 2T N\F
+=A=+-8 t-A=1-~
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 264,566 295,358
F A5 Profit for the year 24,696 15,466
AEBEEGBHE A2 Group’s share of profits
FE i A of associates for the year (Note) 4,912 1,884
Kt - Note:
REBUHBEBEFERGERTAERE Z ST The Group’s share of profits of Xinhua Longxin and Xinhua Changxin were
BRE_ZZNFA=ZTH FEAEWM recognised up to 30 June 2009 as these two associates were transferred to
REERNRANZAEAFHEZEE - assets held for sale on that date.
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24.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AHHEZRE AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
—sThE —TTNF
+=A=+-B  ft=A=1-8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR#TIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BABHREE Equity securities:
— k™ 2B (K ita) — At fair value equity
securities (Note a) 198,396 91,567
— 3E b - KA (HfFED) — At cost (Note b) 33,200 33,200
B DHERBEEE (f17Eb)  Less : Impairment loss
recognised (Note b) (30,000) (30,000)

SEr Total 201,596 94,767

ks Notes :

(a) R-_ZETAF+_A=+—H8" £t (a) At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the listed equity investment
TRABLEEENAALBEINIRR is by reference to the price of the listed shares quoted in Shanghai
EZLEELETGH7HREMEBTE Stock Exchange and the change of fair value has been credited/
NhEEZHE g EM2EmKE T charged to other comprehensive income.

A/ HB e
(b) It & 582 15 3 R B A AR L 2 R (b) The amount represents investments in unlisted equity securities

BOERTZHETRAERZR
A -BHReBAREGHEREE
B ABARREERAEEASE
WEEEARE BUZFREN
WERRBERAOBRREE -

RZTZTAFE+=-ZA=+—H B
AEHFBER -—RIFLTHEER
SRAARABHRERET AT ZIE
& A B AR #30,000,0007T °
LBER AT EERI BE -
At B 7 AT — FHER ﬁfﬁ%iﬁ/\&
#30,000,0007T (ZZEZEN\F : A
R #30,000,0007T) ° $®Eﬂ§$
w—% ZORE T2 BIISIRN R %
BHERSHARIZ ABBREREE
rmarﬁrﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁ

issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

As at 31 December 2009, the equity securities included an
investment in an unlisted securities trading company, Tian Tong
Securities Company Limited with a cost of RMB30,000,000. The
securities trading company was facing financial difficulties and
impairment loss of RMB30,000,000 (2008: RMB30,000,000) had
been recognised in prior year. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the impairment made is based on their best
estimation with reference to the market situation and circumstances
of the securities trading company.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. &8 25. INVENTORIES
—EThE —EENF
+=A=+-B  t-A=+-~
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 51,856 38,267
RS Work-in-progress 67,362 82,641
EEPK Gh Finished goods 212,252 170,332
A @ Consumables 12,750 13,275
344,220 304,515
26. EBEWIERFREMEIKHIE 26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—EBhEFE —ETNEF
+=-A=+—H +—-A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR®TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWEER REE Trade and bills receivables 280,080 261,590
B FEURBR TR R SR BR AR Less : Allowance for doubtful
debts of trade receivables (7,603) (11,498)
272,477 250,092
Hab e W RIA - Other receivables,
e RFERFHIE deposits and prepayments 49,714 47,339
R E A FE IR Less : Allowance for doubtful
RIEZERER debts of other receivables (7,838) (7,436)
41,876 39,903
e Y BR 3 Total trade and other receivables
H e RIB 4R R 314,353 289,995
ANEFE 7 HOMEEHAEHABRN The Group’s revenue from export sales is on letter of credit or
RRBERHINET BRI TINEE documents against payment. The credit period is agreed upon
AERTHZE BRELRTEEDTIFL in the sales contract. Except for some particular customers
N REBREAMB S5 EF where payment in advance is normally required, the Group
BT EHIOKRZKRIRE  mMEBRE allows an average credit period of 30 days to its local trade
B FO0K ZRIRH - KEEH K@ customers and 90 days for local hospital customers. Majority
HA 2 2k BB 2 FE Ui BR TR I £ B K T of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
I8 7 5o 8% o have no default payment history.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

26. FEUWIE=R R HEtEKHKIEA 26.

(%)

AT TR E B YRR (BRI
BHEAME7Z BERFARIREE)

=B B I R MY R ()

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables net
of allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables presented

ZEREDMNT based on the invoice date at the reporting date.
—EThE ZEENF
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—~H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FE LR Within one year 270,571 246,965
ZR—FELRME More than one year
but less than two years 1,503 2,264
ZRMEERILR=F More than two years but less
than three years 403 588
ZR=F Over three years - 275
272,477 250,092

AEBZRERKERBEE BB %
AEBSHBERAIRAELEENT
3D AR ¥3,951,0007C (ZEZ
NE : AR#4,186,0007T)

EEHERIBE 2 YR 2 fR R

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB3,951,000 (2008:
RMB4,186,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:
—EENEF —EENF
+=-A=+—H +=—A=+—~H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F IR Within one year 2,546 1,814
LR —FEDRME More than one year

but less than two years 1,136 1,705

ZRMEEIR=F More than two years
but less than three years 269 392
ZR=1F More than three years — 275
SEr Total 3,951 4,186

2 78 3B I 48 R (B 2 8 W 0 0R B2 R
ZEAREERBERITHELEZE
FEB REBELER EEER
RELEEBEFEERTALEE
REF BNARZEREATEH
Yo wESZERBREGSE - X
KB E L% F AR A EAE R

o
on °

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26.

27.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
BE-ZZAE+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

BRIESFREMEKRIA 26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(#%) (Continued)
FEUWEE N RIERBENED B F Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade
(g receivables
—EEBhE —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥TFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
—H—H 1 January 11,498 14,185
(B R ZBEEE Impairment losses
(reversed) recognised (211) 2,698
AEEEFHWE Amounts recovered
during the year 764 _
F A EE R BEUR [0 2 FR I8 Amounts written off
as uncollectible (4,448) (5,285)
+—-—A=+—H 31 December 7,603 11,498

S fth U R R R BR A O R e
B

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of other
receivables

—EThEF —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥TTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—H—H 1 January 7,436 7,566
R 2 BEEE Impairment losses recognised 534 146
FAMEE AR LW B 2 FIB Amounts written off
as uncollectible (132) (276)
+=-—A=+—H 31 December 7,838 7,436
BUEHEERARRIE 27. AMOUNT DUE FROM IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY
FE U B B pR EQEPLE S0 The amount due from immediate holding company is

%,%\‘/,\#%Tﬁ%ﬁﬁ BE 5%
He BEERA AR &GS R
HXFEH&&FEHW/?WE Bl 2 FRIA o

R-PPAF+-A=+—R &
JJSZE&T i 2 B FRIE T FE U K e A
EEERARIRRBARME AR 24
BRIF(E ©

unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and are trading
in nature. The immediate holding company has undertaken to
settle and receive all amounts due to and due from the fellow
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2009, the amount due from
immediate holding company represents the net balance due
from and to the immediate holding company and the fellow
subsidiaries.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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BE-ZTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. B (EF)HREBLATIRE 28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES
ZEEBAE ZETNF
+=-A=+—H +=-A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE W Bt i N RIFRIR Amounts due from associates — 1,482
JE -1 Bt & X R SR IE Amount due to an associate (498) (1,805)
FE UL (FE ) B & N 7 I8 Ty 8 3K Amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest-free
2B RERBREEE - and repayable on demand.
AT TSRS B fEUREE &N 5 518 The following is an aging analysis of amounts due from
(BREZAHESN) ZRESIT associates presented based on the invoice date at the reporting
date.
—EThE ZETNF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FEPARN Within one year - 1,482
LA T3 RS B FE B & 2 R R The following is an aging analysis of amounts due to associates
(REZBHE]) 2RO presented based on the invoice date at the reporting date.
“EBhF —ETNF
+=-A=+—H +-A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TIT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F LR Within one year 443 1,805
ZHR—FEILRME More than one year
but less than two years 55 —
498 1,805
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29.

30.

31.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

SESMTA 29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
“EEZAE+-A=+-H ZEE\F+ZA=1—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
"E Aff BiE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARBTFT ABBTFT AREFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PTETETBE e Derivative not
under hedge accounting:
INERB SRR DA E Fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts - - - (7,591)

MESBRIAEDRBERRAAE At 31 December 2008, the derivatives were measured at fair
FFEC-HEARBENReRBESR value, determined based on the quoted prices from financial
SeMTAZHREET - institutions for equivalent instruments.
CEMHRITER 30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
EERRTESAREREBRRER The amount represents deposits pledged to bank to secure
BRE IINERBEAOREHER banking facilities granted to the Group in respect of bills and
M TRT AERETFTEREE letter of credit facilities, foreign currency forward contracts and
ZHRITBMEZTFR c AR ZEFRTT short-term borrowings. As these banking facilities are short-
MEBEH/ME  FltA#FR term, the deposits are classified as current assets. The deposits
RNBEE - ZEBERENTEE carry fixed interest rate from 0.36% to 1.98% (2008: 0.72% to
0.36%%E1.98% (—ZEZTN\F :0.72% 4.14%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released
F414%) 2 BEEMNEETE - EEM upon the settlement of relevant facilities.
WITERBERESH AR E & BER
A o
ROTERRRESBERK 31. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
RITERMBECEHBEBRITES Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances and cash
AEEHBBFZRES ZE@BAKUT held by the Group, short-term bank deposits with maturity
R o AR¥4,000,0007T (= of three months or less. The short-term bank deposits of
TN\ F: AR¥2,000,0005T) 2 RMB4,000,000 (2008: RMB2,000,000) carry fixed interest rates
HEBRTHERESF171% (2T at 1.71% (2008: 1.71%) per annum. The remaining balances of
NE 1.71%) 2B EMEE LS - 87 bank deposits are subject to prevailing market rates.
T2 RITFRERIRBIT 2T E R
KEF R o
BITTFRRBRSESRBEUTRIE Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
ZERIBDAEINE IR 2 EBE denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional
B2 ae B AN INEE ST ¢ currencies of the relevant group entities to which they relate:
—ETAE ZETNF
+=-B=+—H +=—A=+—~H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR %TFiT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRIt Euro (“EUR”) 7,287 1,989
=T United States Dollars (“USD”) 8,480 68,082
B Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 20 27
Ht Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 26 27

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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32. JIFHHEZRE

=B B I R MY R ()

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

ZEZhE —ZEENF

+=A=+—8H +=-A=+—H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

ABR®TFIT AR TFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

A RNCTI 7 X Interests in associates 13,634 =
JE Uk B & N B 3R O0A Amounts due from associates 1,756 —
15,390 =

DA B A A LR E 0 B
ERARAR-FEAF+-A=+—

The details of the associates classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2009 are as follows:

HEES
EMBIERR KERE
HRELF LR INGES EE MO B ER BEREFHE ERNEE ITEXEREERE
Nominal Percentage
Form of Place of value of of equity
business incorporation  Class of registered  attributable
Name of associate structure and operations  shares held capital to the Group  Principal activities
AEETT
RMB’000
IWRFERECIARRAR =8 HE BARK 25,000 0% EERHEEY
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Incorporated  PRC Contributed Manufacture and
Chemical Co., Ltd. capital sales of chemical
WERHERELCIBERATE products
IWRFERE( IR =B HE BARK 22,000 3% AEMHELIR
ﬁ[ﬁﬁ 7 &Egﬁs
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Incorporated ~ PRC Contributed Production and
Chemical Equipment Co, Ltd. capital sale of chemical

WRHERECIRR
BRAA

equipments and
spare parts

R-_ZEZANFLtA-_F+WNBE &%
REHE NS E 2 M E & QR
EERHERE - HEEDHEZTF
mEBALTETHE ZFEE (A
HER+—EARKE) B IIERF
EZBEE-EMEBEAANR_-Z
THEANA=ZTEEBUAERE
¥t RIAEMETEZRAGE -
HEMSREFHEBHEBEEHEE
EEZIREFE Bt WAER
ETREEIE -

On 24 July 2009, the directors resolved to dispose of
two associates of the Group, Xinhua Longxin and Xinhua
Changxing. Negotiations with several interested parties have
subsequently taken place. The assets, which are expected to
be sold within twelve months, have been classified as assets
held for sale. The audit and valuation of these two associates
were carried out on 30 June 2009 by independent qualified
professional accountants and valuers. The net proceeds of
disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and accordingly, no impairment loss has been

recognised.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. MEfTIR K XK fth ¥ RIEA 33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
UTNARBEHJHERZ ENKRER The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable
RIBEHIR ZBEB D HT ¢ presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period.
ZEBAF ZZEENF
+=-A=+—H +=—RA=+—~”
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR#TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—EFEPARN Within one year 269,164 242,426
ZR—FEIDRME More than one year
but less than two years 4,987 2,151
ZRMEEINR=F More than two years
but less than three years 747 966
ZN=4F Over three years 5,436 5,085
280,334 250,628
E e R IB R EE B Other payables and accrued charges 211,364 111,190
491,698 361,818
EmEEZFHYRIRI AIGKR - K The average credit period on purchases of goods is 45 days.
SEXELRAREEREK  ARE The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
RETE BN FIBERRIREI A LS - ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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o T \orar (Emales) €51 Dleeeiinas 2608 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BR 34. Borrowings
ZEEAFE —ETNF
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
ARETFT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITE R Bank loans 374,024 284,474
B E K Government loan 20,000 =
394,024 284,474
EAEA Unsecured 394,024 266,456
FERiigE Secured - 18,018
394,024 284,474
JERATEIRER ZIREE :  Carrying amount repayable:
RESKEFs—F AR On demand or within one year 124,024 284,474
ZRMFETBAASF More than two years
but not more than five years 253,400 =
ZHRAF More than five years 16,600 —
394,024 284,474
B mB A &R IR Less: Amounts due within
—FRERZNEA one year shown under
current liabilities (124,024) 284,474
270,000 =
W E P - A R #80,000,000 Included in the unsecured borrowings, RMB80,000,000
T(ZZEE)N\E : ARK50,000,000 (2008: RMB50,000,000) was guaranteed by SXPGC and
TC) HETEREIEHIER  ARK RMB150,000,000 (2008:RMB80,000,000) was guaranteed by
150,000,000 (ZEZENE : AR the ultimate holding company of the Company.
#:80,000,0007T ) H A< 5 [ ) fx 4% 122
AR AR SRR SRR o
ERRKEFBWD —SEBFTEZA During the year, the Group received a government loan of
R #20,000,0007T (ZZZT )\ F : RMB20,000,000 (2008: Nil) which carried market interest rate of
F) AR ESE E R LE & 5.346% for improving important technique and energy saving,
MR ZEATHNHXAETIS X and would be repaid within 8 years.

5.346% * WEHENSFAEE -
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

gh(E) 34. Borrowings (Continued)

REFBEFIZU T RS - The Group’s borrowings are interest-bearing as follow:
et 1 %2 —ETN\F
+=-A=+—H +=—A=+—~H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR®TFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& F A = Fixed rate 80,000 140,000
SZE)F & Variable rate 314,024 144,474
394,024 284,474

AEBZFHNEERRERER
RITARFEN P BEARRT
Mz MEREFE -FEFE—ERN
BRAEHREE -

AEEERZERANXEE (A
RERKEME)MT

The Group’s variable rate loans carry interest at a margin over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) or prevailing rate
quoted by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”). Interest is
repriced every one to six months.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as
follows:

BE_ZTThEF (BT )\F

+=B=+—H +—-A=+—8H

i3 3 IEFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

& & F) & Fixed rate 4.78%%E7.20% 5.02%27.47%
FEF = Variable rate 1.67%E7.47% 4.51%%5.31%

AEBENFREEERIETEE N
S B EHEZ ERFIIWT ¢

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

—BEAE —ZTTN\F

+=-A=+—H +=—BA=+—~H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

AR®FIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

S Hong Kong Dollars 44,024 44,094

REBEE-_ZETNF+=_A=+—¢H
FFEER AEEESHEERYD
AR #350,000,0007C (ZZTZ )\ £F :
A R #439,409,0007T) ° %2 & E &
EMBFRFETERNFREE -

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group obtained
new loans in the amount of approximately RMB350,000,000
(2008: RMB439,409,000). These loans bear interest at market
rates and will be repayable within 8 years.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. SHITME 35. BANKING FACILITIES

REBZHRITREBRT : The Group’s banking facilities included:

— A R #135,220,00050 (=& — RMB135,220,000 (2008: RMB91,000,000) which was
=)\ F : AR¥91,000,000 guaranteed by SXPGC. As at 31 December 2009, the
To) AT EREER RN Group utilised RMB80,000,000 (2008: RMB50,000,000)
EENE+-_A=+—8" in respect of the short-term bank loans and
RNEBEGFEHIETERS RMB55,220,000 (2008:RMB41,000,000) in respect of
A AR #80,000,000T (= F bills payables issued to suppliers; and

=N\ F : AR #¥50,000,000
TT) c mEEREAZ EA
ZH A AR¥S55,220,000
T(ZEEZENF : AR
41,000,0007T) : &

s A R #150,000,0007T (=& = RMB150,000,000 (2008:RMB80,000,000) which was
=)\ F : AR ¥80,000,000 guaranteed by the ultimate holding company. As at 31
TC) B REIER AR ER - December 2009, the Group utilised RMB150,000,000
RZEEAF+_A=+— (2008:RMB80,000,000) in respect the long-term bank
H XEEERKRBETE loans.

FE A AR#150,000,000
T(ZZEZENF: ARKE
80,000,0007T) °
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) B T Yo Fsles] G e 0GR

36. B&&F 36. SHARE CAPITAL
Biz® A 2.3
Number of shares Share Capital
—ZThE —ZTNE ZZZhE —ZEN\E
2009 2008 2009 2008
& TR ABBFT AEEFT
’000 '000 RMB’000 RMB’000

H o BTRERES : Issued and fully paid:

BREEAR¥ITZ State-owned shares
ERERR of RMB1 each
Rn—F—H At 1 January 163,259 163,259 163,259 163,259
BIRERFEEEAREA Transfer from PRC legal
person shares 948 = 948 =
R+=—B=1+—H At 31 December 164,207 163,259 164,207 163,259
BEEEAE®ITZ PRC legal person shares
RAEETEAR of RMB1 each
R—A—H At 1 January 24,527 24,527 24,527 24,527
HEBRHEA Transfer to state-owned shares (948) - (948) -
+-A=1+—H At 31 December 23,579 24,527 23,579 24,527
BREEAR¥ITZ Restricted senior management
RESERPR shares of RMB1 each
R—HA—H At 1 January 23 31 23 31
FRE I E R Net decrease as a result of
SEERTRD shares sold from promoter
and senior management = (8) = 8
R+-A=+—-8 At 31 December 23 23 23 23
BEREEAR¥ITZ RMB ordinary shares (A Shares)
ARBLER (AR) of RMB1 each
R—A—H At 1 January 119,504 119,496 119,504 119,496
BEEEARREEA Transfer from promoter
and senior management - 8 - 8
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 119,504 119,504 119,504 119,504
BREEAR¥ITZ Overseas listed foreign

Boh EH RIS ERE (HER) invested shares (H Shares)
of RMB1 each
R—A—BRk At 1 January and 31 December
+-A=+—-H 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

457,313 457,313 457,313 457,313
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For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. BEREB(ZIE)ARE 37. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
LTI AEERBEEERER The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
TEELEMSHRAG(BE) REE recognised and movements thereon during the current and
&) : prior years:

&MIR
BHER AREZED #e it it
Change in
fair value
Accounting of financial
provisions instruments  Bonus accrued Others Total
AREFT AEEFL AREFT AEEFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“TT\E—HF—H  At1January 2008 (6,950) 53,795 = 308 47,153
quME\ﬁn (Wiz11) Credit to profit or loss
(Note 11) (561) (8,492) S (93) (4,146)
SARBZERS Credit to other
comprehensive income = (41,044) - = (41,044)
RZZEN\F At 31 December 2008
+=ZR=+-H (7,511) 9,259 - 215 1,963
nBEGIA) ER Charge (credit) to profit
(Ba11) or loss (Note 11) 425 1,107 (8,378) (2,704) (9,550)
NHEEmZENE Charge to other
comprehensive income = 16,140 - = 16,140
RZZZNE At 31 December 2009
+-A=t-H (7,086) 26,506 (8.378) (2,489) 8,553
—EThE —ZTENF
+=-RA=+—H +=—A=+—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR #TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFBRRERA Deferred tax assets recognised
RZIBEEFMSHEE on the consolidated statement
of financial position (3,044) (1,0381)
FREMBARRBERNA Deferred tax liabilities recognised
EEE%J ZIEESHAE on the consolidated statement
of financial position 11,597 2,994
8,553 1,963
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37.

38.

146 |

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

BERA(SIE)AE(Z) 37. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
(Continued)
MNIEEAR REEHEA KN ER At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused tax
KaMz KA MEEEOARK losses of approximately RMB669,000 (2008: RMB2,976,000)
669,000 (ZZEZENFE : AR available for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax
2,976,0007T) ° B A K i F 8 2 asset has been recognised in respect of these tax losses due
2R TERME Rt A ZER to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
BEEBMARELEMGEHEE - Hi% can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the
EEESEEELAFEERTRE respective loss arose.
NEITHEE o
RI{EEAR KREEHEA KRS At the end of reporting period, the Group has deductible
A4 = %8 49 A R #638,0007T (=& temporary difference of approximately RMB638,000 (2008:
T )\ FE : AR ¥1,182,0007T) ° B RMB1,182,000). No deferred tax asset had been recognised
M R] e B FER A1 % A LA &) 3 aT 4K in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
GEEEEZE AWM ARE@A] probable that the taxable profit will be available against which
BelRREEEERETCHMEMRE the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Eo
3E BE U A 38. DEFERRED INCOME
AR
ARYxE TifERHEZ
3 9:%-2 {:5] FREB
Y ¥ 46 Bh Y ¥ # Bh i@ at
Government
grants
relating
Government to prepaid
grants relating lease
to property, payments
plant and on land
equipment use rights Total
ARBFIT AR FIC AR#Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZEZNF—HA—H At 1 January 2009 — — —
NE Additions 43,486 7,318 50,804
F R 55 Amortised during the year (148) — (148)
RZEBEZTNF At 31 December 2009
+=HA=+—A” 43,338 7,318 50,656

BREWABRRBE_TENAF+ =
A=+—BLFE KIABRFTEH
ME BERREBRLMEREZ
BENEERBNEREMRE BT
W AR 1% 48 B & 2E 1O {2 R SF BR(5-50
FIBABHRA -

The deferred incomes arise as a result of the benefits received
from the government unconditionally during the year ended 31
December 2009 in respect of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payment on land use rights. The deferred
income is transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
relevant assets ranging from 5 to 50 years.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

39. BFXERER 39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
REBHNERAEEBAERAER The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
ETERZEFEKLER N RS Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
BELCEEERKR ZGERBERAER maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
REKFEAOR REB 726K of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
FHEFF—F - WEEH - remains unchanged from prior year.
REBZEAREDTEES (EER The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
ERMEFMFEEZER) - He kR includes the borrowings disclosed in note 34, cash and cash
SEBYWEREAARBE AEEES equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
(ZEBBTRERAN - HELEBEFERAAN) - comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings.
RAREESTHRTERER - The directors of the Company review the capital structure
EBZBFN—2BH KARESE regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
eEEEARNKANRABERE - E consider the cost of capital and the associated risks and take
BEREAABRKER 2 EARNEE - appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
NREBZHEAHER FF—3% I overall strategy of the Group remained unchanged from prior
S o year.

40. M¥EIR 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
MEIRZER Categories of financial instruments

—EEBhE —EENEF
+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MBERE Financial assets
ExkEWRIE(B1E Loans and receivables (including
RITERRRESER) bank balances and cash) 711,475 549,055
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 201,596 94,767
MBAR Financial liabilities
RBHEKAFEZSREE Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 856,884 637,824
BRAREFAER Fair value through profit or loss -
—TEemEaRE Derivative financial liabilities - 7,591

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

&eMIA(E) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
MERSEEEERKE Financial risk management objectives and policies
NEENFTEFB T ABEIMHE The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
ENE - EWERR R E M E U RIE - sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount due from
FEUN B IR A B FRIE - fEUREE & immediate holding company, amounts due from associates,
ANEHE - DEWETER T4 pledged bank deposits, derivative financial instruments, bank
cRmIE BT EIABEE% balances and cash, trade and other payables, amount due
FE 5 IR 30 K2 Efh FE A ZRIE - FE B to an associate and borrowings. Details of these financial
EBNBFREBEBRER ZEHMHETA instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
M ERERNBERER BH%E associated with these financial instruments include market risk
SR TEMEBENRREBFETISRR (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
(BERM - MRS EEMERE and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
)  EERREREBEERR - T~ set out below. The management manages and monitors these
XEYEZEMETESBEORR exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
kiR EZERROKE - B8 a timely and effective manner.
EERERZFZER  UBERE
B K B U BR B & R 18 B ©
h 4% R B Market risk
B e Currency risk
NN T R TETE S M B A 7 H N The Company and some of its subsidiaries have foreign
HENKRE  FAEBEAIINER currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group to
9o BT RIKIINERE  NEFR foreign currency risk. In order to mitigate the foreign currency
EERMEEREREZ R A H risk, foreign currency forward contracts are entered into in
B ETHEFI VINERBIE L - respect of highly probable USD forecast sales in accordance
with the Group’s risk management policies.
REBETERER RITERR Certain trade receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
et ENEREEZTUAA payables and borrowings of the Group are denominated in
REIN EREHE - currencies other than RMB.
TRBERAEBRHEBEHAEBRNHSE The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
HRAXRSGHEEREEREFE A the reporting period to currency risk arising from transactions or
HEREEBE N ES UINE B L recognised assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
HELXZEERR - than the function currencies of the relevant group entities to
which they relate.
Z2SAfE+ZRA=1-H “ZEN\E+-A=1-H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Ax B E b:{ -4 A B e B
JPY EUR usD HKD JPY EUR usb HKD
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT AREFr ARETT AREFr AREFT
RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iE
Assets 26 21,290 113,690 20 27 16,188 188,748 27
A
Liabilities - 20,120 2,951 44,024 = 13,571 704 44,094
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. €@mTIH(Z) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
THiERAE(Z) Market risk (Continued)
B E G (E) Currency risk (Continued)
NEFBESKET R T)E A INE & HY The Group requires its group entities to use foreign currency
BRI R o SNEERERS forward contracts to minimise the currency exposures. The
AN BERYEHIBE R — B o £ 5= B IE foreign currency forward contracts must be in the same
T AREBAFEEBARHEIR ZE currency as the hedged item. On this basis, the Group has
TLHERT L RHEA 4 (R A E29) - entered into USD forward contracts in relation to the highly
probable USD forecast sales (see note 29 for details).
2 B E 2T Sensitivity analysis
RNREBFEAZIIEIEI A & The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of JPY, EUR,
JC - ETLRABIT © USD and HKD.
TRFANRNER AR LRI The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2008:
HMERESBEERRISD (ZEE 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
NE :5%) o5%(—EENFE :5%) currencies. 5% (2008: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
BRTESIEASEANILER S INE reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
B E RS RE - HERE DN personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
EEIFEUINBEHEN R E K reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
B WREEE HINEERAE5% sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
SBEHREKRE o denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
b R E 3 #T
JPY Euro usb HKD
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ARRFT AREFr ARBFT ARETT ARBFT AREFT ARBFT ARETI
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEAENRZEN (45)
Increase (decrease) in profit for
the year, net of tax effect
— EARBHMNERE
— if RMB weakens against
foreign currencies 1 = 45 111 4,654 7,779 (1,870) (1,652)
— EARBHMEAE
— if RMB strengthens against
foreign currencies 1) = (45) (111) (4,654) (7,779) 1,870 1,662

B EMERBOIRBEERTE
EEERAS ARFRZARYT
RBRNRAFEAZRER  SBKE
DM —EARKEEI AR

A change of 5% in exchange rate of each foreign currency
against RMB does not have a significant impact on other
components of equity. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7
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RS HT

AEEHIE S REF X R AR
ERERE R ZSHFERIEITE
MTEAZINFERRR HFZEE
RME HEELIWIBEARS
HARKEEZEABEETNERAEEM
T o RS0 (ZFZT )\ F : 50)f#
EBARNTEEEEBABRNILHKE
FERBFTASEE TEEEE
HHREEBBESSOTM -

i 1) B 48 hn sk ek 501 & 25 B H A
FrEREREERTER  ~EE
HER _ZTEZAF+=-_A=+—H
ZEEFBERL MO EAR
#146,000C (ZZEZENF : AR
614,0007T) ' EE ERAEE N F
BR1TE A S A R R

EEERS ARFRZARIY T
RBRAFERNZRER  SBKE
DA A —EAIRKREBMERER
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate borrowings (see Note 34 for details of these
borrowings). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate borrowings (see Note 34 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities is
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the HIBOR or prevailing rate quoted by the
PBOC arising from the Group’s variable-rate borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. 50 (2008: 50) basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2009 would decrease/ increase by
approximately RMB146,000 (2008: RMB614,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
necessarily of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group’s other price risk is mainly concentrated on
available-for-sale investments quoted in the stock exchange of
the PRC. The management monitors the price risk exposure
and will take appropriate measures should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to other price risks at the end of the reporting

period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale investments had
been 5% higher/lower:

—ETAE ZETNF
2009 2008
AR¥TIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REENFEEER Increase (decrease) in equity for
G d) - the year, net of tax effect:
— ARAFSHEE L — as a result of increase
in equity price 8,432 3,891
— ARAFESER TR — as a result of decrease
in equity price (8,432) (3,891)

=B R
RZEENF+=—_A=+—H &

EERXRSGEFREBITEMEMmMA
EEHMBBRANEREERRE

G %géﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ#&&ﬁﬁﬁkmﬂﬁ
R EEMNIREE °

RTBEREEERR AEEE
BECZk—HEAABRENEEE
RE EEEHIHEMEERF
& DAREOR SR EUIR A 17 B W @ 8 B (E
Heftih AEEBEEZBREH R
EZHRREMNEZERNT KD
BoRAREEZNODSESRERR
MBEBERBE FERNI AR

RAEFARAEENEERRER
BRI -

/\)|LE§$Z{A_EEH$A§|ZE ’ %’j(
BORXSEFHREERFZIRIT -

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

| 151



152 |

=B B 3 R MY R ()

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40.

&mMIA(E)
3 fts (90 45 LR ()
EEmR (&

NI @I E D AEENEFE
BEERBREEMATE R_ZTThH
F+-A=+—BItEEERKE
REEHET% (ZETN\EFE+-R
=1+—H :48%) °

AEEMNEFEZERBREKRBAN AKX
EFE (HEKRERBENTS (ZF
ZNFE+_A=+—8:11%) °

REE TR

FHEERDESRR AEEE
EREFRERBSEEBYRE—
EEERSRANKE  LIEAE
BREMENRERSREZ N -
EREEEREENERUBRRTA
BRI

TRAABINAEB M BEEZ
BTAMNERR -AFETESRE
EME RERBIBHEEER[/N
SERBTIXNZRREARZHH
BREZAFHRRESRE -REEHE
MERASRESRE o A XRFIA
FEEFE RATHBEINHRED
RUMEBERFH -

—

40.

REFBZERMZEHRARH

Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 57% (31
December 2008: 48%) of the total trade receivable as at 31
December 2009.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 7% (31 December
2008: 11%) of the total trade receivables was due from the five
largest customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. For non-derivatives financial liabilities, the
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at end of the reporting period.
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For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. €@mTIH(Z) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
TBEeE Liquidity risk table
FAANAE  W+ZA=1-A
LGS YR-% F-ERLE bE:2 3 REZRE I
Total
Effective undiscounted  Carrying amount
interest rate  Less than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years cash flows  at 31 December
NREFT ANREFT NREFT NREFT NREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ZEENE 2009
FiiEMBRE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ERERR Trade and other payables
At AR 462,362 - - 462,362 462,362
ERBENTE  Amount dusto
an associate 498 = = 498 498
&g Borrowings 1.67%-7.47% 136,300 214,721 18,094 429,121 394,024
599,160 274,721 18,004 891,981 856,884
“EEN\E 2008
FiEHEAR Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ERER Trade and other payables
AferzE 351,545 - - 351,545 351,545
ERHELTFE  Amount due to
an associate 1,805 = = 1,805 1,805
gE Borrowings 4.51%-7.47% 300,308 - - 300,308 284,474
653,658 = = 653,658 637,824
fi$TR — SHEH Derivatives
- net settlement
SNEEEAD Foreign currency
forward contracts 7,591 = = 7,591 7,591
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding foreign currency forward contracts) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;

. the fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is
measured using quoted forward exchange rates and
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching
maturities of the contracts.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable.

O Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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&eMIRA(E) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
DRE(E) Fair value (Continued)
“EEAE+-RA=1+—-H
31/12/2009
F—8  Jout =t 21
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREFT AREFT AREFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AfEESREE Available-for-sale
LikiEES financial assets
Listed equity securities 198,396 S = 198,396
BEMMBATINIES 41. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN

HE-_ZTTNF+_A=+—A8H1t
FE AEERFEBHEILELST
rENSEEEEHARAR ([ KEEE])
S ERER AR AR QA
(TEREMBT]) 12% R 10% M # %=+ B8
B9 Bl A& A R #399,0007T (B
SFEBARKEL000T) AR
237,000 (BRERXSFEEARE
4,0007T) c RIS 1B - KEEJS
MR BAEBE2ENB AR -

7N E2 [E| [m) 2 BIR BR UK B K 2 JE B R
AERAFEEZEMNNREEEN
ZEBEZRABZEEARE
143,000 50 A H b o

BE-_ZTN\E+-_A=+—A81t
FE - REBEEE LEFERE(S
H)ERDR ([FESH]) 41.44%
R BEA ARY13,972,000
T RIRBRKE  MESHLKA
AEBEEWNBAF -

AEBROEBEKETES T
BEZENREEEEZEEEZ
M T 1B 2 = %8 A R #359,0007T 58 A
E A o

SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group acquired
additional interests of 12% in Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain)
Company Limited (“Pharmacy”) and additional interests of
10% in Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute Company
Limited (“Design”) from SXPGC at consideration of RMB399,000
(including transaction fees of RMB4,000) and RMB237,000
(including transaction fees of RMB4,000) respectively. After the
acquisition has been completed, Pharmacy and Design become
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

The amount of RMB143,000 being the difference between the
consideration paid to a minority shareholder and the net assets
of Pharmacy and Design acquired are recorded in “Other
Reserve”.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
acquired additional interests of 41.44% in Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited (“Xinhua
Shouguang”) at a consideration of RMB13,972,000. After the
acquisition had been completed, Xinhua Shouguang became
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

The amount of RMB359,000 being the difference between
the consideration paid to minority shareholders and the net
assets of Xinhua Shouguang acquired were recorded in “Other
Reserve”.
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42,

HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31

December 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
disposed of the entire interests of a subsidiary held by the
Group - Weifang Wanyuan Chemical Company Limited, at a

consideration of RMB9,202,000.

FrEEFEEM : Net assets disposed:
ARBFT
RMB’000
ME - R RREG Property, plant and equipment 15,676
JIE 5 B 35K K= EL A fE s SR IE Trade and other receivables 3,930
FE Inventories 15,490
RITERRRE &8 Bank balances and cash 70
JE 5 R X 2 EL A JE A I Trade and other payables (17,778)
FEE Net asset 17,388
o DB Less: Minority interests (8,871)
HERFEEE Net asset disposed 8,517
B BB A E e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 685
BwRE Total consideration 9,202
BUTARZA Satisfied by:
R REES K D HERENRE Consideration payable for
the acquisition of additional interests
in Xinhua Shouguang 9,202
HENEAREENR M LFHE - Net cash outflow arising from disposal
of a subsidiary:
P H & MERTT R RIR & A5 85 Bank balances and cash disposed (70)

HE-FTTN\F+-A=+-—Ai
FENHEZHBARNAEEY
HURRSREREEATE -

As of 31 December 2008, there
on the Group’s results and cash
subsidiary.

was no significant impact
flows with the disposal of
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL INJECTED BY A MINORITY
SHAREHOLDER

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the minority
shareholder of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe)
GmbH (“Xinhua Europe”) injected additional capital of
Euro237,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB2,432,000). After
the capital injection has been completed, the equity interest of
Xinhua Europe held by the Group decreased by 11.9%.

The amount of RMB983,000 being the difference between the
consideration received from a minority shareholder and the net
assets of Xinhua Europe disposed of are recorded in “Other
Reserve”.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, SXPGC settled its
debts due to the Group of RMB26,030,000 by the transfer of
investment property of RMB26,030,000 to the Group.

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments principally related to construction in
progress, purchase of land use rights and purchase of property,
plant and equipment in respect of buildings and production
facilities which were not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements.

—EThEF —EENF

+=-A=+—H +=-—A=+—H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

ARETFIT ARETFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEELEREE Contracted but not provided 119,632 78,943
D AEBRZEL Authorised but not contracted for 640,600 167,435
760,232 246,378
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Prepared under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
HE-TTAF+-A=+-RLFE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Commitments under operating leases

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its retail shops under operating
lease arrangements. Lease for properties are negotiated for a
term ranging from one to five years and rentals are under fixed

rate.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

JENFESEENT ¢ operating leases which fall due as follows:
—sBNE —EE)F
+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—8
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR®TFIT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 302 459
E-FERF In the second to
fifth year inclusive - 259
302 718
KEBERHHEA The Group as lessor

AEBRBLLSHEOLEL WX -
B E Y R A AR K6.96% 2
HEWsE ZEVEFNHRO KR
BEH/TEF -

RBERR ARBECSEBLATL
ZHEANTIEHA 2K RKKERE
WHSWT :

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. The properties are expected to generate rental
yields of 6.96% on an ongoing basis. Lease for properties are
negotiated for a term of ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

= —TTN\F

+=-A=+—H +—A=+—H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

AR¥TT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 770 750
FE_ETFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,113 2,580
hF & After five years 4,050 —
7,933 3,330

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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For The Year Ended 31 Decermber 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

46. BHEEALTES 46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) MRS BTSRRI IR BN - (@) Except as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
NEBEESEBESEERNE financial statements, the other significant related party
TZEMBEREBAEALR transactions, which were carried out in the normal
S0 : course of the Group’s business are as follows:
BE_ZZThE (2T )N\F
+-A=+—H +=-A=+—~H
ILEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
AR¥TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FhEERRE - SXPGC:
— AR EE(() — Payment of annual
trademark licence fee (1) 1,100 1,100
— et — Rental expense 500 500
HERHEB AT — Consideration for
w2 BEQ) acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries (2) 636 —
FAREEAT : Fellow subsidiaries:
— HENKE A LER — Sale of water, electricity,
steam and waste materials 10,258 12,870
— RERME — Purchase of raw materials 84,802 132,098
— e WA — Rental income 134 361
— REFFBEBA — Design fee income 50 24
— BEYE HBER — Purchase of property,
Rt N A plant and equipment,
and land use rights - 9,846
— BEE A — Income from transfer of
AR 2 WA land use rights = 924
BREAT : Associates:
— BREERM B — Purchase of raw materials 6,127 12,875
— JETBBA — Design fee income 11 12
DMK : Minority shareholders:
— HELBRHER — Sale of bulk
L TR pharmaceuticals and
chemical raw materials 144,926 162,161
— RELITRRE — Purchase of chemical
raw materials 514 =
— WEEIrIES S AR FE — Acquisition of additional
(Ktit41) interests in Xinhua
Shouguang (Note 41) - 13,972
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T HEBFEEARE
100,000 * EEF BEE|
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Al REARARE
636,0007T (7 1575 R M 5%
41) o

NEER AP BEBNR
BETRZHEE KB
e (mE((EERED
B oBE ok A B BE A sk
HEFERIR ST -
HE-_ZTZhhF+=A
=+—HLFEE F~&E
BREHMARINREBEE
TEAHEREBERR
BEMBZRS - ARAEZ
EERANFTHBALE
ZRGVBEENEBRTE
R - R BT U R
SWRBEELHLESR
BAEHE NEBEEE
T EMKBEEERE MW
iE LE B A BRI R BUR R
RERFRERLE - ¥
hEEEAMEZBEEF-
ARREERAUERS
W AR E R S M
BB -

46.

REFBZERMZEHRARH
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@)

Except as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the other significant related
party transactions, which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes :

1.

On 7 December 1996, the Group was granted the exclusive
right to use the trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by
SXPGC for its existing and future products in and outside
the PRC at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000 increasing
at the rate of an extra RMB100,000 per year until the annual
fee reaches the cap amount of RMB1,100,000, which
shall stay as such until the agreement is terminated. The
terms of the agreement shall continue to have effect during
the validity period of the Trademark, being 28 February
2013, subject to further renewal of the registration of the
Trademark. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
annual fee paid by the Group amounting RMB1,100,000
(2008: RMB1,100,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
acquired additional interests of subsidiaries from SXPGC
at consideration of RMB636,000 (see Note 41 for more
details).

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively
“State-owned Enterprises”). During the year ended 31
December 2009, the Group had transactions with State-
owned Enterprises including, but not limited to, sales of
pharmaceutical products and purchases of raw materials.
The directors of the Company consider that transactions
with other State-owned Enterprises are activities in the
ordinary course of business, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing policies
for products and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are State-owned Enterprises.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that none
of these transactions is a material related party transaction
that requires separate disclosure.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited



REBEZERMZEHRARR
Prepared lilnde:(Hong Kong Geﬁeral\y Accepted Accounting Principles ,2,':1]_: ’é’ /E\ZI' z% ﬁ 2% Bﬁ' %I ( ,%E )
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009 Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

46. BRAEBEALXS (&) 46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) RZEZENRF+_A= Jrf (b) As at 31 December 2009, the ultimate holding company
B AEEBZzHEKER and SXPGC provide guarantee to the Group amounted
o 7 1 B2 w4 Eljﬁ,$%@2 to RMB150,000,000 (2008: RMB80,000,000) and
fa Bt A R#150,000,000 RMB135,220,000 (2008: RMB91,000,000) respectively.

T(ZEENFE : AR
80,000,0007T) & A R ¥
135,220,000t (ZZEZE N
£ AR #91,000,0007T) HY

R o
(c) TEEEBAB ZRN (c) Compensation of key management personnel
AFEEERHEMFTEERE The remuneration of directors and other members of key
ANBZFHMFIBRIT - management during the year was as follows:
BE_ZThE BHETZTN\F
+=-A=+—H +=—A=+—~H
ILFE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
ARETIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
52 HAAE 7| Short-term benefits 10,369 3,331
BEERRKEE ZEF Post-employment benefits 234 190
10,603 3,521
EFEENFTEEEBEAB ZHMNEEF The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
ZEEeRBERAARBATSBEE by the remuneration committee having regard to the
3E ° performance of individuals and market trends.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

47. MELT 47. SUBSIDIARIES

RZBEZAF+-_A=+—HURK
—ERENFEFT -_A=+—HBAXRF

Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009
and 31 December 2008 are as follows :

162 |

ZHBABFHBENT
EREIERE
] PNEA EERH ERESEE RRAARE IERBRESHE
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation and paid share capital/ Principal activities and place of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital Effective interest held operation
2009 2008
2009 2008

WRHMERE (B ERAR (FERM]) 28 FREALR 769,0008 ¢ 65% (#/#1) 76.90% RENEEENREEARES

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Germany, limited company EURT69,000 65% (Note 1) 76.90% Trading of medicine and
(Europe) GmbH (“Xinhua Europe”) medical products in Europe
WRHERBEHNERAT

HEREBSERAN(BEES)) hE - ARELAR AR 848,498 9007 100% (#72) 99.76% HeEALENREERARES

Shandong Xinhua Medical Trading PRC, limited company RMB48,498,900 100% (Note 2) 99.76%  Trading of medicine and
Company Limited (‘Medical Trading’) medical products in the PRC
WEHEBHEHERLA

MEMEARE (28) ARAR ([BE]) HE EREAAT AR%2,000,0007 100% (#722) 8% NPEAEENREERRTE

Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain) PRC, limited company RVB2,000,000 100% (Note 2) 88% Retail sales of medicine and
Company Limited (‘Pharmacy’ ) medical products in the PRC
HEREAREEH ARAT

HENERER R ARAR (3t ]) hE - EREERT AR 3,000,007 100% (#7:22) 90% MeRLEEETRNR

(H#3)

Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design PRG, limited company RWMB3,000,000 100% (Note 2) 90% Design of medical production
Institute Company Limited (“Design”) (Note 3) projects in the PRC
HENEER R RARLE

HENETREEEREELT ([TA)) hE - EREERT 1,500,000%7 75% 5% RPEEEREERFR

FERHE

Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical PRC, limited company US$1,500,000 5% 75%  Production and sale of calcium
Company Limited (‘Eastwest’) polycarbophil materials
HENEREYEEREARA in the PRC

WRFZREEHNARREAT hE - EREERT AKH5,0000007 100% (#7:22) 99.52% RAEEL &R RENRIE
(TR ) (Hiit4)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical PRG, limited company RWMBS,000,000 100% (Note 2) 99.52%  Import and export of chemical
Import & Export Company Limited (Note 4) products and pharmaceutical
(‘Import & Export') technical know-how in the PRC
WRFERER N AREEAT

HEME — BRlRREEREAD HE EREAAT 6,000,000 T 50.10% 50.10% RPELEENREERR
ERE)

SINO-USA Zibo Xinhua PRG, limited company USD#,000,000 50.10% 50.10% Production of medicine and
— Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited medical products in the PRC
(‘Perrigo”)

HENE - BHRRERRALA
HERE (B ARAA(HER L) tH EREAAT AR#130,000,0007 100% 100% RPEEERHENIER
(Hi#3)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical PRG, limited company RMB130,000,000 100% 100% Production and sales of

(Shouguang) Company Limited Note 3) chemical products in the PRC

(*Xinhua Shouguang’)
HEHE(SR)ERAT

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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47. BEBAT (&) 47. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Kzt - Notes :

1. BE-_ETNE+=-_B=+—8 1. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the minority shareholder
WFTEE - FEBNLOHBREITE of Xinhua Europe injected additional capital of Euro237,000 so that
237,000 7t Atk ANEBFEFEH the equity interest held by the Group decreased by 11.9% (see Note
B A211.9% - (FBEERWE 43 for more details).

43)

2. BE2E-_ETZNE+_ABA=+— 2. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company acquired
HIEEE  KR2FADBNUARK additional interests of 12% in Pharmacy and addition interests of
399,000t & A K #237,0007T A 10% in Design from SXPGC at consideration of RMB399,000 and
S EEBE AR M R K BE [E1 00 ME 25 N BB RMB237,000 respectively. After the acquisition has been completed,
nﬂ?,mo%@ﬁﬁ o W BE TR RN 1R - KB Pharmacy and Design become the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

LR AREE S EWB Group. After that, the Company acquired additional interests of 2%
N T Bt ANAFDRIAARE in Medical Trading and additional interests of 2% in Import & Export
1,054,0007T K A EE #150,0007T [A) from Pharmacy at consideration of RMB1,054,000 and RMB150,000
N LEE R B R POk s R respectively. Upon the completion of these acquisitions, Medical
HO2%REZS - Ui ST Ak i - B8 2% Trading and Import & Export also become the wholly-owned
B REHONRKANERZEN subsidiaries of the Group.
BARA -

3. BE-_TTAEt+=-A=+—80 3. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company injected

WEE KA RRFESHE additional capital of RMB50,000,000 in Xinhua Shouguang and
L BREE SN E A A R ¥50,000,000 RMB1,000,000 in Design. As at 31 December 2009, the registered
7T & A R #1,000,0007T & K R capital of Xinhua Shouguang and Design is RMB130,000,000
—EEANEFE+-_A=+—H " HE= (2008: RMB80,000,000) and RMB3,000,000 (2008: RMB2,000,000)
BHARRAEOTMEERSRIASA respectively.
R #130,000,0007C (ZZTZENF :
A R #80,000,0007T) & AR #
3,000,000 (ZZTZENF : ARK
2,000,0007T) °

4. BE-_TZAE+-_A=+—H1 4. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company and
EEAQAREAEEEELEDON Pharmacy transferred Import & Export’s retained earnings to
IREBHEF D B IE T & A A RBE registered capital of RMB1,960,000 and RMB40,000 respectively.
1,960,0007T & A R #40,0007T °

5. BENB AT RERKERXNER 5, None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
BB ITEEES the year or at any time during the year.

48. HRBF 48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

AR ERE  Hthlas - Hvlg
BB LA R H 3RS IR A B L8R
BEREREY NEEEHTREL
MERBARTESRTENAR
BEEZHNEEEREI B HM
WamkEBE BEVE BEERK
BEEENEMESBRE»ES
EmmREE KRETHNFER
irZEW"aiiﬁ'J H_ZTZRLF
‘f’ A=1+—HMEEMBEMRRIRK

2/
RETE -

Reclassifications of comparative figures have been made in
respect of investment income, other income, other gains and
losses and other operating income. Exchange loss arising
from operating activities and changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments were reclassified from administrative
expenses to other gains and losses while loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment was reclassified from other
operating expenses to other gains and losses to conform with
the current year’s presentation for better presentation. The
reclassifications have no impact on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2007.
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PRC Auditor’s Report
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o = S U7 HH R TIRAT 8 &5 | WA HIK: +86(010)65542288
ERFIeIRE e | CRTAMK N ‘
BHKE AR B telephone: +86(010)65542288
S z 9th Floor, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion
hi}’le OL}iﬁ} S . . No.8, Chao Yang Men Bei Da Jie, LE: +86(010)6554 7190
hineWing Dong Cheng District, facsimile: +86(010)6554 7190
certified public accountants Beijing, 100027, P.R.China

ALL SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements (consolidated
and company) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Xinhua Pharmaceutical”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
Dec. 2009, and the income statement, and cash flow statement, and
statement of changes in shareholder’s equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s management is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the People’s Republic of China. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with China’s Auditing Standards for the Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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PRC Auditor’s Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
comply with the requirements of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China and present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Xinhua Pharmaceutical as at 31 Dec.2009, and the
results of operations and cash flows of Xinhua Pharmaceutical for the
year then ended.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountant, PRC Lang Zheng
Certified Public Accountant, PRC Zhang Xinwei
Beijing, PRC
9 April 2010

| 165



SHREBATAEERB/R

o (R EI S 5 2RI H)
conSOIIdated and the company,s Balance Sheet (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting)

Elr N\EBT

Unit: RMB
& BAR
Consolidated The Company
2009%12A31A 2008127318 200912A31H 2008127318
BE ki Balance at the Balance at the Balance at the Balance at the
Assets Notes end of the year  beginning of the year end of the year  beginning of the year
RHEE: Current assets
BHES Cash and Cash equivalents 81 401,894,294.64 238,124,321.03 297,108,985.14 195,090,080.99
RHUEBEE Held-for-trade financial assets - - = -
ENER Notes receivable 82 118,688,908.68 82,743,811.99 94,619,427.13 75,160,033.26
e Accounts receivable 8-3 155,210,724.53 206,778,423.86 237,065,863.34 256,925,926.86
Bft3E Advances to suppliers 84 25,579,444.11 35,865,418.65 14,468,555.39 14,756,272.43
o) Interest receivable - il i =
R A Dividend receivable - — _ _
el Other receivables 85 15,062,571.54 15,623,193.15 98,706,970.43 24,483,887.80
RE Inventories 86 344,219,424.06 304,514,308.52 215,864,663.28 201,914,101.83
—ERE B FEREEE  Non-current assets due within one year = - - -
ERBAE Other current assets - - _ =
THEESH Sub-Total current assets 1,060,655,367.56 883,649,477.20 957,834,464.71 768,330,303.17
FRBEE: Non-current assets
TELESREE Available-for-sale Financial Assets 87 201,595,788.00 94,766,950.00 201,595,788.00 94,497,400.00
BERISRE Held-to-maturity investment - - - —
KRR Long-term receivable - — - _
RERERE Long-term equity investment 88 29,762,651.63 27,489,044.33 251,116,354.20 201,914,628.68
REHREHE Investment property 89 36,694,420.53 — 36,604,420.53 —
ETEE Fixed assets 810 961,550,060.78 955,853,848.53 792,722,287.08 862,059,705.23
FEIR Construction in progress 811 134,355,522.37 88,205,679.79 51,607,215.47 57,425,955.46
194 Construction materials = = = =
TEERE Disposal of fixed assets = - - _
EERENEE Biological assets - _ - _
BREE Oil and nature gas - — - _
BYEE Intangible assets 812 198,529,537.76 110,738,399.27 173,153,688.11 108,732,638.48
BEYH Research & Development cost - — = —
B2 Goodwil - - _ _
REGEER Long-term prepayments - b - _
EEFEHEE Deferred tax assets 813 3,043,702.75 1,030,919.57 - -
EtEneaE Other non-current assets - - L i
FEBRESH Sub-Total non-current assets 1,565,531,69282 127808484149  _1506:889,762.39 _1.319630327.85
BEMH Total Assets 2i626‘187|060.38 —2i161 ,734,318.69 2I464i724I227'10 &087,960,631 02
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EHERBRARNEEAGER (H)

(REFESEHERHS)

- . -
(e (i Avsasbnes il FRS Asssuring Consolidated and the Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)

Bl A\RET
Unit: RMB
& BAR
Consolidated The Company
2009%12831R 2008E12A431H 2009%12A318 2008%12A31H
AENREER i Balance at the Balance at the Balance at the Balance at the
Liabilities & Shareholders’ equity Notes end of the year  beginning of the year end of the year  beginning of the year
piod -1 Current liabilities
BEEX Short-term loans 815 124,024,000.00 284,474,500.00 124,024,000.00 284,094,500.00
THELRER held-for-trade financial liabilties 816 - 7,591,083.73 - 7,379,442.43
I ESH notes payable 817 121,835,200.00 121,265,800.00 123,835,200.00 121,265,800.00
EES Accounts payable 818 162,127,184.39 133,824,183.65 106,343,946.93 100,429,192.00
L0 Advances for customers 819 22,854,924.10 6,935,628.53 1,211,751.24 2,837,038.09
ERBTEH Employees’ wage payable 820 70,744,877.94 32,196,663.53 69,413,599.36 31,279,033.45
EXHE Tax payable 8- 21 (176,209.49) 453,194.93 7,034,298.47 1,191,765.24
ERFIE Interest payable 822 346,995.00 = 346,995.00 -
ERTRA Dividends payable 823 5,832,005.43 5,325,136.26 5,832,005.43 5,325,136.26
EEMNR Other accounts payable 824 114,735,524.51 78,458,681.40 52,377,425.50 71,808,474.75
—FRE B non-current assets within one year
FRBak - - - _
EtrBak other current liabiliies - - _ _
RORESH Sub-Total current liabilities 622,324,501.88 §70,524 872,03 496,479,221.93 £25,610,382.22
FRDAR: Non-current liabilities
EHER Long-term borrowings 825 270,000,000.00 = 270,000,000.00 =
R ER Bonds payable - _ _ _
REER Long-term payables - - - _
EREMH Specific payables — _ _ _
B RE Provisions » _ _ B
ELFREHAE Deferred tax liabilities 826 9,681,132.01 650,100.07 9,681,132.01 650,100.07
AtudEnEak Other non-current liabilities 827 54,217,887.00 3,561,500.00 54,217,887.00 3,561,500.00
ERBEBESH Sub-total of non-current liabilities 333|899|°19'01 4.211,600.07 333i899|01 9,01 4.211,600.07
fEaH Total liabilities 956,223,520.89 §74.736.472.10 830,378,246.94 £20,821,982.29
REHES: Shareholders’ equity
& Capital 828 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
BEARE Capital reserve 829 709,600,600.67 617,502,733.62 709,119,869.90 618,086,240.10
o ERR Less: Treasury stock - - - -
BHAE Surplus reserve 830 177,198,800.73 167,309,492.08 176,536,259.42 166,646,950.77
RAEHE Undistributed profits 831 289,195,107.14 210,690,983.71 291,377,020.84 216,092,627.86
NERRNEEE Exchange difference arising from
transaction of financial statements
denominated in foreign currencies 338,507.81 436,951.95 = —
BERBLRRE Sub-Total shareholders’ equity
a8k attributable to the parent company 1,633,645,846.35 1,453,252,991.36 1,634,345,980.16 1,458,138,648.73
DHRRESR Minority Interest 832 36,317,693.14 33,744,855.23 - =
REERAH Total shareholders’ equity 1,669,963,539.49 1,486,997,846.59 1,634,345,980.16 1,458,138,648.73
AENBEERMH  Total liabilities & shareholders’ equity 2626,187,06038 216173431869 246472422710  _2,087,960,631.02
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SR & QTR AR

(R EI S 5 2RI H)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting)

Consolidated and the Company’s Income Statement

Bf;: \RET
Unit; RMB
BAR
Consolidated The Company
20095 20085 2009£ 5 20085
EH Vi3 Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the
Item Notes current term previous term current term previous term
— BRE8KA Total Operating Income 2,321,927,213.25  2,096,963,709.91 1,559,301,197.63  1501,371,154.5
B BEWA Operating Income 8233 282192721325  2,096963,700.91  1,559,301,197.63  1501,371,154.25
. BR4EX Total Operating Costs 2,201,519,54059 204373273451  1,450,005517.18  1,456,666,012.19
H: BERA Operating Costs 833 1,877,427,603.27 180421457865  1,230,780,642.20  1,312,006,980.07
EEHER Business taxes and surcharges
it in 834 13,546,175.14 9,656,432.59 11,427,740.21 8,452,551.39
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 122,921,177.72 99,500,079.47 30,435,284.46 26,893,227.17
EEER Administrative expenses 159,579,455.09 117,404,414.35 133,230,876.27 98,312,577.56
HBER Financial expenses 835 26,777,339.32 8,464,601.59 26,300,206.79 7,497,096.10
BERERK Impairment loss of assets 836 1,267,790.05 4,492,627.86 (88,322.84) 3,503,579.90
n: 2rER Add: Gain or Loss from changes
Elen in fair value 837 7,501,083.73 (23,487,816.58) 7,379,442.43 (23,276,175.28)
fEWs Investment gain or loss 838 7,910,733.39 6,649,200.78 9,911,920.58 6,756,827.30
Heb o HBEM2M Including: Gain or loss from
LEpE investment in associates
REYE and joint ventures 4,911,640.58 2,118,782.49 4,911,640.58 2,118782.49
= BEHE Operating profit 135,909,489.78 36,392,359.60 126,497,043.46 28,185,794.08
M BEHKA  Add: Non-operating income 839 6,808,717.69 20,194,290.81 6,178,300.64 15,483,918.53
B BESRE  Lesss  Non-operating expenses 840 23,344,329.26 10,546,464.19 22,323,342.80 9,967,306.40
Em: EREBEE  Including: Gain or loss on disposal of
REBX non-current assets 19,605,908.29 7,012,331.52 19,413,164.47 6,979,566.18
m, flEdE Total profit 119,373,878.21 46,040,186.22 110,352,091.30 33,702,406.21
W FGHBE  Less.  Income tax expense 8+ 41 13,436,120.20 6,368,585.79 11,459,004.77 3,187,385.56
I 398 Net profit 105,937,758.01 30,671,600.43 98,893,086.53 30,515,020.65
SENERATRE Nt profit attributable to equity holder
Oedilbe] of the company 102,244,346.19 33,965,477.41 - -
DEBREER Net profit attributable to minority shareholder 3,693,411.82 5,706,123.02 - =
n BRES Earnings per share 842
(=) EAgRk: Basic earing per share 0.22 0.07 0.22 0.07
(2) BESRKE Diluted earning per share 0.22 0.07 0.22 0.07
t. RtRakE Other comprehensive income 843 91,210,640.55 (232,658,362.30) 91,033,629.80 (232,159,560.75)
N GaLEKRE Total of comprehensive incomes 197,148,398.56 (192,986,761.87) 189,926,716.33 (201,644,540.10)
SBREATRELN Total of comprehensive incomes attrioutable
Geknen to the owners of the parent company 193,403,969.35 (198,629,506.80) - =
SENDERES  Total comprehensive income attributable
GRelzes to the minority shareholders 3,744,429.21 5,642,744.93 - =
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EHRBRAARERER

(R{E R ERTHERIEH) .
Fremaies) i AeseEnes wilh FRS Assauing) Consolidated and the Company’s Cash Flow Statement

B A\RET
Unit: RMB
A BLH
Consolidated The Company
2009F § 20085 20005 20085
HB Notes Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the
Item h# current year previous year current year previous term
- BEEDEEN CASH FLOWS FROM
Heng: OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BEBER  RESHE  Cash receipts from the sale of
belkok goods or rendering of services 1,882,116,301.35  1518,111,74443  1,412,431,654.00  1,097,353,218.72
WEHNHERE Receipts of tax refunds 6,348,341.09 7,610,585.97 701,197.24 3,105,906.23
I3 E 4 BB 558 Other cash recelpts relating
FENRS to operating activities 844 73,284,790.46 26,434,855.66 72,673,963.38 43,531,435.35
EEEDESE SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS
A D FROM OPERATING 1,961,749,432.90 1,552,157,186.06 1,485,806,814.62 1,143,990,560.30
BERR ZX4%  Cash payments for goods purchased
IR and senvices received 1,149,762,892.12  1,021,793,233.55 831,862,046.80 714,108,387.41
IREBINER Cash paid to and on behalf
BBILMNES  of employees 220,059,314.04 188,246,534.16 170,983,510.95 164,450,024.74
TRNZEBERE Payments of all types of taxes 107,050,624.76 94,862,865.66 81,402,605.24 78,248,749.97
SAEMEEZSES  Other cash payments relating
BENRE to operating activities 8+ 44 140,080,710.21 143,775,192.91 76,645,030.16 181,533,832.08
BEEDESG SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS
ol ACTIVITIES 1,616,953,541.13 1,448,677,826.28 1,160,893,193.15 1,088,340,994.20
BEEDEER NET CASH FLOWS FROM
HeRgERg OPERATING ACTIVITIES 344,795,891.77 108,479,359.78 324,913,621.47 55,649,566.10
. REZHEEM  CASHFLOWS FROM
HaRg: INVESTING ACTIVITIES
WE%ENEINHES  Cash receipts from disposals of investments 568,800.00 6,500,000.00 - -
MEREUEE  Cash receipts from retums on investments
iopEn 2,999,092.81 4,048,099.29 5,000,280.00 4,638,044.81

REETEE EF  Net cash receipts from disposals of

EEMEMREEE fixed assets, intangible assets and

WEHELFE other long-term assets 1,048,158.33 1,978,823.00 1,040,158.33 1,978,823.00
REFRAARAML  Net cash receipts form

BEEAEIN disposals of subsidiaries

ReFE and other business units = - - _
IRBI £ 46844758 Other cash receipts relating

L lakika to investing activities - - - _
REEDES SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS

EADH FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 4,616,051.14 12,526,922.29 6,040,438.33 6,616,867.81

BRETEE EF Cash payments to acquire or construct

BENAMRS  fixed assets, intangible assets and

BESNNES other long-term assets 244,559,774.77 162,326,024.71 161,971,679.40 101,035,819.87
#EZHHES  Cash payments to acquire investments 636,600.00 13,972,368.00 46,840,084.94 67,972,368.00
RETARAREM  Net cash payments for acquisition

BEEN T of subsidiaries and other business units

Re5E - — - _
SATEM K EEE  Other cash payments relating to

BENRe investing activities - - 80,000,000.00 -
REEDRS SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS

pidufih) FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 245,196,374.77 176,208,392.71 288,811,764.34 169,008,187.87
BAEHEEM  NET CASH FLOWS FROM

ReRRRA INVESTING ACTIVITIES (240,580,323.63)  (163,771470.42)  (282,771,326.01)  (162,391,320.06)
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EHEBRATRERER (H)

(RIEFEI S 5 2RI H)

Consolidated and the Company’s Cash Flow Statement (continued) (Prepared in Accordance with PRG Accounting)

Bf;: \RET
Unit: RMB
af NG
Consolidated The Company
20095 200858 2009 K 20085
HH Notes Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the Amount of the
Item k3 current year previous year current year previous term
= EEEHEER CASH FLOWS FROM
Rene: FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RIRREWEI S Cash receipts from investors 2,431,812.60 - = —
Eed o FRAME  Including: Cash receipts from the
PERR shareholders of subsidiaries
REWE
i} 2,431,812.60 - = =
BEEZWEIMES  Cash receipts from borrowings 356,288,372.73 439,408,667.35 350,086,500.00 417,539,000.00
WEHEMBEEEE Other cash receipts relating
ABRTS to financing activities = = - -
EEEDRS SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS
i N v FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 358,720,185.33 439,408,667.35 350,086,500.00 417,539,000.00
[BEEBIMMEE  Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 246,738,872.73 358,902,617.40 240,157,000.00 297,539,000.00
SEMRA - FIEs  Cash payments for distribution of
LEST dividends or profits, or cash payments
bk for interest expenses 34,317,082.43 31,634,797.24 32,068,653.86 31,428,379.96
He: FAERA  Including: Cash payments to the minority
PYREL shareholders for distrioution
A - 7B of dividends or profits 1,996,000.00 206,417.28 - =
TEMBEETE Other cash payments relating
Gl kb to financing activities o = - -
EEEDRS SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS
bid i) 281,055,955.16 390,637,414.64 272,225,653.86 328,967,379.96
EUEMESM  NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
BeREPH  ACTIVITIES 77,664,230.17 48,871,252.71 77,860,846.14 88,571,620.04
m, E£EHHRLR  EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
HeSENHMHE  RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,148,201.29) (4,745,082.69) (1,022,614.04) (4,516,020.94)
5. RERAGSEM  NETINCREASE IN CASH AND
b3 piit ] CASH EQUIVALENTS 180,731,597.02 (16,165,890.62) 118,980,527.56 (22,686,154.86)
m: #WA%E4%  Add:  Beginning balance of cash
BEZEN and cash equivalents
Xl 183,666,637.62 199,832,528.24 140,632,397.58 163,318,552.44
N BRASRAS ENDING BALANCE OF CASH AND
ERNBE CASH EQUIVALENTS 364,398,234.64 183,666,637.62 259,612,925.14 140,632,397.58
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SOHRRER D E R

(REFESEHERHS)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

2009 ESHRRERBBR
£ \EBT
Unit: RMB
%R BERBLEMEZNG SHEREE RERSLH
Item Total
Minority ~ Shareholder's
Equity attributable to the company Interests Equity
Share Capital Less: Treasury Special Surplus General  Undistributed
capital reserve stock reserves reserves  risk provision profits Others
k% RE0B W EER SRR BRLR -BERER  ARENR i
- LEEXBE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00 617,502,733.62 - — 167,309,492.08 — 210,690,983.71 436951.95  33,744,855.23 1,486,997,846.59
m: EHAREE Add: Efects of the changes
in accounting policies = = = - - - - - — -
HBEEEE Effects of the connection of
prior year accounting errors = = = o S - - — - -
. REEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  617,502,733.62 = 167,309,492.08 — 21069098371 43605195  33,744,855.23 1,486,097 846.59
Z FERASDEN Increase/decreased in the year —92,007,867.05 = — 9,889,308.65 —  78,504,123.43 (9844414 257283791 182,965,692.90
(=) B8 I Net profit - - = - - — 102,244,346.19 — 369341182 105937,758.01
(2) Ethizaha Il Other comprehensive income —  91,258,067.30 = - - - - (98,444.14) 51,017.39  91,210,640.85
Fi(=)M(Z)/Nst Subtotal of Iand I —  91,268,067.30 N - - — 102,244,346.19 (98,444.14)  3,744,429.21  197,148,398.56
(2) BREAR fIl" Shareholder's contrioution
BOER capital and decrease in capital — 83979975 - - - - - — 05541285 1,795.212.60
1. BRRAER a. Shareholder's contribution
capital - - - - - - - — 193822272 1938222.72
2. BRZAHA . share based payments
RRERH record in reserve
&% = = S = = = - - -
3 Ett ¢. Others - 839,799.75 - - - - - = (982,809.87)  (143,010.12)
(m) FIEIE IV Profits distribution - - - — 9,889,308.65 —  (23,740,222.76) —  (2127,004.15) (15977,918.26)
1, REEBLE a. Transfer to surplus reserves - - - — 0,889,308.65 —(9,889,308.65) o - -
2. RE-RER b. Transfer to general
Ef risk provision — — — - — — - = = =
3. HREHAR ¢. Distribution to shareholders - - - - - — (18,719,384.90) = (1,996,000.00) (15,715,384.90)
4 Eff d. Others = = = = = —  (131,52021) — (13100415 (262533.36)
(R) REBEABLE V  Transfer to intemal
shareholders' equity = = = = - — — — —
1, BRLRER a. Capital reserve to capital
ER(GHE) (Share capital) — — — - — — - = = =
2. BRLRES b. Surplus reserves to capital
R (ARE) (Share capital) - - - = = = = = = 4
3 BROERA ¢. Making good of loss
ER with surplus reserves . . - - - - - - - —
4 Kt d. Others - - - - = - = = = =
() EREH VI Specal reserves = = = - - - = = = -
1. KERE a. Transfer for the year - - - - - - = = = -
2 KERER . Utiisation of the year - - - - - = - = = =
M. *EERBE Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  709,600,600.67 - — 177,198,800.73 — 289,195,107.14 338,607.81  36,317,693.14 1,669,963,539.49
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EHRRERSB R (H)

(RIEFEI S 5 2RI H)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting)

2008 FEAHRRERBBR
£ \EBT
Unit: RMB
%R BERBLRMAEZNG SHERNEE REEEAH
ltem Minority Total of
Interests  Shareholder's
Equity attributable to the company Equity
Share Capital Less: Treasury Special Surplus General  Undistributed
capital reserve stock reserves reserves  risk provision profits Others
k% LN W HER SRR BRAR -BERER  ARENR R
- LEEXBE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 - — 164,267,990.01 — 193,496,393.27 647,937.91  50,793,103.89 1,716,754,055.93
n: EHBREE Add: Effects of the changes
in accounting policies = = = = = = — - — —
HBEEEE Effects of the connection of
prior year accounting errors = = = = = - - — — -
Z XEENRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,83000  850,245,800.85 = —164,257,990.01 — 19349630827  647,037.91 50,793,103.89 1,716,754,085.93
Z ERREDRT Increase/decreased in the year — (232,743,067.23) - —  3,051,502.07 —  17,194,590.44 (210,985.96)  (17,048,248.66) (229,756,209.34)
(=) #HE I Netproft o - - = = — 3398547741 — 570612302 39,671,60043
(2) Ethizaha Il Other comprehensive income — (232,383,998.25) - - - - - (210,985.96) (63,378.09) (232,658,362.30)
Fi(=)R(Z)/Nst Subtotal of Iand I — (232,383,998.25) - - - — 3396547741 (210,985.96)  5,642,744.93 (192,986,761.87)
(2) RERAR fIl" Shareholder's contribution capital
AR and decrease in capttal —  (339,068.99) = - - . - — (22484576.31) (22,843,645.29)
1. BRRRAER a. Shareholder's contribution
capita - - - - - - - — (2.484576.31) (2248457631
2. BBEEHA b. share based payments
REER record in reserve
HeE - - = = - = = - - -
8 o ¢. Others —  (359,068%8) = = = = = = - (390889
(m) FIEIE IV Profits distribution - - - 3,051,502.07 — (16,770,886.97) = (206,417.28)  (13,925,802.18)
1. REBBAE a. Transfer o surplus reserves - - - —  3051,502.07 —  (3,051,502.07) - - -
2. RB-RER b, Transfer to general risk
R provision = = - - — — - - = =
3. HREHAR ¢ Distrioution to shareholders = - - - - — (18,719,384.90) = (206417.08 (13,925,802.18)
4, £t d. Others . - - - - - - - — —
(2) REEEABEE V  Transfer to intemal
shareholders’ equity = = = = - — — — — —
1, BRLRER a. Capital reserve to captal
ER(IRA) (Share capital) = - — 4 - o i i a B
2. BRLRES b, Surplus reserves to capial
AR (RE) (Share capital) - - - - = = = = = -
3 BRLBER ¢. Making good of loss with
Bl surplus reserves - - - - = = - = = =
4, Efh d. Others - - - = = — - - = -
(X) EEEE VI Special reserves = = - - — — - - -
1. RERE a. Transfer for the year - - - - - - = = = -
2. KERR b. Utilisation of the year - - - - = = = = = =
W FEERBE Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00 617,502,733.62 - — 167,309,492.08 — 210,690,983.71 436951.95  33,744,855.23 1,486,997,846.59
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SENEINE R $ay X

(R 15 Bl & SHE B R ) : .
Fieeaied (i Avserdanes wiith FRG Aseauiing The Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

2009 EBATIRRESBE =R
£ \FET
Unit: RMB
Total
Share Capital ~ Less: treasury Special Surplus General risk Undistributed ~ shareholders’
Item capital reserves stock reserves reserves provision profits equity
HA k* LI W EER E3y] ] ERLR -RERRER FARHA REdgai
- LEERBE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00  618,086,240.10 - —  166,646,950.77 — 21600262786 145813864873
M:8HREEE  Add: Eflects of the changes
in accounting policies - — — — — - — _
AMEEEE Effects of the connection of prior
year accounting errors = = s _ _ _ _ _
Z O REEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  618,086,240.10 - —  166,646,950.77 —  216092,627.86 1,458,138,648.73
S KEBASHAE  Increase/decreased in the year —  01,033,629.80 = —  0889,30865 — 75843098 17620733143
(-) #iA | Netpoft . - - - = — GBI 96A9306683
(z) EfAlE I Other comprehensive income - 91,033,629.80 - - = = — 9103362080
Fi(=)R(Z) et Subtotal of [and I = 91,033,629.80 = S — - 98,893,08653  189,926,716.33
(2) RERAR Il Shareholder's contribution
BOER capital and decrease
in capital - - = — _ _ _ _
1. RERAER  a  Shareholder's
contribution capital = - - = — _ _ =
2. Rxf b, share based payments
HARR record In reserve
EneE = = - _ _ _ _ _
3 it ¢ Others = = = - _ _ _ _
(m) HEAE V- Profts distibution = = = — 0889,30865 — (360869355  (13719,384.90)
1. RREHDE a. Transfer o surplus
resnes - - - — 9EBEs - penss) -
2 RO-RER b, Tranfer to general
EE risk provision = - _ _ _ o _ B
3 HERHAR ¢ Distribution to
shareholders - - - - - —  (13719,38490)  (13,719,38490)
4 Eft d. Others = - _ _ _ _ _ B
(B) REBEABEE V Transfer to intemal
sharenolders’ equity - — — — — — _ _
1. BRnEE a.  Capital resenve o
BER captal (Share capital)
(k%) - - = = _ = _ -
2. BHORER b, Surplus reserves o
A (GRE) capltal (Share capita) - - = - _ _ _ l
3. BRORRER ¢. Making good of loss with
B surplus reserves — = - _ _ _ _ _
4 Efp d. Others = - = - — _ _ _
() SEEE VI Special reserves - - - = — _ _ -
1. AERE a. Transfer for the year - - - - _ - - a
2 KEER b, Utiisation of the year - — - _ _ _ - .
B F$EERBH Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  709,119,869.90 - —  176,536,269.42 —  291377,02084  1,634,345,980.16
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BRAARREZSE R (A)

(RIEFEI S 5 2RI H)

The Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting)

2008 EEBAFRRESEDHR
B \RET
Unit: RMB
Total
Share Capital ~ Less: treasury Special Surplus General risk Undistributed ~ shareholders’
Item capital reserves stock reserves reserves provision profits equity
%A k* RELR W EER E3y] | ERLR -RERRER FARHA REdgai
- LEERBH Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 - —  163,595448.70 — 20234849418 1,673502,573.73
M:&HHEEE  Add: Effects of the changes in
accounting policies — - — - _ _ _ _
WEEEEE Effects of the connection of prior
year
accounting errors = = - _ ol _ _ _
OREEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 - —  163,595448.70 — 20234849418 1,673,502,573.73
Z FERREDLE Increase/decreased in the year —  (232,159,560.75) - = 3,051,502.07 — 1374413368 (215,363,925.00)
() #HA I MNetproft - - = = = — 550065 3051502065
(Z) EfeiAkE I Other comprehensive income = (282,159,560.75 = = - - — 315056075
CLCIAE 3 Sublnalofad AR - - = — 008 (0165010
(2) RRBAR Il Shareholder's contribution
BOER capital and decrease
in capital - — = _ _ _ _ 7
1. BREREAZR  a Sharcholder's
contribution capital = - - = - _ _ _
2. RAZAIA b, share based payments
hRERS record in reserve
£ | - = = - _ _ _ _
3 Hfp ¢. Others — = — _ _ - _ _
(m) FEAE N Profsdistouton - - - — 30050207 — (1677088697 (137193840
1. BREBAE  a Transfertosumplus
reserves - - - = 3,051,502.07 - (3,061,502.07) -
2 RO-RER b. Transfer to general
£ risk provision - - _ _ - - B B
3 HRRHAR ¢. Distrioution to
shareholders - - - o - - (13,719,384.90)  (13,719,384.90)
4, Efy d. Others — = _ o _ . Y _
(R) REEEAPESE V Transfer to intemel
shareholders" equity = — - = = — — _
1. ARQREH a. Capital reserve to
v capital (Share capital)
(k) - - — = . . = _
2. BHLEE b, Surplus reserves to
AR capital (Share capita)
(k%) - - — = £ — — _
3 BHAEEH o Making good of loss
Eig with surplus reserves - - - — - _ _ -
4, Hft d. Others - - - - - _ _ B
(%) BBRE VI Special reserves — — = - _ B _ _
1 KERR a. Transfer for the year = = - B r s _ _
2 FEER b. Utllsation of the year - — — - = o = _
B. 3EEXRH Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  618,086,240.10 = —  166,646,950.77 — 21600260786 145813864873
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIEHES R HER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

LFHEFHER

WEFEHNEROGBRAR (THE
[7ZR 2~ A1) W19934F | 1L 28 5 2 &
28 i ok 1 SR 37 - 1996512 5 AR R F)
WEBAE EME  AFERITHE
AR FEFIBEHRE IR E - 1997F7 A &
ARIAFEIN A LT AT
FEAREMBEARKRRE - 199845
MAKFREARLMBEHINE H K
EAESHER  ERIINFHERER
DA D E > 200149 A &4t 123%
ANR IR 23,0008 A% - [ B R i
B A IR300E % -

H E2009F12A31H » AR A HY5E
MER A ARBEAS7,313F T » B A
Fy -3 N

1.

Background of the Company

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (here-
in-after referred to the “Company”) was established in 1993,
through the reorganization of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Factory. The Company was listed in Hong Kong and issued
its H Shares at Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December
1996 .The company also listed in Shenzhen and issued its
A Shares at Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July 1997. The
Company became a foreign invested joint stock company in
November 1998, with approval from Ministry of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of the People’s Republic China. As
approval, the Company issued additional 30 million ordinary
A shares and decreased 3 million state-owned shares on
September 2001.

The Company’s registered capital at 31st December 2009 is
RMB457.313 million, the structure is as follow:

BB BEE&EE 4.7

Shares Amount Ratio

EX State-owned shares 164,208 164,208 35.91%
MEEAR Legal-person shares 23,578 23,578 5.15%

Restricted tradable

RESER Senior management-held shares 24 24 0.01%
e RH Publicly-held H shares 119,503 119,503 26.13%
e R RAK Publicly-held A shares 150,000 150,000 32.80%
A&t Total 457,313 457,313 100.00%

AABEEREFRE REMHEE
EBRME HERETER -

BIEILREBSBHME - ILERE
BE LWREBERHERD  LRE
A R BERE F[2009] 125 XX
HEHOHE  AAREERES K
fir % o

ARABEMEEILREEET S H
RMEXHAEE(CTR -

The Company is mainly engaged in developing, manufacturing,
selling of bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemicals
products.

According to the Circular “Lu Ke Gao Zi (2009) No. 12~
issued by Shandong Province Science & Technology Bureau,
Shandong Province Financial Bureau, Shandong Province State
Tax Bureau, and Shandong Province Local Tax Bureau, the
Company was accredited as a new and high-tech company .

The Company’s registered address is Chemical Area of Zibo
New and High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Zibo,
Shandong Province.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Basis of the Preparation for Financial
Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
going concern. According to the actually incurred business
transactions and matters, in accordance with (“ASBEs”)
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other
related requirements issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
financial statement have been prepared based on the Significant
Accounting Policies Accountings, Estimates and preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

The Statement of Compliance with the
ASBEs

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the ASBEs, and present
truly and completely, in all material respects, the consolidated
and the Company’s financial position, the operations results as
well as the cash flows.

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation

1) Accounting Year

The fiscal year of the Company is from January 1 to
December 31 of each calendar year.

2) Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is RenminBi (“RMB”).

3) Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis. Except for the held-for-trading
financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets
which measured at their fair value, the principle of
measurement of the Financial Statements is historical
cost.

4) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash in the Cash Flow Statement refers to the
cash-on-hand and those deposits, which are available
for payment at any time. The cash equivalents refer
to short-term (due within 3 months since the date of
purchase) and highly liquidated investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

5) Foreign Currency Transactions
a. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions shall be translated
into RMB according with the spot exchange
rate on the first day of the month, in which the
transactions occurred. At the balance sheet
date, foreign currency monetary items shall be
translated into RMB using the spot exchange
rate on the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising from the differences between
the spot exchange rate prevailing at the balance
sheet date and those spot rates used on initial
recognition or at the previous balance sheet
date are recognized in profit or loss for the
current period, except for those arising from
borrowing in foreign currencies or production of
qualified assets that are eligible for capitalization,
difference related to the principal and interest
on a specific-purpose borrowing denominated in
foreign currency for acquisitions, constructions
or production of the qualified assets, which
capitalized as cost of the related assets. Foreign
currency non-momentary items measured in fair
value are translated using the spot exchange rate
at the date when the fair value was determined.
Differences between the translated amount and
the original amount are accounted for as changes
in fair value and included in profit or loss for the
current period. Foreign currency non-monetary
items measured in historic cost using the spot
exchange rate when the transaction occurred.

b. Translation of Financial Statements Denominated
in Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the spot rate prevailing at the balance sheet
date. The equity items, except for undistributed
profits, are translated at the spot exchange rate
when they occurred. Income and expenses in
the income statement denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the spot exchange
rate at the date of the transactions. The resulting
differences are presented as a separated
component of shareholders’ equity in the balance
sheet. Cash flow dominated in foreign currency
or from the foreign subsidiaries are translated
at the spot rate when occurs. Effects on cash
arising from the change of exchange rate are
presented as separate item in the cash flow
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,

Estimates and

Presentation of consolidated

Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

6) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

a. Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following 4
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
receivables and held-to-maturity investments,
the classification depends on the intention and
economic substance to hold the financial assets.

WRHMERERHERA R

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are with the financial assets
held for short time, and presented in the
balance sheet as held-for-trading financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category upon initial
recognition or not classified under other
categories.

Receivable refers to non-derivative
financial assets for which there is no
quotation in the active market with fixed
or determinable amount. They include
Notes receivable, Accounts receivable,
Interests receivable, Dividends receivable
and other accounts receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments refer to the
non-derivate financial assets with fixed
or determinable recoverable amount and
fixed maturity that the management has
the positive institution and ability to hold
to maturity.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

6) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

b. Recognition and measurement of financial assets

The financial assets are initially recognized at
its fair value. Transaction cost related to the
acquisitions of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is expensed to the profit or
loss as incurred. Transaction costs are included
in the carrying amount of assets at initial
recognition. Financial asset are decongested
when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets expired, or all
the risks and rewards related to the ownership
of a financial assets have been substantively
transferred to the transferee.

After initial recognition, the Company shall
measure the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets at their fair values, while investment in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured shall
be measured at cost. Receivables and held-
to-maturity investments shall be measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in the
gain or loss from changes in fair value. Interests
or cash dividends received during the holding
period are recognized as investment income.
On disposal, the difference between fair value
and initial recognized amount are recognized as
investment income and adjust the gain or loss
from changes in fair value accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

6) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
b. Recognition and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognized in shareholders’ equity.
Interests calculated using the effective interest
method during the holding period is recognized
as investment income. Dividends from available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognized as
investment income when these financial assets
are decongested; the differences between the
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of assets after deducting the accumulated fair
value adjustments are recognized as investment
income.

@ Impairment of financial assets

Except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, the Company shall assess the
book value of financial assets on the balance
sheet date. Provision for impairment loss is
made if there is objective evidence showing
that a financial asset is impaired. When there
is a relatively significant or decline in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated loss that originally recorded
in equity should be recorded as impairment
loss. Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets is reversed through equity
when the fair value subsequently increases as
a result if objective changes in circumstances
occurring after the impairment loss was
originally recognized. Impairment loss on equity
investments that do not have quoted prices in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured is not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

6) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
a. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss include those held-for-trading financial
liabilities and those designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value. The gains
or losses from the change of fair value and the
dividends or interests expenses relating to these
financial liabilities are recognised as profit or loss
for the period.

Other financial liabilities are measurement at
adopt method of actually rate, subsequent
measured in using effective interest method
amortised cost.

7) Accounting for provision for bad debts loss

a) The Company assesses the carrying amount of
receivables at the balance sheet date. Provision
for bad debts is made when the debts may go
into liquidation, bankruptcy; or the debtors have
not enough assets to distinguish its liabilities;
or have severe short fall of cash; or there are
serve natural disaster that leading the debtors
to suspense their operations and unable to
settle the debts in the foreseeable period; or the
debtors let the payment overdue in settlement
of debts or other evidences showing that the
amounts, will not or probably be able to recover.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

7) Accounting for provision for bad debts loss
(continued)
b) Bad debt losses are accounted for using the

allowance method. Provisions for bad debts are
made on an aging basis at the end of recognised
and in the income statement. When there is
evidence showing that the amount is made to be
recovered, it is written off against the allowance
accounted for receivable after the Company’s
approval procedures has been completed. No
provision for bad debts is generally made for
receivable from related parties.

c) The Company regards the balance over RMB5
million as individually significant receivable.
When there is objective evidence indicating the
amounts can not be recovered according to
the original term, provision for bad debts are
assessed on an individual lased and calculated
as the excess of its carrying amount over the
present of the estimated future cash flow.

The individually in-significant receivables and
those having not been individually assessed as
impaired receivable are assessed collectively
on the basis of aging analysis. Provision for
bad debts is made based on their historic loss
experience and adjusted by the observative
figures reflecting present economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RIEPES R HER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

N, EEGHNE FHEHA 4

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,

EHHMEERRDERS Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
(4&) Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)
7. BRFREEBEARZRES & 7) Accounting for provision for bad debts loss
(&) (continued)
7.3 (&) c) (continued)
U I R E 5T Provision for bad debts loss shall be made as
REHIR follows:
R &t iR EE 6 %
Aging Provision %
—F LR Less than one year 0.5%
—E 4 1-2 years 20%
SBSEE 2-3 years 60%
=FUE Over 3 years 100%
8. FEBMEERE 8) Inventories
81 FHFEDH: a) Classification of inventories

FEITZEHERM
a8k KES
Fm -  EEM EX
fn AT B an

Inventories mainly include raw materials,
packaging materials, low-value consumables
work-in-process, finished products and goods in
stock.

82 FEREREFEREERL - b) Measurement of receiving inventories
BARMEIAEEM Raw materials are stated at the cost of purchase
B EKH RBRE price plus freight, loading and unloading charges,
BRERERKA and insurance premiums. The cost of self-made
B &4 5K m A E K semi-products and finished products include
ABLERAEBIES various expenditures actually incurred during
BEMSHEERI D production.

ERBBRAA

c) Measurement of issuing inventories
8.3 HFEIMAEHERZ -
The valuation of raw materials, self-made semi-
ERAMEERME products and finished products is made on a
B 8B G M E K & weighted-average basis when they are shipped
AT EZE - and sold.
84 IEEZHRREEY d) Low-value- consumables and packaging
1E R — KB 5 materials are expensed as incurred.
AR »
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

8) Inventories (continued)

e) Principle of measurement of doing inventories
and provision for decline in value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
or net realisable value. At the end of the
period, provision for the decline in the value
of inventories is made if the inventories are
damaged, become partially or completely
obsolete or are sold at a price lower than cost.
The provisions for finished goods and large-
amount raw materials are made on the excess of
their costs over their lower net realisable values
on an item-by-item basis. Other inventories items
are assessed on collective basis.

f) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of goods-in-stock, work-
in-progress or held-for-sale raw materials are
determined by their estimated sales less the
related selling expenses and taxes. Net realisable
value for raw material for held for production
are determined by the estimated selling price
of finished goods less the estimated cost to
completion, selling expenses and taxes. Net
realisable value of inventories held for contracts
or rending of service are determined on the
basis of the carrying amount of the contracts.
Net realisable value of inventories in excess of
the contracted quantity is determined by their
general selling price.
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

9) Long-term equity Investments
a. Classification of Long-term Investments

Long-term Investments mainly include the
investments investee over which the Company
can exercise control, joint control or can exercise
significant influence as well as those that do
not have quoted prices in an active market and
whose fair value can not be reliably determined
and over which the Company can not exercise
control, joint control or exercise significant
influence.

The term “Joint control” refers to the control
over an economic activity in accordance with the
contracts and agreements. The determination of
joint control is based on the fact that there is no
unilateral control over the operating activities of
the entity. The decision relating to the operations
must be made by all parties’ unanimous
agreement. Significant influences refers to the
rights to participate in making decisions on the
financial and operating policies of an enterprise,
but not to control or jointly control together with
other parties the formulation of these policies.
The existence of significant influence mainly
based on whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries held more than 20% (including 20%)
and less than 50% is held in the investee’s voting
shares. If there is no evidence showing that the
Company has no rights take part in the decision
of the investee’s operating decision, it will not
constitute significant influence.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

9) Long-term equity Investments (continued)
b. Initial Measurement of Long-term Equity
Investment

The initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment acquired through a business
combination involving an enterprise under
common control is the carrying amount of the
owners’ equity of the party being absorbed at
combination date. The initial investment cost of
the long-term equity investment acquired through
a business combination but not involving an
enterprise under common control shall be the
aggregate cost of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity securities issued as
consideration of business combination on the
acquisition date.

Apart from the long-term equity investment
acquired through a business combination as
mentioned above, the initial investment cost
of a long-term equity investment acquired by
payment of cash shall be the actual purchase
price that has been paid, that includes those
costs, taxes and other necessary expenditures
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
long-term equity investment; For a long-term
equity investment acquired by the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost shall be the
fair value of the securities issued; For a long-term
equity investment invested by an investor, the
initial investment cost shall be value stipulated
in the investment contract or agreement; For a
long-term equity investment acquired through
an exchange of non-monetary assets or debt
restricting transaction, the initial investment cost
shall be determined in accordance with relevant
accounting standards.
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

9) Long-term equity Investments (continued)
@& Subsequent Measurement of Long-term Equity
Investment

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
using the cost method and adjusted by the equity
method with the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Investments in joint ventures
and associates are accounted for using the
equity method. Investments, where the Company
does not have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee and the investment is
not quoted in an active market and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, shall be accounted
for using the cost method. Long-term equity
investment where the Company does not have
control, joint control or significant influence, but
the investment is quoted in an active market
and its fair value can be reliably measured are
accounted as available-for-sale financial assets.

When applying the equity method, the investment
gain or loss for the period represents the Group’s
share of the net profits or losses made by the
investee for the current period. The Company
recognises its share of the investee’s net profits
or losses based on the fair value of the investee’s
individual separately identifiable assets at the
acquisition date, the adjustments to align the
accounting policies and accounting period of
the Company, unrealised profit or loss resulting
from the Company and the associates and joint
venture are eliminated for the attributable to the
Company based on its share in the investee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

9) Long-term equity Investments (continued)

a. Switching of cost method and equity method

The company will convert to use the cost method
for Long-term investment measured using the
equity method will change to cost method when
the share of equity in the investee decreases so
that the Company has no longer joint control or
significant influence over the investee and there
is no quoted prices in an active market for the
investments and whose fair value can not be
measured reliably when the Company has ability
to exercise control over the investee due to such
reasons as increase in investment. For the Long-
term equity investments over which the Company
has gained joint control, but not full control,
due to such reasons as increase in investment
or when the Company has no longer has the
ability to exercise control but has the ability to
exercise joint control or significant influence over
the investee due to such reasons as disposal of
investment, the measurement will change from
cost method to equity method.

e. Disposal of Long-term Investments

On disposal of Long-term investment, the
difference between the carrying value of the
investments is recorded as investment gain or
loss. For the Long-term investments using the
equity method, the share of owners’ equity other
than profit or loss, of the investee included in the
owner’s equity of the Company will be transferred
to reckon into owners’ equity as a result of
other change of investee owners’ equity except
net profit. If the company deals the investment,
investment gain or loss reckon into the period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

10) Investment properties

Investment properties for the period including rented
land use right and rented buildings.

Investment properties are initially measured at initial
cost. The cost of Investment properties purchased
includes purchasing price, tax, and other expenses
directly related to the assets. The cost of Investment
properties constructed by the Company itself is the
cost of construction incurred to bring the assets to its
intended usage condition.

Investment properties are subsequently measured by
cost model. Depreciation is provided to investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimate residual value,
using straight-line basis. The expected usage life of
the investment properties, the net residual value rate

B RmT and the annual depreciation (amortisation) rates of the
investment properties are as follows:
) WEEM(E) FHBEE(%) FEIHWE (%)
Annual
Estimated residual depreciation rate
Types Depreciable life value rate (%) (%)
4 b {5 A X HEFR 0 —
Land use right Benefit from the transfer of life
B EZEY 20%F 5 4.75
Building & house 20 years

EREMEMENRTRNE
SERE AANRECBRE -
BZEENEEERAER
TEESRIVEE - ARAE

SE AR ER RIS R
Al HEEEEREYE
EWRARALEHE - ¥
AT - LU R A IR
A {E A a0 AR (S -

When the usage of the investment properties is changed
to own-used, they will be accounted for as fixed assets
or intangible assets from the date of change. When the
usage of own-used properties change to held for rental
income or for capital appreciation, the properties will
be accounted for from fixed assets or intangible assets
to investment properties from the date of change. The
carrying amount of the assets immediately before the
change will be adopted as the cost immediately after the
change.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

10) Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are derecognised on disposal
or retirement that these shall be no economic benefit
after disposal. When the investment properties are sold,
transferred, scraped or changed, the proceeds received
after deducting their carrying amount and related taxes
are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

11) Fixed Assets
a) Recognition of Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets with useful lives
of more than one accounting year, and held for
use in the production goods, rending of services,
for rental, or for administrative purposes and it is
probable that economic benefits associated with
the assets will flow to the Company; and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably.

b) Classification of Fixed assets

Fixed assets include house & buildings,
machinery & equipment, vehicles and office
equipment and other equipment.

c) Measurement of Fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at actual
cost of acquisition, among which, the cost of a
purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase
price VAT, import, related taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the assets to
working condition for its intended use. The cost
of self-constructed fixed asset comprises those
expenditures necessarily incurred for bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended
use. The cost of a fixed asset invested by an
investor are determined in accordance with the
value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement, except where the value stipulated
in the contract or agreement is not fair in this
case fair value issued. The cost of a fixed assets
acquired by finance lease are the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at the
commencement of the lease term.

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited



2B 36 AR I S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUA R T IR

Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000

RIEHES R HER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

M, EERHEE WEEHT
EHMBERNEE S
(%)

1. EBEEHREE)
114 B TEEWERE -

BRoeRERNEDES
ERAMBEEEE A
RAYMBERBREEE
FHRTE -RHIRITE
BRBERFHE
NERTERZE AL
o WREAED 5
FHABEEMKA
XEHER - ARQA
BEEERTFRE
EE5% o HETFRE
- FEFRRER

Bt 35 SRR B 5 (AR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

11) Fixed Assets (continued)
d) Depreciation of Fixed assets

Fixed assets (excluding those fully depreciated
yet still used in operation) are depreciated on a
straight-line basis. The estimated net residual
value at 5%). Depreciation of a fixed asset shall
be provided for monthly and, depending on the
purpose for which the fixed asset is used, shall
either be included as part of the cost of the
relayed assets or recognised in profit or loss for
the current period. The useful life and rate of
depreciation are as follows:

BT

A EFR(F) FINEE(%)
Annual

Items Depreciation period Depreciation rate (%)

FEEREY 20%F 4,75

House & Buildings 20 Years

128 R 104 9.50

Machinery & equipment 10 Years

BFiEE 5% 19.00

Electronic instrument 5 Years

MABEREHTE 54 19.00

Office equipment and vehicles 5 Years

11.6 BlEEBE#ESHE e Subsequent expenditure of fixed assets

B

HETEERBEM
BEL BEERE
X EHBES K
F HEETEER
RAGMFE - 5 ABE
BERAN  BREE
BeEy - RIEER
HEHEE: TF4
B E & E R K1
B RBEERTAE
HifR s -

The subsequent expenditures related to a
fixed asset, mainly include expenses for repair,
renovation and mending, improvement which
shall be included in the cost of the fixed asset
if it meets the recognition condition of a fixed
assets. The carrying amount of the replaced
parts is derecognised. Expenditure not quantified
for recognition as a fixed asset.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

1) Fixed Assets (continued)

f) The company reviews the estimated useful life,
estimated net residual value, and the depreciation
method of the fixed assets at the end of each
year. Any change shall be treated as changes of
accounting estimates.

12) Construction-in-progress
a) Measurement of construction progress

Construction-in-progress measured at the
expenditures actually incurred. The cost of
construction work undertaken by the Company
itself includes direct materials cost, direct labour
cost, and direct construction expenses. The cost
of construction work is determined according to
the amount paid to the contractor. The cost of
equipment installation is determined according
to the cost of equipment, installation charges
and test run expenses. Cost of construction-
in-progress also includes capitalized borrowing
costs and gain or loss from currency exchange.

b) Timing for transfer of construction-in-progress to
fixed assets

Construction-in-progress is transferred to
fixed assets at the date of reaching its usable
conditions at an estimated amount based on the
construction budget, construction price, or actual
cost of construction. Depreciation is charged
from the next month after it is put into use. The
value of the asset will be adjusted when the
resolution procedures are completed
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

13) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of
discount or premium related to borrowings, ancillary
costs incurred in connection with the borrowings,
and exchange difference arising from foreign currency
borrowings. Borrowing costs are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. The capitalisation of borrowing costs can
commence only when all of the following conditions are
satisfied; expenditures for the asset are being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred; and activities
relating to the acquisition, construction or production of
the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale have commenced. The amount of
other borrowing costs incurred shall be recognized as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing the amount of interest to be capitalised is
the actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing
for the period less any bank interest earned from
depositing the borrowed funds before being used on
the asset or any investment income on the temporary
investment of those funds; when funds are borrowed
under general-purpose borrowings the amount of
interest to be capitalised is determinate by applying the
weighted average of the interest rate applicable to the
general purpose borrowing to the weighted average of
the excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the
asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose
borrowings.

Qualifying assets are assets (fixed assets, investment
property, inventories,) .That necessarily takes a
substantial period of time for acquisition, construction or
production to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspended
during periods in which the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset is interrupted
abnormally, when the interruption is for a continuous
period of more than 3 months. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs shall cease when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes
ready for its intended use or sale.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

14) Intangible Assets
a) The pricing method of intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets mainly
include land use right, software use right, non-
patented technology, and etc. The cost of a
purchased intangible asset is determined by the
expenditures actually incurred and other costs.
The cost of an intangible asset invested by an
investor is determined in accordance with the
value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement, except where the value stipulated in
the contract or agreement is not fair, fair value
will be used.

b) Amortisation of intangible assets

The cost of land use right is amortised evenly
over the whole period of the right. The cost of
software use right and non-patented technology
of the Company is amortised evenly over the
shorter period of the expected useful life, the
contractual beneficial period and the useful life
specified in the law, which is five years in the
Company. Hand use rights are amortised over
the terms 8, the rights, software use rights are
amortised over 5 years. The amortisation charge
shall be recognized as the cost of an intangible
asset or profit or loss for the current period by
the object of benefit derives from the assets.

©) For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the
Company reviews the useful life and amortisation
method at each financial year-end. There are
changes, adjustments will be made. For an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, the
Company reassesses the useful life of the asset
in each accounting period. If there is evidence
indicating that the useful life of that intangible
asset is finite, the Company shall estimate
the useful life of that asset and amortised
accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

15) Research and Development

According to the nature of expenditures and uncertainty
of the final achievement, expenditure on an internal
research and development project is classified into
expenditure on the research phase and expenditure on
the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase of an internal
research and development project is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on the development phase is recognised as an intangible
asset when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
(@) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale; (b) the
intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it; (c) there is a market for the output of the intangible
asset or the intangible asset itself; (d) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and the ability to use or sell
the intangible asset; (e) its ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development phase.

Expenditure on the development phase that does not
meet all the above conditions is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure in
the development phase which has been included in the
profit or loss in the prior period will not be recognised
as intangible asset in subsequent period. The capitalised
expenditure in the development phase shall be
recognised as an intangible asset when the asset is
ready for its intended use.

16) Impairment for Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is any indication that if may be
impaired, as long-term equity investment fixed assets,
construction-in-progress, intangible assets of finite
useful life if there is any indication that is an assets
may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated
for the asset. Goodwill and an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life shall be tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that the asset may be impaired. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset,
the Company determines the recoverable amount of the
asset group or set of asset group to which the asset
belongs.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

16) Impairment for Non-financial Assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the difference shall be recognised
as an impairment loss. Once the impairment loss is
recognised, it shall not be reversed in subsequent
periods. Recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less cost to sell and the present value
of the future cash flow expected to be derived from the
asset.

The following are indications that an asset may be
impaired: (a) during the period, market value of the
asset has declined significantly more than that would be
expected as a result of the passage of time or normal
use; (b) significant changes with an adverse effect on
the Company have taken place during the period, or
will take place in the near future, in the technology,
economic or legal environment. in which the Company
operates; (c) the market interest rates or other market
rates of return on investments have increased during
the period, and these increases are likely to affect the
discount rate used in calculating the present value of
an asset’s expected future cash flows and decrease
the assets recoverable amount materially; (d) evidence
is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an
asset; (e) an asset has become or is becoming idle,
the Company discontinues using an asset or plans to
dispose of an asset before the previously expected
date; (f) evidence is available from internal reports that
indicates that the economic performance of an asset
is, or will be, worse than expected, for example, the
net cash flows generated or operating profit realised (or
operating loss arising) from the asset are much less (or
more) than the budgeted amounts.; (g) other indications
that an asset may be impaired.

17) Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount at the acquisition date or
purchasing date, of the investment cost or cost of
business combination not involving enterprises under
common control, exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the
fair value of the investees’ or acquirer’s identifiable net
assets.

Goodwill related with subsidiaries is presented in
consolidated financial statements as a separate item.
Goodwill related with joint ventures and associates are
included in the carrying amount of long-term equity
investment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

18)

19)

Employee Benefits

In the accounting period in which an employee has
rendered service to the Company, employee benefits
payable are recognised as a liability. Employee
benefits are accounted as cost of related assets
or charged to profit or loss for the current period
according to the benefits derived from the employee
service. Compensation for termination of employment
relationship with employees is included in the profit or
loss in the current period.

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries,
bonuses, allowances and subsidies, social security
contributions, housing funds, union running costs and
employee education costs, and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Provision
a) Recognition of provision

A provision is recognised as a liability when an
obligation related to a contingency, such as
guarantees provided to outsiders, pending litigations
or arbitrations, product warranties, redundancy
plans, onerous contract, reconstructing, expected
disposal of fixed assets, satisfy all of the following
conditions: (a) the obligation is a present obligation
of the Company; (b) it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; (c) the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably.

b) Measurement of provision

A provision shall be initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the related present obligation. Considering the
factors, such as risk, uncertainties, and time
value of money related to the contingencies.
Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the best estimate shall be determined
by discounting the related future cash outflows.
The Company reviews the carrying amount of a
provision at the balance sheet date. Where there
is a charge, clear evidence that the carrying
amount of a provision does not reflect the
current best estimate, the carrying amount shall
be adjusted to the current best estimate.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

20)

Revenue

The Company’s revenue is mainly from sale of goods,
rendering of services and alternatively the rights to
use assets. Revenue is recognised when the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably and associated
economic benefit will flow into the Company not the
following conditions are satisfied.

a)

b)

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
(@) the Company has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods; (b) the Company retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership or
effective control over the goods sold; (c) the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
(d) it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow into the Company; and (e) the
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can
be measured reliably.

Revenue from rending of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is
recognised only when all of the following
conditions are satisfied: (a) the amount of
revenue and costs for the transaction involving
the rendering of services can be measured
reliably;(b) the associated economic benefits
can flow into the Company; (c) and the stage
of completion of the service can be measured
reliably. When the provision of service is
commenced and completed in the same year,
revenue is recognised at the completion; where
in different accounting year, the revenue is
recognised percentage of completion method
at the balance sheet date the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably. The
percentage of completion shall be determined by
the cost incurred and the estimated whole cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

20)

21)

22)

Revenue (continued)

c) Revenue from alienating the rights to use assets,
is recognised only when the associated economic
benefit can flow into the Company, and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Government grants

Only the governmental allowance meeting the following
conditions will be confirmed: The enterprises can meet
the relevant conditions required by the governmental
allowance; the enterprises can receive the governmental
allowance; a government grant is recognised when the
Company compiles with the conditions attaching to the
grant and the Company is able to receive the grant.
Calculation: If the government grant is the form of a
transfer of monetary assets, measured at the received
amounts. If the government grant is in a form of a non-
monetary asset, it is measured at the fair values; if the
fair values are not reliably given, they will be calculated
at the nominal amounts of RMB1.

Government grant related to assets is recognised as the
deferred income and every amortised over the usage life
of relevant assets, to profit and loss for a government
grant related to income, if the grant is a compensation in
related expenses or losses to the incurred in subsequent
periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income
and recognised in profit or loss over the periods. If the
grant is a compensation for related expresses or losses
already incurred, the grant is recognised immediately in
profit or loss for the current period.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

A deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is
recognised based on the difference (temporary
difference) between the carrying amount of an asset
or liability and its tax base. The deferred tax asset is
recognised for the carry forward of unused deductible
losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

22) Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities
(continued)

The Company recognises the corresponding deferred
tax asset for deductible temporary differences to the
extent of the amount of taxable profits that will be
available in the future and which can be deducted from
the temporary difference. For the recognised deferred
tax assets, if it is unlikely to obtain sufficient taxable
profits to offset against the benefit of the deferred
tax asset. Any such reduction in amount shall be
subsequently reversed where it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

23) Accounting Processing Method of Income Tax

The Company accounted for the income tax method.
Income tax expenses include income tax and deferred
income tax expenses. The income tax associated
with the events and transactions directly included
in the owners’ equity is included in the owners’
equity. Deferred income taxes derived from business
combination are included in the carrying amount of
goodwill, except for that above; the income tax expense
is included in the profit or loss in the current period.

The current income tax expense refers to the tax
payable, which is calculated according to the tax laws
on the events and transactions incurred in the current
period. The deferred income tax refers to the difference
between the carrying amount and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at the year-end
recognized in the method of debit in using balance sheet
liability method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

24) Business Combination

Business combination refers to the event or transaction
where the Company combines two or more separate
enterprises as one reporting entity. The Company
shall recognise the assets and liabilities derived from
a business combination at the combination date or
acquisition date. A combination date or acquisition date
is the date on which the Company effectively obtains
control of the company being absorbed.

a) Business combination involving enterprises under
common contract

The assets and liabilities acquired through
a business combination involving enterprise
under common control is measured by the
acquirer according to the carrying amount
recorded by the acquirer’'s at the combination
date. The difference between the consideration
of combination and the carrying amount of
the acquired net assets is included in capital
reserve; If the capital reserve is not sufficient, it is
adjusted in retained earnings.

b) Business Combination not involving enterprises
under common control

The cost of business combinations not involving
enterprise under common control is the
aggregate of the fair value, at the acquisition
date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the
acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquire.
When the costs of business combinations
exceed the acquirer’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognised as goodwill. When
the costs of a business combination is less
than the acquirer’s identifiable net assets, after
reassessment, the difference is included in the
profit or loss in the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

25) The determination of fair value of financial
instruments

For financial investments with an active market, the
fair value is determined as the quotations in the active
market. For the financial instruments with no active
market, the fair value is determined by valuation
technology .The financial assets that are initially obtained
or derived or financial liabilities will take the market
transaction prices as the basis to determine their fair
values.

26) Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

a) Scope of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include

subsidiaries and special purpose entities
effectively controlled by the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies Accounting,
Estimates and Presentation of consolidated
Financial Statement Consolidation (continued)

26) Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

b) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the ASBEs No.
33-"Consolidated Financial Statements” and
relevant supplementary regulations. All significant
transactions and balances between the Company
and its subsidiaries are eliminated for the purpose
of consolidation. The equity of subsidiaries not
held by the parent company shall be presented
separately as minority shareholders’ equity in
consolidated shareholders’ equity.

Any difference arising from the inconformity of
accounting year or accounting policies between
the subsidiaries and the Company shall be
adjusted in the consolidated financial statements.

When preparing the consolidated financial
statements, if the Company acquired the
subsidiary through business combination not
involving enterprise under common control, the
separate financial statements shall be adjusted
based on the fair value of identifiable net
asset at the acquisition date. If the subsidiary
is acquired through business combination
involving enterprise under common control,
the consolidated financial statements shall
included the carrying amount of assets, liabilities,
operating result and cash flow of the subsidiary
at the beginning of the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting
Estimates and Correction of errors of prior
period’s

The company has no change in accounting polices, alteration
of accounting estimated and rectification for significant errors of
last year during 2009.

Taxes

Major taxes and tax rates applicable to the Company are as
follows:

a) Income tax

The Company is a high-tech enterprise. According to
“The People’s Republic of China Enterprise Income
Tax Law”, the Company enjoys the enterprise income
tax preferential policies at the rate of 1% for three
years from the date of accreditation with a high-tech
enterprise.

The applicable tax rate for the Company’s subsidiaries
is 25%), Subsidiaries, Zibo Xinhua - West Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., and Zibo Xinhua - Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., are in the tax-free period.

b) Value added tax
The Company is subject to value added tax for its sales

revenues at a VAT rate of 17% or 13% for domestic
sales and 0% for export sales.

In purchasing raw materials, the input VAT is deductible
against output VAT at the rate of 17%.

The VAT payable for the period is the net amount of
output VAT after deducting input VAT.
c) Business tax

Business tax is based on the design revenue, at a rate
of 5%.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)

N. REZ) 6 Taxes (continued)
4. WERRNEEMNM d) Urban maintenance & construction tax and
educational surcharges
RNATIWMER B BN Urban maintenance & construction tax and educational
M2 E B M 05 LA FE 4 surcharges are based on the amount of VAT payable
HEN SERBATHK and sales tax payable, at the rates of 7%, 3% and 1%
B ERBEDRRT% - 3% respectively.
1% °
5. EBER e) Property tax
KARBEREENEERE Property tax is levied based on 70% of the original cost
H70% &t aiE - @ A of the building property of the Company at the tax rate
RE12% HHEEEINES of 1.2%. The rental income from leasing its building
WA BRKE  @RAMRX property of the Company is charged at a rate of 12%.
A12% o
. RESHREHMERE 7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements
1. FATFER 1. Details of Subsidiaries
BLRARE
HEHRFLR
SBRERRN
sHEREE
YRREE
BTN
RELHRY JRREAST  FREREH
FLRBRRY RitAEIR FEHR
ARER FARRE  HRR RERR s ERRE FREREE  RRUERE fliAe  RAREA% RE4H  JHREHE RRRENLH LR
The exceed
amount taken up
by the equity of
the Company's
shareholders for
the loss for
the year
attributable to
Amounts of minority
profit or loss ~ shareholders over
for the year beginning
Other amount Included in attributable balance of
Investment  substantively Consolidated to minority minority
Type of Place of Nature of Business attheendof  constitutedas  Percentage of  Percentage of Financial shareholders'  shareholders’
Name of company Subsidiaries  registration business Registered capital ~ Scope theyear netinvestment  shareholding voting rights Statements Minority Interests equity equity
URFEREHSERAT 2ATAT  UR®EET  ERLIRE 4BUOBIETARE BREE 4BBETARS 100 100 £
Shandong Xinhua wholy-owned ~ Zibo, Shandong ~ Sale of Medical ~ RMB48.4989 millons  Drug sales. 48,58 millions 100 100 YES
Pharmaceutical Trade subsidiary. Chemicals
Company Limited
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REFESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

t. LESHREHMERE 7. Business Combination & Consolidated

(4 Financial Statements (continued)
1. FATSBR (& 1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)
BLRARE
HE#RTLR
JRRERRY
sHEREE
JHREE
BFLTED
RRLHRH JRRENET  FAZHER
FARFRRE RithEsR [ L1]
LARER FARRE AR RBER ifRs  EERE FRRREE  RUAERE RREAS  RREEES 2E4H  JBREHE BRREMEE [ EEE T
The exceed
amount taken up
by the equity of
the Company's
shareholders for
the loss for
the year
attributable to
Amounts of minority
profit or loss  shareholders over
for the year beginning
Other amount Included in attributable balance of
Investment  substantively Consolidated to minority minority
Type of Place of Nature of Business attheendof  constitutedas  Percentage of  Percentage of Financial shareholders'  shareholders’
Name of company Subsidiaries  registration business Registered capital ~ Scope theyear netinvestment  shareholding voting rights Statements Minority Interests equity equity
LRFEHEEND 2ETAE LFRMET  BECINE SOBTARY 38N BE  SWETARE 100 100 3
BRAERA EENHRR
HEE5
#085
Shandong Xinhua wholy-owned ~ Zibo, Shandong  Sale of Medical RMBS milions ~ Engaged in RMBS millons 100 100 YES
Pharmaceutical Export & subsidiary Chemicals goods, and
Import Company Limited technology
Import and
export and
conducting

counter trade,

entrepot trade

HEFEBERHR 2RTRE LFHMET  BECISM NOBTAR® BEIRRH  SMETARE 100 100 3
BRAR

Shandong Xinfua wholly-owned ~ Zibo, Shandong  Sale of Medical RMB3 millions  Medical RMB3.04 millons 100 100 YES
Pharmaceutical subsidiary Chemicals Engineering
Design Institute design
Company Limited

HEFEABEER 2RTAE LFRMET  BELINE WETARE ER%E H6ETARY 100 100 3
ERAR

Shandong Xinhua Drug Store wholly-owned ~ Zibo, Shandong  Sale of Medical RMB2 milions ~ Retailing of RMB2.16 millons 100 100 YES
Chain Company Limited ~~ subsidiary Chemicals medicines
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

t. LEREHREHMBEER

Bt 35 SRR B 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Business Combination & Consolidated

(4 Financial Statements (continued)
1. FATSBR (& 1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)
BLRAEE
HE#RTLR
YRRER RN
sHEREE
JHREE
BFLTED
RRLHRY JRREHET  FAEHER
FARFRRE RithasR L1
LARER FARRE  ERE RBER ifRs  EERE FRRREE  RUAERE BREAS  RREEA% 2E4H  JBREHE BRREMEE [ LTk
The exceed
amount taken up
by the equity of
the Company's
shareholders for
the loss for
the year
attributable to
Amounts of minority
profit or loss  shareholders over
for the year beginning
Other amount Included in attributable balance of
Investment  substantively Consolidated to minority minority
Type of Place of Nature of Business attheendof  constitutedas  Percentage of  Percentage of Financial shareholders'  shareholders’
Name of company Subsidiaries  registration business Registered capital ~ Scope theyear netinvestment  shareholding voting rights Statements Minority Interests equity equity
WRIFEHE (EH) BHTRE BEEEN BELIEE 69ERT HERERHR S0BET 65 65 3 BIETL
BRAA il ]
Shandong Xinfua Control Hamburg, Germany Sale of Medical 769,000 Euro  Pharmaceutical 500,000 Euro 65 65 YES  RMB2.51 millions
Pharmaceutical (European)  subsidiary Chemicals raw mterials
GmbH and work
in process
HEFE-TEYE BHTRE LFEMET  BECINE 0BT LE BERFR  1125B%T 75 7 3 RTERL
BRAERA FERHE
Shandong Xinhua-west Control Zibo, Shendong  Sale of Medical 1.5 millon us dollars ~ Productionand 1125 millions us 75 75 YES  RMB3.27milions
Pharmaceutical subsidiary Chemicals sales of non- ~ dollars
Company Limited calcium poly
Kaposi APIs
ERFE-ANRNE  mHFAW LREMET REQIRE S0BXT LR BEARS  06BXT 501 501 3 3054870
BRAERA RHE
Shandong Xinhua-Perrigo ~ Control Zibo, Shendong  Turing of 6 milion us dollars ~ Production and 3,008 milions us. 50.1 50.1 YES RMB30.54 milions
Pharmaceutical subsidiary Medical sales of bulk ~ dollars
Company Limited Chemical drugs lbuprofen
Manufac
FEHE(ER)ERAA  2AFAR  UREEAT  BELINE 1B00ETARE EEBELT 1301IBTARE 100 100 3
REREH
Shandong Xinfua wholly-owned  Shouguang, Turing of 130 milions  Production and 130.71 millons. 100 100 YES
(Shouguang) subsidiary  Shandong Medical sales of
Pharmaceutical Chemical chemical
Company Limited Manufac equipment and
00es50res
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)

a)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade
Company Limited (hereafter referred to as
“Pharm. Trade”) was established on 30 August
2004 with a registered capital of RMB5 million by
the Company and Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited (subsidiary of the Company),
they held 98% and 2% of the registered capital
in Pharm Trade, respectively. In March 2005,
the registered capital of Pharm Trade increased
by RMB43,498,900, among which, 42,628,900
was contributed by the Company in tangible
assets, and RMB870,000 was contributed by
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited
in cash. There has been no change in proportion
of shareholding in Pharm Trade of each
shareholder’s equity

On 9 November, 2009, the Company entered into
an equity transfer contract with Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Chain Company Limited whereby the 2%
equity interests held by Zibo Xinhua Drug Store
Chain Company Limited was transferred to the
Company at a consideration of RMB10,536,140.
In the end of 2009, Pharm Trade is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Export &
Import Company Limited (hereafter referred to
as “Xinhua Export& Import”) was established on
15 July 2006 with a registered capital of RMB3
million by Pharm Trade and Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Chain Company Limited, and carrying
on held 98% and 2% of the equity interests
in Xinhua Export and Import respectively. The
principle operation of Xinhua Export& Import is
exporting & importing of goods and technology,
entrepot & counter trade business.

On 5 November, 2009, the Company entered
into a contract with Zibo Xinhua Drug Store
Chain Company Limited whereby the 2%
equity interests in Xinhua Export and Import
held by Zibo Xihua Drug Store Chain Company
Limited was transferred to the Company at a
consideration of RMB149,880 At 31 December,
2009, shareholdings of Xinhua Export and Import
held by Pharmaceutical Trade and the Company
are 98% and 2% respectively.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)

c)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute
(hereinafter referred to as the “Design Institute”)
was formed in March 2002 with a registered
capital of RMB2,000,000, by the Company
and Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as Shandong
Xinhua Group). They hold 90% and 10% of the
registered capital of Design Institute respectively.

On 30 July, 2009, the Company signed a
property rights transaction contract with
Shandong Xinhua Group transactions of
property rights whereby Shandong Xinhua Group
transferred its 10% equity interests to Design
Institute at a consideration of RMB233,700 and
paid the related tax of RMB4,000.

On 7 August, 2009, the Company contributed
additional capital of RMB1 million Yuan to
Design Institute. The increase of capital have
been verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited, verification report and issued the
“Price Waterhouse inspection Zi [2009] No.
098”". Thereafter registered capital of Design
Institute was increased to RMB3 millions. At 31
December, 2009, Design Institute is the whole
owned subsidiary of the company.

Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company
Limited (originally known as Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Company Limited to the present name
in December 2003, hereafter referred to as the
“Zibo Drug Store”) was incorporated in July,
1999. Its registered capital was RMB1,000,000
contributed as of 82% and 12% by the Company
and Shandong Xinhua Group. The registered
capital was increased to RMB2,000,000 in
September 2002.

On 30 July, 2009, the Company signed a
property rights transaction contract with
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co.,
Ltd; whereby Shandong Xinhua Group transferred
its 12% equity interests in Zibo Drug Store to the
Company of RMB394,900 and paid related tax
at 31 December. Drug Store is the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)

e)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (European)
GmbH (hereinafter referred to as the “Xinhua
European”) was established on 25 November
2003. It was jointly invested by the Company and
Mr. Lipeng of Germany. The registered capital
was 1 million Euros. The Company holds 70%
of equity interests, while Mr. LIPENG owns 30%.
Xinhua European was incorporated in Hamburg,
Germany. Its reporting currency is Euro. In July
2006, the registered capital of the Company was
changed to EURO650, 000 according to the
resolution of the Board of Directors’ meeting, and
the share of equity interest held by the Company
and Mr. LI PENG was changed to 76.90% and
23.10% respectively.

On 24 June, 2009, the LK & K Trading Co.,
Ltd. signed a corporation agreement with Mr.
Lipeng, that Lipeng transferred all holding shares
in Xinhua European to LK & K Trading Co. Ltd.
After the transfer, the shares of Xinhua European
held by the Company and LK & K Trading Co.Ltd
are 76.9% and 23.1% respectively.

On 8 September, 2009, the first general meeting
of Xinhua (European) passed the resolution that
LK & K Trading Co, Ltd increases its contribution
of RMB119,000 to Xinhua (European). The
fund was received on 20 October, 2009. The
verification report was obtained on 10 November,
2009. At 31 December, 2009, the registered
capital of S Xinhua (European) was Euro 769,000.
The Company paid Euro 500,000 accounting for
65%; LK & K Trading Co., Ltd. invested Euro
269,000, accounting for 35%.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)

f)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

Zibo Xinhua-West Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (hereafter referred to as “Xinhua- West”)
was established on 15 November 2005 with
a registered capital of USD 1.5 million, by the
Company and West United Group, Inc., which
hold 75% and 25% of the equity interests
respectively, On 26 June 2006, the Company
and West United Group, Inc. injected USD
1.125 million and USD 0.375 million in cash
respectively. The principle operation of Xinhua-
West is production and sales of Calcium
Polycarbophil materials.

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Xinhua-Perrigo”) was established by the
Company and Perrigo International Inc. on 11
September 2003 with a registered capital of
USD 6 million. Each party holds 50% of equity
interests in Xinhua-Perrigo. On 3 April 2006,
Perrigo International Inc. transferred 0.1% shares
of Xinhua-Perrigo to the Company at pursuant
to the amendment Joint Venture. The Company
held 50.1% shares of Xinhua-Perrigo as at 31
December 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

t. LEREHREHMBER

(%)

1. FavwR (&)

8)

FESE (5% BR
A AR % LR K
ZhBaERAE (KU
TRETE I RbFrE]) -
X 3 72006 F9 A 12
H BAQRFMLUE
AKibEEBER
NGBz = i}
BEARARE26008
JC o AR AIHE1,274
B mafELrs
49% ° 2007411 A K
N R T EEE
600B L E B K
WEFEFTMELAEE
53,2008 7T * &ANA 7]
HE1,8748 70 165
it & A #958.5625% °
20084F AN 2 A Y & K
HE(LEBFFHAKR
T EE 2 AR RE - A
813,972,368 @ I
BARMES BB
EFIE(SH)BRA
AIATEEFHES
Y1) B YEHES
J¢ 1 & 4,8008 T °
WE BT ES M
B KRB E 58,0008
T EAARAEET
A &) ° 2008512 B &
DA HEESHIEE
600& JT * 200944 A
T EF I E 4,400
Bl  RREEER
ErEHERETE
ATEERE A S
B2 3 & R B £(2009)
F0215 | B ERE R
75 o & 1F2009F 12 A
SIEFESHENRE
7R A&13,0008 7T ° #
EENFTEEKBIE:
SE -HELIER
(TeEREER) -

2. EHEEHEE

AEEEHEHERBER
BB -

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Details of Subsidiaries (continued)

h)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang)
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the Shouguang), originally named as Shandong
Dadi Salt Chemical Group Company Limited,
was established with the registered capital
of RMB26,000,000 by the Company and
Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical Group Company
Limited on 12 September 2006. The Company
contributed RMB12,740,000, accounting for
49% of the registered capital. The Company
injected additionally RMB6,000,000 to Xinhua
Shouguang and increased its registered capital
to RMB32, 000,000 in November 2007. The
Company invested a total of RMB18.74 millions
and held 58.56% of its shares. In 2008, the
Company purchase all the shares of Shandong
Dadi Salt Chemical Group Company Limited,
at a consideration of RMB13,972,368.00.
and renamed. Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical
Group Company Limited as Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited,
the Company also contributed an additional
capitals of RMB48 millions. After the injection,
the registered capital of Shouguang was RMB80
millions and became the wholly owned subsidiary
paid-up. The company increased the capital of
Shouguang by RMB6 millions in December 2008
and RMB44 millions in April 2009. The capital
increase was verified by Shandong Shencheng
certificated public accountants with verification
report (Shencheng CPA 2009 NO.21). On 31
December, 2009, the capital of Shouguang is
RMB130 millions. Main business of Shouguang
is mainly engaged in production and sales of
chemical products (excluded dangerous and
poisonous chemical).

2 Changes in the Scope of Consolidation

There is no change in the Scope of consolidation.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

t. EREHREHMBEER
(48

3. SPEERAE

LEER

Name of Company

Bt 35 SRR B 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. Business Combination & Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

3 Translation of Financial Statements denominated in
Foreign Currencies

BEARSE

Balance sheet
fERR
FEXREFE FMEE ReRER
Income
Exchange rate Exchange rate Statement and
at the end of at the beginning Cash Flow
the year of the year Statement

Ly B 2 4 (BOM) AR 2 A)
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) Ltd.

. EHMERREIEREHE

THIFT IR BB SRR EIE - R
BERR Z 50 T 1] & 520094 1
A18 ' [F K] Z382009F 12 A31
H - [AF] Z#E2009F1A1H E12
A31H ' [ L | Z482008F1/81H
Z12A31A EBBNABARET

1B T=9.7971AR#¥  1BT=9.6590 A R #& B B BN EA B
1 Euro=9.7971 RMB 1 Euro=9.6590 RMB Exchange rate
in occurred date

8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Unless otherwise indicated the terms of, ‘beginning of the
year’ refers to 1 January, 2009, ‘end of the year’ refers to 31
December, 2009. ‘This year’ refers to period from 1 January
to 31 December 2009. ‘Previous year’ refers to period from
1 January to 31 December 2008. In the following notes the
financial statements all figures are stated in RMB’000.

7T|: o
1. BEREe 1) Cash & Cash equivalents
HE EF S 4 FNeE
ltem Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
R% MAEE HEARW R EEX HEARE
Original  Exchange Translated Original Exchange  Translated
Currency Rate into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
ERRE Cash on Hand - - 162 - - 168
Hep: Including:
eV usb - 6.8282 1 5 6.8346 37
BT EURO 1 9.7971 11 4 9.6590 4
ok HKD 23 0.88048 20 31 0.8819 27
Bt JPY 351 0.073782 26 351 0.075650 27
RITER Cash in Bank - - 359,448 = = 178,119
He: Including:
T usD 1,242 6.8282 8,479 9,956 6.8346 68,045
BT EURO 743 9.7971 7,276 202 9.6590 1,948
HitE§%&ES  Other Fund - - 42,284 - - 59,837
Bt Total 401,894 238,124

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

N, EHMERREEREHEE

(&

/IR

1. nwEe (&)

(1)

FREBEHBE
meEx EExE2REA
R ARR B ARFHE
ERBZ -

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

1) Cash & Cash equivalents (continued)

a)

In the end of the year, significant increase in the
ending balance of cash and cash equivalents is
mainly because new loans were during the year.

2 FREMEEESH b) At the end of the year, the balance of other
FEARRITEANEZ fund included bank acceptance security deposit
R & & 17 ;37,496 F of RMB37,496,000.00, freely-drawn notifying
JC -~ Al BE R S HUHY B deposit of RMB4,000,000.00 and bonus
H1F4,000F 7T~ of RMB747,000.00; bills of lading deposit
AR747F T 1RE RMB41,000.00.
REE4TITo
2. BlkE#E 2) Notes Receivable
RiBEMW FXe# FNEHE
Balance at
Balance at the the beginning of
Nature of notes end of the year the year
BITERRES Bank acceptance 118,689 82,744
() K pE Uk 2= 4 64 5 1 a) In the end of year, the significant increase in
MK EFTEERE the balance of notes is mainly because more
B ARAIXRERS accounts receivable of the Company settled their
MEBTEESES N balance with notes during the year.
= o
@) FREWZESES b) At the end of the year, the balances of notes

BER EER B
BHIER -

receivable are unsecured, and no collateral, no
overdue.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(& Statements (continued)
2. B RE (&) 2) Notes Receivable (continued)

(3) # 1£2009F 12 A31H c) In the end of 31 December, 2009,notes which
AKARDREREERM were endorsed to the other party but not yet
FEERINBHERE expire is RMB493,508,000, the details of the
% %8 £ 51493,508F largest top five balance are as follows:

T SERAMATR

ZEAMMT

HEEA HEAH EHA &8
Drawer Date of issue Date of maturity Amount

NMBREEERNBRAF

Jiuzhou Tong Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. 2009-10-27 2010-4-27 2,160
DR TREEMERRAR

Liaocheng Long Fa Material Co., Ltd. 2009-09-24 2010-03-24 2,000
HEENEEERAR

Qixian Junjie Grain trade Co., Ltd. 2009-12-18 2010-06-18 1,860
ZRRCHNBEERANA

Anhui Ren he Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 2009-10-10 2010-4-10 1,298
WRBLEERR A

Shandong Heng an Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 2009-10-26 2010-04-26 1,100
At

Total = = 8,418

(4) # 1-2009%F 12 A 31 d) At 31 December, 2009, the discounted
BARQR BB ® AR bank acceptance bills not yet expire is
BIHMRITARLIESR RMB91,724,000.
91,724F JT

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1L 5 i 2= 81 %% i85 5 IR 2 & | 2 1 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

. EHfMBERETERAHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(#&) Statements (continued)
3. EUER 3) Accounts Receivable
(1) JE U BE 5 e 0 2E a) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
X8 ENEE
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
EH &8 Hh%  ERER L fl% k2 el  ERERE L 1%
Bad debts Bad debts
Item Amount Proportion%  Provision Proportion% Amount  Proportion% Provision  Proportion%
BEGEE RMENRERR
Individually significant accounts receivable 35,062 21.54 799 10.50 72,541 33.23 179 1.56
Hip A E KRR
Individually in-significant accounts receivable 127,751 78.46 6,804 89.50 145,735 66.77 11,319 98.44
CH
Total 162,813 100.00 7,603 100.00 218,276 100.00 11,498 100.00
BIESEE ANEI Individually significant accounts receivable
BE 3 A B B5008 7T referred to as individual accounts receivable with
LA £ B IBR 3R - & an amount over RMB5,000,000. The provision
HEBSEEANE for bad debts have been made on aging basis as
WERKEITRTE @ & no impairment of individually significant accounts
EINWMED R - R receivable was found after the assessing.
FARRE AT IR B AR E
1 °
©)  EWR S b)  Aging Analysis
EXEH FUe8
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
HE &8 -4 0%) R R x| L 1% EREE
Bad debts Bad debts
Item Amount Proportion% Provision Amount  Proportion% Provision
—FLR Less than 1 year 155,061 95.24 1,886 176,043 80.65 874
=ZE= 110 2 years 1,878 1.15 376 7,244 3.32 547
—E=F 2 to 3 years 1,332 0.82 799 17,148 7.86 1,485
=FE Over 3 years 4,542 2.79 4,542 17,841 8.17 8,592
B Total 162,813 100.00 7,603 218,276 100.00 11,498
(3) K e W BR TR AR B8R c) The decrease in the ending balance of accounts
LER HEEEBR receivable is mainly because: the Company
P NN 7 == 17N strengthened the recoverability of accounts
B HE - & RE K recoverable during the year.
BRBLT -
IR FERZR DGR QT Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

N, EHMERREEREHEE

Bt 35 SRR B 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
3. EUER 3) Accounts Receivable

(4) EEREENTIEFE d) Please refers to Notes 4.7 for the policy of bad
GRIEEEILR debts. The accounts receivable which have been
7 o N E Y| A AT written off in previous year, recovered during the
FE B e E IR year is RMB764,000, details as follows:

R764F 7T - B AR
T
BRER HHERE k50
RHEL (3] HRWLA EHeE B¢# REHEBERRFZFBEORE
Proportion
of provision Bad debts Amount  Reason for provision made and
Debtors Amount % Provision  Recovered  reserved for the year
WRNFEEERAAAR 646 100% 646 646 ZELREREE
RERER AIRKE
Shandong Linuo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Aged more than three years
judgement was obtained
this year form
AIETEREEERAF 48 100% 48 43 ZENERERER:
REFER AIRKE
Shenzhen Neptunus Xingceng Aged more than three years
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. judgement was obtained
this year form
HEERRER 13 100% 13 13 ZENERERES:
FEEXKEEONE
Shanghai Huashi Drugstore Aged more than three years
bad debts recovered
by salesman
CHEVEEXERDA 57 100% 57 2 ZENFRERER
M R
Anhui Li Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Aged more than three years
recovered by settlement
agreement
RGBT A e 172 100% 172 40 ZFEUERBREE:
M e
Luoyang Medicine procurement Aged more than three years
and supply station recovered by settliement
agreement
43
Total 936 - 936 764 —

(5) REEFIRBARRD A= e) RMB4,449,000 of accounts receivable aged over
BRZEBRZE T £ 3 years has been written off in 2009 according to
TA-FAERNEIR the Company’s accounting policy.

#R504,449F It ©
(6) FREWBRRGED f) At the end of the year, accounts receivable

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

TEREARELS% (B
5%) A ERRMERMD
B A R B AL R K e

balance do not include receivable due from
shareholders holding 5% inclusive or more of the
Company’s voting capital.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
3. B R (&) 3) Accounts Receivable (continued)

7) F R JE YR R ER FE 9) At the end of the year, the balance of accounts
RAMABEMNEE receivable due from the top five debtors is
#85+39,204F T 1k RMB39,204,000 accounting for 24.70% of the
JE UG IR TR 88 KB B I A total balance of accounts receivable.

24.07% * BHARLOT -

BEi&iE HBEAFIME 8| ] e #1%
Name of equity Relationship Amount Aging proportion%
Perrigo FF 8 Bt 1ENR
Perrigo company Non-related Less than
parties 10,399 one year 6.39

Recofarma industria

do amazonas Itd e 1FLARA
Recofarma industrial Non-related Less than

do Amazonas Ltd parties 9,248 one year 5.68
FHEZREARAA I A 1FE AR
Bayer Healthcare Non-related Less than

Co., Ltd. parties 8,507 one year 5.22

The concentrate
manufacturing

company of ireland FEFEEE 1E AR
The Concentrate

Manufacturing Non-related Less than

Company of Ireland parties 6,289 one year 3.86
SR T AR B B JEREEE T 1E AR
Zibo Central Hospital Non-related Less than

parties 4,761 one year 2.92

&t
Total 39,204 24.07

2 1 8 | IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’nued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
3. iR (&) 3) Accounts Receivable (continued)
(8) FEREWRKEEZE S h) At the end of the year, the balance of accounts

FEU R 5 A A 5 receivables due from the related parties of
1,424F 7¢ - 1 ER RMB1,424,000, accounting for 0.88% of the
KERFEM0.88% + B total balance of accounts receivable, details as
AN follows:
HEi&iB HBEAFIME &8 ERELGI%
Name of equity Relationship Amount Proportion%

WERHETIERGER AR  Hit@wss
Shandong Xinhua
Industry & Trade Co., Ltd. other-related parties 1,150 0.71
INERS B RTEH B E R A A B 2
Shandong Zibo Xincat

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Joint venture 274 0.17
A3t
Total 1,424 0.88
* ? AABEH =R The Company has made full provision for bad
MELHBMDA debts for the amount due from Shandong Xinhua

PR 22 7] 1 M P A Industry & Trade Co., Ltd.

TEAAIRERE
i o
©) FEWREE SR aENT i) The ending balance of accounts receivable
GNEE phEE denominated in the foreign currencies is as
follows:
FReH FNEE
At the ending of the year At the beginning of the year

SpEE R% hHEEE HEARW R TEEX HEAREK
Name Original  Exchange Translated Original Exchange  Translated
of currency Currency Rate into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
x5 usD 15,300 6.8282 104,468 16,924 6.8346 115,671
BT EURO 1,377 9.7971 13,490 1,373 9.6590 13,263
a5t 117,958 128,934

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7 | 2 1 9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I\. EHMEERTERBGERE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
4. FftsmE 4) Advances to Suppliers
FEREH FNeHE
Balance at the end Balance at the beginning
of the year of the year
A &8 B % -] £ B11%
Item Amount Proportion% Amount  Proportion%
1ER Less than 1 year 25,248 98.70 34,878 97.25
1—24F 110 2 years 291 1.14 987 2.75
2—3% 2 to 3 years 40 0.16 = =
A&t Total 25,579 100.00 35,865 100.00
(1) FERFBEMEZGZS a) At the end of year, the top five balances of
A F1 & R 3K B L R K advances to suppliers is RMB19,097,000, details
19,097 F 7t + BA 4R A as follow:
T
HE&B HBEATIME &8 IREe kREHEREA
Reason for
Name of equity Relationship Amount Aging not settleed
IWRFESELT
BIRAT] B2) 1R MERE
Shandong Xinhua
Wanbo Chemical Less than Material not
Co., Ltd., Related party 10,585 one year yet reached
7 R HE R B8 A
EREERA] e 1FEAR MR RE
Nanjing Huadong Less than Material not
Medicine Co., Ltd. Non-related party 4,214 one year yet reached
IR ERE(LT
BRAF] /NS 1EAR MERE
Shandong Xinhua
longxin Chemical Less than Material not
Co., Ltd., Associate 1,757 one year yet reached
BN B = LA R & i
FEBRAT FF A Bk 1E AR MRRE
Guangzhou Baiyun
Mountain and
Traditional Chinese Less than Material not
Medicine Co., Non-related party 1,615 one year yet reached
FRommisE (LT
BRAA I A ek 1E AR MRRE
Linyi Ming Yao Less than Material not
Chemical Co., Ltd. Non-related party 926 one year yet reached
A%
Total 19,097

220 |
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
4, ASZE(E) 4) Advances to Suppliers (continued)
2) FARFBNHEHREH b) At the end of the year, the balances of
NEFARQFS® (& advances payments do not include advances
5%) LA ERIRER D to shareholders holding 5% or more of the
AR B8 B8 7 FRIB © Company’s voting capital.
(3) T8~ R I8 R AN pA R C) The ending balance of advance payments
denominated in the foreign currency is as follows:
FXe8 FOeE
Balance at the end of Balance at the beginning of
this the year the year
SRR R% HHEEE HEARY [R EEZ HEARE
Name of Original  Exchange Translated Original Exchange  Translated
currency Currency Rate into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
x5 ush 109 6.8282 743
5. it FE 0 B’ 5) Other Receivables
(1) H A JEW R e 5 2 a) Risk Classification of Other Receivable
£xe# £ned
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
g &f A%  ERER :4: 1) ¢F shle  ERER bt fil%
Bad debts Bad debts
Item Amount Proportion%  Provision Proportion% Amount  Proportion% Provision  Proportion%
bR EN U E T
Individually significant other receivables 6,196 27.06 6,196 79.05 6,196 26.87 6,196 83.32
E T ERMELER
Individually in-significant other receivable 16,705 72.94 1,642 20.95 16,863 7313 1,240 16.68
CH
Total 22,901 100.00 7,838 100.00 23,059 100.00 7,436 100.00
BEBESHEEANEHE Individually significant other receivable referred
fth & IR 3% B B TH500 to as individual other receivable with an amount
& 7T A £ A E At E UL over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts
P EEEESREE have been made on aging basis as no impairment
K H)E fth fE U ZRE 1T of individually significant other receivable was
RE - ANEBEBRED found after the assessing.

R BERAREK AR
RIS -

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7 | 22 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I\,

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

EHMERRTEREERE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)

5. HthEW R (&) 5) Other Receivables (continued)

2  EMERTER b)  Aging Analysis
FREH FOEE
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
HH &8 LE 6% R R i L 1% BRER
Bad debts Bad debts

ltem Amount Proportion% Provision Amount  Proportion% Provision
—F LA Less than 1 year 14,675 64.08 44 14,600 63.32 42
8= 1to 2 years 343 1.50 23 1,075 4.66 74
“E=F  2to3years 378 1.65 266 177 0.77 113
=%\ F  Over3years 7,505 32.77 7,505 7,207 31.25 7,207
&t Total 22,901 100.00 7,838 23,059 100.00 7,436

(3) EEREEENETIR A c) Please refer to Notes 4.7. For the policy for
Kt 2 B A Bt & provision for bad debts.

PO.7 »

(4) NEEFIRBA RN FIE d) RMB131,000 of other receivables aged over
BRI EZE T = three years has been written off in 2009
EA=FUALFNEM according to the Company’s accounting policy.
FEUW RS F T

(5) FREMEW T e) The ending balance of other receivables include
REENEFKINER deductible input VAT, output VAT for exporting
o H O R #E & AT before applying to customs. No bad debts
FHRANEERNEE provision is made on these items.
TSR AR -

(6) FREMEW T f) At the ending of the year, other receivables do

FTAERHARAESR
(B5%) A ER R
B A BB R EERL R o

not include receivable shareholders holding 5%
or more of the Company’s voting capital.

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(& Statements (continued)
5. HahfEWs (2) 5) Other Receivables (continued)

@) FREMBEWT Q) At the end of the year, the top five balances
Bl I & H H b fE I of other receivables are RMB15,938,000,
& %A 5T15,938T accounting for 69.60% of the total balance of
7T~ b Bl 569.60% - other receivable, details as follows:

BRARLAT
GHEEN
L {og1 ] BENFRE &8 BE Ll HESAR
Name of equity Relationships Amount  Aging Proportion%  Nature or Content
FFMEERE E3) ol 7658 1FLAR 3344 FHMEEHR
Pending deduction of Non-related Less than Pending deduction
VAT on purchase party one year of VAT
on purchase
FEREREH FEm A 6,196  3FEL L 27.06 [EREMGH
Rebate of income tax Non-related More than Rebate of
party three year income tax
JE i PR Bt E3) ol 1,106 1FEURA 483  EREORH
Rebate of tax Non-related Less than Rebate of
party one year Export tax
Xy R 500 1ELLA 218 EEfD
Electrical industries Non-related Less than Deposit of electric
bureau party one year charge
R ER B FEB A 478 1FELR 209  AXR
IRERRA
Shandong Xinhua Non-related Less than Current accounts
Environmental Green party one year
Engineering Co., Ltd.,
At
Total 15,938 69.60
. EREBREHRE * Full provision for bad debts has been made for
R BRI &2 refund of income tax in accordance with bad debts

R IR AR - policy.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7 | 2 2 3
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#&) Statements (continued)
5. HthEW R (&) 5) Other Receivables (continued)
(8) FERHMEIM TS h) At the end of the year, the balance of other
FhoFE R RE B 5 F oA receivable due from the related parties is RMBS,
AF8T T LAl A 000, accounting for 0.04% of the total balance of
0.04% -+ BRARZOT - other receivable, details as follows:
BEfreis HBELFREE &8 1.5 1:00:4: 07
Name of Company Relationships Amount Proportion%
INRFHETE H fth BBt 5 8 0.04
&P B R A A

Shandong Xinhua other-related parties

Industry & Trade Co., Ltd.

9) H th iE Y7 Zh b B FE A i) The ending balance of other receivables
TN BREE denominated in foreign currency is as follows:
FXREH FNeR
Balance at the end Balance at the beginning
of the year of the year
b £ E% HEE HAARW R ¥ HEZ HaARK
Name of Original Exchange Translated Original Exchange  Translated
currency Currency Rate into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
BT EURO 52 9.7971 513 97 9.6590 933
6. FERBEER 6) Inventories and Provision for decline in value of
inventories
(1) ZES K a) Classification of Inventories
FXREH EX k]
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
RE BESE BREEF KERE HKESE KEEE  FEHEE
Provision Provision
for decline Carrying for decline
Item Book value in value value Book value in value Carrying value
JR# Raw material 52,104 248 51,856 38,5615 248 38,267
EEm Work-in-
progress 67,362 — 67,362 83,415 774 82,641
EFEM&A  Goods-in-stock 219,254 8,842 210,412 177,531 8,562 168,969
KES#Em Low-value
consumables 12,750 — 12,750 13,274 — 13,274
BAERE  Special
mE materials for
Government 1,840 s 1,840 1,363 = 1,363
aEr Total 353,310 9,090 344,220 314,098 9,584 304,514
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’nued)

IN. SMERRETERHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
6. EEREESEMRZ) 6) Inventories and Provision for decline in value of
inventories (continued)

(2) FEHEEE b) Provision for decline in value of inventories
FRER FOeE FHHERE xHRY FXe8
ltems Balance at Balance at

the beginning Provision the end of
of the year made Reduction the year
BE L E]
Written Written
back off
Bt Raw material 248 — — — 248
TER Work-in-progress 774 — = 774 -
ERrEm Goods-in-stock 8,562 944 — 664 8,842
S Total 9,584 944 — 1,438 9,090
FEREBERNEIE Please refer to Notes 4.8, for the policies for
FER B ARHIEEPY.8 o provision for decline in value of inventories.
3) FEBEEE IR c) Making of provision for decline in value of
inventories
FHEE& TN
HRERBE *HBOFRBE EEFRHX
HH B3 g:000 3 H#fm B R E EREARYLL B
reasons for
reversal of Provision of
Basis for making of provision for reversal to the
provision for decline decline in value ending balance
Items in value of inventories of inventories of inventories
R RHEEENAIZEEE = —
Raw material Book value is less
than net realizable value
TEE G REEEENATZREE — —

Work-in-progress Book value is less

than net realizable value
515 7 FREEEER A S5 FE = =
Goods-in-stock Book value is less

than net realizable value
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000

REPESHERGER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

SHBMERRTEBHGE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
7. AHHESHEE 7) Available-for-sale Financial Assets
HA FREH FEeHE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning
Item the year of the year
I ER IR A A AIR#E  Shares of Ruiheng
Pharmaceutical & Technology
Investment Company Limited 3,200 3,200
RBIRITIEAR Legal-person share of Bank
of Communications 69,863 35,417
REFEREE AR Shares of Pacific insurance
Company Limited 128,100 55,600
PN i E Shares of Tiantong
Securities Company Limited 30,000 30,000
PR 7 BB A AR B AR D Shares of ShanXi media
AR A E PERE communication Company Limited 433 280
MRBERNDERRA R RE Nanjing Mediations
Company Limited - 270
&t Total 231,596 124,767
AitEESREERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 30,000
Hrh o XAFHFRERE Including: Impairment on shares
of Tiantong Securities
Company Limited 30,000 30,000
AHHESREERE Net value of available-for-sale
financial assets 201,596 94,767
FEROIHEHEESRHEEHSE At the end of the year, the ending balance of available-

BhRA ERAR: X\
RIT- KFPFRBREEARF
RAABEL EFRARELE
sl

for-sale financial assets has increased significantly; it
is mainly due to the market price of shares of Bank of
Communications and Pacific Insurance Company Limited
increase significantly at the end of year the as compared
with that of last year.
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
8. RUKRERSE 8) Long-term Equity Investment
(1) RARERE a) Long-term Equity Investment
HE EXEH FYI2HE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning
Item the year of the year
REREZE Using the equity method
RERERE 29,763 27,489
RUKRERESH Total long-term
equity investment 29,763 27,489
B RERERE Less: Impairment loss of
TAEE Long-term equity
investment - -
RPKRERERE Net amount of Long-term
equity investment 29,763 27,489
@) EEm % b) Using in Equity Method
BRREGER BRIEA% FAMLA% neH FNeH FERM 40k 1 FReW FERLAH
Cash
Balance at Balance at Dividends
Proportion of  Proportion of the beginning the end received
Name of investee shareholding  voting rights  Original Cost of the year Additions  Deductions of the year in the year
REEUN
Using in equity method
1. WRHFZRECIARAR
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited 40 40 10,000 9,843 (197) — 9,646 =
2. WRFERECIRBERAR
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited 35 35 7,700 3,536 451 - 3,987 =
3. WRERMEHEERAR
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 20 20 10,179 14,110 4,570 2,550 16,130 2,550
Alt
Total 27,489 4,824 2,650 29,763 2,550
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REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
8. RERREKRSE (Z) 8) Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(3) HAEELE BEDL c) Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates
FRE
RERRMER SREY 03] EAE REHE ERRE BRIEA%N  FRELA%
Corporation Place of Legal Business Registered Proportion of  Proportion of
Name of investee types registration person scope capital shareholding %  voting rights %
RELR
Joint Ventures
1 LRFERECIARAR BREARA WREEET  E5A RiE% 20,000 40 40
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Limited Zibo, Shandong  Han Zhigang ~ Manufacturing
Chemical & Industrial company Production
Company Limited
2. WRHMERENTHRE BREARR WREEMT AEH REX 22,000 35 3%
BRAH
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Limited Zouping, ZhuYuguo  Manufacturing
Chemical Equipment company Shandong Production
Company Limited
8 WEEBMENEARAR AREREAA LREHEET  HEX HiER 26,929 20 20
Shandong Zibo XinCat Limited Shandong Liu Zhenwen  Manufacturing
Pharmaceutical company Preparation of
Company Limited chemical
medicine
(4) ARal REBBRERE d) No provision for impairment has been made and
TEERERBE X no evidence indicates any impairment of long-
FriR REIR E R EE term equity investment of the Company.
1o
(5) AARKEREKRE e) There is no significant restriction on the
BERZEEARRH Company of the disposal of the long-term equity
investments.
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

N, EHMEBBRREEIRAEE 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
9. RENEE 9) Investment properties
(1) LK ARG E AR B 1E a) Measured investment properties by cost model
EHE
AR FMeHE E-3:3. )i EERHD FEXEH
Balance
at the Balance at
beginning the end
ltems of the year Addition Redutions of the year
R{B Original price — 42,618 = 42,618
EEEEY Buildings — 42,618 — 42,618
ZEtER Accumulated
Rt depreciation &
amortization — 5,924 — 5,924
FEEREEY Buildings — 5,924 — 5,924
R E Book value — 36,694 — 36,694
EEEEY Buildings — 36,694 — 36,694
(B i Provision for
Impairment — = = -
EEEED Buildings = - — —
EEEE Book value — 36,694 — 36,694
EEEEY Buildings — 36,694 — 36,694
AR FFT T E N5 The depreciation and amortization of
FH394F It ° RMB394,000 charge for the year was
RMB394,000.
2) R EREEEANR b) Investment properties has not been issued with
B M E title documents
FrtmEER
HH FE BE RBERR
The time
excepted to
complete the
Items Original value Net value title document
BEAE 26,029 26,029 20104 & A X
Wanbo Hotel before the end
of 2010
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Bt 35 R R M ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

N, EHMBEERREIEREEZEE 8

(& Statements (continued)
10. EEE 10) Fixed Assets
(1)  BEEEEFHF a) Details of fixed assets
HH ENed XHEm FHRY L3311
Balance
at the Balance at
beginning the end of
ltems of the year Additions Reductions the term
- BEREA: Total original book value 1,917,298 153,299 160,869 1,909,728
Ed: BEREZY  Including: Buildings 574,829 37,421 32,319 579,931
WRRE Machinery&Equipment 1,295,669 103,968 124,806 1,274,831
EHTE Vehicles 17,846 5,372 1,734 21,484
HAREME Office equipment
and others 28,954 6,538 2,010 33,482
. ZEHEAH: Total accumulated
depreciation 961,445 117,190 130,457 948,178
HEd BEREEY  Including: Buildings 232,374 24,671 19,182 237,863
WS e Machinery&Equipment 694,133 87,659 107,607 674,185
EHTE Vehicles 13,221 1,650 1,680 13,191
HARE MR Office equipment
and others 21,717 3,210 1,988 22,939
=. BREERE Total net value of
FEA fixed assets 955,853 36,109 30,412 961,550
EdREREEY  Including: Buildings 342,455 12,750 13,187 342,068
BERE Machinery&Equipment 601,536 16,309 17,199 600,646
EHIA Vehicles 4,625 3,722 54 8,203
BARERE Office equipment
and others 7,237 3,328 22 10,543
M. BEEEA Total provision
for impairment - - - -
EhBEREEM  Including: Buildings = - e -
HERE Machinery&Equipment = = - =
EHIA Vehicles = = = =
HARE MR Office equipment
and others - - - -
5. AREE Total net currency value
BEEBEAT  of fixed assets 955,853 36,109 30,412 961,550
HEd BEREEY  Including: Buildings 342,455 12,750 13,137 342,068
KERE Machinery
&Equipment 601,536 16,309 17,199 600,646
EHTIA Vehicles 4,625 3,722 54 8,293
HARE MR Office equipment
and others 7,237 3,328 22 10,543

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

230 |



2 B 36 AR I S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUARB T IR

Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

N, EHMEBBRREEIRAEE 8
(%)

Bt 35 SRR B 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

10. BEEE(Z) 10) Fixed Assets (continued)
(1) BlEEBEHHFR (&) a) Details of fixed assets (continued)
RNEENHETEE During this year, fixed assets transferred from
ER oREZIE# construction in progress was RMB100, 063,000.
A K & %8 A100,063 The depreciation charge for the year was
FILe RERMMZ RMB117,190, 000.
ETITES  KNFER
117,190F 7t °
(2) B A & B A b) Fixed assets leased through operating lease
ElE&E
HA F{E BE
Items Original Cost Net value
EEREY House & Building 11,371 7,714
(3) K EEEZAE c) Fixed assets has not been issued with title
TEE documents as follows:
EBERB F{E BE FHNREENHE
The time
expected to
complete the
Name of properties Original Cost Net value title documents
BENRARE 1,802 1,630 2010F[EAISEA
Warehouse of Xinhua Before the end
Pharmaceutical Trade Itd of 2010
BENRERE 10,696 8,282 20104 & B X
Warehouse of Xinhua Before the end
Pharmaceutical Trade Itd of 2010
BENRMAE 834 646 20104 & Bl 52 A%
Office block of Xinhua Before the end
Pharmaceutical Trade Itd of 2010
BEENRERE 1,500 1,275 20106 K AT B
Warehouse of Xinhua Before the end
Pharmaceutical Trade Itd of 2010
3000ME 11 )& 55 i 5 24,750 23,574 20104 & A 5EAL
Warehouse of Before the end
3000 ton Bunuofen of 2010
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REPESHERGER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

10) Fixed Assets (continued)

K EEEZAE c) Fixed assets has not been issued with title

TEE(£) documents as follows: (continued)

EE®B RE BE MFEHNIIESEEMH
The time
expected to
complete the

Name of properties Original Cost Net value title documents

MER IS 9,500 8,936 20104 & Bl X

Xinhua commercial centre Before the end

of 2010
=FERE 1,500 1,304  2010F EAISEAK

Warehouse of Formaldehyde Before the end

of 2010

ZRBE R 1,500 1,304 20104 X AT 5B A

Warehouse of Dibromo aldehyde Before the end

of 2010
ARABEFE 1,600 1,494 20104 K AT 52X
House of Chloro-propionyl Before the end
chloride of 2010
MESKBIES 1,775 1,648 2010 KA 5E K
Staff quarter of Before the end
Xinhua Shouguang of 2010
ELN I 3,685 3,554 20104 K Al 7 Ak
Warehouse of Violuric acid Before the end
of 2010
BB E 3,000 2,941 20104 & Bl 2K
Warehouse of Cyanuric acid Before the end
of 2010
BB E 2,457 2,457 20104 K Al 72K
Warehouse of Chloroacetic acid Before the end
of 2010
Lt e R e = 4,087 4,087  2010F X BT 7=
Warehouse of Pyrazolone Before the end
of 2010
BRIRIFERE 1,784 1,614 20106 [EAISEAK
Workshop of calcium Before the end
polycarbophil of 2010
Aaf 70,470 64,746
Total
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(& Statements (continued)
11. ETEBIE 11) Construction-in-progress
(1)  ERZIEHEX a) Detailed list of construction in progress
FXeH ENEE
Balance at the end Balance at the beginning
of the year of the year
RH (313 ] WEER EERE RERS HEER BHEFE
Provision Provision
Projects Book balance  for Impairment Book value Book balance for Impairment Book value

0E(BE) Xinhua (West)
BI£E International
Industrial Park - - - 5,659 — 5,659
HE(RE) Xinhua (East)
BI#E International

Industrial Park - - - 885 = 885
glFE Innovation Park
—#EXE - Xinhua Buiding 18,387 - 18,387 8,088 — 8,088
8158 — W18 Innovation Park
~ Annex Buiding 3,707 - 3,707 2732 = 2732
gHE Innovation Park
—H#dL1t —R&Doentre1* 5,358 - 5,358 3,605 — 3,605
A Innovation Park
—HfsL2  —R&Dcentre2* 5,555 - 5,555 3703 - 3,703
MESK Xinhua Shouguang Il
“HRE east industrial
T#ETR  parkproject 76,947 = 76,947 30613 - 30613
Hit others 24,402 - 24,402 32,921 - 32,921
i Total 134,356 - 134,356 88,206 — 88,206
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REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(& Statements (continued)
11. ERIRE (&) 11) Construction-in-progress (continued)
@) BAHEBZTEELE b) Major changes in construction projects
/-9
IE%H I#RN Fnen FHam FHEE 30k 1% FXel HEXE RAGRELH
Proportion of
Balance at the Balance at construction
beginning Transfer to Other the ending Source investment
Projects Budget of the year Addition  fixed assets  deductions of the year of funds to budget
2 (BR) BRIXE EE
Xinhua (West) International Industrial Park - 5,659 - - 5,659 - Funds-own
# (RR) BRTXE BE
Xinhua (East) International Industrial Park = 885 = 444 441 = Funds-own
3R — HERE BE
Innovation Park — Xinhua Building 71,400 8,088 10,299 = = 18,387 Funds-own 25.75%
Rt EE
Innovation Park — Annex Building 13,200 2,732 975 7 — 3,707 Funds-own 28.08%
A — B BE
Innovation Park - R & D 1* 14,800 3,605 1,753 = - 5,358 Funds-own 36.20%
3E — B2 BE
Innovation Park - R & D 2* 15,700 3,703 1,852 i - 5,555 Funds-own 35.38%
HEBR-HRBTIEATE EE
Xinhua Shouguang Ill east industrial park project 182,450 30,613 127,308 80,974 — 76,947 Funds-own 86.56%
£ty BE
others - 32,921 10,126 18,645 - 24,402 Funds-own
At
Total 88,206 162,313 100,063 6,100 134,356

£ GREAEALEE
Include: Capitalized borrowing expense 0 0 0 0 0
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
11. EBIB(E) 11)  Construction-in-progress (continued)

(3) KRB ERIRAITTF c) No provision for impairment has been made
ERERBE  K:tiE and no evidence indicates any impairment of
ERITEREERE - construction-in-progress of the Company.

12. EELEE 12) Intangible Assets

(1) BEAE a) Details of Intangible Assets

RE ey FHam s8R EXEH

Balance at Balance at
the beginning the ending of
Items of the year Additions Reductions the year
— RAREA Total original value 141,147 92,949 = 234,096
Het o+ B#  Including: Land use rights 131,397 92,848 - 224,245
HHFRE Software use rights 3,192 101 - 3,293

FEF|R i Non-patented
technology 6,558 - - 6,558
—. BifEEAi: Total accumulated amortization 30,409 5,157 - 35,566
Het o+ B#  Including: Land use rights 22,488 4,057 - 26,545
HHFRE Software use rights 2,155 425 - 2,580

FEF|R i Non-patented
technology 5,766 675 = 6,441

= BRWAERE Total net book value of

BEA intangible assets 110,738 87,792 - 198,530
Hb: $3FEE  Including: Land use rights 108,909 88,791 - 197,700
AR Software use rights 1,037 (324) - 713

FEM R Non-patented
technology 792 (675) - 17
M. REEER Total provision for impairment - = = =
Hb: $3FEE  Including: Land use rights - - = =
BHERE Software use rights - - - _

FEM R Non-patented
technology - - - -

i EVEERR

BEAGt  Total intangible net carrying value 110,738 87,792 - 198,530
Het: HsfB#  Including: Land use rights 108,909 88,791 = 197,700
THRRE Software use rights 1,087 (324) - 3
FERRM Non-patented
technology 792 (675) - 117
NI AN E R 5t Y The amortization charge for the year was
o ARFHHE 167 T RMB5,157, 000.
ﬁ: o
FREFEEHGREIE In the end of year, the increase in the ending
meEx s HREE : balance of intangible assets is mainly due to:
AREFIENET = - the acquisition of the land use rights of Hutian
WE AR R FTES District and land use rights for Xinhua Shouguang
—HA TR AR o phrase project lll.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

N, EHMERREEIRAEE 8

(#& Statements (continued)
12. H\|ERE(E) 12) Intangible Assets (continued)
2) 7NN I N |l = - 2 b) Land use right not with title documents were out
BEEEFAIEBE P of acquirement as follows:
T E TiipE
Address Net value
MESHEE i Land of Xinhua Shouguang (East) 18,632
ESKAR LT Land of Xinhua Shouguang (West) 1,812
FEEFETIER (RE) Land use rights of Xinhua
T A Industrial Park, Development
Zone (East Park) 6,133
EFr Total 26,577
3) KArELEETTF 9] No provision for impairment has been made

ERERBR Rtk
B EEMEER -

and no evidence indicates any impairment of
intangible assets of the Company.

236 |

13. BREFREREE 13) Deferred Tax Assets
(1) B 187 I ZE B 12 & a) Recognized deferred tax assets
E
HA FReH FU2H
Balance at Balance at
the ending of the beginning
Items the year of the year
Impairment losses of
FRalz A HfneE available-for-Sale financial
SREERMERKX  asset held by a subsidiary - 75
FRAIZBRER Bad debts of subsidiaries 381 872
Provision for decline in
value of inventories
FREIZGEEKELEE  of subsidiaries 174 84
Unrealized internal profits
B3 ) 35 19 on sales and purchase
REHRAEFE with subsidiaries 2,489 =
&&F Total 3,044 1,031
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
13. EBEMBREE(Z) 13)  Deferred Tax Assets (continued)
2) S| #E BT B 1 = 2 gy F b) Deductable temporary difference of deferred tax
EEAHELE T assets at the ending balance
=&
AENEREERER FX&8 Fes
Balance at Balance at

Items of deductable the ending of the beginning of
temporary difference the year the year
FRAIZAIHEE Impairment losses of

CREERBEERKX available-for-Sale
financial asset held by
subsidiary - 299
FRAIZIBRER Bad debts of subsidiary 1,523 3,488
FREZTEEMKEZ.ME  Provision for decline in
value of inventories

of subsidiaries 695 336
BFARIEEA Unrealized internal profits
RE R AFFE on sales and purchase
with subsidiaries 16,595 —
CE Total 18,813 4,123
14. BHEREEHFHMAE 14)  Statement of provision for impairment loss of
Assets
FHAMEA TEHOR
Addition Reduced
BB E
HH FNeE FHHRE CRNIRER E 1) B i3 31 ]
Recovery of
Balance at years bad debts
the beginning Provision for written off in Balance at the
Items of the year the year  previous years written back written off  end of the year
BRREER Provision for bad debts 18,934 323 764 — 4,580 15,44
FEREER Provision for decling in
value of inventories 9,684 944 - = 1,438 9,090
AHHESH Provision for impairment
BERBER loss of available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 - - — - 30,000
AF Total 58,518 1,267 764 = 6,018 54,531
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%) Statements (continued)
15. fEHAER 15)  Short-term Loans
(1) FEIE S A a) Classification of short-term loans
BREN FEREH FU&%HE
Balance at Balance at
the end the beginning of
Types of loans of the year the year
= &K Credit loan 44,024 136,457
RE &K Guarantee loan 80,000 130,000
B E R Secured loan - 18,018
A&t Total 124,024 284,475
F R B8 FRERTE R The large decreased in the balance of short-term
PR - HEFER loans over the last year is because the Company
ECRMERRBE increase the overall size of the loan by reducing
BERENTE AR short-term loan, adding more long-term loans
CIRDIIR ) in order to meet the needs of the Company’s
H-ERERDEH expansion.

{830 A5 - 7
MERRS -

2) REBEEZATRAE WL b) The guaranteed borrowing was guaranteed
REERESEAR by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
BEEARRMHER Company Limited. The details are in notes 9(2)d).
HAIN - (D)4EZ “Acceptance of the guarantee.”

BRI -
16. XHBEMER 16) Held-for-trade financial liabilities
"AE FREH FU&HE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of

Items the year the year

TELRBE Derivative financial liabilities - 7,591

ARAIRSGHEeMEBELEER The Company’s held-for-trade financial liabilities are forward

HETHEESGDN T2H USD foreign exchange, mainly for export payment settlement.

REODERERLERE - £X The decrease in the ending balance of short term is mainly due

CBHERGRBERLIBKR HE to: forward USD foreign exchange contracts of last year were

TERHAZ: FFRHAZT matured during the year; there is no significant restriction for

4 ETE A #1518 R 5 B 2 K the realization of the investment.

H - BEREBEERIAHFEERXN

PR il o
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
17. EAER 17) Notes Payable
REERN FREH FUIER
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning
Item the year of the year
RITERHIESE Bank acceptance 121,835 121,266
FRENZEHR2010F6 A The ending balance of notes payable will all get matured
20H 2 FEH o on 31 June, 2010.
18. FE 1 AR & 18) Accounts Payable
FEREHE FeHE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning
Item the year of the year
FERTER Accounts payable 162,127 133,824
Hep t1F B E Including: More than one year 11,170 8,201
(1) FREMNBERBIES a) The ending balance of accounts payable does
TEHKRRQNFS% (& not include any amount due to the shareholders
5%) LA ERRERD holding 5% inclusive or more of the Company’s
AR B B8 7 3R I8 o voting capital.
2 BE 8RB @1 W FE b) Accounts payable aged over one year were
BERXANKEENM unsettled because of purchase of raw materials.
(3) FEREEHPBIELT C) The ending balance of accounts payable
YNEE B EE denominated in foreign currencies is as follows:
EXeH ENEE
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
PR R% FEEEX HAAR% R FEEX  HEARE
Original Translated QOriginal Translated
ltem Currency Exchange Rate into RMB Currency  Exchange Rate into RMB
BT EURO 2,039 9.7971 19,981 1,378 9.6590 183,266
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REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%) Statements (continued)
19. RksE 19) Advances from Customers
EXEH FYIER
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Item the year the year
78 Uk BR 70 Advances from customers 22,855 6,936
HEi i 1FEBE Including: More than one Year 1,352 1,481
(1) FRTEWERRERFE & a) The significant increase in the ending balance of
BRA-HEFBR advances from customers over that of last year,
EARABAEHE mainly due to the good performance of sales
B  EWHEE more advanced payment was received.

HIEMERZ -

2) FARFBEWIRFKEREE b) The ending balance of advances from customers
TEFARFSER (& does not include any amount due to the
5% ) LA b R R R 5 shareholders holding 5% inclusive or more of the
K AR BR B 7 5RIA © Company’s voting capital.

(3) BRBC B M T8 IR c) The advance from customers aged over one year
HNETEEHMARGEH was unsettled petty expense.

MEER -

(4) BRERFBEEAT d) The ending balance of accounts payable
SNEEBRER - denominated in foreign currencies is as follows:
E¥3 1] ENeE
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
EL R ] R#% wHEE HEAER R REEX A ARM
Original Translated QOriginal Translated
Item Currency Exchange Rate into RMB Currency  Exchange Rate into RMB
e usb 432 6.8282 2,951 77 6.8346 529
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. SMERRETERHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
20. FE - B T %7 A 20) Employees’ wage Payable
A ENeE FHEME FHRHR EXeH
Balance at Balance at
the beginning of the end of
Item the year Additions Payment the year
1% (584 Salaries(including bonuses,
2B TIEE) allowance and subsidies) = 153,582 153,582 =
BIEHE Staff welfare = R % -
iteRBE Social securities = 40,626 40,626 -
E o BBERRE Including: 1. Medical insurance = 8,424 8,424 -
2. BEAEERRE 2. Basic pension
insurance = 28,175 28,175 -
3. RERRE 3. Unemployment
insurance - 1,958 1,958 -
4 IBREE 4. Work injury
insurance - 1,176 1,176 -
5 HERRE 5. Matemity
insurance = 893 893 -
FRAES Housing funds 1,073 17,565 18,328 310
TE&RBMBIHELE  Union rumning costs and
employee education costs 14,517 2,930 4,310 13,137
EZEZR Directors’ and Supervisors’
BEABME remuneration 460 8,850 328 8,982

RERSHBRETHHE  Compensation to employee
for termination of

employment relationship - 207 207 -
Hit Other 16,147 36,780 4,611 48,316
a5 Total 32,197 260,572 222,024 70,745
EMTEERBEAFENL The others mainly consist of provision for staff bonus
&K RN E SE R IE R AT IR in accordance with the operating result and operating
W TITRBES HERSE incomes up to the date of the report, the Company has
B ARREB R ZENER paid staff bonus totally of RMB12,370,000.

HEE1,2378 T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000

REPESHERGER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

. EHfMBERETERAHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(#%) Statements (continued)
21. EXRE 21) Tax Payables
RE EXEH FYIER
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Categories of tax the year the year
RER Value added tax (13,584) (645)
EEM Business tax 68 39
YT AR R Urban maintenance &
construction tax 520 272
REMSH Income tax 6,927 (2,238)
& A BT 15 %% Corporation individual income tax 177 89
BED Property tax 1,174 987
T AR Land use tax 4,032 1,640
ENTER Stamp tax 210 154
HE BM M Educational surcharges 300 155
& &F Total (176) 453
22, EffE 22) Interest payable
HH FREH FUeHE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Items the year the year
7 BT B R B E AR HY Interest on long term loan
REERFE repayable by instalments 347 =
23. MEMERF 23) Dividends Payable
HH FEReH FHER
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Item the year the year
BIENF IR AR A Dividends for State owned
legal person shares = =
H b A & FF B A% F Dividends for other
demotic shares — —
EAh Others 5,832 5,325
aar Total 5,832 5,325
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

I\,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

AHUMEREEERBAEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(& Statements (continued)
24, HMREM 24) Other Payables
FReH FUH
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Item the year the year
H Ath FE K Other payable 114,736 78,459
Hec1FEN L More than one year 6,078 8,246

(1)

FREMEN KGR
ITERENMIERE

KARFHRA °

FREMEBN KGR
PR - HIER
RERZ: ARBEHR
FE TAZFRIE HIEA o

FREMEN KGR
R N = NI ECE )
(B85%) LA £ R R H#E
A& 15 B RS SR BE NI FIE o

fR ik i B — F R H A
BANRERER KRG
BHIRX-

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7

At the end of the year, the balance of other
payables mainly consists of the payment of
constructions.

The increase in the ending balance of other
payable over the last year is mainly due to:
constructions cost payable increases more at
2009.

At the end of year, the balance of other
payables does not have any amount due to the
shareholders holding 5% inclusive or more of the
Company'’s voting capital.

Other payable aged over one year in the ending
balance was mainly unsettled payment of
constructions.
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REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%) Statements (continued)
24. HthfERSR (2) 24) Other Payables (continued)
(5) FRKBEMENK e) Individually significant other payable balance are
as follows:
HE &8 ] HEEAE
Item Amount Ageing Content
I#HEBBEERRRIEBRAR 1ENUAA TR
Jiangsu Qing-feng International
Environmental Protection Engineering Less than
Co., Ltd. 13,704 one year  construction cost
LR B R 7 BE A 1F AR TIE®
Less than
Jiangsu Saideli Pharmaceutical Machinery 4,082 one year  construction cost
FETARIRBAREFH R AEELIER 1FE AR TR
China Construction Engineering
Corporation, Zibo branch manager of Less than
the Department of Electronics 1,687 one year  construction cost
IR FIRETRNDER AR 1ENARN TR
Shandong Urban Construction Less than
Engineering Company Limited 1,241 one year  construction cost
EATRFEBREREENAE 1E AR TR
Hou Town, Shouguang City Project Less than
Area Management Office 1,122 one year  construction cost
At
Total 21,836
6) HAb B AP BEINR f) The ending balance of other payables
TN BREE denominated in foreign currencies is as follows:
EXEH ENEH
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
EL R ] R#& WHEE HAAEY R HEEZ  HEARE
Original Translated Translated
ltem Currency Exchange Rate into RMB  Original Currency Exchange Rate into RMB
e usb - - - 2% 6.8346 176
B EURO 14 9.7971 139 32 9.6590 309
aaf TOTAL - - 139 — — 485
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
25. RHfE® 25)  Long -term borrowings
(1) RAIE 55 a) Classification of long- term borrowings
B&EB FXe&W FYI&HE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Types of loan the year the year
REBEE R Guarantee loans 150,000 =
= & Credit loans 120,000 -
&t Total 270,000 —
2 REEZXBTAFZ b) The guaranteed loans were guaranteed by
RS IR B EE R g Shandong Hualu Holding Group Company
AR DA REHIE Limited, the ultimate shareholder of the
RoERTA (D) Company. The details are in notes 9(2)d).
AFEZHER] o “Acceptance of guarantee”
(3) REFE S FEAE T c) Details of the long-term loans
HREH BRERE  ERALA kE HE B33 1] ENeE
Balance at Balance at
Date of Date of the end of  the beginning
Lender inception maturity Currency Interest rate the year of the year
PEELNRTEENT ARE
Export-Import Bank of
China, Qingdao Branch 2009-10-14  2011-10-13 RMB 3.51% 150,000 -
MERT AEE
China CITIC Bank 2009-9-3 2012-9-2 RMB 4.86% 40,000 -
BERT AEE
Agricultural Bank of China 2009-6-8 2012-6-7 RMB 5.13% 30,000 -
BERf ARE
Agricultural Bank of China 2009-6-17 2012-6-16 RMB 5.13% 30,000 -
REBAIRERR ARE
Agricultural Bank of China,
Development Zone Branch 2009-6-30 2017-6-29 RMB 5.35% 20,000 =
At
Total = — - - 270,000 =

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7 | 2 45



2B 36 AR I S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUARB T AR

EZ i% iﬁ 2‘% Bﬁ- %I (,,{E;) Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000

REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%) Statements (continued)
26. BEFRERARE 26) Deferred Tax Liabilities
(1) G EREILATZH a) Components of deferred tax liabilities after
B EmALEE netting off
FXEH LT
Balance at the end Balance at the beginning
of the year of the year
A EHRERNER BERARAR EANEREZE  BUAETAER
Taxable Deferred Taxable Deferred
temporary income temporary income
Items differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities

MELESREE Changes in fair value

AhBEED Held-for-sale financial assets 64,541 9,681 4,334 650
2) BT BT 15 7 & = i b) Deferred tax assets and deferred income tax
HERFEH B 1B G #H 8 liabilities netting Details
i
FERIE
)| ERHER FEReE
Deferred income
Temporary tax amount for
Items differences the year
BERBNEE Deferred income tax assets
BRAIZERER Bad debts provision of
the Company 13,670 2,051
FRAEFESLEER Provision for decline in value of
inventories of the Company 8,578 1,287
NE A E Provision for impairment loss of
TRHEENELERE the Company’s held-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 4,500
NaBErE Loses on the Company’s
‘EBK investment in associates 4,068 610
NalRER Unpaid wages and salaries
TEH® of the parent company 55,850 8,377
BARAHEESR The change in fair value
BEANABES of the Company’s held-for-sale
financial assets 31 5
NG Subtotal 112,197 16,830
BEMSRAR Deferred income tax liabilities
BRARAIHHEES R The change in fair value
BEANBEE of the Company’s
held-for-sale
financial assets 176,738 26,511
INEt Subtotal 176,738 26,511
EHERE Net amount 64,541 9,681

2 46 | IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited



2 B 36 AR I S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUARB T IR

Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000 Ej z% *ﬁ 2% Bﬁ- %I (nifﬁs)

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
27. HthERBAR 27) Other non-current liabilities
(1) H I B & a) Details of other non-current liabilities
HH FREH FU&HE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the beginning of
Items the year the year

HBEEMBBITAE  Asset-related

government subsidies 50,656 —
HEREES Authorized reserve fund 3,562 3,562
&St Total 54,218 3,562
) E T 8 b) Government subsidies
HAEE
BFHBES FXReH Eeed ZFTFEEESH EEREA
Credited to
Types of Balance in the profit
government the end and loss for Reversal Reason
subsidiaries of the year the year for the year for reversal
FBHER Compensation for
relocation 44,904 — — —
=Tz 3000 tons
W8S IEE Ibuprofen Project 5,752 148 - —
S Total 50,656 148 = =
R H2008F 9 & In accorded with “Shandong Province Zibo City
BWMLEESET R Eastern Chemical Area Relocation Plan” issued
Bt T=BREN] - in September 2008, parts of production of the
KRB EDE BT Company were listed in this relocation plan. In
AG—RBHRES o this respect, pursuant to Zibo Financial Bureau
RS TE T BB grants relocation Zi-Cai Qi(2009) No.29, Zi-Cai-
& #& 8 B £[2009]29 Qi(2009) No.33 & Zi-Cai-Qi (2009) No.55 issued
5% O BF 1©[2009]33 by Finance Bureau of Zibo City, the Company
5% A0 BF 1£[2009]55 was granted with relocation compensation.
T ERITFEM During this year, the Company received
B KRFEARRQ ALK compensation totally of RMB44.904 millions.
U B B B E R
44,904 F 7T °
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REPESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHMERRTEFEHAFE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(4& Statements (continued)

28. i % 3 28) Share Capital

FNER 5580 FReH
Balance at the beginning Balance at the ending
of the year Change of the year
RE4H/EH i | LA1(%) MR 2R LREWR ] vt &8 L (%)
Issue of new Capitalisation
Name of shareholders Amount  proportion(%) share Bonus issue of reserve Transfer subtotal amount  Proportion(%)

FRERARN
Conditional
tradable shares
axrnAk 163,259 370 = = = 949 949 164,208 3591
State-owned shares
EREARR - = = - - = - = -
State-owned legal-person
shares
AfbmERRK 24,550 537 = = = (948) (948) 23,602 516
Domestic shares
B BREARR 24,021 536 - - = (949) (949) 23,578 515
Including: Domestic
legal-person held shares
RRERARR 2 0.01 = = = 1 1 2% 001
Domestic natural
person shares
SRR - - - - - - - - =
Foreign-funded shares
ECRE 1IN - — - - = s = = =
Including: Foreign
legal-person
shares
FERARR - - - - = - - - -
Foreign natural
person shares
FRERNBRA 187,809 41,07 - - - 1 1 187,810 407
Sub-total
ERERKRN
Unconditional tradable
shares
ARBLER 119,504 26.13 - = — 1) 1) 119,503 26.13
Domestically isted
RMB A shares
SFMEHINER = - = = - - i = .
Domestically listed
foreign invested shares
SNEMANER 150,000 32.80 - - = - . 150,000 32.80
Overseas listed foreign
invested H shares
1t — - - = - - ~ - -
Others
ERERERRAR 269,504 58.93 - - - 1) 1) 269,503 58.93
Subtotal
iz 457,313 10000 = = = = = 457,313 100.00
Total share
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RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IN. SMERRETERHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#&) Statements (continued)
209, BELE 29) Capital reserve
HAE Emed FEBN *ERD EXeH
Balance at Balance at
the beginning the end of

Item of the year Additions  Deductions the year

BESGEE Revaluation of assets surplus 60,910 — — 60,910

BB Premium share 496,492 — - 496,492

BX 1B Receipt of donation 1,158 = = 1,158

HinBEARNE Other capital reserve 58,943 92,098 — 151,041

S Total 617,503 92,098 — 709,601

(1) HMWEARBEFER a) Other capital reserve mainly consists of the
AEHESHEED change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
RBIEITIEARAMAK assets, which are legal-person shares of Bank of
FEREBIEARNA Communications and Pacific Insurance Company
REEEY - Limited.

@) FREADTEHEE b) The ending balance of capital reserve over last
FRA-HFER year is mainly due to the increase in the market
= RBIPITKF price of shares of Bank of Communications and
FRBAERAAE Pacific Insurance Company Limited because of
Bt EFRKIEEF - both their stocks going public in the end of last

year.
30. E&oE 30) Surplus Reserves
|E FMeHE FEBN XERD EXeH
Balance at Balance at
the beginning the end of

Item of the year Additions  Deductions the year

EEREBRNTE Statutory surplus reserves 102,513 9,889 - 112,402

TEBHNE Discretionary surplus reserve 64,797 = = 64,797

Shr Total 167,310 9,889 - 177,199

31. XPEFE 31)  Undistributed Profits

(1) FUE 73 BO ) a) Appropriation Proportion

HH SEER EELG LELGH
Basis of Proportion in Proportion in

Item appropriation this year last year

RIAKBNES b @Al Ed

Statutory surplus reserve Net profit 10% 10%
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Bt 35 R R M ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

N, EHMERREEIRAEE 8

(&) Statements (continued)
31. koEFEE) 31) Undistributed Profits (continued)
2) T 2 BP % b) Profit Distribution Statement
HHE TERH EFe®
Balance at Balance at
the end the beginning
Item of the year of the year
B R 9 BE 71 B Undistributed profit
at beginning of the year 210,691 198,497
hn o BRRI RSB Add: adjustment to
ME TR the undistributed
profit at
beginning
of the year - —
o AREFEFE Add: Net profit of the year 102,244 33,965
BRI AEBAES Less: Appropriation
of statutory
surplus reserve 9,889 3,052
o B E B IR A Dividends payable
on common stock 13,719 13,719
FARREET Accruals for employee
RELEIES bonus and welfare fund
by subsidiaries 132 —
HAR K 2 BE 7 E Undistributed profit at
the end of the year 289,195 210,691
Heh o BEIRESMF  Including: proposal
cash dividend 22,866 13,719

20096 H8H + AR

On 8 June, 2009, the Company’s 2008 Annual

AI2008F E A F KRR General Meeting passed the 2008 annual profit
AN iB iR A 20084 distribution plan, that after deduction of 10%
EFEIEFR & from the profit to the statutory surplus reserve
IREV10% M % & & # fund, the Company with its total share capital of

NHEE% - AEKRA
457,312,8300% A& &
R Rk
REAFERARE
0.037T(EF) °

20104 A9 * AR

457,312,830 shares as a base, distributes cash
dividend to all shareholders of RMBO0.03 per
share (including tax).

On 9 April, 2010, the Company’s sixth meeting

AENEEZEE N of the Board of Directors endorsed the 2009
R & BB A B82009 profit distribution plan, after deduction of 10%
FEMBSBEESR from the profit to the statutory surplus reserve
IR B0%H A E & fund, the Company with its total share capital of

BAEESE  LEAK
R457,312,8300% &
Eg MEEREIKR
BHRSAFNNEBRAR
#0.057C (B2 8) @ &%
20094 [Z FI| 5 Be 18
RN BN R A
AE o

457,312,830 shares as a base, distributes cash
dividends to all shareholders, RMBO0.05 per share
(including tax). The 2009 profit distribution plan
is subject to the approval by shareholders at
general meeting for the annual.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHHBEBMREEHRABFEE 8  Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(#%&) Statements (continued)
32. JPHEFRES 32) Minority Interests
DEBEREB DERELA % FXeH FMeH
Proportion Balance at Balance at
Name of of minority the end of the beginning
minority shareholder interests the year of the year
IR s E Shandong Xinhua
EREERQA] Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 10% - 49
IR EE [ Shandong Xinhua
ERETERA] Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 12% - 332
LI PENG LI PENG 23.1% - 790
LK&KE Z B R~ Al LK&K Company Limited 35% 2,515 =
Eastwest United East west United
Group, INC Group, INC 25% 3,266 3,434
ERISEEYIEET S Perrigo Asia
BR A A Holding Company 49.9% 30,537 29,140
& §ir Total 36,318 33,745
33. EEWA -BERF 33) Operating Income and Operating Cost
(1) BRI - EEEAK a) Operating Income and Operating Cost
HH XELH tFEeE
Amount of Amount of
Item the year last year
FEEFKRA Income from main operation 2,284,309 2,058,746
H B A Income from other operation 37,618 38,218
EEIWA AT Sub-total 2,321,927 2,096,964
TEEBKAK Cost for main operation 1,833,814 1,765,540
H h ZEFE A Cost for other operation 43,614 38,675
EENAEE Sub-total 1,877,428 1,804,215
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

N, EHMERREEREHEE

(%)

33. EXBA EBEXEFE)

(1)

@)

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

33) Operating Income and Operating Cost (continued)

EREWA - EEHLL a) Operating Income and Operating Cost
(&) (continued)
KEFLEBENE During this year, gross profit of the main
HEA HFZERE operation has been changed moderately, mainly
= ARAREENRT due to: it is the faith that the Company’s main
FR % BB R B chemical raw material was influence by the
HEHEE g LF fluctuation of international crude oil price. The
THEERBEET price of the crud oil has been declined since the
[&  RFIERE) P E second half of pervious year. However, in this
e FEAREE year, the price of the oil was gradually recovered
B TEMBHFEY to a higher level. The average purchasing price
HEEBRENLE - in this year became lower than last year and the
B AR T P& g E 8 extent of the decrease in cost was much lesser
BEBHTNRIEBEE - than that of sales. In addition, the sale of raw
253 R A9 A0 o itk material in this year is much better than last
ONIR F I B R R gy year. The combined effect of the above reasons
EEK FFH A booming the gross profit of the Company for
o mELXRZERF the year, so both the reason influence company
BN 7 FE F) & increasing in its gross profit
% o
FEEENA K A— b) Income and Costs from Main Operation—
12 a5 4E Classified by Products
XESLH FESH
Amount of this year Amount of last year

ERER KA 2% WA %N
Category
of products income costs income costs
) 2 Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,208,471 909,042 1,222,713 1,058,008
Er o Including: Export sales

REZELA 849,537 681,227 877,910 786,712
U7 Preparations 472,812 336,258 404,290 295,129
[EEdink Commerce circulations 599,058 585,608 412,894 394,139
BT R EAM Chemical and others 3,968 2,906 18,849 18,264
a5t Total 2,284,309 1,833,814 2,058,746 1,765,540
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#%&) Statements (continued)
33. BEWA BERES(Z) 33) Operating Income and Operating Cost (continued)
3) VIR =N- 0k E T4 c) Operating Income from top five customers
N
EF&B *ELHE EEBl(%)
Amount of
Name of customers  Amount of this year Proportion(%) last year
1Ly 39K B AL 58 2 Shandong xingkanggi
BRAHA Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 181,470 7.94
EHB M S & 2 U.S. Perrigo Pharmaceuticals 133,161 5.83
Pepsi-cola int I. Pepsi-cola int I. 59,799 2.62
IWRIHF BB R AT Shandong ruizhong
pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 56,279 2.46
FHREFRBER AR Bayer Healthcare Co., Ltd. 53,090 2.32
BRI Total 483,799 21.17
34. = e B 34) Business Taxes and Surcharges
HAE RH#LE B XELH tFE&E
Amount of Amount of
Item Tax rate this year last year
EER Business tax 5% 297 279
W RN Urban maintenance &
construction tax 7% 8,432 5,967
B &M Educational surcharges 4% 4,817 3,410
Sizh Total 13,546 9,656
ANFEER S KM NG R The increase in the business taxes and surcharges
A HFXZFRAR: AFH for the year is mainly because sales income increased
B WAL DN 15 FE 25 38 B making the increase in value-added tax payable, and so
SR FIBEH NS as the other items of taxes and surcharge .
&z g o
35. MBEHA 35) Financial Expenses
HH EERH tEEH
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
e H Interest expenses 19,308 17,956
o FLEMA Less: interest income 1,949 3,616
on - PE R B K Add: exchange loss 8,748 (6,755)
o B Add: others 670 880
aar Total 26,777 8,465
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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. EHfMBERETERAHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(#%) Statements (continued)
36. HERERX 36) Impairment Loss of Assets
HAE XELH FFEe®
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
EREBX Provision bad debts 323 2,744
FEKEEX Provision for decline in
value of inventories 944 1,749
= Total 1,267 4,493
37. ARBEEBHKS 37) Gain or Loss from changes in fair value
"AE TELH EFe®E
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
RHMECREE Gain or loss from changes in
ARBEEZDH KA fair value of held-for-trading
financial assets 7,591 (23,488)
38. KIS 38) Investment Gain
(1) B 73 K a) The source of income investment gain
EERBFWRBORE XELH FFeH
Sources of income Amount of Amount of
on investment this year last year
EmEZE R Income from long-term
A& 4% B W = equity investment
accounted for using
equity method 4,912 2,119
EAEAHEESLmEE Investment income from
HIR IS IR E W Available for sale financial
assets during the period
of ownership 2,995 4,022
RERPRERE Investment income from
EEMNEE K= disposal of long-term
equity investments — 479
H1h Others 4 29
A &F Total 7,911 6,649
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
38. BIKNS 38) Investment Gain
2) #E ek m E g R AR b) Income from Long -term equity investment
R E W accounted for using equity method
XEH FFI]
HH EEEH rEeE REDHER
Amount of Amount of  The reason
Items this year last year  for change
IWERFEREELIBERAT W B B
JF I E1E
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Net profit changes
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (197) (521) of the investee
WRHERELCTREBR AR WA B
I E 1
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Net profit changes
Chemical Equipment Co., Ltd. 451 (2,213) of the investee
ISR EHI S5 R A A W B B
SR E b
Shandong Zibo Xincat Net profit changes
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 4,658 4,853 of the investee
CE
Total 4,912 2,119
RN TEE R U There is no significant restriction on the returns
O REEE AR o of investment income.
39. RO U A 39) Non-operating Income
(1) &2 oh I A BH AR a) Details of non-operating income
HA *ELHE FEeE
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
ERDEEREFE Proceeds from disposal of
non-current assets 2,273 1,324
B BEEE Including: Proceeds
BEFE from disposal
of fixed assets 2,273 1,324
AT 4 B Government Subsidies 2,568 15,762
Hh Others 1,968 3,108
SR Total 6,809 20,194
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

N, EHMERREEIRAEE 8

(&) Statements (continued)
39. EEIMEA (Z) 39) Non-operating Income (continued)
2) BT B4 - b) Details of Government subsidies
wHEES TEST FFEeHE HMEXHR
Amount of Amount of
Type of subsidiaries this year last year Approval document
BRIz EREE S 1,688 15,497 JETE = ¥R AT E %
MEREREag T &
Financial support funds for Issued by Zibo High-tech
tapping the potential Industrial Development
Zone Management
Committee
EEREMARX 8 — HEMMEETE
Subsidiaries for disposal of Issued by Finance
old vehicle Bureau of Zibo City
7 R A EE R B K 22 — HEMMEETE
Subsidiaries for clean production Issued by Finance
Bureau of Zibo City
Z im0 i A RE R (E 400 — HEMMEETE
Xiao Fu River Basin Issued by Finance
ecological compensation Bureau of Zibo City
FHE 2% R 4 BY 250 —  JEF}E[2009]355% -
V8 B 12[2009]345%
Science and Technology Kefa Zi [2009] No. 35,
Development Grants Zi financial enterprises
NO.[2009] 34
= FHAM RS BIRE WA 147 —  BHEE[2009]1575%%
3000 tons of Ibuprofen Lu Choi Kin means
project transferred from [2009] 157
deferred income
T AR IE 53 —  {REE[2008]285%
Rebate of Land-use tax Hou Zheng Fa [2008]
No. 28

EREXERZBRESMEL =
Special subsidies for

development of

information industry
O 228 =

Export incentives

200 B BF##E[2008]130%%
Lu Choi Kin means
[2008] No. 130

65 BBI{#E[2008]755%
Lu financial standing
means [2008] No. 75,

At 2,568
Total

15,762
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(& Statements (continued)
40. BEIHZH 40) Non-operating Expense
HH XELH TFEEE
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
IRBEEREBX Loss on disposal of
non-current assets 19,606 7,012
Heh EFEEEBREE%  Including: loss on disposal
of fixed assets 19,606 7,012
HHNE L Donations - 426
SIREERNE T Overdue fines and penalties 990 468
MEE EREEKX Loss on disposal of
current assets 496 —
Efh Others 2,252 2,640
SEr Total 23,344 10,546
41. FRENER 41) Income Tax Expenses
HH XELH TF&%
Amount of Amount of
Item this year last year
BEHFRENHER Income tax expenses for
current period 22,557 9,822
BRIEFSH & A Deferred income tax expenses (9,121) (3,453)
&3t Total 13,436 6,369
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. S ERRTEHFHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(#& Statements (continued)
42. EEXxsREGSGHEESRK 42) Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
S EBE share calculation
"AE ;3] XELH EFeHE
Amount of Amount of
Items No. this year last year

5B & 2 R AR IR 69 FDE
Net profit attributable to 1

shareholders of the Company 102,244 33,965
BENERARMNIFLCELEER
Non-recurring gains and losses 2

attributable to the Company (6,815) (9,484)
FEAERARRKRE -

MR BB R EFRE
The net profit after attributable 3=1-2

shareholders of the Company,

excluding non-recurring

gains and losses 109,059 43,449
FRAN B E
The total number of shares in 4

the beginning of the year 457,313 457,313

NIE® BRSO

7 B & 38 00 % 19 24()
The number of shares of capitalisation 5

of reserve or business (I) — —
BT 3T AR oK 15 85 AR S 3 00 AR 19 (1)
The number of shares increase in 6

Issuing new shares or

debt to equity (Il) - —
MmO T —RAHhRE

FRMO AT A
The accumulated number of months 7

of Increase share (Il) from next

month to the end of the year - =
= 3] 5 55 2 ik 19 8L
Reduction due to 8

the shares repurchased — —
ARG T —AMHEE

FRMEF A
The accumulated number of 9

reduction share from next month

to the end of the year — —
48 R Rk A AR 17 28
The number of shares reduced 10 - —
WEH A HE
No. of Month of the reporting period 11 - =
BTSN 3B AR N HE 7 35 8L
Weighted average number of 12=4+5+6x7+

ordinary shares public outstanding 11-8x9+11-10 457,313 457,313
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’nued)

IN. S ERRTITEHEHEE 8 Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
42. EXxsREGSGHEESRK 42) Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
S EBER (&) share calculation (continued)
HHE ;33 xESE FEeHE
Amount of Amount of
Items No. this year last year
EFSREE0
Basic earnings per share (I) 13=1+12 0.22 0.07
-2 331 &=1(])}
Basic earnings per share (ll) 14=38+12 0.24 0.10
ERRAERANMEL
BT RS
Dilution potential ordinary shares 15
interest recognized as an expense = =
EnE A
Conversion expresses 16 — _
Bt (554 &
Income tax rate 17 15% 15%

AR - EAREITHE - MR
B FIEINE) T F AR DA T 19 81
The increase in number of shares 18
weighted average number of
Warrants and options exercisable,
convertible bonds, etc - —

BESEKEE(0)
Diluted earnings per share () 19=[1+(15-16)x
(1-17)]=(12+18) 0.22 0.07
BESERKEE0)
Diluted earnings per share (ll) 19=[3+(15-16)x
(1-17)]=(12+18) 0.24 0.10
43. Hfiizaka 43)  Other comprehensive Income
HH b 3378 ] tEeE
Amount of Amount of
Items this year last year
1. The profits generated by
1. AELESREE Available- for- sale
EENFNESE financial assets 107,099 (273,428
less: Income tax impact
oL ESREE on Available-for-sale
EERNMEHEZE financial assets 16,065 (41,044)
Amount recovered in
other comprehensive
AIEAGT AE MRS income in previous
e & BEE A period transfer for
BarFE the year (224) =
% Subtotal 91,258 (232,384)
2. Translation differences of
financial statements
denominated in
2. INEBBBERTEER foreign currencies (47) (274)
Total
aar 91,211 (232,658)
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

IN. EHHBERREEHRABFEE 8  Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(#& Statements (continued)
4. BETER 44) Cash Flow Statement
(1) V&Y aon:0E- 1. Other receipts/payments relating to cash of
B REEEE operating/investing/ financing activities
B H R %
1) U 3] By B A B2 a) Other Cash Receipt Relating to Operating
"L TEE) A Activities
# IR & B 4
XELH EFES &
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item this year last year
2 WA Interest income 1,949 2,958
8 AL A Subsidies income 53,172 16,062
R Fund transactions = 3,803
RITEAESR Bank acceptance
RES security deposit 16,962 —
Hth Other 1,202 3,612
aEr Total 73,285 26,435
2) X EY E fth B b) Other Cash Payments Relating to
LEEEH B Operating Activities
#)3R & BA 40
XELH EF&8
Amount of Amount of
IHH Item this year last year
/N = Office expenses 5,194 4,061
EIRE Travel expenses 3,161 2,438
LHEE - E:HE - Annual listing fee,audit fee and
EEg® Board’s fee 5,080 5,424
HE5 8 Sewage discharge fees 3,032 3,329
BE - miHFEEE  Advertising and marketing
expenses 36,537 22,773
EE Freight charges 43,785 36,150
ERHBEESE Entertainment expenses 5,308 3,213
REitHAEE Research and development
expenses 19,601 9,087
RITHERAESRE Bank acceptance note,
18 15 3N security deposit for
RESS secured borrowings = 46,302
HAth Others 18,383 10,998
aBEr Total 140,081 143,775
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

N, EHMEBBRREEHREAEE 8

(%) Statements (continued)
4. BeRER(E) 44)  Cash Flow Statement (continued)
2) BB REXREGT 2. Additional information for consolidated cash flow
=y statement
FERE LESE
EH Item Amount of this year Amount of last year
1. BB ARES 1. Reconciliation of net income to
BEIDHRLRE: cash flows from operating activities
EHE Net profit 105,938 39,671
n: BEREERE Add: Provisions for impairment
loss of assets 1,267 4,493
ETEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 117,190 112,927
ENEEEH Amortization of intangible assets 5,157 4,498
REETEE EBVEE Losses on disposal of fixed
MEMRAEENEL assets, intangible assets and
(Weas A T() 151 other long-term assets
(or bracket: gains) 17,333 5,688
NREEEDER Profit or loss from changes
(W AT()) 5558 51) in fair value (or bracket: gains) (7,591) 23,488
BBER (REAI()JE) Financial expense (or bracket: gains) 28,056 13,646
REBE (WEIAT()ES) Investment loss (or bracket: gains) (7,911) (6,649)
ERAEHEENRD Decrease in deferred tax assets
(A0 T() B3 (or bracket: increase) (2,013) 1,126
BIEMEHAEMEN Increase in deferred tax liabilities
CRALAT() 151 (or bracket: decrease) 9,031 (45,624)
FERRED Decrease in inventories
(S MBAT()JEES) (or bracket: increase) (39,212) (19,461)
T EIIE A MR D Decrease in operating receivables
(A0AT()JE5) (or bracket: increase) 3,032 (83,975)
e EMER MEMN Increase in operating payables
CRALAT() 151 (or bracket: decrease) 113,619 53,651
BEEHELM Net cash flows from
BeReFE operating activities 344,796 103,479
2. FEREGKIM 2. Significant investing and financing
EXRENEZED: activities not involving cash receipt
or payment:
EBERER Conversion of debts to capital = =
—FNIBHTEARAR Convertible bonds due within one year = =
BERAETEE Fixed assets acquired on Finance lease - —
. ReRESEREY 3. Changes in cash and cash equivalents:
BEDRR:
RenBASE Ending balance of cash 364,398 183,667
W R EBGE Less: beginning balance of cash 183,667 199,833
N B EENMNERGE Add: ending balance of cash equivalents - —
W RESEMNEBNRE Less: beginning balance of cash equivalents = —
ReRBESSEMTEME  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 180,731 (16,166)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

. EHMBEERREERAEE
(&

/IR

4. BEeRERE)

8

KRB MRMEERRAFRI AN - HUARB T IR
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RIBPEE T ER HR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

44)

Cash Flow Statement (continued)

(3) S RRIE 2 e A & Cash and Cash equivalents presented in cash
B MBELFEYE flow statement
i
FkRkEWH FHeE
Amount of Amount of
IHH Item this year last year
Re Cash 364,398 183,667
HE: EFEHEE Including: Cash in hand 163 2,115
AT BERF AR Bank deposit available
TSR ERTT for payments at
TR any moment 359,448 176,173
BEASIENN Other funds available
LA HYHE At for payments at any
BEBES moment 4,787 5,379
ReEEY Cash equivalents - =
BRIREMIREZE  Ending balance of cash
BY 458 and equivalents 364,398 183,667
Hep: QRIS Including: Restricted cash and
SEA equivalents of the
FRAIFEHA Company or
PR &l #Y subsidiaries in the
IR & A Group.
ReEEY - =
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)

. FEBRAFREREXS 9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions
(—) FEBRAFRE (1) Related Party Relationships
7. BE RG] Je AR E A: Parent company and the ultimate control
(1) Nal k& a) Parent company and the ultimate control
EH T
RELFRE il 2
L LyEL Relation ships with ~ &¥EH  Hfii TERE EEREA Code of
Name of Related Party  the Company Nature Registered address Principal activities BELTRE Legal person  Organization
LFFEBEEE L YNGwAsoN] AEBE LREHETRERE 148 RENBETEOR N bAsNG S 164132472
BREEAR BHERS EHE
Shandong Xinhua Parent company State-owned  No. 14, East 1st Road, Investment in the design Guo Qin
Pharmaceutical of the Gompany Zhangdian Dist., Zibo, of construction projects,
Group Company Shandong Province. property development
Limited and food and beverage, etc.
ERPRERFRAT SRAZERRE  BEBE  LWREEBTEMEE HilE BEERE: BREZERRE ZRE 771039712
Shandong Hualu Holding ~~ The ultimate State-owned  No. 1, Bangpeng Street, Jinan,  Investment and management in Li Tongdao
Group Company Limited ~ holding company Shandong Province. fertilizer and petrochemicals, efc.
2 NGINEoEE S b) Registered capital of the Company held
EARAREE by parent company and its changes
FNeE
Balance at FReq
the beginning FEEM XEFD Balance at the
ARARE Name of Related Party of the year Additions Deductions end of the year

IWRHEBEHEF  Shandong Xinhua

BREFRAH Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 298,500 0 0 298,500
(3) NEIiE=3 c) Parent company’s shareholding in the
M REZ Company and its changes
BReHE 13401
Holding amounts Holding proportion
LE$8
FESE  Balance at the
Balance at the beginning FELH i3]
mhAEE Name of related party  end of the year of the year This year Last year
WRHEEEE Shandong Xinhua
BEREARAR Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 164,208 163,259 35.91% 35.70%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

h BEBRAFRERERXE (Z) 9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)
(—) PRABEABRE(£Z) (1) Related Party Relationships (continued)
2 FINa] B: Subsidiaries
(1) /NG| a) Subsidiaries
fREY 403 ARBRRE
FoRER Type of Place of EHNE EAE Code of
Name of subsidiaries organisation registration Principal activities Legal person Organization
1 IRFZERELFERAA ERELAF RSB KD BEMTIHE TR 766662729
Shandong Xinhua Limited company ~ Zibo Shandong Sales of Pharmaceutical Ren Fulong
Pharmaceutical Trade Chemical
Co., Ltd.
2. IIRFEHZEELD AREARA WRA BT BRI IHE KR 788496661
BREAAT
Shandong Xinhua Limited company  Zibo Shandon Sales of Pharmaceutical Zhang Daiming
Pharmaceutical Import & Chemical
Export Co., Ltd.
SOMBHERERGRARAR  BRELAR LR BELIR: HET 737227162
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Limited company ~ Zibo Shandon Engineering Design of Du Deping
Design Institute Co., Ltd. Pharmaceutical Chemical
4 KBHEAEEEHERDA  BRELAA WRE AT BEMTHE TR 267196268
Zibo Xinhua drugstore chain Limited company  Zibo Shandon Sales of Pharmaceutical Re Fulong
Co., Ltd. Chemical
5 IWRHMEHNZ(BM)FRAR HREAAR EEEED BETHE KR8 =
Shandong Xinhua Limited company ~ Germany Sales of Pharmaceutical Zhang Daiming
Pharmaceutical (Europe) Ltd. hamburger Chemical
6. HEHE-PHEHE AREMLAR IR & BRIHE EES 779742314
BREEAA
Zibo Xinhua — West Limited company  Zibo Shandon Manufacturing of Guo Qin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Pharmaceutical Chemical
7 RBHE-ANENE AREARA WRA BT BELIHEZ HES 746569703
BRERAT
Zibo Xinhua — Perrigo Limited company ~ Zibo Shandon Manufacturing of Guo Qin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Pharmaceutical Chemical
8. MENE(BR)ERAA AREAAA ESED Aii BRLIHE HES 793907875
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Limited company ~ Shouguang Manufacturing of Guo Qin
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. Shandong Pharmaceutical Chemical
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BRBEASEAERERXS (Z) 9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)
(—) BABFABREZ) (1) Related Party Relationships (continued)
2 FRE(E) B: Subsidiaries (continued)
2) Ea/NGIR RS b) registered capital of the subsidiaries and
BEARRHEE their changes
FneE FXeq
Balance at Balance at
FLoRER %E the beginning FEEM XERD the end
Name of subsidiaries currency of the year Additions Deductions of the year
RREREE S AR AR AR 48,499 — — 48,499
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ RMB
Trade Co., Ltd.
CLRFEREE L O ARE 3,000 2,000 - 5,000
BREARF
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ RMB
Import & Export Co., Ltd.
OSERERER G RARAA AEE 2,000 1,000 - 3,000
Zibo XinhuaPharmaceutical RMB
Design Institute Co., Ltd.
OB EREEERERAA ARE 2,000 — — 2,000
Zibo Xinhua drugstore chain RMB
Co., Ltd.
CEREESIE (BN ER A A BT 650 119 - 769
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ Euro
(Europe) Ltd.
OSTEIE -2 T 1,500 — — 1,500
BREAELA
Zibo Xinhua — West UsD
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
OREHE - BRHERR eV 6,000 — — 6,000
BEARAFA
Zibo Xinhua — Perrigo usb
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
CHENE(BR)ERAR ARE 86,000 44,000 - 130,000
Xinhua Pharmaceutical RMB

(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRATRERERZS (E) 9  Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)
(—) FAWBBREE) (1) Related Party Relationships (continued)
2 Foal (&) B: Subsidiaries (continued)
(3) HFNRBE ) Proportion of shareholding in subsidiaries
% Lt 51 o 8 2= and the changes
RHE
HRew R (%)
Amount of shareholding Proportion of
holding share shareholding (%)
FNeHE FEMLHI

EXREH Balance at FERLH Balance at
Balance at the  the beginning Balance at the  the beginning
FoEER Name of subsidiaries  end of the year of the year end of the year of the year

1R EES Shandong Xinhua Trade

BHERAA Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 48,499 47,529 100.00 99.76
2. IIEFEH ZEH Shandong Xinhua

OBFREMELDE  Pharmaceutical Import &

Export Co., Ltd. 5,000 3,000 100.00 99.52
3 NEHERE Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical

HRARAT  Design Institute Co., Ltd. 3,000 1,800 100.00 90.00
4, IEFEKREE  Zibo Xinhua drugstore

EHER AR chain Co., Ltd. 2,000 1,760 100.00 88.00

5. IR ETEE ] Shandong Xinhua
(BUM)BERAR  Pharmaceutical

(Europe) Ltd. 500 500 65.00 76.90

6. J§EHE—hF  Zibo Xinhua — West

HERR Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

LN 1,125 1,125 75.00 75.00
7OMERE Zibo Xinhua — Perrigo

— BFEE%E  Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

BREMRH 3,006 3,006 50.10 50.10
8. 4| % (Z%)  Xinhua Pharmaceutical

BRAA (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. 130,000 86,712 100.00 100.00
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BAEFTRERERSR (&) 9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)
(—) PRABEABRE(2Z) (1) Related Party Relationships (continued)
3. BEPFE C) Associates
LEEY Bt EHRE BEREF BRILA ARBERE
HRERLER Type of Place of Principal EARE Registered  Proportion of Code of
Name organization registration activities Legal person capital shareholding  organization
(%)
1URFERECI  BREMLA WRENED e A 20,000 40 776347140
BRAR
Shandong Xinhua ~ Limited Zibo Shandong ~ Manufacturing  Han zhigang
Longxin Chemical ~ company
& Industrial
Company Limited
2. WRHEREHMT HBREMAR WREENT  RiE% REE 22,000 35 788489533
REFRAA
Shandong Xinhua ~ Limited Zibo Shandong ~ Manufacturing ~ Zhu yuguo
Changxing company
Chemical
Equipment
Company Limited
3 RMEEMENE HREANE LRBEET  BER Ellise 26,929 20 61328152
BRATF
Shandong Zibo Limited Zibo Shandong ~ Manufacturing  Liu zhenwen
Xincat company
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
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Bt 35 SRR 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRAFRERERZR (&) 9 Related Party Relationships and

Transactions (continued)

(=) WBHMEE)

4. peyid- v

WEHEE

Name of related party

(1)

Related Party Relationships (continued)

D Other related parties

FRB R (%

Relationship

HBELAFRBZHIAR
Related transactions
with the company

Fikot 3 JAd ]
Code of
organization

WERHETERDER A

Shandong Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company Limited

IR E @ A T
BEREEAF

Shandong Xinhua Bobang
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

LR EBBCIER AR

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

WERHERGCIERRA

Shandong Xinhua Longxin
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

LWRMERELCIRE
BRAR

Shandong Xinhua Changxing
Chemical Equipment
Company Limited

IWEE B ERZER R DA

Shandong Zibo Xincat
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited

B HEHERRAR
Zibo DSM Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

R — & 2R

Under common control
of parent company

RE— & 2R

Under common control
of parent company

RPN L]
Under common control
of parent company

ZAUNE] ) f o
Associate of the Company

ADRBERE

Associate of the Company

ZRA— AL
LRAT
Under common control
of parent company
and partially held by the
Company
BARZ2KRAT
Partially held by
parent company

HEHNR=FE -
R R MR

Sale of power and waste
materials, and purchase
of raw materials

REBRM

164113351

75543013X

Purchase of materials

RERMH 720705295

Purchase of materials

REBREMH

Purchase of materials

776347140

HERM  EEM
R

Sale of equipments, work-

in-progress and technology

788489533

HEDN  HEFEE 61328152X
Sale of power and lease
of properties

SHE B ) R R
Sale of power and Purchase
of materials

613291664

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRATRERERZR (E) 9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)
(=) FAHES (2). Related Party Transactions
7. TEKE a) Pricing Policy
NN T8 E 4 B The price of sales of products to and purchases
B9 E fn DA N e A B of the materials from related parties is determined
BERMENERIE based on the market price.
TISEBIERTEER -
2. B & b) Purchase of materials
XFEEH FEeE
Amount of this year Amount of last year
ZHME
RES R\ Nature &8 i 40| &5 =]l
Name of Related Party of Transaction Amount  Proportion Amount Proportion
(%) (%)

LWEHFETIERHERRAA TR R E 4,518 0.70 5,756 0.76
Shandong Xinhua Industry Chemical materials

& Trade Company Limited and others
LWRHFEEBLCIERAA LIRH 35,446 5.50 52,595 7.03
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical materials

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited
LWRHFERBCIEREARA LIRE 9,590 1.49 25,941 3.61
Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical materials

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited
FHEHENERRA A HE R 35,027 5.43 47,807 6.34
Zibo DSM Pharmaceutical Chemical materials

Company Limited
WERHERELCIERAF LIRH 6,127 0.95 7,458 0.99
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical materials

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited
WRHFERECTIREERAR — - - 5,417 -

Shandong Xinhua Changxing

Chemical Equipment

Company Limited
WREEHEHEER R A Em 221 0.03 = =
Shandong Xincat Chemical & Pharmaceutical

Industrial Company Limited*
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRATRERERZS (E) 9 Related Party Relationships and

Transactions (continued)

270 |

(=) RABEXES (&) (2). Related Party Transactions (continued)
& HEEY c) Sale of goods
334 LE&8
Amount of this year Amount of last year
AHs R XAkHE &8 4] i (5l
Name of Related Party Transaction contents Amount  Proportion Amount Proportion
(%) (%)

LWRHFETERGERAA HEBN 933 3.31 = =
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Sale of power

Trade Company Limited
WERHETERNERRF HEZR 439 6.49 2,117 4.00
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Sale of wastes

Trade Gompany Limited (water, gas, solid)
LWERHEEBLIERAF HEBHN 1,914 6.79 = =
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Sale of power, waters

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited
WERHZEEBIHERAA HE=FE 1,191 17.63 4,918 5.18
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Sale of wastes

Chemical & Industrial (water, gas, solid)

Company Limited
LWRHFEERBLIERAA HERE 653 - = =
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Sale of sulphur

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited
B EEHEERAA HEBHN 3,862 13.69 4,302 17.47
Zibo DSM Pharmaceutical Sale of power

Company Limited
WRE B EHERRAA HEBN 1,266 4.49 1,533 6.23
Shandong Zibo XinCat Sale of power

Pharmaceutical

Company Limited

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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h. RBEFRERERS (EF) 9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Related Party Relationships and

Transactions (continued)

MBS (&) (2).
4. EZER d)
(1  fERER

AARHEFPBRRITEES
T8 ]85 A £ A50,000F
THENHE EXRHEA
200941 A48 £2010%1A3
(SRRN=RSE/NTCTHINE- S i3
EEBRE TR THIREER -

AANFEAPRRTNIED
T8 18 5 A& € A30,000F
THER SR ERHEA
2009458208 £201055A
19 HMEARILUERFERE
BHEFEAERETRAIREE
R o

AN FEPEE L ORT
EERDTERITERELA: A
150,000 F T ER W& - B
K HI B2009F108148 &
2011€E10A138 - B & A 7
ZIERBRERIEREES
FRAGREIER-

@) REERF

AARARFBRBREEITHR
MBERARSEEHEME
¥R ITRARITARL
& 2£55,220F jT * B 1L R FH
EREEBEEGRETAFIR
PR -

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S % R (5 5 R A 7

Related Party Transactions (continued)

Acceptance of guarantee
i Loan guarantee

The Company entered into a loan contract with
Zibo branch of China Bank with principal amount
of RMB50,000,000 for a period from 4 January
2009 to 3 January 2010. Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, the
loan was guaranteed by the Company’s parties
Company.

The Company entered into a loan contract with
Zibo branch of China Bank with a contracted
amount of RMB30,000,000 for a period from 20
May 2009 to 21 May 2010. Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, the
loan was guaranteed by the Company’s parties
Company.

The Company entered into a loan contract with,
Qingdao Branch of Export-Import Bank of China
with a contracted amount of RMB150,000,000
for a period from 14 October 2009 to 13 October
2011. The loan was guaranteed by the holding
Company of the Company’s parent Company,
Shandong Hualu Holding Group Company
Limited.

ii. Notes guarantee

During this year, the Company opened bank
acceptance notes of RMB55,220,000 through
branch of China Merchants Bank in Qingdao
high-tech development area. The notes were
guaranteed by the Company’s parent Company,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRATRERERZS (E) 9 Related Party Relationships and

Transactions (continued)

272 |

(=) AR (&) (2). Related Party Transactions (continued)

5. fE B ) 3 2 £ F ) e Purchase of monitory interests held by Shandong
B XinHua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
200947 H30H &~ On 30 July, 2009, The Company signed a
FEEFHFEEFRR property transaction contracts with Shandong
FEERSER M Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
233,700t R EHE AT that Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
BB KR 10%H Company Limited transfer, its 10% shares in Zibo
f # - LA394,9007T Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd and 12% shares
REEFBAENSE in Zibo Xinhua drugstore chain Co., Ltd to the
K BE[E12%H) f% 4 Company at the consideration of RMB233,700
NSRS R - and RMB394,900 respectively and paid for the
8,0007T ° related taxes totally of RMB8,000.

6. BEEHE ) Lease of Assets
1) BEHM 1. Lease-out assets

xHnE ZHERE x5S 58
Nature of Transaction Amount of Amount of
ARAaE Name of Related Party Transaction period current year last year
WERKEsES|E  Shandong Zibo XinCat FEHA 2009 1-5A4 132 361
ARAR Pharmaceutical Lease of 2009.1-5
Company Limited house
G Shandong Zibo Xinhua- EELA - 2 =
BRAHE Chemferm Lease of
Pharmaceutical warehouse
Company Limited
) BEMEAA 28 Lease-in assets
XHHE RAEHE 334 | LESH
Nature of Transaction Amount of Amount of
Loy Et Name of Related Party ~ Transaction  period current year last year
IWRHFEELEEE  Shandong Xinhua BARE 2 500 500
BREERH Pharmaceutical Group  Rent of house ~ Whole year
Company Limited

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Related Party Relationships and
Transactions (continued)

RBXS(E) (2). Related Party Transactions (continued)
7. Amx 5 g) Other Transactions
(1) R ERE 1. Trademark Using Fee
XFEEH
ABZHNE Amount LESEHE
Nature of of current Amount of
ABARE Name of Related Party Transaction the year last year
IR EREER  Shandong Xinhua Trademark 1,100 1,100
EREERA Pharmaceutical Group using fee
Company Limited HEERE
RIE A A AL R EH Pursuant to the Trademark License Agreement

EEBEBFREMT
N aEN1996F 1287
HEEZENC(HEREFER
A HEIRE IR
SEBHEEBARE
ARREEARRAH®
WA RGRAHE &
EINE SR BIE
BHEmE BFF
& B AR08 T
NESFREARE
0BT BEEFEE
B ERARBI108
TCR BN B0 - 3%
BERERREEER
HEEEER HEE
Wk FIAKIE -

signed by the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited and the Company
on 7 December 1996, the Company was
granted the exclusive right to use the trademark
“Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by the Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited for
its existing and future products in and outside
the PRC at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000
increasing at the rate of an extra RMB100,000
per year until the annual fee reaches the cap
amount of RMB1,100,000, which shall 1,100,000
stay as such until the agreement is terminated.

2 HE L 45 7 2. Service of rendering
XESH
ABRZHAE Amount LESH
Nature of of current Amount of
RABARB Name of Related Party  Transaction the year last year
5 1 2 0 18 5 % Shandong Zibo Xinhua- Design 50 12
BRATA Chemferm TELH RS
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
WWEHFERENLT Shandong Xinhua Design 11 12
FEARRF Changxing Chemical T&R RS
Equipment Company
Limited
LR FFEEE{L T Shandong Xinhua Wanbo  Design - 12
BRAHA Chemical & Industrial TR RS

Company Limited

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S % R (5 5 R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. BBRATRERERZS (E) 9 Related Party Relationships and

Transactions (continued)

274 |

(=) FABFERSEH (3) Current Account Balances with Related Party
FREH FUEHE
Balance at the Balance at the
RS RB Name of Related Party end of the year beginning of the year
JE U BR 3R Accounts receivable
IR E T BIRG Shandong Xinhua Industry &
BRAF Trade Company Limited 1,150 36,714
L] B V6 189 3y 3 ) 2k Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
BRAF Company Limited 274 2,718
TET BRI Advances to Suppliers
IWRHEEELT Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
ERAF Industrial Company Limited 10,585 10,748
R EREF(LT Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
BRAF Industrial Company Limited 1,757 1,481
E 8 R Other Receivable
IWRHETBER G Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade
BRAF Company Limited 8 8
R ERELT Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
HEBAR QA Equipment Company Limited = 1
FE S BRK Accounts Payable
IR ¥riE T EARMD B General managing branch of Shandong
UNGIE =< S /NG| Xinhua industrial & trading Co., Ltd. 934 826
IWRHETE RS
BRAREH A Chemical reagent branch of Shandong
gD A A Xinhua industrial & trading Co., Ltd. 229 356
LR ESELT Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
BERRAF] Industrial Company Limited - 660
IR EE AT Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &
BEREMLERF Industrial Company Limited 2,165 1,585
5 2 2 0518 ) %2 Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm
BRAF Pharmaceutical Company Limited 844 2,809
WEREHERELT Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
REBR QA Equipment Company Limited 76 76
L BRSS9 5 o) 22 Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
BRAF] Company Limited 116 116
E e T RK Other Payable
IR ZE TEiR G Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade
BRAE Company Limited - 2,648
L1 B V6 189 39y 3 ) 2k Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
BRRAA Company Limited 1 1
IWRHERELT Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
REER AT Equipment Company Limited 500 1,784

IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

+. XBFER 10. Contingencies
# IF2009F12A31H » A A Al EH The Company has no significant contingencies as at 31
EKXNHEFIAE - December 2009.
+— &RFEER 11. Commitment
1. EFINEEXEBRTHKR a) contracted for or Agreed-upon large-sum arrangement
HEBRER
HER®B
aRe#E RIRE
Items Contract Amount Amount Unpaid
BT EIE B Innovation Zone 115,148 88,416
EEZEEHESR L-380 Projects
(L-380)IE2 H 8,065 662
MRS IER lbuprofen Project 24,523 3,930
DKIE H DK Project 22,003 10,075
Ntk e i 18 B Pyrazolone Project 14,775 5,268
JEIKEIEIE B Waste Water Treatment Project 9,943 2,558
Bk IE B Sulfuric acid project 23,293 8,214
Hi Others 5,112 509
SEr Total 222,862 119,632
2. BEE L AEESEI - &I b) Other than as disclosed above, the Company has no
2009128318 ' AR Al fEE other capital commitments as at 31 December 2009.
MERFEHEEIE -
+o..SEEAREXAERER 12. Post Balance Sheet Date Events
E IF2009F12831H » KA Al E The Company has no significant subsequent events to be
RENEREEBERBREE- disclosed.
1= HMEEER 13. Other Important Events
& IF2009F12831H » &K /A Al E The Company has no significant other events to be disclosed.

BENEMERER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

TH.BAFMBHEREERABF 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

= statements
1. EUER 1. Accounts Receivable
(1) JE U BE S e 0 2E (1) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
EXeH FNeR
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
HIRER ERER

RH &8 lf%  Bad debts % k| fhl%  Bad debts b 1%
Items Amount proportion% Provision proportion% Amount  proportion% Provision  proportion%
EVEHEVNO) LG
Individually significant

accounts receivable 159,694 65.57 798 12.32 72,541 27.34 179 213
bR E R RKER K
Individually in-significant

accounts receivable 83,854 34.43 5,685 87.68 192,794 72.66 8,230 97.87
G
Total 243,548 100.00 6,483 100.00 265,335 100.00 8,409 100.00
BIESZEE ANEIK Individually significant accounts receivable
BE X A B IE5008 7T referred to as individual accounts receivable with
LA &) e AR K- & an amount over RMB5,000,000. The provision
HEHSEEANE for bad debts have been made on aging basis as
WEERETRE £ no impairment of individually significant accounts
EINWMED R - R receivable was found after the assessing.
FRREEFTHIREIR %
1 e

2)  EWRERFERE (2)  Aging Analysis
FXe8 R
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
WIRER BRER

HH &8f IH%  Bad debts g £ 1% Bad debts
ltems Amount proportion% Provision Amount  proportion% Provision
1F AR
Less than one year 237,771 97.62 1,676 227,916 85.90 659
1-26
1-2 years 1,047 0.43 209 5,646 2.13 228
2-3%
2-3 years 329 0.14 197 15,495 5.84 494
SEE
More than 3 years 4,401 1.81 4,401 16,278 6.13 7,028
ast
Total 243,548 100.00 6,483 265,335 100.00 8,409

2 7 6 | IR ERLE R F PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERABE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

B(E) statements (continued)
1. FEUBRE (&2) 1. Accounts Receivable (continued)
(3) R CE (A G IE E (3) Please refer to Notes 4.7 for the policy provision
R H o £ B K B i bad debts. The accounts receivable, which have
P~ 7 o ZK 4 J&F 4§ [5] been written off in previous year, recovered
A BT EJE B #% 35 1 [ during the year is RMB646, 000.
W Bk 50646 F T - B9
AT
FREHERERRSE
FBERA
Reason for
MRERE ZFEEOS provision made
T e B %% B3 g4 figeE ] and
RHEM # proportion Bad debts Amount reversal for the
Debtors Amount % Provision recovered year
eI 646 100% 646 646 =FI LRI
BREFERAF RE AR AR E
Shandong LINUO Aged more than three
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. years Judgement
was obtained
from court
(4) KEFIZRE N G ZE R (4) RMB1, 883,000 of accounts receivable aged over
HIEEEE S T EE 3 years has been written off in 2009 according to
B = FEL FaEK R the Company’s accounting policy.
#1,883F T °
(5) FREUBE R EE (5) At the end of year, accounts receivable do not
TEEARNRNG5% (& include receivable from shareholders holding
5%) WU _FFKFER G 5% (inclusive) or more of the Company’s voting

HIR B B 7 KK e capital.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S % R (5 5 R A 7 | 2 7 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

T BARMBHEREEREF

"=

1. R (Z)

(6)

A B3 AR B S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUARB T AR
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REFESHERGER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial
statements (continued)
1. Accounts Receivable (continued)
F 7 JE UG BE 71 B4 58 BT (6) At the end of year, the balance of accounts
AL EN R = 58 receivable due from the top five debtors is
B5F146,669F T ~ Lt RMB146, 669,000, accounting for 60.22% of the
1l 560.22% + BE 4 40 total balance of accounts receivable.
:
BfiaiE BELAFIRE &8 Eie HH%
Name of equity Relationships Amount Aging Proportion %
WRMEBEZFERLA 2EFAA 1E AR
Shandong Xinhua Wholly-owned 99,788  Less than one year 40.97
Pharmaceutical Tread subsidiary
Co., Ltd.
IR EE I 2 (BUM) AR AR BRF AR 1E AR
Shandong Xinhua Non wholly-owned 20,229  Less than one year 8.31
Pharmaceutical (Europe) subsidiaries
Co., Ltd.
Recofarma industria JE@EEE 1 AR
do amazonas Itd
Recofarma industria Non-related parties 9,248  Less than one year 3.80
do Amazonas Itd
IS (BK) AR AR 2EFAR 1E AR
Shandong Xinhua Wholly-owned 8,897 Less than one year 3.65
Pharmaceutical subsidiary
(Shouguang) Co.,Ltd.
BEHEERBRAERAR JERARE 1FE AR
Bayer Healthcare Co., Ltd. Non-related parties 8,507 Less than one year 3.49
Bt
total 146,669 60.22

IR ERLE R A PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERAE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

L JE=P) statements (continued)
1. B iR (&) 1. Accounts Receivable (continued)

(7) F K JE Y BR 51 6p BE AR (7) At the end of year, the balance of accounts
JE UG B F T 2R IE A A receivables due from the related parties is
130,744F 7T » H ¥ RMB130, 744,000, accounting for 53.68% of the
A53.68% - BH A1 20 total balance of accounts receivable, details as
o follow:

HEATFME & (SHEEH%
Hf&iE Name of equity Relationships Amount Aging
IWERFEEZZ S Shandong Xinhua 2EFAA 99,788 40.97
BR AT Pharmaceutical Trade Wholly-owned
Co., Ltd. subsidiary
L) B 3 ) ek Shandong Xinhua b S /N 20,229 8.31
(BUM) BRR A A Pharmaceutical Non wholly-
(Europe) Co., Ltd. owned
subsidiaries
ST FE-RPEHI % Shandong Xinhua-West b S A/NEC] 406 0.17
BEREARA Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Non wholly-
owned
subsidiaries
I B (R Shandong Xinhua 2EFRA 8,897 3.65
BRAF] Pharmaceutical Wholly-owned
(Shouguang) Co.,Ltd. subsidiary
BRI E S22 Shandong Zibo XinCat il 274 0.11
BRAA Pharmaceutical Joint venture

Company Limited

B #FHETZR Shandong Xinhua o th 8 B 1,150 0.47
BRAR Industry & Trade Other related
Company Limited parties
BEr Total 130,744 53.68
* AATEHILE The Company made full provision for bad debts for the
FETERHA amount due from Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Co.,
R ) e R R Ltd .
2RETIRERE
# o

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1L 5 5 2= 81 %% i85 5 IR A & | 2 7 9



KRB MRMEERRAFRI RN - HUARY T IR
,E\Z i% iﬁ 2‘% Bﬁ- %I (/’éEEE) Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMTE’OS(—)

REFESHERGER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

TH.BAFMBHEREERAF 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

B#|(E) statements (continued)
1. FEUBRSR (22) 1. Accounts Receivable (continued)
(8) EWBEF 611 LT (8) The ending balance of accounts receivable
SN REE - denominated in the foreign currencies is as
follows:
FXed MR
Balance at the end of the term Balance at the beginning of year
R% nHEX HEAR% Rtk NEEX  HEARK
SRR Original  Exchange  Translated Original Exchange  Translated
Item Currency Rate into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
e
usD 14,136 6.8282 96,523 15,904 6.8346 108,695
2. 3 il FE U =R 2 Other Receivables
(1) BtERSERE S (1) Risk Classification of Other Receivable
FXEH ENeH
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
LL#% BIEEG :4: 13 ERER
EH &%  Proportion  Baddebts  Proportion ki 1% Bad debts $t. 5%
Items Amount % Provision % Amount  Proportion % Provision  Proportion %
BESEERNENER
Individually significant
accounts receivable 97,708 92.27 6,196 86.20 6,196 19.76 6,196 90.22
At A ERR BN
Individually in-significant
accounts receivable 8,187 1.73 992 13.80 25,156 80.24 672 9.78
ait
Total 105,895 100.00 7,188 100.00 31,352 100.00 6,868 100.00
BEHSHEEANH Individually significant other receivable referred
fth & IR 3K & B TH500 to as individual other receivable with an amount
BT ERE M E IR over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts
N oREHEESBEE have been made on aging basis as no impairment
R HY E th FE IR AT of individually significant other receivable was
RE - AR EIRBED found after the assessing.
KR R R R G
RIBARER -
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

T BARMBHEREEREF

Bt 35 SRR B 5 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

L JE=P) statements (continued)
2, HthEW (&) 2 Other Receivables (continued)
@) H 1t JE AR e (2)  Aging Analysis
FXeH FUeE
Balance at the end of the year Balance at the beginning of the year
R ERERE

HH &8 KH%  Bad debts Ea %  Bad debts
Iltems Amount Proportion % Provision Amount  Proportion % Provision
1R
Less than 1 year 85,932 81.15 9 12,011 38.31 2
128
1to 2 years 1,974 1.86 2 9,810 31.29 7
2—-3F
210 3 years 9,563 9.03 55 752 2.40 16
SE
Over 3 years 8,426 7.96 7,122 8,779 28.00 6,843
Bt
Total 105,895 100.00 7,188 31,352 100.00 6,868

(8)  EEREFEHGIER X (3 Please refer to Notes 4.7 for the policy of
RO 2 2 KB it provision for bad debts.
Pq 7

(4) FREAEMBW B (4) The ending balance of other receivable include
B & A OB deductable input VAT, output VAT for exporting
JEE BT B 1E 1N 55 HE5R A before applying to customs. No bad debts
WEHERGTIEER provision is made on these items.

(5) FREMBEWF B (5) At the end of year, the balance of other
PR ERFARLDEE% receivable do not include receivable from
(B5%) U L ZKFE shareholders holding 5%or (inclusive) more of the

R AR R E(L R

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S % iR (5 5 R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TN BARMBHEREEREF

"=

2. HEek (&)

(6)

FRAMEW R EE
B 7145 19 R it JE YL
TEA 102,719
TT 1Bl FE W AR
BEHI97% - BRI T -

AP B MRMEERRISRI RN - HUARY T IR
Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000
RIEPEEHER AR

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial
statements (continued)

2 Other Receivables (continued)

(6) At the end of year, the balance of other receivable
due from the top five debtors is RMB102,719,000,
accounting for 97% of the total balance of other
receivable, details as follow:

L {ok:1] HELTRE &8 BE GRELA% MHHEIRE
Name of equity Relationships Amount  Aging Proportion%  Nature or content
TEGE (FF) BRAA £ -GN 80,188 1FLRA 7572 ARE%
Shandong Xinhua Wholly-owned Less than Current amount
Pharmaceutical subsidiary one year
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.
LWRNEBEEHBRAR 2BFAH 11,324 1-3%F 1069 AR
Shandong Xinhua Wholly-owned 1to 3 year Current amount
Pharmaceutical Trade subsidiary
Co., Ltd.
[ERERSH" e 6,196  3FLAE 585 EREMEHR
Rebate of income tax Non-related Less than Rebate of income tax
parties 3 year
FRELER 1) 3,406  1FLARA 322 FRELEW
Value-added-pending Non-related Less than Value-added-pending
for certification parties one year for certification
HERERESIARARAR  2EFRA 1,605 1-3F 152 ARH
Shandong Xinhua Wholly-owned 1to 3 year Current amount
Pharmaceutical subsidiary
Design Institute Co., Ltd.
Ast
Total 102,719 97.00
n JE R B T2 B D * All rebate of income tax have been provisioned for
RIS % S bad debts.
RERT IR -
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2 B 36 AR I S BRAS RIS BASN - SIUARB T IR

Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000 ,E\ZI- z% *ﬁ 2% Bﬂ- %I (nifﬁs)

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERABE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

B(E) statements (continued)
2, HthEW (&) 2 Other Receivables (continued)
(7) F KA M E U (7) At the end of the year, the balance of other
BE o JE KBS B 7 receivable due from the related parties is RMB93,
IH & 5193,5604F 7T 504,000 , accounting for 88.30% of the total
1 AL it JE Y 5K 48 BB Y balance of other receivable, details as follow:

88.30% - BAAILZA T -

HBENTFIRME &8 (HR#ERA%
BERRE Name of equity Relationships Amount Proportion %
IR #HHEREZ S Shandong Xinhua tread 2 & F A 7 11,324 10.69
ERAA Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Wholly-owned
subsidiary
IR ETE S| S5 E O Shandong Xinhua 2EFRA 70 0.07
EREERA Pharmaceutical Wholly-owned

Import & Export Co., Ltd. subsidiary

S 18 T 3 BE Shandong Xinhua 2EFRE 1,605 1.62
Rt BR AR Pharmaceutical Wholly-owned

Design Institute Co., Ltd.  subsidiary

SMETE-RAESIE  Zibo Xinhua-West 2l S NG 100 0.09
BRETAR Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Non wholly-
owned
subsidiary
St T AT Zibo Xinhua drugstore 2EFRA 217 021
EHEARAQA chain Co., Ltd. Wholly-owned
subsidiary
2 B (] k) Shandong Xinhua 2EFAF 80,188 75.72
BRA A Pharmaceutical Wholly-owned

(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. subsidiary

AEr Total 93,504 88.30
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TH.BAFMBHEREEZRAF 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

®|(E) statements (continued)
3. RHREERSE 3. Long-term equity investment
(1) REBRERE (1) Long-term equity investment
FRXeH FH&E
Balance at the Balance at the
IHH Items end of the term beginning of year
B A EZH Using cost method 223,124 176,284
UL B
REREZE Using equity method 27,992 25,631
RHEIRERE
REIBREIRFISR Total long-term equity 251,116 201,915
investment
B REIRR R Less: provision for impairment = —
RERELEH loss of Long-term
equity investment
RHEIBRHEIREBE Net amount of Long-term 251,116 201,915

equity investment

2 8 4 | IR FERER G R QT Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERAE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial
B](E statements (continued)

3. RUKRERSE (& 3. Long-term equity investment (continued)
2) LR AR E S X 2) Using cost method and Equity Method

FERSHH

RREA FNeE FXReH Cash

Proportion of RRELA e Balance at Balance at Dividends

HRRENER shareholding  Proportion of Original ~the beginning 32 XERD  theendof  receivedin
Name of investee % voting % amount of the year Additions  Deductions the year the year

BFENE
Using cost method
1. WRFEREE S 100% 100% 48,582 47,529 1,053 - 48,582 -
BRAA
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Trade
Co., Ltd.
2. MEHERERHR 100% 100% 3,038 1,800 1,238 = 3,038 =
BRAR
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Co., Ltd.
3 HENMEAEEEH 100% 100% 2,159 1,760 399 - 2,159 -
BRAR
Zibo Xinhua drugstore
chain Co., Ltd.
4. WRFESIE (BN) 65% 65% 4,597 4,597 - - 4,597 -
BRAR
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical
(Europe) Ltd.
5 MEHE-hEHE 75% 75% 9,008 9,008 - - 9,008 -
BREFAA
Zibo Xinhua-West
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
6. HENE-BTRHE 50.10% 50.10% 24,877 24,877 = = 24,877 2,004
BREFAR
Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
7. FEHE(BH)ERAR 100% 100% 130,713 86,713 44,000 - 130,713 -
Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.
8. WRHEGIZELD 2% 2% 150 = 150 = 150 =
BREFAA
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical
Import & Export Co., Ltd.

it
Subtotal 176,284 46,840 223,124 2,004
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

TH.BAFMBHEREERABE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

B](E statements (continued)
3. RERRERSE (2 3. Long-term equity investment (continued)
2) LA E S R E 2) Using cost method and Equity Method
(4&) (Continued)
FEREHH
RRELE FNe8 B33 1] Cash
Proportion of  ERHELA MiE&E  Balanceat Balance at Dividends
BREEHER shareholding  Proportion of Original ~ the beginning FEEm FERD  theendof  receivedin
Name of investee % voting % amount of the year Additions  Deductions the year the year
ERENE
Using equity method
1 WRHERENLT 40% 40% 10,000 9,843 (197) — 9,646 —
BRAR
Shandong Xinhua Longxin
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited
2. IRHERENIR 35% 35% 7,700 3,535 451 = 3,986 =
BRAR
Shandong Xinhua Changxing
Chemical Equipment
Company Limited
3 IREEENE 20% 20% 10,179 12,253 4,657 2,550 14,360 2,550
BRAR
Shandong Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
it
Subtotal 25,631 4,911 2,550 27,992 2,550
&t
Total 201,915 51,751 2,550 251,116 4,654
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERABE 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

BE statements (continued)
3. RERERSE (&) 3. Long-term equity investment (continued)
(3) HEEPE BHED (3) Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates
FRE
RELB (%)
&% R EBnE HMEE  Proportion of FEHLLH (%)
HRERARE Corporation  Place of EAKE Business Registered shareholding Proportion of
Name of investee type representative Legal person  scope capital (%) voting (%)
HELR
Joint Ventures
1LURHERECT  BREMLA WRENET B0 RiE% 20,000 40 40
BRAR
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Limited Shandong Zibo Han Zhigang ~ Manufacturing
Chemical & Industrial company
Company Limited
2WRHERECT  BEREALE WREENT KEE SUER 22,000 35 35
REERAF
Shandong Xinhua Limited Shandong Zhu Yuguo Manufacturing
Changxing Chemical company Bingzhou
Equipment
Company Limited
SWFEENEHE  HREANE LREEET RN SUER 26,929 20 20
BRAR
Shandong Zibo XinCat ~ Limited Shandong Zibo  Liu Zhenwen  Manufacturing
Pharmaceutical company
Company Limited
(4) AR RERERE (4) No provision for impairment has been made and
TIHFEREBFE K no evidence indicates any impairment of long-
TR A & Jdl 18 2E term equity investment of the company.
o
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TH.BAFMBHEREERAF 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

B#|(E) statements (continued)
4. BEIKA - BEREF 4 Operating Income and Operating Costs
(1) ERWA - ERZLHK (1) Operating Income and Operating Costs
XEEHE tEFEe®m
Amount of this
I5H Item year Amount of last year
FEEFKRA Income for main operation 1,518,969 1,448,188
H A ZE B A Income for other operation 40,332 53,183
ZEEWMAER Total 1,559,301 1,501,371
FEEBAR Cost for main operation 1,192,036 1,256,908
HAth ZE R A Cost for other operation 47,754 55,099
BERESR Total 1,239,790 1,312,007
2 T EEFEINAK T — @) Income and Costs from Main Operation—
BEdn 7 Classified by Products
XESH rE&8
Amount of this year Amount of last year
KA 543 WA BN
ERER Types income cost income cost
JR e} 8% Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,104,781 840,044 1,101,191 952,749
Heo: Including: 745,847 589,351 756,387 681,453
REEE T O Export sales

278 Preparations 414,111 351,915 346,807 303,969
LT REAM Chemical and others 77 77 190 190
a5t Total 1,518,969 1,192,036 1,448,188 1,256,908
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RIEHES R HER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

T BARMBHEREEREF
L G-

14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

statements (continued)

4. BEWA BERES(Z) 4 Operating Income and Operating Costs (continued)
(3) BAEEFR&EZIWK (3) Operating Income from top five customers
N -
XELH EE1 (%)
Amount of this
EFREGB Name of customers year Proportion (%)
IWERFEEEZ S  Shandong Xinhua 359,115 23.64
BRAA Pharmaceutical Trade
Co., Ltd.
Pepsi-cola int |. Pepsi-cola int |. 59,799 3.94
FHBERRE Bayer Healthcare Co., Ltd. 53,090 3.50
BRAA
1Ly B ) 2 Shandong Xinhua 51,866 3.41
(BUM) BR A F] Pharmaceutical (Europe) Ltd.
Perrigo Perrigo 29,732 1.96
a5t Total 553,602 36.45
5. BrEkE 5 Investment Gain
(1) B W 75 KR (1) The source of investment gain or loss
XELH tEe®E
EERSE Sources of Investment Amount of this
I §=3: 0§ gain or loss year Amount of last year
R EZE R Long-term equity investment 4,912 2,119
REARR income accounted for
K& W= using equity method
REMHEE Investment income from 2,996 4,018
A E M Available-for-sale financial
S HI% & W assets during the
period of ownership
FRAIDA Dividends from subsidiaries 2,004 620
A&t Total 9,912 6,757
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TN BARMBHEREEREF
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5. wEka (E)
2 RBzIEEHRAK
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial
statements (continued)

5 Investment Gain (continued)

2) Income from long-term equity investments

R E W accounted for using equity method
XELE FFIREE
XESH LESE BOFRA
Amount of Amount of The reason for
HH Items this year last year change
IR FEMREZ/ T Shandong Xinhua longxin (197) (521) WITE BRI
BRAA Chemical Industry ST I B B (b
Co., Ltd. Net profit changes
in the investee
IWERFHERE/ALT  Shandong Xinhua 451 (2,213) WA BN
HEBBR AR Changxing Chemical FREEZ
Equipment Co., Ltd. Net profit changes
in the investee
RSB EHIZB  Shandong Zibo Xincat 4,658 4,853 HWI/RE B
BRAHA Pharmaceutical SEFIE &L
Co., Ltd. Net profit changes
in the investee
o Total 4,912 2,119
A A E Was 8 There is no significant restriction on the returns

BN FEEARS

290 |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

TH.BARMBHEREEREE 14.

Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

Bg|(E) statements (continued)
6. BAGIBRESREREREEH 6. Supplementary information on the Company’s cash
flow statement
XELH +FESE
Amount of this
HH Item term Amount of last term
1. ¥BFHABMEEE 1. Reconciliation of net income
EEHERE to cash flows from
operating activities
FHE Net profit 98,893 30,515
m: BERBEER Add: Provisions for impairment (88) 3,504
loss of assets
BEEEFNE Depreciation of 104,617 103,785
fixed assets
B EEHE Amortization of 4,479 4,412
intangible assets
REBTEE - Losses on disposal of 16,512 5,656
mEEMN fixed assets, intangible
HthREIEE assets and other
K18 2K (W= long-term assets
LAT() &%) (or bracket: gains)
AR EEZHE Profit or loss from (7,379) 23,276
7 (Y BA changes in fair value
[()JsRES) (or bracket: gains)
FHER (ks Financial expense 27,148 13,250
LAT()]4E%) (or bracket: gains)
wEBKR (W= Investment loss (9,912) (6,757)
LAT()J3EF) (or bracket: gains)
BEMBHEE Decrease in deferred
&Y 4> (3850 tax assets (or bracket:
BAT()13E%1) increase)
RIEFFEHEE Increase in deferred tax 9,031 (45,623)
Y15 hn Ot 2> liabilities (or bracket:
LAT() &%) decrease)
FEHRD (3 Decrease in inventories (14,231) (15,438)
BRBAT()] (or bracket: increase)
E5)
4 R IRIE B Decrease in operating (17,958) (105,513)
H9 R > (380 receivables (or bracket:
LAT()J4&EZ) increase)
EEENIER Increase in operating 113,802 44,583
&Y 38 50 Ol 2> payables (or bracket:
BAT()13E%1) decrease)
METEBEER Net cash flows from 324,914 55,650
RenEFH operating activities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

TH.BAFMBHEREERAF 14. Main items’ notes of the Company’s financial

L JE=P) statements (continued)
6. BATIRSEEREREEH 6. Supplementary information on the Company’s cash
(&) flow statement (continued)
XESH rESH
Amount of this
HAE Item term Amount of last term

2. XFRESWIH 2. Significant investing and

EXEEM financing activities not
REED: involving cash receipt
or payment:
BEBERE R Conversion of debts to capital - —
—F AR R Convertible bonds due
I /N within one year - =
MEBRABTEE Fixed assets acquired on

finance lease - =
3. BeRB£EEY 3. Changes in cash and

PEHER - cash equivalents:
Re K RERER Ending balance of cash 259,613 140,632
B Rer YR Less: beginning balance of cash 140,632 163,318
m: ReFEHH Add: ending balance of
HIR 458 cash equivalents - =
W BeSEEne Less: beginning balance of
HA ¥ EAEE cash equivalents - —
ReERBREEEY Net increase in cash and
I NER cash equivalents 118,981 (22,686)
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15 Supplementary information

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(F)ERBUBERE
Ba - BEER
REEREER
HRSEER D

(D) FAEHBRROK
ISRCEIRREEEYN
AIERRERH
YA A
BIRBRAT »
BR—EREE
HATERE=S
B BUR 78 Bh BR
o

E)BRRAARNERES
EBRBNER
EMREER
S BERSM
TREE RP
HeBABEELE
WAREEED
Ba - AREE
XHLeHE
E RHEEE

BEMAEEE
SRMEERMEH
BB

() B Bl & B2 SN E
ft & EHNE AR
it

=X

B BRI E

FEFHBRESEH

Ho: BBREAT

PR

1) Statement of Non-recurring profit and loss
FE&H
Amount of IREA
Items this year Notes
Gains and losses, including the write-off portion (17,333) REEBETEERX
of provision for impairment loss on assets Loss of disposal
of fixed assets
Government subsidies in profit and loss of 2,568 WEIMETAEH
the year, but except for the subsidies that BEMOBTHD
are closely related to the Company’s normal Received
operations, in line with national policies and government
regulations, and subsidies in accordance with subsidies
certain standards of quotas or quantity that reckon into
the Company continually enjoys current term
Except for the normal operations associated 10,586 EHIZAEAA(EME
with the Company effective hedging business, FHRAMFLE
gain or loss held-for-trading financial assets, EREENL
held-for-trading financial liabilities, as well as Change in fair
incomes gains from the disposal of held-for- value foreign
trading financial assets and financial liabilities exchange
and available for sale of financial assets forward
contracts &
dividends of
held-for sale
financial assets
In addition to the above ,the non-operating (1,767)
income and expenditure;
Total (5,946)
Less: Income tax effect 897
Total non-recurring net gain or loss (6,843)
Including:  attributable to shareholders of (6,815)

the Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

+HE.WRERHE (A 15
2. HWASEHENTEHBS 2)
=R

A B 1R BRIE S & 5t R 4R
o B & wT 2E R4 BR A B 7
ERFNEMFEEZRS
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Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

Supplementary information (continued)

Accounting data differences due to the accounting

standards

The differences in net income and net assets in
accordance with foreign accounting standards and
Chinese accounting standards are details as follow:

AT
BAE BEE
Net profit Net assets
XELH FEEE XERH FFe®
Amount of Amount of Amount of Amount of
- =| Items this year last year this year last year
REoNe =X According to foreign 99,687 30,064 1,644,503 1,466,534
il SRS SN accounting standards
=B Adjustments
1. EWmER 1. Revaluation of - — (21,300) (21,300)
BERE assets on listing
2, EfLIMEITE 2. Additional 1,432 409 21,300 19,868
depreciation
of revalue assets
depreciation
3. HEEES 3. Education provision 1,421 (786) (12,772) (14,193)
4. RIEMBIFHTZE 4. Impact on deferred (428) (692) 1,915 2,344
income tax
5. TRARIZBENA 5. Provision for staff 132 = - —
GEHERRR bonus made
HY B T 48 B by subsidiaries
in accordance with
Chinese Accounting
Standards
6. BNEHS 6. welfare reserve fund - 4,993 - —
7. H 7. others - (22) - —
=BG Subtotal of adjustments 2,557 3,902 (10,857) (13,281)
B E2EH28])  Amount according to 102,244 383,966 1,633,646 1,453,253
RS/ ‘Accounting Standard

for Enterprises’
attributable to
the Company

IR ERLE R A PR A F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000 ,E\ZI- z% i& 2% Bﬂ- %I (”f':é—?)

RIEPESHERHER

Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

+hH.#REEHZ) 15 Supplementary information (continued)
3. PRENSERFERIS 3) Return on equity and earnings per share
SR
Earnings per share
mEFIYREE
ks REsRKE
weighted EXFRIKS Diluted
Profits of the average Return Basic earnings earnings per
BETIE reporting period on equity per share share
EBEBRERQA Net profit attributable to of 6.83% 0.22 0.22
% A 5 AR the Company
shareholders
MR IELFEMIBEE%  Net profit after deducting 7.28% 0.24 0.24
FERE AR non-recurring gains
& 32 895 F)E and losses , attributable
to shareholders of
the Company
K. MEHmERE 16. Approval of Financial Statements
R B B E N2010F4 A9 A A A The Financial Statements have been approved to report by the
AEESHERD - Board of Directors on 9 April 2010.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited L3R #ZE S %% iR (5 5 R 2 7 | 2 95
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Documents Available for Inspection

(i) HEEER UKEEA BBEE (i) Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
REAVEEMSFHRE - signed by the Chairman of the Board, the financial controller of
the Company and appropriate accounting staff.

(i) HESMELMEE Tt (ii) Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
Mg EENETRERGT - signed by the Certified Public Accountants both from domestic
and international auditors with their respective company seals.

(iii) MEHAEFREFESIETHRA L (iii) All original copies of the Company’s announcement and
ARBEBOE QA XHH ER Company’s documents made in newspapers designated by the
RAERRT - CSRC in the reporting period.

(iv) ARG (RRIER) (iv) The Articles of Association of the Company.

m%%ﬁ#%‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁ :




IR ERERGBRAT

it - hERE S ETERRITEREZEELCIE
#4R - 255005

5% : 86-533-216 6666

fEE : 86-533-228 7508

#8it - http://www.xhzy.com

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Address: Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC
Postal Code: 255005

Tel : 86-533-216 6666

Fax : 86-533-228 7508

Website : http://www.xhzy.com
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